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'Inwtatlon to the Annual General Meetmg

-"'-:.;',on Monday, 8 :May’*ZOOG at 10
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We. 1nv1te our. shareholders to. attend the
Annual General Meetlng, which w111 be held

iy
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This is a'translation of the invitation and agenda to the Annual General "

Meetmg of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG. Only the German version - |
of this document is legally binding on Hypo Real Estate Holding . AG. -
Every efforl has been made to ensure the accuracy ofthls translatlon,
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Enclosures, 29 March 2006 LR

s

v

- for the fmancnal year 2005

consolldate_ fmancla : ents forthe penod endmg i
31.December 2005, the. fmanﬂal reviews for Hypo Real ,
Estate Holdmg AG and for the Group as well as the reports
of the, Supervisory. Board and the Management Board

.Zi... T

From the- moment at Wthh the notlce of the Annual
GeneraléMeetmg is published," the above-me
documents are avallable for 1nspect10n b hareholders

in the offices of " . _
Hypo Real- Estate Holdlng AG . e T
Unsoidstraﬁe 2, 80538 Munrch Germany ;
andonl the Internetat -~~~ = R A

www hyporealestate com

2, Adoptlon of a. resolutlon concernmg the appropnat:c;n :

of cumulatwe profits

w1ll be approprlated as follows
Payment ofa dlvrdend of €1.00 .
per no- par-value share for ¢

134 072, 175 no- par value shares' € 134 072 175 00

=

Earrungs to be retamed i €i§1:13‘,,§500,0.0_0.'-00-"

Earnlngs 1o be rrled forward

_ to the new account S _ 1'_: -l _§.5681,0_8£1};.99;

‘;-Tota_l':Ofgé'u_muglativé: profits /1. = €248,253,263.99

proflts i 2005 _f ‘248 253 263 99

. v
L . o
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Enclo

_The Supervisory Board and the Management Board prop-

| of Assocnat:on

- ose that the actions be approved

.‘E

The?Gener‘al M.e‘eting;'on ‘ili‘}u’ne';ZEOOf-l created: authorised

- capital stock enabling the, Company te procure. equlty

i

oapltal resources at short IlOthB ‘and not’ dependlng on

¢ theiann alicycle-of general 'meetlngs‘rlt is intended to

Lontmue.thls "ﬂex1b1e means f -'equlty p__ocurement

stock resolutron Furthermore the resolutlon 1s to al-

low"the issue of new. shares to ' members, of the Man- . -

agement Board and employees of the Hypo Real’ Estate
Holding AG (“Company”); and to members of the man-
agement boards or boards of d1rectors and employees of

sures, 20 March 2006 "
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of the 'Superv1s ory. Board up to a total of 201 108 261 00
by‘issuing-upito 67, 036 087.. new:no- par value bearer
shares agalnst contrlbutlons in cash or in klnd Share-

“In the caseé of cap1ta1;1ncreases D return for cash cont-
ributions;, the Management Board ‘shall:be authorlsed '
: tolexclude the shareholders pre emptlve rlghts sub}ect :

to: the prov1so ;hat the shares 1ssued w1thspr

LT

rlghts excluded-in accordance w1th '§ 186-Para. 3 Sent 4
German Stock Corporatlon Act (Aktrengesetz AktG}
do not exceed 10 % of the nomlnal capltal ‘and only, to
the . extent: that,“with: the exclusion - of'shareholders

B

pr"". emptlve nghts in accordance w1th_§186 Para 3

Sent; 4 AktG ‘no. use- has.been Inade of the author—

Enclosures, 20 March 2006 . Page 4 of 245




; | In addltlon ~the Management Board shall be authorlsed( .
! _;sub]ect 1n each case:to the approval of the Supervrsory '

‘‘‘‘‘‘

Board to exclude shareholders pre- emptlve rlghts with © f

ok respect 1o fractlonal amoun_ts and to. exclude.the pre- g} ‘
" 16 Shareholders to'the ext“ nt neces- l
ghts{ for new shares -to;- the”

an extent as such holders would be entrtled to after jf"
i havmg exercrsed the1r convers1on or optlon r1ghts

B . L N ‘ig
in § 60 Para 2 Sent 3 AktG may be defmed for these l
new shares .Shares rssued to. members of the manage— !
f

STTL L LEmrai h = . - P

. hare caprtalaof the Company by 7 May 2011 erther
once or several tlmes and sub]ect to the consent of the ol

T suz

If shares are 1ssued agalnst contrlbutlons in klnd the

:
i
b i & E 7 . A vt
:
;
|
.
:

{

f
= Management Board -is!aut_horlsed to exclude the share- .
| “ﬂ holders pre_i" rn"ptrve rlghts sub]ect to the approval of .

]

#

B Ll e e R A P L SR A
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-<“"tr1butlons .--the Management Board is: author1sed to ex- -

. clude the shareholders pre- emptlve rrghts sub]ect to

g the approval of the; ',"Supermsory Board; if. thealssue
prloe is not s1gn1flcantly lower than market prrce How—

‘Management .'Board and employees of' the_ Company
'~_‘l’sand 1o memberstof the management boards or boards
. of dlI‘BCtOI‘S and’ employees of afflllated compames

¥ _‘ | shareholders pre 'emptrve rrghts to the extent neces—
i sary to grant pre emptlve rlghts forinew: shares to the
"~ “holders of conversion .or_option. rlghts 1ssued by the
'“"Company at the ‘pomt at whrch the authorlsed caprtal

The‘ Management Board 1sq authorlsed subject to ,the
o approval of the‘* Supervrsory Board to: deflne the addl-
tlonal stock corporatron law cond1t1ons for the 1ssue of

Enclosures, 29~1\‘r_'larch 200
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If: shares are, Jssued ‘against: contrrbutwns 1n‘k1nd the

~ scription r;ght of the: shareho]ders subject to the ap-

increa ed 1n‘i ‘eturn for cash contrrbutrons a subscr:p-

Y i ik Tnpmy:

thI‘l rrght. must be granted._sto‘the shareho]ders ‘Ho w-

of cap1ta] 1ncreases m'return for cash contm‘butrons,
to: exclude ‘ther subscrrptwn' r1ght of - the shareho]ders
sub}ect to the approva] of the Superwsory Board If the
JSSUB ‘price’is not SJganJCantIy lower: than ‘the market
prrce However thrs authonsatron is® onIy apphcab]e!.
subject 10. the prowso{ hat the ‘shares Jssued w1th‘sub !
ghts ,zexcl_uded in accordance with .‘§ 186

_ scnptmn__ ri

HI

Para 3:Sent. "AktG do notexceed 10 % of the nonnna]‘

ap:tal,‘;an nl' to_the extent that, with Kthe!exclusmn
of shareh o]ders subscn ptlon rrgn tsin accordance with
§$186- Para 3 Sent 4 AktG,,no ‘use has been made of

the authonsatron to issue. partral debenture bonds

proposed to the Genera] Meetmg of4 ]une '2004;in‘ac:
cordance‘_ Wzthlltem. 6 of the agenda :In add;t;én the ‘_

e s

uthor:sed- sub]ect 1n €d; h_case

; fractronalvamounts and to. exc]ude the subscrjptron

r1ghts of the shareho]ders to the extent necessary ‘to
grant SUbSCI‘IptIOH rlghts for new shares to. the holders
of convers:on ‘or optron r1ghts 1ssued by the company

" Management Board anauthonsed to’ exc]udeﬁthe sub-=<

prova] of the Superwsory Board If the. shar 5 cap1ta1 i5
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Enclosures, 29 March

‘partlmpatxo entrt]ement, h:ch d1ffers rom hat spec-

M LN e o
. TR SO R . et
LB '
‘—*5 ' !

‘nghts The Management Board is authonsed sub;ect '
~to'the approva] of 1 the Superwsory Board, to define. the
add1t10na] stock COI‘pOI’atIOH ]aw cond1t10ns for the 1s-

'_ e defmed for

N X .- . . :

‘ c) The ex1st1ng authonsatzon vahd untll 3 Iune 2009

to, increase the share Capltal of the Company by up ‘to

I
|
i
F
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securltles pro\fl'ded hlatt ese s ;
o more than 10 % of the Company s k. -
qulsltlon may be effected on the. Stock exch nge :_r"by

way of a pubhc purchase offer to all shareholders»

7 : _ _n_ he"Frankfurt Stoc Ex |
o -(,hange in the closmg auctlons in the XETRA tradlng"-.'-f'
R lsystern (or a comparable successor system) of the ‘three” §
stock exchange tradmg days precedrng the acqulsltlon'-i %
: . S
t

i o
v by more than 10 %
LY K
i] ’

T o 5
+ LA

o of the share ‘on" the*Frankfurt Stock Ekchange in fthe"’.*‘
.y closmg auctlons 1n the XETRA‘ ‘tradlng system [or a.

If the volume of tendered"

s,
SRR L

. 20%

oD T

Coemm

Enclosires, 29 Match 2( 6 Pagei9 of 245
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treasury shares acqulred under thlS authorlsatron =may
be: sold in a way_other than on. the stock ‘exchange | 0T
: : 0 Jl__sharehold" TS, 1f the ac-

Y to *mcrease ‘the Company s shares;“apltal :
? exclusmn of pre emptrve rlghts in accordance w1th

sub]ect fo an exclusmn __(jf pre emptwe rlghts in ac- :
Cordance w1th -§.186 . Para 3 Sent 4 AKtG, may not

‘ exceed the threshold‘j‘_' 0% o '!he capltal stock In‘
that respect the pre- emptlve rrghts of shareholders for
these treasury shares are.excluded, . - -

‘Page 10 of 245
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e

e S i,

]

,ff?::'come bonds, or proflt partlmpatmg certiflcates each
: 'w1th optlonsior conversmn;rlghts In that respect the

gl than by sale on the stoc:k exchange may’, ‘be- unplemented
‘ ’ by the Company or by thrrd partles for the Company s

Enclosures,_Zéf.l-\/l.areﬁ'-Z()OG L b m

_xthe_‘acqmred treasu:y shares’ to. tulfrl Optlons Conver-";.-
i “sion rights ) Conversmn obhgatlons resulting: frl"’m the -
- f} ‘Company’s or ‘any ef its direct or, indirect subs1d1ar1es
-f?':f.,‘n,:lssue of convert1b1e bondsf bonds w1th warrants 1n-

L ;,b} to md] to dlspose of the treasury shares in a way other‘

e L e ..

[ ,__‘____-_-_.__t.u..._._._ [P

—

—
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V '-The Superwsory Board nd the Management Board pro-

pose that the’ followmg resolutlon be adopted S

R § Para 1-of the Artlcles ofi Assomatlon is> Changed as:
follows L ' L '

_-sation amounts to’f€'

tt'xt

i

by ;Fore‘i thelr act1v1tles on he Commlttee for Nommatlon_

'dnndual member shall___ ecelve € 20 000 00 per anndm
‘and thes Chalrman ;of the commltteei shal=l ‘recelve_

Enclosures, 2!):Nfaifch 2006 o

Fo satlonipayab e after each f1nanc1aA~--=year.ﬁ-;-Such Compen-?"
| 3, ‘,000 for:the: 1nd1v1dual member L
- to €175, 000 00 for the chalrman of- the Superv1sory ,

_3Board hlS deputy shall recelve € 105 000 00 o L

< Page 1|2 of 245



Enclo .ures 2') March 2006 i N

For the1r actrvztzes on the comm1ttee for matters con- s
‘ cernmg the Management Board busmess development S

For the1rl'actmt1es on":the audrt-i commItteel%ea:ch md1-’ o

vidual member ‘shall receive € 10,000.00 per annum
and ‘the Cha:rman of the commrttee shal] recelve'
E 20,000.00.” -

oo S e b

to § 134 Para 3 Sent *1 in con‘ju'nctlon to Sent 2 AktG

§ 134 Para 3 AktG allows shareholders to exercise thelr

voting rlghts in the. Annual General Meeting by proxy

I' he requ1rement for thrs 1s among others that there

written _or' _
Assomatlon c_c'ntain*a C@.rresrmdmg r,esula.tmn-

LB : "

In order to glve shareholders several ways to grant

power of representation+and therefore an additional )

means to transfer their right to exercise their vote, the
Articles; of Assoc1atlon should. be amended to; allow
power of representatlon to be granted electrorucally

The Su‘p'ervis‘ory B0ard.an'd the'Manag'ement B'oard‘:nro-
pose that the followmg resolut1on be: adop_t_e_d

§ 14 Para 3 1s to be 1ncluded in: the Artlcles of Assom~
ation: S K e

senta can"b ;granted in WI‘ltlI’lg, by fax or.by
electromc rn ans to be rmined in’ ‘greater deta1l by

the Company Detalls forgrantlng_power of: represent-

_dev _ted from 1f the Artlcles of_;.

B

“Votlng r1ghts ‘can be exerc:lsed by proxy Powers of

[P R S

-

|
Page IIS of 245



-The- Superv1sory Board:proposes that KPMG Deutsche o
‘" Treuhand:- GesellschaftAktlengesellschaft W1rtschafts-

_ stock agalnst COIltI‘lbutlDIlS in® cash and/or contribu-
f"t1ons 4n. klnd in'the nommal amount of € 201 108; 261100
be- created An opt1on to issue. the new shares to mem-

oy
:j AL Author1satlons to be contmued through..a new i,

authorlsatlon

* .. The; Management‘ Board shall be ent1tled to exclude
LR the shareholders 'pre emptlve r1ghts for. cap1tal 1ncreas-
" es agalnst contrxbutlons inkind. This enables the Manage- '
i ment Board to; use shares of* the Corupany in. con]unc—

R thIl w1th the acqu1s1t1on of compames partlclpations
in compames .or- other. economic assets .in” sultable o
"cases’as 'acqu151t) n‘;curren'cy Negotf"ﬁ 15 may require
A that-not cash but shares be prov1ded as con31deratlon

;

Enclosures, 2" March 2006 L _Page 14 of 245
|
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Enclosures, 2') March 2006

' 'réq
pames I

-.aspect of an optunum financia structure The Compa-
'ny and its “shareholders do ot suffer any pre]uchce as’

emptlve rlghts in, order t

- pany to:
_ acqu181t10n

‘ tal 1ncrease agalnst cash contrlbutlons, shareholders B

H

rlghts that arose out of bonds and for Wthh the sub
scribers did not dep031t cash but consrderatlon in: kmd _
from the authorised cap1ta1 stock. This' enables the Com-
‘bonds withconver sion. or: optlon rrghts as’

i T

rrency r11’1 con]unctl'on w1th the achISl- : ',,

g,enerally have pre emptlve rrghts However, subject:to
' _’should be 4
s if the Dew. - .

are 1ssued a _"an 1ssue prlce whl'ch is not 81gmf1cant1y ‘
: 1ower than thesmarket prlce ,,Thls authorlsatlon enables f
the Company to take advantage of market opportumtles C
inta quuck and flexrble amanner; and to meet cap1ta1 . i
: needs at very short notice- when necessary By exclud- 3 {
1ng pre emptlve rlghts the Company is glven the abrhty

“is s ‘able to benefrt from hlgher proceeds I addltlon,
such 1ssues enable--'the Company to target new share—

Page 15 of 245




-"'or optron rlghts vo'

e serv1c1ng “bondswit

f.: " conversion oblrgatlons pursuant to item’ 6} of the agen-»
'~ dacof the shareholders meetmg on 4 Iune 2004 wlﬂl

governlng the protect1on of shareholders agalnst dllu- '
«:’ !'- tion. Since: the new: shares are 1ssued at_a price close -

wz_hout‘pre emptl\ref;rlghts is- restrlcted,ieach sharl‘e-
g holder is, in prmolple able to- -acquire- v1a_the market

_ wrth §186 Para 3 Se t'q Al(tG“Whlle,: grantrng the
: Company flex1b111ty:1n the 1nterest of- all shareholders

the authorlsatlon in the form of rouhd‘edi amounts
- ThlS arrangement‘famhtates the technroal handhng of
'+ an’issue; ‘The fragtional shares excluded from the pre-
' 4'empt(1ve rlghts w1l b

o
AR

the’ Company, in the case > of cash capltalf"ncreases to-
also provu:le the holders. of bonds w1th opt1on rlghts

pre emptrve r1ght in n ‘relation te to-new shares if thlS{ is
' mst1pulated by the terms and condmons of: the. relevant
: { : Epr‘otectlon
pre 'empﬂtive

Enclosures, 29 March 2006
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1f they had already exer(:lsed their. opt1on or conver-
_sion right or a conversion obligation had been fulfllled
(;ompared to a protectron agalnst dllutlon through re-

H

_{_
g

P
development of. th share In; the future, the varlable

:l

e
1
4 compensatlon should_no longer be based purely .on
4. : ) '

B e

.'9
s
] :
i smve share pr1ce development but’ 1t also should
v strengthen the bond o the Group el

i

Enclosures, 29 VIarch 2006
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,.l.w“ +

The Company and its afflhates have successfully be-

. eome estabhshed =in the markets and on the stock ex-

change in the first thrée’ years. “This was accompamed
by an increase in. value;‘fof_the Company s:shares. One

’ result of thrs development was the admlssmn of the

performed excellently in this phase To date desprte
~their extraordmary performance ‘these, achievements
"have not been compensated with shares. To cont1nue
our success: with: the established busmess Inodel itis
1mportant that employees holdmg leadmg or key p051—
t1ons focus even more on; the success ff the entlre

~~~~~

_ up shareholdrngs over ‘the years to link them closely
“to the shareholders interests and allow them to view

thrngs from the shareholders perspectrve Thrs wrll

Board and the Management Board cons1der the SCP
: "a_s the best

2 Functlon of the SCP 5 _
The SCP is basmally a- vrrtual share programme Wthh

' isan 1ntegral component of the varrable profrt sharmg

: and 1nd1v1dual Bonuses determrned based on’ the tar-

s results achieved. A portron of the

bonus wrll not
converted into virtual shares The: number of vrrtual
shares is calculated by’ d1v1d1ng thie bonus amount not
pard out by the market price of the share. of Hypo Real
Estate Holdmg AG at the time- when the Bonus is 'de-
termrned S ) - S

i N . L
S P

N S daom s VI CIPTLE ;
:xr - _».;;.:., S ;";\?‘ .l s miaet, TR :. f ke

v1rtual shares w111 be made two years after they have
been awarded (‘ Wa1t1ng perrod ') only if the service or

employment contract has‘not been termlnated @ erther
- by the member of the Management Board or the em-

ployee or (ii) through the Company,.the afflllated com-

pany or the Superv1sory Board for reasons that ithe

_pard olt'in cash “rather.it w1ll be

Enclosures, 20 March 2006, o A R A s '
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‘ are respon51ble for. The Company ‘can choose to ‘pro-
v1de a new share of Hyp ) Real Estate Holdmg AG for

JOO 000 shares

Lo w oy .
vy " o ;
PR L m I TR TR s A

FRLvE:

5e persons is demded exclu—

dehvery of shares for

' 200 000 shares (or appro ":
cap1tal of the Company)".' SR

w1thj“regard to- spec:1al) mrcumstances'affectmg SCP

gvents: affectlng the Company [e g restructunng] and
the detailed’ COIldlthIlS of share 1ssue shall be made by

CRE

Encloburks, 29 March 2006__ . 2o (i

the SCP. The_.;selectmn of people who' quahfy is- .re‘-"‘“
- 3 \rlewed on an annual ba51s The max1murn-"ﬁshare allot- .

L the Management Board of the Company) per annum is .j'
[or app OX. 0. 37 0/o"of the current share

thlpatIOIl 1n .the-‘SCP the' detatls of the SCP and the |

part1c1pants [e g. retlrement disease, death) or spec1al.'

B I “a

= ——

. o T
e e e e e e s

Page 1? of 245



_ u.gardlng partlclpatlon of -members' of the. Management
L ‘Board of the; Company or management board mem- -
" bers/executlve managers of affiliates are sub]ect to the .
: dec151on maklng authorlty of the relevant bodles

L]

i
Y

B

i

The ¢ Superv1sory Board and the Management .Board

_ evaluate the 1nd1v1dual perfoﬁnance p‘roportlon to
'~ the overall performance of the Group ﬁThus only the

e

F

’may‘-take the "‘SCP i)artlelpants '.Cl'alms Will only |be- |
come. due after‘the expu‘y of_ a 72 year Wa1t1ng Perlod

prov1d1ng shafes but also when paylnggieompensatlon
< in cash The SCP partlclpants“ do not ]ust beneflt from

Enclosures, 20 March 2006, " = .. Tia. . e : f Page 20 of 245
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Iurthermore ‘the SCP bcontalns a loyalty component -
Notw1thstand1ng any. spec1al cases requiring 1nd1v1d—
¢ ual settlement, the. cla1ms of the part1cxpants exp1re

be el1g1ble 'tor)partunpa ing are hlghly quallfled‘and

iManagement Board;‘ consider the annual Bonus as.

roduced and

i
Fhe SC__,; ¢an only. be____

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

-ives descmbed above 1f the Company 1.s. allowed. to is<:"

expenenced They constltute a small group of expertsr : P

-1emunerat10n for contr1but1ng to the sustalned suc-
: (‘BSS of Hypo Real Estate Group, Wthh can only be

Page 2{1 of 245
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i

! Report of the Management Board 'to the Annual General
Meetmg accordmg_to §.7 Para. 1 No 8 Sent. 5 in

i Meetlng Only the" perlod has to be redetermlned, ;m
; Wthh the Company is authorlsed to acqulre 1ts own

. holders is to enable the Company to acqulre its- own
. ; shares in accordance w1th § 71(P:ara 1 No. 8 AktG up

If the shares are- acqmred via a pubhc offer every

shareholder is’ abl o dec1de at. hlS own- dlscretron 1 1as

N to be able to accept small lots of ﬁap to 100 shares on a
preferentlal basis in order to avoid’ fractions and, small
remalnders when’ he acceptance ratlo is. determmed

," Overall the total votume of treasury shares held by the
Company must not'_exceed 10% of the share capltal

Company s. owr shares can be’ resold via the stock gx-
change or by way of a publrc offer The shareholders
recelve equal treatment w1th both ofthese forms of sale

sell the treasuryj.sj _res ina way-; other than on the stock
g exchange or by -way of pubhc offer to all shareholders
S+ as. long as, the selhng prlce does not fall materlally be-

{

‘ of ‘the' sale and_ dllutlon of the market prlce" S thhs
" v avoxded The Management Board w1ll keep a potentlal

Li» PR

Enctosures, 29 March 2006
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| R d1sp‘osed of by .wa

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

1sat10n will allow certam volumes of Company stock to
“be.offered to 1nst1tutlonal 1nvestors New: classes of in-
Vestors to be attracted ‘and favourable 51tuatlons to be

R A RO

authorisation mcxdentally safeguards that even in
con]unctlon with.the raising of the authorlsed cap1tal
in return for cash contrlbutlons and in con]unctlon
. .w1th optlons or. conversion r1ghts for shares 1ssued as

:of..excludmg the shareholders
pre-emptive rlghts relymg, in both cases, ‘on §186
Para 3 Sent. 4 AktG T

. I‘ urthermore the acqulred treasury shares shall allow
;é,;the Companyi_to u1re_other companles : bu_smess

: ,or other assets
1nterest1ng opportun1t1es in the competltlve market

» ner which also protects liquidity. This also requires
. the exclusion of pre-emptive rights of shareholders.

s converswn obhgatmns resultmg from t 1€ Company $
or any of its subsidiaries’ issue of bonds or profit-par-
. ‘t1c1pat1ng certificates. This may be a cheaper altern-
ative to using conditional capital. This also requires
the exclusion of‘pre;_empt'ive.'rights of s’hafeho'ld)ers.

g
/]
I
y
I
i
]
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for mergers & acqiiisitions in a fast and flexible man- -
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Only those,f hareholders are-entltled to attend the

80311 Mumch Germany L

Fax +49(0)89.54002518 : - SRR

i ~Mall hauptversammlungen@hvb de LIRS ‘

2’;’? : _-.‘- , e X B . s ' J
¥

P

§ . The'ev1dence of share 0wnersh1p s {0 be prov1ded
by way -of-a written ‘certification- by ‘the, custodlan
i
%
i

Enghsh The Certlflcatlon has to refer to the beginning
of the 21st. day before the general meetlng, WhICh[ is
the 17Apr11 2006 CE S e T

B
e e o e i

]
2

—_———-
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N General Meetmg and to exercnse thelr votlng rlghts who_

U

bank The- certlflcatlon must be either in’ German or

3
e -
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1sed in wrltlng These mstructlons may be" glven in
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is requlred

L Sharehoiders will receive details on the broadcast. of

the AnnuaI Genera] Meeting as well as on the issuing

by anyone mterested on the Internet at

i WW.WihYporealestate com»z L NN
;
N
b . g
: W t i
' i
3
i

Enclosures, 29 March 2

¥ entatlon and gwmg 1nstruct10ns to-r

[ =]

*age 2|6 of 245



Applicati_ons and nomi"nationsibf.siha_reholders

Coremmmen s g

Pr0posals to counter a proposal of the Superv1sory

' vely~t0' B
Hypo Real Estate Holdlng AG

'Group Corporate Office ¥

! Unsodldstrabe 2 :

o 80538 Mumch Germany

medlately be made avallable to the shareholders on
: _ the Internet at www.hyporealestate.com. Potential com-
. ments of the Managemient will also be pubhshed at the :
same Intemet address

'Mumch.Marc 2006 -

* The"Mi"i‘riageﬁjent- BiO‘arld‘: i S y
| s
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Hypo Real Btate Holdlrg AG

: Wu:ttembelglsche :
__‘Hypothekenbank AG

untﬂ 31 December 2005

Ratings
Moody's s&p | Fitch Ratings
' asof 13.10.2005 long-term i short-term |outlook  longtermn| shortterm |outlook long-term | short-term | outlook -
X : )
Hypo Real Estate Bank International A3|P-2| Positive A—|A-2|5table ' —
Warttembergische Hypothekenbank AG A2l P-1lstable A-| 4-2] Stable —
!
Hypo Real Estate Bank AG AZ{P-2]|stable BBB+{ A-2]Stable BBB+ | F2 | Stable

Enclosures, 29 March 2006
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Business Principles

| Responsrblhty, mtegrlty

and professwnahsm

The Hypo Re'rl Estata Group ] busrness prlncrplas apply. “anc

to all'units wrthm the, Group and: constitite an essential
factor for its success in business, A transparent struc-
ture, clearly communicated business goals:and their

" resoluts attainment create real sharsholder value. Hypo

Real Estats Group’s foremost aim-is to provide its shaze-
helders with an attractive.return on their investment.

Communications Hypo Real Estaté"érdu[g Ypl.aces great

emphasjs on transparency and credibility. An essentral .

prerequisite. for :this i sopen, and clear C

-and extprnally “with respect to customers shareholdsrs :
(and capltal markats T ‘

Sustamablltt}! Hypo Real;Estate Group is dedicated to-its
customars satisfaction. The Group provrcles high-quality
profess:onal transaction banking and strivesite expand
its competltwe edge through sxcellent service and opti-
mum customer benefit. The Group's units have set them-

salvass the goal-of-a longiterm, sustamable creatron of z

value. Thay aim to ba the bsst not the blggest

ol Employees Sustamable ‘succass is only achrevahla throughl
© compstsnt and motivated employees Hypo Real Estate *

Groups managemant and staff can point to years of ex-
perience and profound product’ know-how. The Group
embraces the performance principle, rewarding perform-

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

sonal mobility from 1ts employees Also teamwork and
tespect for:one's colleagues are part of the corporate
culture, A low rate of staff turnover is the mark of a
working climate which leaves room for entrepreneurial
behaviour and offers.sufficient caréer opportunities.

Its success. has made . Hypo Real Estate Group an attrac-

tive- employer for top-notch professronals Because the
Group operates throughout the world the corporate
; i ' good“ ommand of the -
BIE}OmE anguaga:harrlars
The 1nternatlonallty of1ts staff means that
l" s not ust a, phrase here but is :ndaad a i

is:a nscessr
multrcult
rsallty.

. ) |
- Risk-consciousness In order to- he successful in the long

term and to: achrava Z"high profrtahllxty an efficient risk
management.is necessary. For this reason, the Group
fsals obligated to those customers. and markats that ful-
’fill.its axp'a'ctations 'a's:-to risk an'd-return.

Ethical stanéards For a bank:a good reputatlon is indis- {
pensahla Integnty and rellabrllty are conditions for cre- |

ating trust and:for ;sarning it. This applles to customers, ]’

to employeés and:to other stakeholdars with which the
oompany ig mvolved Hypo Rea] Estata Group expacts

Cits employees to conform to hrgh ath1cal standards.

|
1
L
.
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- Financial Highlights .
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Earnings per share

incl

Key ratios

Return on equity after taxas?

in%

- Cost-incame ratlo (based on operating revenues)

in%

Balance sheet figures

- . PR
) 1 i
‘ 4
Financial Highlights o
2005 2004
Openrating performance .
Netincomefoss before taxes In€ million 221
Netincomefloss In€ million 168

125

400
177

122004

Total assets

in € billion

Equity (exduding revaluation reserve)

in € billion

148.1

: Key capital ratio. compliant with BIS rules

Core capital 2

In <€ billian

42+

_ Equity funds?

in<€ billion

i Risk assets

in € billion

¢+ Core capital ratio® in% 8.3
" Equity funds ratio® in% 117
" Personnel
Employees 1311
Portfobio figures
Volume of international real estate financing in ¢ blllion { 263
Volume of German real estate financing in € billion ‘"_ 334
Volume ofstate finandng in € billieon § =

663

* Excluding the effects fromc apitalised los ses carried forw:rd

_BAS per appﬂ'xed I!ml.ll| financial statements Il\d sfter prl:fitdl'.trlhutbn

Dueto mundrg, numhers pre sen&d thmughnut this dxument rmy not add up pmc Isely
tothe totals provided and perentages may not precisely reflect the absol ut figures.
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De'l'n}ﬁer W hat"-yt:\u" Iﬁi@miﬁéd Meet expectationgieveh
exceed them. Be reliable, and you will-not justhe
rewardsd in-trust —corporate targets that-are clearly.
communicated and determinedly achisved create

real sharehaldgr- vilue. Our foremost aim is to proxfldm ,

oUur \harah ldprb w'th a dttLaf*t1Vs—= rctum on-their .
njx_,‘ ":tmﬁut We suctee o d, I_mg 50 beuaube we arc
bompeieﬂt and‘ﬂxpﬁrlpnred in Latﬁzmg to:ouL CUs:
tomels” need: ‘becanss we are’ dﬂtemlmﬁd t@';utlli‘sl

opportunities for growth, and because we address

change with the flexibility. and effxqencv--

'mndern Porpc&ate structures, =~ .
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Fmd]ng solutlons
that are needed

L Lo ng-:‘term sucr‘eﬂs is based on a f“wmrlnr'mo produrt'

mest the m\rldual cuftomer 5 nef»dc and testzfles :
our pzofeund know-how and years of expemr‘nr‘e
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7, our kﬂowlmdve

lemblht} and' f“hamg:,a._ abe, bh&la«,terlstirs o

crganisation. -We act quickly, resolutely and with a
iear focus wherever oppo rtumhee demand

;tivén‘es sgcomp 1

3
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‘anticipating markﬁt trbndc with courags and_. L
dedication. Thig is why we are co natantlv smurmc '
attrarm' new mdrl\et:, f o1 mrthfaz: gre hth -
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from left to right:
Frank Lamby

i Dr, Markus Fell

_5 Dr. Paul Efsele
Georg Funke, CEO
Stephan Bub
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R To ous;Shar eholders 13
. _Let‘ter from the Managemwt Board

The shares of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG
have been listed on the German stocki
index (DAX) since 19 December of last year.
Entering in the DAX or another major
index has never been an explicit aim of our
actions. However, we of course were;
very pleased with the decision of “Deutsche
Borse”. |

To our Shareholders

:

|
¢
Dear shareholders, * |

Enciosures, 29 March 2006 i Page 45 of 245
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Let us review the situation: Who would have thought
on 6 Octobsr 2003, the day on which our shares wers
first listed following the spin-off of the Hypo Real Es-
tate Group frem HVB AG, that around two years later
our company would be promosted to the first league of
the German stock exchangs?

This inclusion is further confirmation of the story of
success which the HypoReal Estate Group has achieved
since its inception — in terms of strategy, in view of op-
erational development as well as its market capitalisa-
tion. This success story is attzributable mainly to the
following points:

m Wa have rapidly expanded our international business
following the spin-off, we have increased our pene-
tration of existing markets and developed new and
attractive marksts.

= We have completed the restructuring of our German
business much socner than originally planned. Once
new business was resumed, itquickly picked up pace,
and out subsidiary Hypo Real Estate Bank AG has
again become a leading player in German real estate
financing.

b e B iy i

o B e

m Wa have succeeded in convincing éall the players on

the market —invastors, analysts, rating agenciss and
madia - of the quality and prospecis of our business
model, which is similar to that of an investment
bank, very much cash flow—drivarll and focused on
large-volume transactions. This alsé could be achiev-
ed because we have always attamed or exceedad our
communicated targets and thus demonstratmg our
reliability as a partner. This has ralsulted in a stable
and high-value shareholder structure and a continu-
ously positive parformance of our, shares the value
of which has more than triplad since the spin-off.
The market’s confidencs in our actions has helped us
to adapt cur refinancing activities’to the expanding
new business. In line with our strategic focus, we
have used familiar standatds such as the German
Pfandbrief as well as innovative capital markst
products.

We have adapted our structure qu:ckly and consist-
ently to bring them into line w1th changing market
tequirements in order to prepare ourselves for future
challenges. This resulted in a complete overhaul of
the Group’s organisation as of llanuary 2006.

We have sxtended the rangs of p:oducts of the Hypo
Real Estate Group and have thus increased our value
creation chain. This includes in par:ticular the process
of establishing Public Finance/Gapital Markets.

Enclosures, 29 March 2006
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® And finally, we have succeeded in forming the held-
ing company and the operating entities of our Group,
which can be traced back to various predecessor in-
stitutes, into a uriform group with uniform funda-
mental values and objectives. This process can of
course not yet be complete. Howsver, our commen
corporate culture encompassing the entire Hypo Real
Tstate Group has already bscome reality. It is hecom-
ing much more evident every single day.

All of these measures and developments have been the
basis for a positive development in the business of our
Group during the past two and a half years, which has
been characterised by expanding new business, improved
results and stronger profitability. The year 2005, which
is the subject of this annual report, is no exception in
this respect. The Hypo Keal Estate Group has smoothly
continued the upward trend in its operations seen in
the previous year and has even accelerated this trend.

With a consolidated net income before taxes of €408 mili-
lion, we have increased last year's figure by € 187 million
or 84.8%, and have comfortably met our forecast of
£400million to €425 million. This figure includes one-
off expenses of € 34 million, which wete not included
in the original budget, in connection with re-organis-
ing the Group structure. Excluding restructuring ex-
penses,. the Group accordingly generated net income
before taxes of €442 million, which is even somewhat
higher than our own forecast

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

P
i
|

This considerable increase in net income has resulted
in return on equity after taxes 1mprov1ng to 7.4 % com-
pared with 4 % last year. This means that our Group
covered its capital costs for the first time - two years
sooner than we originally assumed after the spin-off in
2003. ‘

i
Last year, we announced to you that itf is the aim of the
Management Board and Supervisory'Board to ensure
that you, our shareholders, participate in the success of
the company not only through a rising share p.rice but
also by way of adequate dividend payduts. The positive
performance of our business means that it is easy for us
to keep this promise. For this reason, we will propose
to the Annual General Maeting on 8|May 2006 that a
dividend of € 1.00 per share be paid out a figure which
is considerably higher than last year (€0.35 per shars).
Subject to the approval of the Annual ‘General Mesting,
this means that 42.8% of the adjusted consolidated net
income will be paid out to shareholders as dividend.
We have thus made significant progress towards meet-
ing our medium-term objective of a dividend paymant
rate of up to 50%. !

" : To our Shareho!d ers
o w g, : . Letter from the Management Board |

- ‘._:
v

To our Sharchdders
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A particularly sncouraging aspect was that we were
able to exceed our objsctive of € 13.5 billion for new
business in real estate financing after the first three
quarters. By the end of the year, our Group had written
new business totalling € 22.3 billion, thus increasing
the previous year figure of € 12.6 billion by more than
75%. All three operating entities were performing bet-
ter than the criginally budgeted figures, some of them
considerably so — an indication of the dynamic nature
of the activities of the business units in their corre-
sponding mackets. It is also an indication of the com-
petence, creativity and the high level of commitment
of all emplovees of our Group, and I should like to
thank them for their work last year — also on behalf of
my colleagues on the Management Board. They can be
preud of what they have achieved.

A brief review of the three business units: Hypo Real
EstateInternational improved net income before taxes by
€93 million to €288 million ir 2005. This was thanks
to new busiress which improved by 54 % to € 15.1bil-
lion — proof of the effactivensss of the organisation
which was introduced at the beginning of 2005, with the
three regiona! sales platforms of Eurepe, America and
Asia, In addition to greater penetration of our estab-
{ished markets of Western Europe and Northern America,
we also succeeded in extending our regional base and
thus created a financing mix which was regionally more
balanced. As part of this, March 2005 saw our first fi-
nancing arrangement in Russia. In 2004, we broke into
the Japanesa real estate market, which has become much

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

mote attractive for international investors, and this move
has been very successful. At present, we ara preparing
to break into the market in India, and this move is ex-
pected to take place in the second quarter of 2006.
Howaver, Singapore, South Korea and Australia are also
on the agenda for our expansion plans.

Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank (WizttHyp) gener-
ated net incomse before taxes of €78 million, corre-
sponding to growth of 26.7 % compared with last year’s
figure. In doing so, the bank has again demonstrated the
success of its low-risk Pfandbrief-based business model.
New business is reported at an imprassive € 4.4 billion

(+ 76%).

Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, as the centre of competence
for Germany, made an impressive retirn to the market
following the resumption of new business in the au-
tumn of 2004. This is demonstrated by new business of
€2.8 hillion, which was considerably higher than the
budgeted figure of € 1 billion. Howsver, this aiso dem-
onstrates the size and quality of the projects taker on
by the bank. The financing for the sale of 18 properties
of the Federal State of Hesse to a private company with
a financing framework of more than € 1 billion was an
outstanding transaction not only for Hypo Real Estate
Bank AG but also for the German real estate market as
a whole. The bank also financed thé purchass of the
“Degussa Areal”, the chemical group’s former corporats
location in Frankfurt by a real estate group and a finan-
cial investor, and this transaction was also impressiva,

Page 48 of 245
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This and other transactions demonstrate that we are
again perceived and accepted as a leading player in real
estate financiag in Getmany. This is alse applicable for
the refinancing sids: Hypo Real Estate Bank issued in
March 2005 its first mortgage Jumbo Plandbrief since
restructuring, with a volume of € 1.5 billion.

At Hypo Real Estate Germany, net income bsfors taxes
for 2005 improved by € 113 millien to € 104 million. This
considerable improvement reflects not only the im-
proved portfelio quality and the better margins which
have hesn achieved; it also reflects the sfficiency gains
resulting from the structural measures which were con-
sistently implemented during the restructuring process.
We are accordingly becoming increasingly pleased with
our business in Germany, not least because the condi-
tions for this markset, in which we are {irm belisvers,
are gradually changing for the better.

Anybody wishing to achieve lasting success in the ex-
tremely dynamic markets in which our Group operates,
must ba willing to make changes. Flaxibility, speed and
decisive action are "foundation features” of the Hypo
Real Estate Group. The fact that these characteristics are
guiding principles for us was documented by the far-
reaching re-organisation of our Group announced in the
summer of 2005 ~ a re-organisation which will further
boost the compatitiveness of the HypoReal Estate Group
in its markets.

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

The opportunity for this came in July of last year, when
the new Pfandbriaf Law came inte force. Whereas pre-
viously it was only possible for spscial credit institutes
toc issue Pfandbriefe, this privilege wa’s abolished with
the new law. Today, any cradit mstltuta meeting the
relevant statutory requirements may issue covered
bonds. Any bank can thus now combine covered and
uncovered business. |
|

We have takenr advantage of this reform which is ex-
tremely baneficial for Germany as a financial location,
to combine our international business lwhic:h previous-
ly had been conducted by Hypo Real Estata Bark Inter-
national in Dublin as well as Wurttemberglsche Hypo-
thekenbank AG in Stuttgart, into Wurttemberglscha
Hypothekenbank AG as of 1 January, 2006; the latter
was subsaquently renamed Hypo Real Estate Bank Inter-
national AG. German mortgage i:nancmg arrangements
of Wiirttembergische Hypothakenbank AG were trans-
ferred legally to Hypo Real Estate Bank AG in Munich.
The former Hypo Real Estate Banklntamatlonal in Dub-
lin was renamed Hypo Public Fmanca Bank, and in its
capacity as a subsidiary of the new Hypo Real Estate
Bark International AG in Stuttgart, n will henceforth
be responsible for Public FlnancalCap;ta] Marksts.

!
|
t

- -

-

To our Shareholders
Management Board

Page 491 of 245

o our Shareholders




18

The response of the capital market and the media to this
ovethaul of our Group structures, which is tunning as
planned and which will be completed in the first half
of 2008, has heen very positive. And indeed, the advan-
tages ate obvious:

a We will be able to reduce duplicated functions in the
Group, making them less complex.

m Was will hacome more efficient, not least in the field
of refinancing, as Pfandbrief-backed and uncovered
business can be combined.

m We will have a clear and transparent segregation of
domestic and international business.

w Wa will achieve nat cost savings of approx. € 25 mil-
lion per year, thus continuing to reducs our cost hase.

All of these advantages have a positive influence on
the Group's earnings situation in the medivm term, and
we are currently expecting to generate return on equity
after taxes of 11% to 12% for the ysar 2007, compared
with our previous forecast of 10% to 11%.

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

The new Group structure will also chahga the face of the

Hypo Real Estate Group. We will expand our valus cre-

ation chain and further diversify the range of products

and solutions we offer. The new Hypo Public Finance

Bank in Dublin will play a major role;in this respect. It

will offer innovative and sophlstlcated financial servic-

es to borrowars, invastors and 1ntermed1anes Its range
of preducts and services comprises rrlaamly the follow-

l[]g areas:

n Public-sector financing Hypo Pub]lc Finance Bank
finances a wide range of infrastructure projects run
or supported by government hodies, primarily in
Europs and the US. This business is characterised
by low risk and stable cash flows| Pfandbrief-based
refirancing is handled in the famlllar manner by the
established Hypo Pfandbrief Bank International S.A.
in Luxembourg :

a Capital-market business This segme‘nt of Hypo Public
Finance Bank primarily structures,trades and places
customised and innovative fmancmg products. An
example for this business is to split mortgage-
backed-securities into tranches and repackags them
according to the specific rlsk-raturn -requirements of
institutional investors. Capital Markets has made
good progress since the begmnmg of 2004, and al-
ready contributed to the Group operating revenues
last year. t
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In the course cf the next few years, we will considerably
expand the activities of Hypo Public Finance Bank: Our
customers will benefit from the know-how and range
of solutions complementing our real estate financing
businsess in Germany and abroad extremely wall. And
you, our sharsholders, will benefit from this new base
of our Group.

In the new Group structurs, the Hypo Real Estate Group
isin an excellent position to meet the challenges of the
real estate and capital markets. For the current year
2006, we are optimistic that we will be able to stabilise
new husiness at the high level which has already bean
reached and that we will be able to further expand
earnings — thanks to g better portfolio quality, a broader
strategy focus and a lower cost base. Our budgst in-
cludes an increase in consolidated net income before
taxes to at least € 530 million.

One of the reasons for our optimism is the fact that we
have built up a position of strength following the spin-
off from HVB in 2003. This position of strength must not
maks us inert or negligent. On the contrary, we should
see it as an opportunity to go in those directions which
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o, To our Shareholders 19
_letter from the Management Board

I
we consider to he correct after having!assassad all op- ;
tions in our attempts to generate further growth for the n
Group. In this respect, the right apprc}ach will be one z
which opens up new strategic opportunities for the E i
Hypo Real Estate Group and creates value as a result of &
profitable growth. You can be certain that we will con- ,E

—
H
1

tinue to be determined to take advantage of all oppor-
tunities which lead us to our strategic faim: To make the
Hypo Real Estate Group a leading gllobal provider of
commercial real estate financing, with a strong focus in

t

Pubtic Finance and Capital Marksts. t

Kind regards '

Munich, March 2006

/

Georg Funke
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Report of the Seper\rinsmy"Boa'rd

Dear shareholders,

The year. 2005 was a good year for the Hypo Real Estate;'

axtent complete with mternanonal real estate fmancmg 7
busmess being pooled i m the new Hypo Real Estate Bank -
InternatlonalAG in Stuttgart and the introduction into -

German‘y s DAX stockimarket index at-the - year's end

This event in partlcular. more than any verbose state- .

ment, urxdemoores the swiftness with which the Hypo
Real Estate Group has succeeded in establishing itself
on the market with a convincing business modal, taking

its. place alongside the: ma]or players,on: the: German_‘L

stock exchanga

" The Supervuory Board has helped along thesa develop-
" ments with much joy and dedication. The board's struc-’
-ture-with:six members: and two committess, which has
been iniplace since the-Annual General Meetlng of 2004,

has proven excellent in‘day-to-day work.

Work in:the committees

The Committes for Nemiination and Boa_rd"Procedures -
met twice in-2005, namely.on 26 Janiary and on 9 No-

vamber. In the January m'seting, procssdings focused on

: compansatlcn “Eor the! ‘Mahagement. Board bonus, pohcy"ﬁj
and the .objectives. for the' Management Board in 2005 - : _
The plenary Superwsory Board met for five ragular sos- T
‘sions in 2005-1n addition, extraordmary meetings were

with approprrate proposals submitted to the boards

plenary meeting. The committee’s session in November _

discussed the appointment of Stephan Bub to the Man-
agement Board, long-term succession planning as well

.as corporate governance isgues. Tostrengthen the Com- ;-
mittes:for Nomination and Board Procedurss, particu--

larty i in malters of corporate govarnance Robert Mund
herm was appointed an additional member. _

Cori\mlttee for Nom!nation and Board Procedures

KurtF. Vlermetz(Chalrman) : :
Dr.Pieter Korteweg e !
Rober t Mundheim {from". 1.1 20086)

me Dr. Klaus Pohle:

U A e ST Ty SN T
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: Work In the Supervlsory Board

i
|
|
|

. N | . .
The Audit Committee met on saven occasions in 2005.
Its work focused on monitoring accounting and audit-

ing the financial statements and reports In the mesting
“on 14 March:, DQS the consclidated: fu{ran(nat statements
‘and the :ndwrdual financial statements wete-carefully

reviewed ahead of being adopted by the Supervisory
Board. In the. mestings held on 10-May, 9 August and
8 November 2005 the audrt reyiew of the interim reports

: :Eor the prevrous quarters was on the aganda

Audit Commiktee i i
Prof. Dr.Klaus Pohle {Chalrm 2n) ¢
Dr. Ferd_lnand Grefvon_BalI_e_s_tre_m '
. Antoine Jeancourt-Galignani - . *

o !

4

The meatmg held on 26 Ianuary 2005 discussed the val-

uation of loan portEolrcs ‘including the effects of port-
folio sales in 2004. On 34 June, the'focus was on the
Group’s financial pesition and the wotk of Internal Au-
dit. On 20 September 2005, the changes in IT structure
due to reorganisation were the main items on the agenda.
On 8 November 2005, the approachesj and main aspects
of the audit were discussed.with the auditors.

held in the form of telephone conferences concerning

.current issues, one example heing the internal decision

making regarding the potential acqfnsltlon of a largs
.German real"éstate bank. On 26 January 2005, the focus
was on the proposals of the Committee for Nomiration

. and Board Procedutes concerning compensation for the
- Managemerif Boatd and specifically the bonus policy
for 2004 andithe objectives:for 2005 for’the Manage--
-mant Board’ he Management Board’s proposal regard- }.
" ing the delisting from the Vienna stock -exchangs was

also approved at this meetmg The hstmg in Frankfurt
provides a very liquid market through Xetra, and infor-
mation concerning the Hypo Real Estate Group is avail-
able promptly throughout the world. The Supervisory

; Page 5;2 of 245
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Board aocordmgly hopes that the Austrian sharaho]ders )
of Hypo Real Estate Holding have held onto their-shares
" ‘Meeting, sharehiolders will be able to follow the meet-

and willimaintain their confidence in the-company. In

'the meeting held on 14 March 2008, ths, Supervisory
Board adopted the consohdated frnancral statements - .
and individuzl financial statements as proposed by the
. .Audit:Committss, and fixed;the: agéndé for'the Annual<:
General ‘Meeting on 30 May 2005 In the meeting of
. '15 Iune 2005 the Management Board provrdad details:,
of the business development and -plans, and pressnted *

the current rating discussions. In_ the 1egular meeting

~held oni20 $eptember 2005, the focus was on the stra-

tegic positioning of the Group in many detailed matters,
including rating, investor relations and the risk profils.
The mesting on 9 November confirmed the appoint-
ment of:Stephan Bub- to the.Management Board of the
holding'company and the compliance statement regard-
ing the German Corpotate Governance Code for 2005,

and considersd the mostrecentquarterly rasults and the «
- predrctrons at year's end :

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Mesting of Hypo Real Estate Hold-
ing AGlwas hald on .20 May 2005 at the Intecnational
Congress Center (ICM) Munich. The meefing adopted a
resolution to pay & dwrdend for the first'time; namely

€0.35 par share. The Supervisory Board Wwelcom&d this;”
raso]utlon and will continue to aim for an adequate
.-pay- ‘out" ratioifor our sharaholders s future The Annual:;":<=
:General Meeting converted the. preferrred non-voting:
- ‘shares; 5:111 held by Bayarische Landesstiftung, ints ordi; .

nary voting shares in return for a conversion premium.

" These ordinary sheres were initially listed in Frankfurt
and-Vishna on 29 June 2005. This'move has unified the+

equity jmarket presence of the holding :::ompany and
enhanced tha liquidity of the shares.

The nurnber of shareholders present and the sum of cap-
ital represanted wers of course nét as large as was the
case atiour first Annual. General Meeting: Nevettheless;

. the prasenca of approxrmata]y 2,000 shareholders was;
: comparatrvely good although only 28%70f the “capital”

was representad. We will, however, not be satisfied

* with tHese figﬁras. which is why,éuparviéory B'ci_ar'él ex-
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Effi ciency au dit

plicitly supports the introduction of new participation

mechanisms. Starting with the next 'Annual General

ing and to issue their voting rnstrucpons during the
mesting, all via the internet: The Supervisory Board en-
dorses this decision and expresses its hopes that many

shareholders who are not-able. to. attend the.mesting
,‘personally. ‘will in- thrs way pa:tlclpate in the funda-
menta! decrsrons of the oompany

{

.- V . . ’ I
‘ “ . l
1

The Supervfsory Board of Hypo Real Efstate Holding AG
and its committees carried out their efficiency reviews
in the autumn of 2005. Themost.significant results of the

~deliberations in the Audit Committas on 20 September
werean appreciation forthe information provided by the.
: Management Board; which includes probiematical issues, -
" and the suggestlon to invite the auditorto attend the final
~.. mesting ofza:ysar. 46 provide scope for action if necss-
" sary hefore the year’s end: The Commrttee for Nomination

and Board Procedurss and the Supewrsory Board plenary

" meeting carried out their efficiéncy freview on 8 and

9 November 2005, and open!y discussed the issues of

1ndependence/quailflcatrons mformatron/meatmgs con-

flicts ohnterest structure and the’ posrtron of Chairman.
i

'The S'upervisory Bdérd cdnsiders that thé'independence

and qualifications.of its. members and the international

._composrtron are good.. ‘The fraquency of mestings is con-

sidered to be adequate and the information provided by
the Management Board isipercoived to be complate and
open. The’ members have not drsclosed any conflicts of
interest, but consider that the relevant by-laws and rules
of order até'adequate. All'involved épprectated of the
Supervisory Board's structure mc]udmg a Committes for
Nomination and Board Procedures and an Audit Commit-
tes. The structura enhances'afficiancyzand depth of con-
trol and enables the members to goritribute independ-
ent points of view. With .the appointment of Robert

Mundheim,.who has a wide range of experience in the '

field of corporate govarnance, the Committee for Nom-
ibation and Board Procedures ‘has enhanced its com-
petence in.this field. The Commrttees decisions and

. proposals‘were dlscussed with, the Managamant Board:

i

|
{
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Adoptlon off‘nanclal itatements

The Annuai-ﬁienera'l_- Maetiﬁg on-ZO'Ma‘}" 2005 abpoiﬁtea .

KPMG Deutsshe Treuhand-Gesellschaft Aktiengesell-
schaft Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft, Berlin and Frank-
furt am Main, as the auditors; the Audit Committee and
the Supervisory Board having ascertained thess auditors’
independencs befors submitting a’proposal.to.the mest-
ing. KPMG has audited the financial statements_pre-
pared by the Management Board and the fincial review
mcludlng the, risk’, report and has issued-an; unquall
fied audltors opnmon likewise for the consolidated:fi-
nanclal statements- -and the consol!dated finandial ‘re-

view, In‘lme with their audlt obllgatlons asidetailed’ in
© gection 317 {¢) HGB, the auditors have also assesead the

company’s monitoring systems for the sarly recognition
of risks. The auditors confirm that-the mathods de-
fined by the company for managing, recognising and
monitoring the risks taken on by the Group are appro-
priate and:that the financial review:for the.parent.com-
pany and the Group accurately present theirisks astoci-
ated wnh future developments- The Chairman of .the
Audlt Gommtttee ‘Prof Dra Pohle and the Chalrman 'of
the: Supew:sary Board attended thé flna! meeting: of the
Management Board with the auditors.
o [T % AR . .

The auditor’s teport was received by the Audit Committee
on behaif of the Bupervisory, Board. Tha Audit Commlt
tee then extensively considered the financial statements,
the financial review, the consolidated financial state-
ments, the consolidated financial review as well as the
proposed appropriation of cumulative profit, referring
to the accounts of the Group where necessary. ‘The
maénager of the auditing team was.pfesent at the meet-
ing of the committes. The Audlt Committee subsequent-
ly informed the Supervisory Board of the-results &f its

own audit, proposing that the financial.statements:and

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

' sharlholders

- Kurt E Viermetz .

— i

' Enancla__.rewew mcludmg the nsk report ba approved

‘The Supervisory Board “accordingly approved the fi-
rancial statements and;ithe consolidatad Emancmal state-
ments as prepared

The financial statements of Hypo Real Estate Holding
AG and the Hype Real Estate Groupj have thus duly
been adopted.

!

The above -average dommitment, motivation and exper-

tise.of members of. staff in all entities! of the Group are.

the reasons why the Hypg Real Estate ‘Group again.pro-

duced anexcellent resultlast year. On behalf of the Su-
ipérvisory.Board, I'shouldilike to thank all members of
staff for thalrc:‘ommltmentl should also like to thank the
Management Board for the close cooperation based on
the principles of mutual trust and'the cpen and continu-
ous dialogue with the members of the Supervisory Board.

."As forthes future Isshould also like to assuIe you, our
‘the Management .
"Board and the Supervxsory Boa:d will continue to use
:atl of thelr ‘8nargy.: professmnahsm a’nd ‘motivation to

that. out employees

ensure.. that thé.Hypo Real Estate Group is sven .more
s_uceess_fg{[ as, a.global playar in. comtpermal teal estate

" financing, thusi “jﬁstifyirig the confidence which-you

have placed in us by putchasing our shares

Mumch March 2008
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. To our Shareholders ;
. Report of the Supennsory Board *
. Corporate Govema nce |

Corporate Governance -

Corporate Governa_ncereport

The Managemant Board and Supervisory Board of Hypo
Real Estate ‘Holding are wholly committed;to geod Cor-
porate Governance We derive this commitment not oy
from our natienal regulations, such as the German Cor-
porate Governance-Code, but also:from lnternatlonally
d:scussed models-and 1deas

Our oorporate practice-in the past has already been:con-
sistent w1th the recently introduced reoommendatlons
concermng the tndependence of members, of the Super-

visory Board 3nd th qua]lftcatlons of the Chalrman of-
the Audit Committee. Individual elections for membsr- °
ship in the Supervisory Board, were already held in. .
‘ _ In ]u]y ZOOS the new verston ofthe German Corporate

2004. The Management Board and’ Supervisory Board
support the recommendations regarding the court ap-
pointment of members of:the Supervisory Beard and
regarding the election of a former CEO o become
Chairman of the Supervisory Board.

In order;to enable our sharsholders to participate in the
Annual General Meeting more eaéily. we. have-decidad

ta- mtroduce live: transmxsetons ‘ofithe -Annual:General. -

Mesting; and to allow shareholders to transmit voting
instructions via the internat; these-are suggestlons of
the’ Gode which ‘we had viewed somewhat’ sceptically
in recant years as a result of doubts concerning techni-

cal security. -We dointend, howevsr, to open up new
channsls of participation, and: thersfore aim to intro- -

duce a form which will meet the requtrements of share-
holdars as fa: as poss:ble

The so-callad “annual document in accordance with

s&étion 0 Wertpaplerprospektgesetz (WpPG Seciirities . :

Prospectus Law) can be found on-the web site of Hypo

.Real Estate Holdmg AG at www. hyporealestate com un-
-»der the hnk (..orporate Governance C

Overall shareholdmgs of members of the Management

Board and Supervisoty Board coiistitute less.than one -

percent of the shares issued by the company. An over-
view of disclosures of Director’s Dealings in accord-
ance with section 15a WpHG is set out in tha notes to
the consolidated financial statements (page 123).
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:‘tjt:ateme::rit of comp.llance‘ ﬁrtth the Germ ar;
-=Corporate Governance Code of the Man agement Board

'tn accordance mth section 161 AktG

i
!
L
i
T3
!
b

BN

As they did Iast year. the Management Board and the-

Supsrvigory Board provrda in their statement of com-
pliance of 15 December 2008 explanations of instances
in which they dlsregarded suggestronfs of the German
Corporate.Governance'Code: - | ‘

{
4

nd Supervisory Board onypo Real Estate Holding AG

LS

Governancs Code of 2 ]une 2005 came into force. We

~ have alteady been complying with the Code's new rsc-

ommendations and suggestions, or tntend to do so in
future. Since July 2005, the statemenite of compliance
from previous years can.be viewsd on sur web site.

Tha fact that the struc’:ture of our Supervisory Beard is

3based on, mternatlonally discussed models as detailed
‘in last year's statement, means that we have already

implemented the new recommendatiohs relating to the

- qualifications of the Chairman of the Audit Committes
-and the independenoe-_o_f the membe:ls of the Supervi-

sory Board. . Q.

On the basis of the nrinciple “comply or explain”, we
hareby issue the following statementiof compliance in

-acoordance with section 161 AktG concerning the Ger-
.man Corporate Governance Code:

l
i

R ‘SubJect to the dtscrepanctes detalled in the followmg,
. HypoReal Estate Holdlng AG [the oompany) kas com-
“plied; and will: dontinus:to’ ‘comply w1th the recommen-

datlons,of the government corfimission German Corpo-

rate Governance Code: - ;

Corporate Governance teport

|
t
t

|
;
!
J
|

'
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it should be poss:ble for the

Code numbes 2.3.3, At the Annual General Meeting in
2005, the company did net

the: Annual l_xaneral Meetmg- Fot thé Annual Genefal
Meetmg in 2006, is planned that mstructlons will:be

permitted via. the: interngt befora and dunng the Annu-

al Genera] Maetmg

Code number 2.3.4. At the Annual General Maesting in
2005, the company did not follow the suggestions for
the Annual General Mesting to be broadcast via the in-
ternet. A live broadcast is- planned via tha mtemet for
shareholders next year. -

Code m’lmbe! 38 .The compaz{y has not followed the
recommandatlon to stlpulate daductlb]es for: D&O m-
surance. Thes main purpose of D&O fhisurance is-to
prowde.protactlon for the company itself.

Code number 4,2.3. The company has soifar not followed
the suggestions conesrning a compensation éomponent
with 2 long-term incentive effect and risk character.
Howevert, it is regularly considered and discussed as
one compensation component among othsrs.

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

llow the suggestlons that '

redched durmgj‘. ‘Board:to.be: elactad

Code.number 5.4.6. The company does not follow the

-suggestlons to perz:_mt members of the Supervisory .
L.re- a!acted at dlffarant dates and".

Code number ‘547;1“113 company does not follow the

recommmendation to grant prof!tllnked compensatlon
to the members of the Supervisory Board. Fixed com-
pensation for the Supervisory Board is the best way to
ensure the independence and neutrallty in advising the
Management Board and ensuring that the monitoring
function of the Supervisary Board focuses axc]uswely

-on, the mterests ofthe cornpany !

!

Tk
Mumch 15 December 2005 :
t

1

le]e Méh;éement Boa‘rd

" The Supervisory Board
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Compensation report

The compensation for the Manégement Board consists

of abasic salary and a- profzt ]mked vanahle bonus. A
: compensatlon component with"a long -term mcentwe

effact. anfl risk'characterjhas so far not'been used, as the.
. Superwsory Board belleves that itisnot. posstble to de-

fine sult”able Assessment parameters during the restruc-
turing and growth phase of the Group. It- -prefers to use
a dlscretlonaly assessment in the bonus ‘decision-mak-
ing procedure which reflects thevaried nature of entre-
preneurial tasks in this phase.

Befors the beginning ofa finat:cial year, the Supervisory
Board sels primary objectives for the Management Board
as well as for-each individual membsr of;the Manage-
" ment Board as part'of the: overal] strategy ‘After the end
- of the financial year, the Supervisory Board makes a

. decision relating to: ‘the:size of the bonus on the: ‘basis .
" . of an'extensive dlscussmn The success of the % company

and also the lndwtdual performanca of the member of
the ManagementBoard are assessed [st:ategtc and quan-
tttattve.performance personal -contribition, use and
handlmg of entreprencurial responsibility and team
conduct in the Management Board). The Supervisory
Board pays strict attention;to ths correlation:batwsan
corporata success and personal petformanca and ‘thus
the adequacy ofcompensatton :

i
i

The fain cnter:a for allocatmg bonuses to the membars
of the Management Board for the good financial year in

2005 were the positive share prlce performance of44%., .-

the ekpansicn of new business, an enhanced return on
equity, the forward-looking and rapidly implemented
Group reorganisation ag well as- the inclusion in the
DaAX. ‘

In addition to the basic salary and the bonus, a number
of other' customary benefiis arealso granted. Members
of the: Manag,ement Board are: thus entitled to a.compa-
ny cat;The company bears - all costa for the company

car; 1nclud1ng taxss. Furtherm 1a, the company alfo. %

pays part of the oontnbutlons to health i msu:ance
| Si | . . .

Lo
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ligations.of;the company”have notjresulted in any’

-and his deputy recgives one and a quarter times the ba-

“.and Board"Procedu

notreceive addmona] payment for attendlng mestings,

sation detalled above and Elxed in the Articles of ‘As-.

. bers of the, Supervisory Board any further for parsonally |

To our Shareholders
' CorporateGov?mance
Corporate Govern ance repart

Compensation report

e

There are-also retirement pension contributions in the
form. of direct comimitments set out in individual em:
ployment contracts “The defined benafit obligation is a
percentags “of the fixed salary The cutrent pension ob-

charges in’ personnel expenses, as appropriate reinsur-
ance has been taken out (ses also not:e 34 in the notes
to tha consolidated. financial statements).

Compsnsation for the Supervisory Board is defined in
section 11 of the Articles of Association. All members
receive basic compensation of € 60,000; the Chairman
receives one and a half times the basic compensation,

f
sic compensatton Members of the Supervisory Board ;
are paid further compensation for setving on commit-
tees, namely €6,000 for the Commlttee for Nomination
and’ €10,000° for the Audit Com-
mittee; thé Chairman of sach commitide recsives double
these amounts, Members of the Supervisory Board do

and the company only teimburses trava]]mg gxpenses
to attend the mestings. The Chairman ofthe Supservisory
Board is provided with an reasonable usa-of an office
and secretarial support. He is also entlt!ed to use a
company car with a chauffeur. Apart from the compen- ¢

sodiation, the company has not compensated the mem-

provided:services. The compensation of the individual
members of the Supervisory Board‘]as set out in the
Atticles of Association is included in the notes to the
conseclidated finandial statements [pa:age 122). A market
comparison has idantified the need for adjustment for
fiscal 2006, The Management Board and Supervisory
Beard will propose .the adjustment in compensation at
the Annual General Meeting. ;

' !

= A
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Canary. Wharf-

The underlying property portfolio is located at Canary
Wharf; London and comprises Grade A office space lat
to'investment grade tenants, principally in the finan-
cial: sector Canary-Wharf is the prime- commercial area
in;the Dockiands-and is; well establlshed as an~alterna-

 fice accommodatlon lat to Barclays Ban :
iey andthe WPP Group. The: bulldmgs also mclude 3 ?DD
squate matres of retail acoommodation atground floor.
Canary Wharf Group ple, the owner/manager of the:Ca-

nary Wharf Estate is an integrated property development

and.investment.group focused exclusively on Grade A

office.space with:anciilary high quality retail. acCom-:

modation.at’ the Canary. Wharf Estate.

Hypo Real%Esta ¢B 'k'Intematzonal and ‘Dautsche Bank

Wharf Group plc of i0&20 Cabot Squars Canary Whal:

Léndon E14. Hypo has provided:£ 185 million*(approx.; - ) PR
£.267 millior) of the term financing through a facility. © , R
In comparison to a.itandard re-financing facility this S f
facility has got a more -complex replacement character ‘
and is structured to assist the borrower in the cancella-’
tion and:re- -financing of existing separate debt.arrange-,
ments mcludmg secur:tlsahon,& ;

Enclosures, 29 March 2006
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The Shares <

" 28| The Hypo Rel Estate Holding Shares

i
|
" The Shares 27
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-Positl\r'trend on relevant '3dlng mdncei .

The stock markets in Europs and
_positive performance in 2005. Leadmg indices such as the

" onlyt mmor positive movements (8&
~ even reported 8 minor: dec]me [Do

-Us economy

The HYpo Real Estate Hoiding Shares

Market bad(ground in: 2005

ia- recosded a.very

Euro STOXX 50 and the DAX reported gains of 2173%
and 271% tespectively, Indices of second-line stacks also
advanced'strongly. Accordingly, the MDAX advanced by
36.0% and the SDAX gained 35.2%. The Prime Banks
sub-index, which is important for the shares teported
growth of 37.2%. On the other hand, a different picture
is provlded by the US equity indices, which recorded

-]ones Industrlal;
-0. B%) i '

5 C .
This dlfferem:e in- performance s attmbutable to more'

‘ positive expectatlons for sconomic. developments inEu-
rope and! ]apau in certain cases also-in connection with

new elections in the two countries. On the other hand,
the US markets had to face problems in the form of-in-
terest rate hikes, combined w1th fears of a weakemng

The prics ofoﬂ also had a major 1nﬂuenoe on the per-;

fo:mance at the stock markets. Only the decline in the oil’
price as- well &s signs of. only a slight slow-down in &co-

nomic growth in the US inthefourth quarter enabled the:
indices. to. ac:hlave a very posnwe ‘perférmance by’ the

year's end.
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44% growth In the thifd year oflist;ng s

s:were listed:and again in 2004 the shares
oontmued to advance strongly in ZOOS At year-and,
the shares. of HypoReal Estate HoldmgAG had achieved
a performancs of 44 %,:and thus outperformad the rele-
vant indices. Compared with the DAX)and the MDAX,
the difference was 17 percentags poinis and eight per-
centage points respectively. The shares also outper-
formed the Prime Banks benchmark by seven percent-
age points, Compared with the end of 2004, market

"capltahsahon had increased by approxs € 2 billion and
'.amounted to'€ 5.9 bllllon at the time: of this report...

A et

Major contnbutl on to the posltive development.

new Group stricture .
t

Management succeeded in further booésting the confi-

dence which had already been established on the mar-

. ketas atesult of mesting: and in certam cases actually
- beatmg the earnings targats which-had been communi-

cated. Aimajor factor in this respect wae the Group reor-

_gamsatufn -which was-announced on' 10 August. The

process. of mmblmng international- Emancmg activities

will fac:!:tate cost as well.as eammgs synergies in the -

futurs Ein wtll alsoil mean that the company's activities
will be nore transparent "This deve!opment in con-
junction with the improved outlook for earnings, was
positively recaived by the. capital markeL Management
was again able to underline its streng focus on creating
sharsholder value and thus set a Eurther positive mile-
stons.

I
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Key facts about the Hypo Real Estate Sharesin 2005

i B t
LR 1
é S

' T_h'e Hypo Reai Estate Holding Shares

'lhzz Shafes |

i .7 WKN ordlnary shures

£1802.770

¢ ISIN ordinary shares

DE 000802 70 ?

. | SEcode

units} f’ 132302525

Average number of listed shares in 2005
Number of listed shares as of 31,12.2005 units R . 072 175
Number of ordinary shares as of 31.12.2005 units 134 0?2 75

- Market capitalisation as of 3112.2005 in€ billion
« " Year's high® in€
i Year'slow ¥ in¢

" . End-of-year dosing¥

in€

© Earnings per share

in€

. Known shareholders with a stake of more than 5%

' " and Management

. et (Immg pﬂ:es of the Frankfurt stncl( ex:hange
the effects ofuplhlised lus_

i Entering t'heDA)( on190ecief_ni:érﬁ s

the HypoVereinsbank which dropped out of the index

“on 19 Decembar asa rasu!t of the-low free float. market;
capltahsahon This was accompame& ‘by the usual:gig::
nl[lcantimcreasa in tumover' whlqh was: also subse i

ident -for’ Hypo ate, Thls iin.turn
Eunglblllty and efflc atipricing, and* ganarall

existing;‘épreferrgd shares were ‘converted to ordinary
shares and subsequently admitted into exchange trading

as of 20 June. Consequently, only one class of share
ursuant to an, apph-‘

. remams tnarm‘ztly ordinary: shares;
-, .'catlo by -Hypeor Real Estate hstlng fthe shares;on:th

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

.‘,gfr'ong investar.in terest

After an. imptessive patformance the sharas replaced-
‘lar institutional shareholders from Great Britain and
“the US has ramamed strong Moreover. the inclusion in
"the DAX has also resultad in stronger damand from in-

‘bacanse: the.shares:hav
“index’ funds: Thel:e‘
" strongsr’ interest among prlvate shareholders and capi-

- .re.pl:esents value'for mvestors Followmg;»decxs:ons‘-by
1 the regullar Annual General:Meeting and by the.spamal_
meetinglof the holders of preferred stock in May 2005,

i
F
Imerast among. mternatlonal lnvestozs and in partlcu-

'speaklng world The, DAX en- -
taness forithe oompany ‘and
omlothar countrles not Heast -
craasmgly been targeted by
3 -heen soma evidencd of

tal market madla o
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Share price development 2005
indesed

= Hypo Real Estate Holding Share B DAX n MDA m OXPB
- "

Jan Feb Mar Apr May

. The.free"float as; 'daflnad by Deutschie Bérse (German
‘stock exchange] is: stlll 100%. The following' sharahold-; N

ers he]d stakes of more than 5% on the balance shast

date: Capltal Research and Management as well as Bar- "

clays~ G__]obal Invéstors. Both belong to the ten largest
institutional equity investors in the wortld.

Listed ordinary shares in 2005

. asof 31122005
" Bardays Global Capital Research .,
« Irvestors 797 % and Management -.

6.20%

Gther freefloat
8681%
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Activé ;c;a'pltal market communicatien *

Further teasons. for' the excellent performance of the
shares are the intensive communication policy of the

_company with'.the capital market and thus the im-

proved ‘understanding of -and greatsr appreciation for
the business model of Hypo Real Estate. Constant con-
tact with the capital markst relating to the latest devel-
opments in the Group permits a transparent and open
supply of information. In this context, well over 300 in-

- % - dividudl. discussions Were conducted with investors
S throughout the:

eportmg year; at} roadshows -confet-

"« ~ences-as wall as on the ‘occasion of company visits.
. Three: quarterly confarences an analyst conference and
an: mvestor conferance wers conducted And.in addi:-.
" tion innumerabletelaphone ealls, {rldeo conferences

and individual analyst discussions were also held. The

" Management Board will centinue to take the necessity

of informing investors into account by meaintaining
close contact with the capital market and the media
The aiin is to further strengthen and enhance tha confi-

. . dence-of the .markst in the shares by way of an open,.

transparent and timely information policy.
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re ) "+ The Hypo Rédl Estate Holding Shares {
| t
! 1
i
: .
!
: |
}
!
' 3
f !
| t
y P
B !
ERESRE - i
- Anabyst cdi'er - Earnings per:s'hare and dividend: ;
: i
As of tha balance sheet date; 26 analysts prowded cov: Earmngs per shara (8xclud:ng the affec'ts of capitahsad
erage of the shares of Hypo Real Estats, three more than  losses carried forward) for last year amountad to £2.33.
was the case one year ago. The indépendent third-party The Management Board and Supervisory Board will
analysis provides the investor with further support for  propose the payment of a dividend of € 1.00 per shars
his investment decision. The analysts assessment as of  at the General Annual Meeting on 8 May 2008; this
. the balance sheat date is also impressive: 18 x buy/out- would be équivalent to @ distribution rate of 42.8%.
.- perform 8x neutral/markat parformance The rna]onty-é B ol e : o
' ofana]ysts aocordmgly continiie 5 expect the company~ @ -
" to achleve a posatwe per!ormance :
g
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}
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Sterling Plaza ;

Sterling Plaza is a Class A office building located in
Preston Center, one of the premisr office markets in
Daltas, Texas. It is a 19 story building tolaling approx.
28,000 square metres with an adjacent six level parking
garage and more than 70 tenants. Gentrally located with . S
sxcellant visibility and access, Preston Center is com- LT
prised of several mid-rise office towars, luxury residen-
tial buildings and high-end fashion retail stores. It is .
adjacent to-the sought after residential communities of : 1 g L
University and Highland Park near downtown Dallas. ' ’
The transaction was underwritten and arranged by Hypo
Real'Betate Gapital Corporation; New York; a subsidiary -
of Hypo Real Estate Bank International, for Bentley For-
bes, a Los Angeles-based private real estate investment
company. Hypo Real Estate Capital Corporation.previd- o e e
ed a $47.25 million (approx. £38.79 million) loan for L ‘ o

the acquisition of Sterling Plaza. The transaction was
securitizad in 2005.

.

va IR R s
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Financial Review 33

S BB ¥ -

' Weg

T T T Y T

emeirated 75 more mew business,

doubled our pre-tasx pﬁ’@ﬁ& amnd IOW@IE@@ our
ca pn{ta‘tﬂ costs two 0 yours & alead of schedule.

Finandal Reylew

- ‘Tha reqmremnants apphcabla to the financial review

T have boen axpandad by the Gesetz zur Einflihrung
' mternatlonaler Rechnungslegungsstandards und zur
*  Sicherung da: Qualitiat der Abschlusspriifung {Bitanz-
recbtsreformgusetz — Law concarning the Introduction
ofIntamatlona! Accounting Standards and for assuring
the QGuality cnf auditing Financial Statements}, The
Deutsche Rechnungs]egungs Standard {German account-

i -
. ing standatd) BNo 15 mRS 15) sats out in detaxl the re-
‘ quu‘ements a;»phoabie to f'nanmai rewews The new-

" hancs overail transparency, the Hypo Real Estate Group

reguiatlons of suctlon 315 {1) HGB and of DRS 15 ars !
mitially applicable to the fihancial year commencing
after 31 Decomber 2004,

In order to comply with the requirements of the Bi-
lanzrechisreformgesetz and DRS 15, and also to an-

has therefore changed the structure of the financial re-
view compared ‘with the'annual report for 2004, and
has conslderably extended its scope :

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

Page 65'0f 245




34

Businéss and Conditions:: -

. in;previous years, 'The,s
. .partlculiarly in Jap

Macro-economic conditions

In 2005 the world aconomy expan ed as 1t had dona

again, deepemng therlmbalances in g]oba! econom;c fl-

. nancing! The US[$ twin, d&flClt in“both the balarlce of

trads and the govarnment budgat are”still ‘being. fi-

nanced by, Asian- gconomies’ surpluses and.by petro- -

dollers ‘which are seeking invesiment opportunities.
A novel factor compared with last. year is Europe's
strengthening economy; this has become evident in the
financial markets, but has'net yet;had-a sufflclent im-
pact to improve employmant :

This robust: nature of'the world aconomy is TS
'surprlsmg in ‘that.oil prices saw-a recordxmcraase in
2005, resulting in.an albeit:moderate increase. in infle-

‘tionrinsltha: mdustnallsed .nations: Gentral -banks, falt
compa]]ed to initiats or continue'aworld-wide cycie of
tate hlkes puttingan end:to cential bank rates’ all-time '

lows. Capltal market rates, howevar, hardly responsad
to this appreach, and remained low. Realinterest rates
declined throughiout the world actordingly dacllned
and ratae structure.cuzrves fiattened out. -

R R ST AR R

| Economic figures Federal Republic of Germany

"':Econormc growth- in Europe has not yet reached the
,_moment

ioompan‘led by much batter sentlment!mdlcators ifi the _
-;economy, partlc' larly towards the.end of:the year. Cor- '
‘porate earmngs

fact-that-consumer demard is, siill unsatisfactory in
Europe acted as a braks on any more significant im-

“tious. In addition to the export growth which is typical
far, Germany,, and a state defxclt which wag not consist-
“ent with" the treaty of “Maastricht, there wers finally |
--sagns of more mvestment mdlcatmg the start of an up- |
.;swmg Tha domestlc economy was a]so boosted by the |
_weaker Eiiro and share prices boomed Gross domestic
productrose by 0.9% (2004: 1.6%). The'number of per-

_aresult of job creation measures: by the former federal

_were unemployed in 2005.

seen‘in. other regions-of the world, but it
; more lmportant]y, 1t has been ac:

: 'ave 1mproved apprecnably. altheugh -
wage incornes haienot benaf!ted correspondingly. Tha

provement in the sconomy.including the labour market.

:

In' Germany, economic recovery was initially more cau- .

sons amployed has also, increased, ai.though mainly as

government.. On"average, 4. 9m11hon persons [11 6%)

- 20f 222822006 Q1 205 Q2 2005 Q3 2005 04 2005
i 3

Gross domestic product in € billion 5875 5588 S615 563.8

Labour force population in million 383 388 388 388

. Unemployed

In million 49 49 49 4.7

Soure: Deutsche Eundesbank; seasonally adjusted econamic figures
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§ector-spécific conditions

The real é'fstate financing situ atio:iﬁ

-In 2005, the climate.inthe real‘¢state. financing sector: -

continued to Je characterised by consclidation-in Gar-

. many, due to the dlfflcult!real estate market conditions .
“of. p:avxous vears "and-the fact. thatl the upswmg”m-""

Garmany has so- far been mode:ata The. movament in

the real” estate market was; malnly down to stats actiiz,
ties. The i increasing de- consolidation of state-owned real. -

estate is opemng up new opportumhes for mnovatlve
fmanclal institutes. b

" On the 1nternahonal scene, market cond1 ions were
: favourable overall, ensuring a- siable economic énviren”

ment, wh:ch was, however. characterised .by strong

:,-compatltlon and: pressura on.margins: ThlS makeés it -
vitally lmportant to-generats refmancmg on'favourable-
E terms An aven mota lmportant aspect \s that each in:

Construction industry's gross domestic product Federal Republic of Germany

as of 22.2.2006

__tate fmancler as new busmess is on]y; taken on-subjact

wexpacts thesa Pfandbriefe;to be properly;serviced dem-
'onstrates how hlgh the. trust is-in the Pfandbrief as an-

o+

i

§ Businessand Condltlons
i ~ Madgo-economic condltlons
i ’ Sector-spedfic conditions
|

!

didividual financial institute should have adequate
access to capltal markets and tha requisite credit-
worthmass ' '

The uncartalnty causad by the current turmoxl affecung‘

on the busmass of Hypo Real Estate Group as areal gs-
to strict risk guidelines. i

Autumn oflast year saw a disruption | to markst making
caused by the launch of several ]umho Pfandbriefe by
one la:ge issuer. However,this did notthave any signifi-

cant :mpact on the Pfandbriefs of otker issuers, trading
in which: continued as usual, The fact that the market

mvestment Eorm :

Q1 2005 Q2 2005 Q32005 Q12005

" Construction Industry's gross domestic product

in € billion 192 19.3 - 197 196

Source; Deutsc he Bundesbank; seasonally adjusted etonomic figﬁms '.
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; Mai_ﬁ'ke;g.Eitn‘te marli('étjj'

Germany The German real estate market overall is-not
characterised by a uniform development. There wate
positive trends in 2005, resulting from slightly highsr
-aconomic growth, a continued favourable level of inter-
est tates'and increased activity. by mternatlonal inves-

tors, parhcularly in the'German metropolitan: argas. The..
any regrons outsrd the. focusﬂ

“’market r‘e mains weak'i
b f’i 'ﬁifes t6r atten tion

'g_Off‘ce Followmg a general weakness in recent years;
" with falling prices and" rising vacancy-rates, the office
- market fecovatad in 2005; remaining stablé to a large

extent stable until the end of the year, Office |sttings in
the:Tiva major real esrat_e centres in Germany, namely
Berlin, Disseldotf, Frankfurt/Main, Hamburg and Mu-
nick, have now bottomsd out. Demand continues to
advance, supply pressure from project developments
continues to decline, and the trend.in rents is incraas-
ingly positive. However, these market indicators vary
widely across regions: The highest rents :are still
achieved in Frankfurt/Main (€ 34.00/m?), Eollowed by
o Mumch (€ 28. ooimz} Hemburg [€ 22 .'5|J/m2 lisse
| -'Idorf (€ 21 90/m3). ] ' -

%

Development of prime rents on the office market

in Germany
s Munich w Frankfurt/Main = Berlin
in€/m: o Hamburg o DUsseldorf w Colegne i Stuttgart
B0

' Soprie: Atis Real Miller

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

+ 1,200,000

- vacan Cy.tatas

" Vacandes of the German office market 2004 and 2005

]
& Munich = Frankfurt/pMain a Berlin

I en2 = Hirnburg & Dasseldorf o Colegne c Stuttgart -

2,400,000

1,800,000
£50,000

Source: Atl s Real Maller

Retail In the course of 2005, the retai-l market showed
signs of recovery following a generally restrained per-
formance in recent years. For a Eong time, had been
under pressure as mote and more retail space becams
available and space productivity decreased Supply of
retail spacé exceeded demand

more on prlme locatlons w1th a posmve outlook for
the coming. years. The highest rents' of €250/m? are
currently achieved in Munich’s primellocation, namely
Kaufinger Strafle, followed by Frank[urt/Mam (Zeil),
Stuttgart [Komgstraﬁe) and Hamburg (Spitalarstrafie),

where prrme rents ere between € 130/{?2 and € 220/m%

: _Logistic_s.A_s-Eu_rope’s transportation network improves.
location decisions in the Jogistics'business are increas- .

ingly beingltiken on a Eure'pe u}'id'e Easis Az a result

of the Eastern enlargement of the EU, Germany is now "’

at its geographrc and economic centreI and is becoming
a European: distribution hub: Germany holds many ad-
vantages for. the development «of distribution centres in
competition:to'the previous prrme locations of Balgium
and the Netherlands.
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i Resldential The German resrdentla N
.stagnani for quite some years. Demand in the housrng

-_ -'forBerlln £.9.50/mi—

;- ning at €700me and at €7 50/m?in D esde

. 'Accord :_gly. recent years have seen strong lnvestor in “

- tarest id’ storage and Iogrstlcs propertles in Germany

- Sales haive lncreased in Betlin, Dusseldorf Frankfurtf
© " *Main, Hamburg and: Mumch as the:fiva ‘main’ oglstlcsf‘

centres.'In cities with strong sales, t_he market'is domi’
nated- bj; large leases of more than 5,000 m? each. The

storage markst outsida metropolitan areas .has sesn a'

positive, deve]opment in recent years: Contmumg growth
in demand is- having a stabilising overall sffect on rents,
which have settled at around: €4.50/m2.to € 6.50/m?2 for.

~well to extremely well appointed storags. facilities in

preferred -!omtions.

market has been hurt by high unemployment rates, ris-

* ing ancr%!ary costs’(s, g..oil prices) as.well as the general*, .

economlc situalion. By and large, rents have remainad
stable throughout 2005. In Fastern Germany as well,
the market has become stable, albeit at very low prices.
Prlme rents in Muhich are.€.12.00/mz- €16 00/m?; the

correspondlng figures for' Hamburg are €10.50/m?~
€16.50/m* these comparg-with £7.00/m?~€14,00/m?
Olm2 for Frankfurt arn Main;="
-€900/m2 €12.00/m? in Dusseldorf and €950/m2—"

€1‘

£12. OOImz in Stuttgart In Leipzig, pnme rents.are run-

Waest End of London, prime rents are now-.stable at

-£ 87.00/m%. E£light rent increases have been achieved in

the City, although higk incentives are still.on- offer The
hnghest rent at present is £ 43/m2.

. Retail The rental: market is stable although some retallers'u
" are facmg dxfflcult marketoondltrons Nevertheless in-
. vestment dernand femains high. Top yields in prime loca-

- tions ln ‘London.are approx. 4 %, and the correspondrng

- figure for shopping centres:is 5.25% - 5 85 %' Investors

are focnsmg on shopping centres in secondary locations/
cities, and consequently, prices have risen strongly.

Logistics The matket for storage and industrial premises '
-in Great Britain is marked by a-stable supply/demand
situation. Demand for investments continues to-be high,. -

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

* partictlarly “for ‘modern” prémisss .ir‘{]‘ geod‘_ﬂ']ocetion's.

Top yield_s are running et:ap'prox. 5.5'%.

Reslden ia =Despr ernumerous negatwe predlctlons the
residenfial markethas been stable w1th only a low level

~ of monthly fluctuzations during 2005 In gerneral, the

macro-economic:situation -is expeqted to.remain posi-
tive; buyers will still be able to finance as interest rates
are relatively low in Great Britain. Demand for buy-to-

-lst properties has been falling slightly. Nevertheless,
property prices, particularly in London are stiil at a.
. very high level, which does not hold out the prospect -
. of any growth 1n__the immediate {_uture. Propetties in
n* % secondary:locations migbtuexperienoe; price reductions -

or losses in value. _ ;

Fra_nce Offlce THe'.office market in Paris) the largest rental
market in Burope, is sesing a stable re{ntai performance
(1.8 million m? from January to November 2005). As a

.result of.the balanced situation between supply and
: demang, the vacancy raté.is current]y 6% which is

low compared with other European markets In recent
months, prime rents have fallen by approx 5% to alev-

el of (F',‘S‘Umz The; 1nvestment ‘markét;is still very com- .
‘patitive. ' There’ is'a shortage of office-premises in prime

locations, which; ;are trading on yrelds of 4.75%-5.0%.

_# The offics, market ‘in the French.regions has been rela-
. T tively stable sitce 2002 wrth average rents of € 11/m?—
Great Brlta!ﬂ Oﬁ'ice Supply continues.to decllne, resulit:

ing in slightly lower vacancy rates (7.5 % -for Central: |
Lordon, 5% inthe Wast End, 10% {a tha Gity). In the: -

£17/m% As a result of strong investor demand, yields
are also falling-outside the capital,.and are running ata

level of betwaen 7.5 % and-9:5 % on a nationwide basis.

. !
Retail The retai! markst in Paris is siable, with prime

rents of up to €415/m? on the “Rue‘ du Favbourg St-

Honoré” and “Avenus des Champs Elysées Average

_rents are batween €50/m? and € 160/m2 In mid-size

and smaller cities, many, new pro;ects meke for an ac-

" tive tetail markst. Shopprng center. pro]ect develop-
“mants have increased, with a total- of approx 400 new

pro]ects in 2005, with ' expansions, developments or
modernisations. accountmg for a majority (70%). I

- French tetdil properties, an investment volums of more

than € 1.1 billion is expected for 2005, Yields of around

. 3.0% are achiaved in traditicnal prime shopping loca-

tions, rising to 6.5% ~7.0% in secondary locations and
smaller gities. .

|
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"’suburb of Neurlly ¥

LogisticsiThe logistics property. market was one of the
~most actlve sub- markets in'2005 with a high rental,vol-
-ume: Desplte good. rental demand the trend.in rents was.

slightly downward Prime premises’in Greater Paris are
- being let for around-€ 4/m2-5 £/m3. The:trend in: the in-
“vestment markst is-similar'to'that in the ‘offide market -
Top yretds are currentlyJust below 8%.

Residential The French residential property market has

- sean strong price increases since the year 2000 (approx

50% on averzgs), one of the reasons being the low leve!
of interest rales. The.Paris market in particular is very

.-active, with dpprox..63,000 transactions:in 2005 and

average' prices of €4 0001mz—€70001m= At the top
end of the market, prices in excess of € 10, 000/m?.are
achieved:in the 6th.and 7th arrondrssements andii

us Off'ce The us offlce market contmued to show signs

of 1mprovemant in 20065, wrth average ylelds rising in
B0 out of the 69 main markets. "As‘in the. fetail and resi-
dential sectors, the sub-markets of the west lead the
field in terms of yields. The nation-wide average rent.is

-USs# 18, 44/:11? and the av.erage _vacancy .rate, has de-

clined by 1.4% to 14.9% since:last year Despite early
signs of tecovery, average yields achieved upon new rent-

_.alhave remained below the current average rents in some

markets The markets with the strongest ‘démand were

Austin, San Franaisco, Orange County | and San Drego

Retail Consumet sentrment is :still posrtrve dnvmg the
expansion in retail. Project developars are focussing on
“Lifestyle and Leisure Centres”. The trend is positive,
with growth in retail sales running above 6% in virtual-

ly all sectors. Vacancy rates are mainly declining. First

class premises are yielding around 5.0%-5.5%.

Logistics The industrial and logrstrcs real-estate market

* .continued to perform -well iny2005. It partlcular, the,

port and cargo terminal markets: (e g. on the East Coast)

: 'experrenced & hoom- throughout 2005. Industcial vacan-
. ‘cies dec_reased to approxrmately.}q.!i %_.,I_p_ addltron. {m-.
“provements in the'supply and'demand balance (i'e: ab-

sorphon exceeded complation) caused- industrial rents
to gtow by 1.4% during 2005 Leasmg rates averaged
3.84 $/m?2.
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the

Residential The residential property market is still char-
actensed by-ahigh degree of conversion of commarcial
property for residential-use, which rs taking some of
the strain off &f eommercna] markets. Markets peaked in
2005/2006 and are- nowheaded down. Thls has resulted

‘in- fa]]mg prides’in ‘many sub- matkets. Stitl, the mean

value ‘of residential pri¢as in 2005 was around 12%
higher than the corresponding previous year figure.

Other str:teglcally important markets

i
Spam A slrght increase (o offrce tents rs reported for the'
two; metropolltan amsas of Madrid and Barcelona. The
top.. rent in Madrld is. currently approx £27/m?, and

approx €24/t in Baroelona Spam has one of the -}
Jargest shoppmg centre markets. in} Europe (242 m?

shopping centra retail space/l 000-inhabitants), which

-continues to. expand ‘strongly and” features the fourth
‘highest density in Europe after Great Britain, France

and Germany. Top rents in inner ity retail locations
increasad by 13% (Madrid) and 15% (Barcelona) dur-
ing-2005, and are now running at approx. € 165/ms? in.
Madrid and € 148/m? in Barcelona As a tesult of the
economy's positive performancs, the logistics market is
showing healthy gfowth. Top rents in Madrid and Bar-

- celoha are approx. €?/m2 £8/me. Econotnic condltronsﬁ )

have resulted:in stronger demand for residential prop-
erty in Spain. On-the other hand, burldmg activity in

.the'cities has hot been, able to keep up with this devel-

opment resultlng in sharp]y hrgher prices for the
whole of Spain during the past two years, with prices
of more than €10,000/m? in Madrid ai'.rd Barcelona.

: .
Sweden In the year 2005, Stockholmjwas the focus of
investment in office premises, accounting for mors

~ then half of all transactions. The: avetrage vacancy rate

is 12%.,. with’ offica 1ants remammgl relatively stable.
However, rent, increases have been teported for indi-
vidual prime locatlons of :Stockholm{(current top rent

. £33/m?). Innthe; reta]l sector. there'rs evidence of a. . '

trend’ towards larger shopplng centres, particularly
through expansion of existing centres. Top rents are
now approx. € 90/m2 In the logistics market, supply is

relatively limited and.demand is moderate. Rents ars

stable, with rents topping at approx. € 8/m?—¢€ 9/m.

Page 70 of 245




jtaly Because of the negative prospects for the aconomy,

the vacancy 1ate foroffice premises in Milan was approx.

8.2%, increasing slightly in 2005, whereas top rents

stabilised {€ 38/m?in Milan, €33!m= in Roms). As a re-
k.sult of tha shortage- of smtable lnvestment products

: ,entermg secondary offlca markets Ltaly: stlll has one: ool

. ‘the. lowest:shopping centre densities in Europs [145 m?

‘ ;_shoppmg centre. saEes areal1,000 mhabltants] Invastors
" and developers are mcreasmgly focussmg on’ products

in central and southern Italy. Top retail rents in prime
locations are running at a level of €70/m?-€ 180/m?
with a llmltad supply. The supply of modern.logistics
premises is still limited, and is-concentrated ir & small
number of locations around Milan and Rome. Top rents
of approx. € 5/m2—€ 6/m? are stabls. g

The Neth:efia'n ds Amsterdam still has a very high vacancy

‘rate ofapprox 20%. Top rents. of £ 29/m? have increased
_;by around 4.5% m 2005 dasplta only: moderate rental
‘ ?:'turnover ‘However,in'the. previous fvs) years "they had

been declmmg slightly. Moderate consumer confidence
continues to affect the retail sector with low turnover
rates failing to inspire the rental market. This sub-mar-
ket is characterised by a constant rental level. Top rents
in prime locations, at € 130/m?- € 1506/m?, are close to
the European avarage. Rottardam is also reporting tela-
tively high vacancy rates in conjunction with-moderate

demand. Investments are still increasing in both metro-
politan areas, with top yields of around 7. 5% compared
(with 8:5% last year Both md 'stnal vac noy a_ '
“tates remain stabla :

|.

Central and Eastern Europe (?oland the .Czech Repubﬂc,

' joungary} Office 1ents continue;to be: stable inthe,capi-
tals _ofWarsaw. Pragua and Budapest. Because therriar-

kets in these cities are curren’tlj' tenant’ markets, rent-
free pariods and grants for Eltlmg-out costs ate becoming
mors and mere important when new rental- agresments
ara stgned Top rents in Warsaw are currently running at
approx £21/m2, the corresponding figure.for Pragus-and

.Budapest being approx. € 19/m? In 2005, & transaction
“volume! of more than €3.7 billioh was, generated in. the.
. CEE region. of this_figure; Poland accounted for: more’
* than 40 transactions with a volume of approx. €1.95bil-
- lion. Ofthls more than 60% was invested-in fatail: pre-

mises. Top rents for shoppmg centres remained mostly

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

t..

stable in 2005. The vacancy rates for most propertiss are
far'below 10%. In the logistics markst, a certain amount
of saturation .is becoming apparent in' the GEE region.
Rents last year came under slight pressure. This market
segment has; ;also turned into a tenant market over the last
year: Top ren

Japan Aftar the USA, Iapan is the largest commercial

property market in the wor}d Tokyo is by far. the largast

The: -vacancy . rate “has “declined to an all-time iow
(<5.0%). As a result of the limited supply and constant
demand, office rents- during the past{12 months have
incieased by’ approx. 10%. Top 1ents are currently
around JP¥ 8,221/m? (€ 59/m?). The marked difference
between property yields (<4 % for p:ir'ne premises) and
fmancmg costs :has made,the ]'apanese' investment mar-

ket even more attractive: The mazket!for REITs (“Real

Estate Investment Trusts”) contitues té expand strongly

. .with.the-launch of.the 14th REIT onithe Tokyo stock

re currently between €4}’mz and £5/m?

Finarcial
e “Business and Corilditions
: : . Sector-specific conditions

exchange. The market capitalisation of the 14 Japanege:

REITs is approx. US$ 15billion. Folldwing 17 years of

dedlining prices in the region ofgraatar Tokyo, residen-
tial property prices-haveé risen shghtly for the first time
in -2004/2005. On the othsr hand, the market for top
quality apartments is very robust, with strong price in-
creases in certain areas for rental properties and prop-
Er'ties-split intO‘owriei'-bccupied aparti’nents.

China The two primary, marksts of Peklng and Shanghas
ate: :eportmg strong rental ‘activity. Pekmg has a vacan-.
'cy rdte of appiok. ‘105% and demand is attributable.’
maidily to ralocations within the city. ]As a result of the.

low vacancy. tate in the sub- market of Puxi [4 8%),

[Shanghal GBD:'9.2%); tenants are occaslonally ancoun-

termg problems in locatlng adequata office premises.
Rents are relatively stable.in Peking {approx. US$ 28/m?)
and ate tising slightly in Shanghal (approx. US$ 30/m?~

,US$ 31/m2). Followmg the introduction of speculatioch -

periods and applicable taxes in 2005, there are signs of
a slight:slowdown in the'Chinese residential property

“markét. Séles‘ff"g_ures and- prices. are stagnating in -the
-three cities of‘Peking Shanghal and Guangzhou, The
’ rental- market driven by. the increasing number of ax-

patnates is marked by strong demand for luxury apart-

mentsin. Shanghal and: Guangzhou Rents aré currently.

averaging US$ 21/m? in this segment.

i.
|
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Major legal and economic facto_ré for our Bupsmes‘s'

In the year under review, the Pfandbrief'Law, which
came into force on 19 July 2005, had a major impact on
the business of the Hypo- Roal Estate Group. As a result
of this law, the group of potent:ai Pfandbnef issuers
has. lncreased as the special bank principle-has been
abohshed Aocordlngly, &1 banks which aig in posses-
sion’ of :a Pfandbrief licence issued by the Bundesan-
stalt Eur Fmdnzdlenstielstungsaufsrcht and thus meet

" - gertain mtmmum requtrements are permrtted to issue
'-‘Pfandbnefe On thesother hand. new possibilities have
‘openeduup for, lendrng activities forthe: traditional

""mortgaga banks. They may now conduct all bankmg
business. ) S

Company-specific conditions

1

Orgamsattonalandlegalstructure oftheGroup i

" Ih the -yeat under review, the Group. structure of the

Hypo Real Estate Group consisted of the parent compa-
ny Hypo Real Estats Holding AG and thies lndependent

operational subsidiary banks. The holding company is-

responsible for the busmess pollcy and strategrc man-

- agement of the Group

' In the year under review, the subsidiaries were raspon-

sible for thres precisely defined business segments: -

a Hypo Real Estate Bank International,-based in Dub-
lin, is responsible for commercial structured real as- |

tate financing business in all 1nternatronal merkets

i -Furthermcnre it oversees the business: segment capltal

- markets and' provrdes asset manage t

amongst othars,

». The main business of Wurttembergrsche Hypothek-
enbank, Stuttgart, is Pfandbrief-based commercial
raal estate financing in all interrational markats.

s Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Murich, engages in com-
mercial real estate financing in the Gerrmar markat.

K
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" The Hypo Reai Estate Group: has taken

.Hybo Real Estate Group‘were effécted,

datail. in:the chapt
t servroes )

i

}
. i
!
i

the changa in
the law ‘as the opportunity. for its :estructunng which

‘was announced on 10 August 2005, and has thus im-

mediately taken advantage-of the posstbthties provided
by the new law. Consistent utilisation of this .oppor-
tunity: will further enhance the Gro{rps compatitive-
nessxand market posrtron As early as 1 Januaty 2008,

- virtually all necessary measures had been implemented

to benefit from-the advantages provided by the new

'leglslat!on right from thé:ivéry begtnmng The detar!s

of this, restructuring are explained more extensrvely in
the chapter “New Corporate Structure since 1 ]anuary

o The - business. segment's'were reshuffled as. part of re-
" structurmg affective. 1 January 2006. In- prepanng for

this restructuring, which i3 explained in greater detail

. in the chapter “New, Corpprate Structure since 1 Jan-

uary 2006” changes in the management structute of the

Thus Hypo.Real Estate Holdmg AG's Management Board
hasraccordingly been expanded as of 1 Dacember 2008,
Stephan Bub was appomted to the Management Board
of Hypo Real Estate Holdmg AG, whe'e he is responsi-
ble for Public Finance and Capital Markets activities.
The'changes in the management structure in the year

under. review at the subsrdlary banke) are presenied-in
t8; “Major - Events of the relevant .

buemess segments e

S _ :
Manzgement concept The concept used by Hypo Real
Estate Holding AG as the parent company for managing
the Hypo Real Estate Group aims to enhance the value
of the Hypo Real Estate Group. The value of the Group
increases when return on equity of a control unit ex-
ceedsthe capital costs, curtently the}group w_rde aver-
agé iz atapprox. 7.5%. The business segments conséituta
the control units. - ‘ Lot

t
t
i

U
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In calculatmg retum ‘on’ equ1ty,|ne' noome undar':IFRS'_';

- {s set agamst average aquity excl, AfS reserve and cash

flow hadga mserve) Capital costs constitute the theo-

-retical costs cf equity. They: represent| the :marginal cost
‘rate for ex1st1ng and- future risk taking The profitability
of new business and the existing portfolio is investigated,
with dus consideration being given to the spacific risk,
by comparing return on equity-with capital costs. As
an additional condition for managing-equity, it is also
necessary to ensure that the regulatory requirements and

the raqulremants of the rating agenciss. concernmg the

mm:mum capltahsatlon are: satxsf]ed ‘

“‘ratio. The'cost-in

"“sisting: of interest: income,;;commission incoms,

Lot Rem e o Her g b e e bbbl o o

fProductl' 1ty s measured initerms of the costindome -~

o ratio is the ratio between general
administrative expenses and: opera:mg revenues, con-
net
trading-incoms, ru_at income<from investments and the

balance of other operating incoms/expenses.

1
In addition, non-financial performance indicators are

very important in the Hypo Real Estata'Group. Thess are
described in detail starting on page 43.

a7 - anin. : ' ~ f,.
Managem ent structu:e of Hypo Real Estate Group
asof 31122005 ]
!
§“""‘-‘"* r o ! B . e £ ; _"I : N e " - ety " :' "1
! . . Management Board of Hypo Real Estate Holdlng AG . b f
T Georg Funke (CEQ) T .
g E:Stephan Eubl Dr Paul EiseielDr Markus FeIII Frank Lamby . oo g
oo - T ! : .
LG : . - I i
; - SR
Management Boam! of 'Managemeni Board of ‘Management Board of |

Jamés Camphell-
Eckehard CettingérKlemm. ©

<Jirgen Ferk

(untji‘31.1§!.2035) . i o Friedrich-Wiihelm Ladda R Frank Heltwlg ] !
Jirgen Fenk (until 31.12.2005) -~ . . Bettina von Qasterreich - Lo ey . T

* Tom Giynn (Deputy CEQ) : DN Manfred Weil

;" Heather Nasbitt ‘ :

L e P L Lo .

. Hypo Real Estate Bank International Whrttembergische Hypothekenbank AG Hypo Real Estate Bank AG
- Dublin_ . Stuttgart” 4, Munkh °_ -
: Stephan 8ub (CEO) Or. Paul Eisele (Spokesman) Frank Lamby (Spokesman)

Dr. Robert Grassinger (Deputy Spokesrn an)(
+

Manuela Better
Reinhold Guntner (DeputyBoard Mamber) é

S—— _.._....:_-....K,.... i

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

Financial Review

Business and Conditions
Sector-spedfic conditions
Company-spedfic conditions

5

i

I
P Page 7|3 of 245



42

Segments and main locations

* ® Hypa Real Estate Holding AG ® Hypo Real Estats Bank International m Wortterrbergischa Hypothekanbank AG @ Hypo Raal Estate Bank AG

o,

e

s
Stuttgart & hunich.

B *ﬁsZun\:h B

o Gmwax ﬁMnhn“
e

¢ {;\ ‘\er.

Products and busmess processes

The focal pointof the Hypo Real Estate Group is-in the
commercial real ‘estate financing businsss. Through its
subsidiaries. branches and representative offices, the
Group has established a presence.in all: major.real estate

,markats}throughéut the v\}orld ‘The. Hypo Real Estats
Group prov1des customlsgd
.'fmanctal products: and:de

‘hlgh quallty an& inngvative:
vatwas to; zntarnatlonal in:

vastors, |real ustate groups: and developars Thé product --
rangs of the HypoReal Estate Group also includes financ: -

ing products such as- senior ]endmg. mezzanine fmanc-
ing, portfollo flnancmg as well as syndications, securi-

tisation‘and capital markets products ‘1ts business is»

mamly'transactlon dtiven. This means that the first
step is to mvestngate the profitability of every property
to be fmanoed based .for instance on existing rental
agreements and the credit-worthiness of the tenants.. A

: whole series of additional risk managemant instruments

is used before a ‘transaction s eventua]]y concluded.
" ‘This is dlear commitment to so-called transactlon bank-
ing. Nevertheless, for the Hypo Real Estate Group, it is
very important and essentizal to place emphas:s on tela-
. tlons wzth its customers, which ars. excellent and often
of. _manyyyears standing. .

"Thé &fbhp :hs,'an' em ployer :

Overall the numbar of dmployess contmued to. declme
sllghtly last year As of 31 December 2005 1,233 peisois
were employed in the Hypo Real Estate Group, com-
pared with 1,311 last year, At Hypo Real Estate Bank
International, the number of employees amounted to
452 at year end (504), and the correséonding figures at
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Hypo Real Estate Bank AG and Wiirttambergische Hypo-

thekenbank AG-were 520 {592) and 187 (171) respective-

ly. The numl:er of employees in the hoiding company’

has rlsen to 64 during the year (44), because the hold-
ing company has taken on a: stronger management func-

~tion: Approxlmately 35%. of employees work akifoad,’

most: of;whom are local- employees 44.8% of employ

" . ses are femals, 55, 2% are.male. (A Further: welcome as-
s pectiist ‘that a- female member ‘of . the Management Board‘f
is represented in alt major subsidiaries.

P

Structure of workforce of Hypo Real Estate Group 2005

ascf 31122005

Male 681 Female 552

Total 1,273

A key aspect of personnel work last year was the proc-

B8ss ofsuppoxting the restructuring of the Group in Dub- .

lin and: Stutigart. Members of the! Managetent Board,
senior executives and . employees ‘have demonstrated
srgmfmant flexibility and mob1l]ty within’ the frame-

to embrace changes and which also stands for rapid
and careful coping -with the tasks which accompany
the changes.

If jobs have been lost at individual locations and in in-
dividu'al functions, it has been possible for alternative

7 posmona to be. found for many: employees. within the
Group..or reutually acceptable solutlons havs been
) found w1th the afiected employees

b
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‘ ns: of tasks This.is. -
" not only a reflectlon of a hlgh de rag- of loyalty of’ ‘the’
~ work force with regard to the Group, it is also a reflge-
“tion of the corporate cultute which:is open-and wrllmg'-

‘ ‘5age commitment an

A further key aspect of personnel work was the defini-
tion and ceation of a group of key functlons which are
partlcularly 1mportant for the busrness success or im-
plementation of the,strategic aims of the Group The

Aaspect of staff retention, quallflcatron’s and succession
=_plannmg will'be in _-Ahe future partlcularly assured for

this ‘group, which consists of persons’ from all- groups
and hierarchy levels 'When new persons ars appointed

dates and also to use extarnal recruitment to ensure
that'a continuous culturs of renewal and innovation is
encouraged.. Last year, the Group recruited new em-
ployeas for various management and speacialist fune-
tions in the various entities. The explarlence gained in
the course of recriitment discussions. has shown that
the companies in the Group enjoy the reputation of

1

being a preferred employer .. l .

A thlrd major point of the Group w1de Human Resourc-

es activities-was the harmorisation of' ex1st1ng compen- .

sation systéms with'ths central alm of expandmg variable
compensation. Throughout the Group, the total com-
pensation of employees consists of a fixed salary and a
variable bonus content; thebonus itself is calculated
on the basis of performance in tarms of meeting indi-
vidual objectives and also with due consideration being

.given to the succesy of.the ovarall Group ot the relevant
subsidiary. Overellcompensatron comprising the fixed l
salaty and’ variable bonus, iz based on market salaries. .
Thé Hypo Raal Estate iGroup expacts to see above:aver- . ¢
“above-averags acbrevement from -

all employeds. Accordingly, the varlahle compensation
in. part]oular may be above average 1

: < 5
The proportion of variable compensation differs accord-
ing to region/country and also accordmg to extent of
reéponsibility. In Germany and in most European coun-
tries, the percentage can be between 10% and 50% of
overall compensation. In the Anglo-Saxon world (UK

and the USA), the percentage of variable compensation:

méy alse bersevaral timas the fixed salary for selacted
sales functions. Overall, wages and salaries for financial

,2005 amounted te € 164 million, including € 85 million

(39.6%) profit-related variable oompeneation.

|
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-"to key fiindtions, th )companys phrlosophy is to pro- -
" vide gobd development opportunities to internal candi-
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Sustalnabnlnty '

e

E _‘ We'should like:to thank the employ.eas—.vf:qr-lhei,l:zc‘ommit-‘;
ment, deédication and the will to succeed, which has.

enabled'this result to be achieved: We should particu-
larly like to thank the staff representatives, who safe-
guard theinterest of employsesin Gemlany the Group’s
Works COU.null and aiso the works councz!s of the
banks. | E : -

Estate Group s business ptinciples apply to all compa-

nies in the Group, and are a major factor in the success

of our business. Transparent structures, ¢learly com-
muricated corporate objectives and consistent imple-
mentation of such objectives result in sustained benefit
for customers and investors.

it
it

by the 1ncorporatlon of ‘non- fananc:lal :performance -in-

l_dlcators

An important part of our corporate culture is our rela-
tionship with customers-and investors, with employeas
and other interest groups. Thus of the:Group’s General
Credit Guidslines include ethical principles for ex-
tending financing; these are also consistent with the
code of conduct which appliés to all employees How-
ever, this corporate culture also mvolves a parcalved
commltmenl to ‘the enwronment atid’ socxety 8s ;a
whola:™ “

" One examplel of the social commitment of -the Hypo

Real Estate Group are its foundations, whlch support
cultural and scientific: pro]acts

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

; the Hypo Real Estate Foundation awards
an architecture- pnza for: exemplary commarmal build-
ings under the patronage of the Federal Minister for
Transportation, Building and Housmg and the Federa-
tion of German Architects every two years. Production
facilities, commercial and industrial buildings are eli-

‘gible,-an field, in other words, which is normally not
‘considered in aesthetic, ecological and soéial terms. In
- :this-way, the Hypo: Real Estate Group faces up to its 18-
. sponstb)llty for the enwronmant and dcts accordingly.

- s el T T The%prbtactibi_a oﬁ-né_tﬁral‘;;esources-._is a major basis of
Responstblhty. 1ntegr1ty professwnallty - the Hypo Real_

sustaihable economic growth and-social prosperity. In
the. Hypo Real Estate Group, care is taken to ensure that

corporate activity contributes to an environment which

is worth living in and preserves it Speciﬁc objectives
in this field. have already been 1mplamented by seg:
ments of the Group, for instance dedicated co-opsra-
tion with manufacturers and suppliefs which mest de-

- E A -+ <. fined envirohmental protection requlremants and which
In addition to the professional way it which'economic

‘.factors !ara 1noorporated in entrapreneunal decmonsr
the sustamac succass ‘ofithe company is also determined.

are correspondmgly certified. Thé him is to reduce

" strain on tha anv:ronment lJy mean's of sensitle and
Z'economlcally viable-'measures. ‘The Hypo Real ‘Estate -§

Group has* already considerad some of the poss:ble

paper-saving sttuctures that reduce the amount of paper
which is used. In-addition, co-operation. with environ-
mentally certified service providers and the use of
modern energy-saving equipment will be enhanced and
made part of a systematic approach. All of these efforts
of the Hypo Rea! Estate Holding AG have been recog-

"nised, as is évidenced by its inclusion in ths major sus-
‘tainability indices; such:as the' FTSE4 Good and the

Dow ]ones Sustamabllsty Index.

!
. measures. For mstance it-will promots reducing con- -
.sumption of° paper and will encourage greater use of

|
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Financial Rep_orf

. "l:i.ypé'i‘ieziraistaté Group.-

‘Major events

The year under review was extremely successful for
the Hypo Real Estate Group. The expaectations sst for
the year 2005 were all attained or exceéded. Though
the situation was not easy in many markets considera-
bly more new business ‘was taken on in-all-markets
subject to strict risk guidelines: This ambitious aim has
been raallsed as:a; result o_f structures, sn‘d 'rocesses be-

Real Estate Bank Intetnational and Wurttembergsscha

Hypothekenbank.

Deve!opment in earnmgs
p

The Hypo Real Estite Group ‘WS able to; contmua 1ts
SUCCEsS through financial year 2005. Excludlng testruc-
~ turing expansas the,q‘roup ‘generated nel income be-
fore taxes of € 442.million, in conjunction with.a return
.on equlty after taxes: [ad]usted for the deferred tax ef-.-
fects from capitalised losses carried forward) of 8.0%,
and'is thus at the upper end or above the target ranges
gpecified at the baginning of the year (netincome before
. taxes: €400 million to €425 milliony return on equity
after taxes: 7.5 % to 8.0%).

. Net income before taxes

vimemiion o _wAnnualFigures w Budget ¢
500
400
300
200
156
100 |
2003 2005
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lion: even after restructurmg expensas of €34 millicn

- in€ million « Annual Figures & Budget
t

. .Boosted by strong new real estate fmancmg busmass

: 'jimngwnhm tha targat
_,hon ‘Additions to provi:

-the budgeted rangsof up to €315 mllhon This is at-

Financial|Review
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Flnan(lal Report

Hypo Real Estaté Group

Accordingly, in view of the positive development at
the point at which the intended re-organisation of the
Group was announced in;the interim report for the pe-
riod .anded 30 June ZODS,,the Management Board con-
sidered that it was justified in stating that the originally
communicated full-year target would be met, even though
this involves a one-off expense-of batween € 30 million
and €35 million. At the end of the year, net income be-
fore’ taxes came in wythm the-targst range at. €408 mil-

the. correspondmg adjiisted return on e'qmty after taxes
was 7.4 %. i

| \ |
. 1 i
Operating revenues '

1,000

895-915
900 90%

§3%5
800

760

600

2003 2004 2005

hg of € 895 mllllon to-€ 915 mil:
ons . for losses on leans and ¢
advances amount to'€ 149 mllllon which is much lower !
than -the budgsted hgure (€ 190 million to €180 mil-
lion); this is due mainly to the further improved port-
folig quality, compared with previous !year, Gereral ad-
ministrative expenses of € 317 million were just above !

tnbutable primarily to addxtlonal costs incurred_shead
of .the re-organisation and ad]ustment of bonus provi-
sions. - ) ‘ f

t
i
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Budget
Budgat 2005
* Opemating performance
; 3 Oparating revenues In € million ) 895 to 915
Provisions for losces on loans and advances in € millian §. : 190 to 180 i
Generat administrative expenses In € million 315 to 305 5
. Netincom efloss before taxes in € million 400 to 425 i
Key ratios
Return on equity after taxes? in%] 15t0 80
Cost-income ratic (based on operating revenues) In% 35210333
" 2 - f
» Exluding the effects fromeapitalised os ses Carred forward o . . !
S G e A - 5 .
- . KeyFinandials '
’ 2004
Opemting performance
Operating revenues in € million | 835
Netinterestincome In € million . 683
Net commission income in € million 94
Net trading income in € million 11 H
Netincome from investments in € million 47 i
Balance of other operating income/expenses in € million -
- Provislons for loszes on loans and advances in € million i 276
" General administ-ative expenses in € million 315
Balance of other income/expenses in€million] - -
Netincom efloss before taxes in € million 2
Netincomefloss ¥ In € million 168
’ |
Key ratios . L N .
Return on equity after taxes ¥ in% e 40
Cost-income ratic (based on operating revenues) in%] . M: T . 371_9 ' 317
S !
Key indicators " . _3!..1_23‘)2_5- 31122004 s
Total volume of lending in € billion ] 9.1 §
_Risk assets compliant with BI5 rules in € billion 510
. Core capital ratio compliant with 8I5 rules ? in%{ 83
%.  Employees 1,311
. W Exluding the effects fromcapitalised Il:.nsesurri:ld forward |
3 As per approved annual financial staterrents and after profit distribution '
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- tersst mcome was: v1rtually unc:hanged at£:6i
{(2004: €683 mllllon) 1o the ‘course of.:the year. thef‘
‘Group has succeeded:in compgnsating for the negative
‘impact on sarnings relating to the downsizing of the

Compared with last year, the developmaat.of earnings
at the Hypo Real Estate Group iszas follows:

‘ Operating revenues Operating fevenuaes’ lmproved from

€835 mllllon in previous. yeal: to €909 mlll!on Net in-

domestic portfolic by ganerating strong new teal estate
financing business, although the new business has not
yet been completely drawn and is accordingly not yet
fully generating interest. As a result of the strong level
of new businass and new structured capital market so-
lutions, net commission income has improved consid-
erably from € 4. million to €125 million. Net trading

- {ncoms thés thore- than doublsd ‘to €27 mllllon (previ-

" able market conditions to realise capital gains. Net in-

come from irvestments thus amounted 'to-€ 67 million,
after €47 million in the previous year. The balance of
other operating income/expenses is €5 million (2004:
€0 million).

N

Provisions for losses on foans and advances The require-

 ment forr provisions: for losses on loans and advances
- has deollned cons1derably comparad with last year. The=
‘ ‘.ad&ltlon is currently € 149 million and' thus €127’ m1l

lion lower than the corrésponding previous year figure

(€ 276 million), which still.included € 130million risk

shelter provided by HVB AG. If this risk shelter is dis-
regarded, the addition declined by € 257 million com-
pared with last year. This demonstrates in particular
the success of the. portfolio streamlining at Hypo Real

Estate Bank AG and also the risk-sensitive naw business |
policy. ' -

- :Net:interest:ingoms, after provlswns for losses on loansu‘_
“and advances totalied €536 mllllon after €407 mlllxon

last yaa:
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General administrative expenses Under general adminis-

trative expenses, the savmgs at Hypo Re|a1 ‘Estate Bank AG
: attnbutabla to restructurmg are.offset by higher expens-

es arising from internatiohal expansmn and the process

‘of ¢ establlshmg the Cap)tal ‘Markets umt Accordingly,
general adm]nlstratwe expenses ‘are v1rtually unchanged* '

compared withlast year at' € 317 millien (previous year:
€315 million); however, the cost- -income ratio has im-
proved to 34.9%, compared with 37.7 % last year.

Balance of other income/axpenses Thafbalance of other
incomelexpanses amounted to €-35 million, and in-
cluded restructuring expenses of € 34 million attributa-

ble to the re-crganisation to form the hew Group struc- -

ture, which is effective since January 2008, and
€ 1 million for other tax -expenses.. The previous ysar

“figure (€~ 23 m1ll1onJ included budgeted expenses of

vious :year figure '(net,incoms beforel taxes: €221 mit-
lion). If the one-off additicnal expense of € 34 million
attributable to the re-organisation is taken into consid-
eratson net incoms before taxes is €408 mlllion

Taxes on income Tncome tax expense is € 49 million (com-
paréd with a-téx mcome of €50 mlllion in 2004) and is

splitiinto actual tax expenses of €l36 million (2004:
£60 mllllon) and deferred tax moome of £37 million -

(2004: €110 mlll:on) On balance, in 20065 the capitali-
sation of losses carried forward and their utilisation has
resulted in a deferred tax income of € 48 million.

A deferred tax income of € 84 million has resulted from
the capitalisation of losses carried fotward particularly
at Hypo Real :Estate Bank AG and Hypo Real Estate

_Holdlng AG; this is partially offset’ lJy deferred tax ex-

penses of € 18.million attributable to the capitalised tax

. assets on, losses carried, Eorward whlch were set aside’

in the year 2004

i
o
!
*‘

" ous yeat €17 mllllon] which underlines the successful € 21 million attnbutable ‘to the restructurmg of Hypo -
activities in the Capital Markets.unit, which only com- Real Estate Bank AG - ) ; .
" ‘menced:cperations at the begmnmg of 2004. As faras | » : ! . | i
net income from investments is concefned, the Hypo ' Net sncomebeforetaxesExcludmg restructurmg gxpens- &
Real Estate Group was abla to take advantage of favour- es, the Hypo.Real Estate Group generated net income -2
before taxes of € 442 million, and-thus doubled the pte- - ‘E"
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Nat Income If the deferzed taxes from capitalised losses
carried forward in the amount of € 46 million are disre-
garded, net income amounted to € 313 million. Last year,
in which losses carried forward wers capitalised ir the
amount of € 103 million, adjustéd net income amount-
8d to €168 million. Including the effects. from capital-
ised ]osses carried forward, net incoine after taxes
tad to: 'E 359 rmlhon R

ing the succassfu! squaeze -out at Wurttambergl-

o sche: Hypothl*kenbank there areiio longer any minority

interests in net income; net income is now fully attrib-

utable to the equity holders. .

Development in assets

Total assets of the Hypo Real Estate Group amounted to
£152.5; bllllcn as of 31 December 2005, after € 148:1. bil-
lion'l:

by €4u8 billion'in the course of ‘the- sharp downsmmg in
; publlc sector loans at the businass segment Hypo Real
- Estats Germ.my no-longer consistent with the Group’s

strategy. This was opposed by extended trading activi-
ties, particularly in the Capital Marksts unit, resulting
in highar trading assets [€+4.2 billion) as well as higher
financial invastments {€+3.0 billion). Ovsrall, public
sectot loans drawn declined by €7.68 billion. Real estate

 firancing drawn increased by € 3:1 billion-as a rasult of

strong néw business.

t Contmgent tiabilitiae mcluded in 't tal voluma of]endlng

amounted to € 2.6 billion (31 December 2004: £4:6 bil-
lion). Compared to previous year, these comprise much

reduced guarantse obligations of € 1.2 billion provided”

by Hypo Real Estate Bank International .vis-a-vis HVB AG

as part’of the synthetic transfer of the real estate financ-

ing portfolic “Western Europa*’.
|

Consistent with the Group s strategy, in the course of the

downslzmg of public sector loans the total:volume of

lendmg declined overall to, €92;4-b1[110n jas-of. tha end-_'

of 2005, after € 99 1 bxlhon last 3 year [€ 6.7 bllhon)

oL
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< 60

- 30

tyear Acco:dmgly. loans and advances declmad—w K

Total volume of tending
in € bifhion

120

107.4

a0

3112.2003 31 12 2004 31.12.2005

Loan portfolio development The loan’ portfolio, which
unlike the documentary total volume of lending in the
following also includes loan commztments and secuti:
tigs, and which foims the basis for management amount-

Jed to €123:2, bllhon as of31 December 2005. Net of ma-
turities” and rapayments ‘the. totat portfollo mcraasedzr
by ez 8 billion compared’ “with 31 December 2004. The

portfoho of real estate Emancmg mcréased by £5.4 bil-

“lion. On the othar hand? public sector financing was

reduced by a further € 8.2 hillion compared with 31 Dé-
cember 2004, in line with the Group’s strategy. A total
of €65.1:billion (53%) was attributable to real estate
financing, and €58.1-billion (47 %) was attributable to

public sector flnancmg. incl. bonds and debt instru-

mants Lo ; . !

i

The volume of new .business in rea;l estate financing
,generated in, 2005 dmounted to € 22. 3 billion, consider-

ably exceedmg the:announced targat for the year. Gener-
ation of new business also increased: constdarab!y com-

: pared with the E]gura of € 12 6 bllllonzas of 31Decamber

2004 R
t
T

i

' |
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be\.:é'lop"fént in tﬁe fin'aﬁ&al posi_ti':on_ :
i "

Dwars:fad fundmg options ars: avallable to the Hypo

Real Estats Group through its-individual business seg:

ments; these are used depending on the individual re-

quirements. Each opérating segment accordingly main-

tains its own capital market presence and a separate

rating. The capital structure of. tha Group is sound and_

Iyl

alt cur:ent obligations are met. .

_ Total. !Lablhtlas of the, Group amounted .to €

Secuntlsed liabilities _declined by € 3:8billion; on'the
other* hand depostts from other banks and~amounts
owed to other depositors, 'increased by €5 ‘2 billion.
The uselof shorter-term fundirg, in partxcular, made it
poss1ble to dispense with surplus cover, resulting in an
overall reduction in funding costs in the Group.

The maturity structure of liabilities is wellibalanced.
Derivatives are used as part of asset/liabilities man-
agement to hedge risks. Interest derivatives are the
most importent factor in this respect Due to axpanded

radingiactivities the tradmg llabllltles also mcreased

'{€ +2 8 bllllon)

‘:Equlty [axcludmg revaluatlon reserve] amounted to

€4, 6b1!_hon compated.with €4.3 billion in 2004. Fol-

lowing . the successful “squesza-out” at Wiirttembsr-
gische Hypothekenbank as of'31 December 2005, thare
are no longer any minority interssts ‘in sharaholders’

equity. \

AfS reserve and cash flow hedga reserve have baen dlS-
vregerded in calcukatmg ratum on equlty

" :u:j.

Risk assets compliant wih BIS rules

in € biflion

] -149 3 bll-‘
lion -at: the and of 2005 after. £15.3 bllllon"last year..

50

s

=11 7% last yaar - §

i

‘ 'Regulatory mdicators compl!ant w;th BIS rulest’ As of 31

December 2005, Hypo Real Estats Group teports in ac-
cordance with bank regulatory requirements (according
to BIS) a solid ‘equity backing. Core capital slightly in-
creased to €4.4 billion (2004: €4.2 billion); supplemen-

tary capital temained unchanged at € 1.9 billion. Total

equity funds thus amounted to €6.3 billion, up from
€6.1 billion in the previous year. There was no Tier-II

caplta] on'the reference; data of the: flnainc:al statements. -

‘RlSk assetsincreased,in course of the: ]year by €5.3 bil-
lion'to € 56 3'billion"an are' thus' thhm the range ek
pectad by: year end. T'he increase prlmarlly reflects the

_ stiong naw busxness . '

P
i

Risk assets compliant with BIS rules
in € billion

60

# Wwar-end Figures » Budget
¥

56.0-570
55

31122003 31122004 31122005

Due to the.increased 1isk assets and nearly uncharged
capital, the core capital decreased from 8.3 % last yéar
to 7.8 %; tha eqmty funds ratlo dec]med to ‘108% after

i
i
'

T ¥
t

3112 2005 Budgst 2005

Risk assets

56.04057.0

 The 8IS ratios we-e established independentiy on a volu‘maryblsl 5
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. ~ Major g-v‘:'ents'.

place

Business segment Hypo R

Tha fmancml year 2005 ‘saw a- very pos:tnra develop—
ment mlnew Jusiness. A performance of € 15.1 bitlion is
indicative of the success of the platform strategy intro-
duced at the beginning of 2005. This sales success was
achieved in all sales platforms, namely Eurcps, the USA
and in;the still young: Asian platform, and is thus
breadly basad. The platform strategy’s flexibility.is also
evident'in matkets which have been opensd-up for the
first time, such:as. Russia, and in product mnovahons

- such, as;ﬁnancmg un&ar Islamlc 1aw SRRt

The ratings of Hypo Real'Estate Bar_ik Intefr:x_étional have

- not changed during 2005, and weras confirmed in Au-

gust 2005 when dstails of the festructuring wece pre-
sented.’

As part of ths process of resiruc;mingij’o Real Fstats
Bank International and in prepatation the:conversion
to I-Iypo Public Finance Bank in-Dublin the following
personinel changes in ‘thesboard:of Hypo; ‘Real Estate
Bank'Intemahonal as, of 1 Ianuary 2006 have taken
§ schuduled : :

Reslgnations KurtF Vlermetz (Cha1rman) Stephan Mus—
grave, Thomas S. Quinn (all thres non-sxecutive mem-

bers of the Board) and Georg Funke (CEO) .steppad down .

from their office as membar of the Board as of 30 Sep-
tembeor 2005. John Donnélly (non-exscutive member of
the Board), Eckehard Dettinger-Klemm and Jiirgen Fenk
[both sxecutive member oE the Board) stappad ‘down as
of 31 Décember. :

Changegiof duties Stephan Bub assumed the functlon of
CEOQ as!of 1 October 2005, Dr. ]ohn Bourke is now Vice
Chatrr}';;an (noa ‘axacutwa.memh‘er of thei_“BoardJ Dr.

Budget

In € mitlion

Uéﬁe!obmeﬁf:iﬁ Earnings’

275
- 200 <195
"1

s

Tk e e

Markus Feli has stepped déwri as CFO! and has assumed
the function, of a no xgcutwe member of the Board.

New appointments The following persons have been
appointed to the Board of Hypo Real Estate Bank Inter-
national as of 1 October 2005: Dr. Pau:l Eisela as Chair-
man (non-executive member of the Board), Tom Glynn
as Deputy CEO, Heather Nesbitt as' CFO and James

" Campbsll as COO. -

B

nrn

"Netincome before taxes

|

in € million m Annual Figures m Budget

350

37

2003 2004 2006

1

In- 2005, Hypo Real Estate International business seg-
ment succeaded in further expanding. its market posi-
tion as one of tha léading providars of innovative strue-
tured finance concepts for commercial real estate
transactions as a result of strong new business. Net in-
coms befo're,'taxas was € 288 r_hillioni and'is considera-
bly higher than the target of € 250 million to € 270 mil-
lion for the year 2005.

Budgst 2005

-

Netincom e before taxes

2500270

i
|

!
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" and is; thus not yet fully generating intetd§

o

. Financtal Review
P T Finanml Report
' Business segrnent Hypo Real Estate Internatlonal

Key Financials i '

o e 2005 2004

Operating performance )

Operating revenues in € million : 365
Netinterestinccme In € million 224
Net commission income in€ million | 126
Net rading income in € rnillion ! 11
NetIncome from Irvestments In € million 3
Balance of other operating income/expenses in € million | - ' 1

Provisions for tesses on loans and advancas in € rmillion | 33

General administrative expenses InCmillion} . 136

Balance of other incom e/expenses In € million -1

Nettncomefloss bafore taxes in € million 195

Netincomelioss In € miltion 148

Key mtios } I

Return on equity after taxes? In%{: 10.1

Cost-income ratio {based on operating revenues) n%i ! 373

Key indicators ' 31122004

Totalvolume of lending in € bllilon ' 178

Risk assets compliant with BIS rules ' In<bifion 173

Core capital ratio compliant with BIS rules? in% 92

Employees 504

b luding the effects fromcapitalised losses un':icd forward |
M As per approved annual financ lal statements

Comparad w1th the pravious_year, nat income Jbefors
taxes mcreased by €'93: mllllon to-€ 208 mllhon After
takes, net inccma ad]usted for a deferred’tax expense
from capitalised losses carried forward in thé amount of
€ 1 million, was £ 228 million (previous year: £ 148 mil-
lion), which is equivalent to an increasse in return on
equity from 10.1% in 2004 to 13.0%.

The incréase [a operating revenues from € 365 million
lastyear to €463 million reflects in patticular the strong
volume of new business in real estate f:nancmg Al-
though thé. new businass has not yat baan Eully dmwn

est moomfe rose strongly,in the course” of the y;a: and
{s €287 million, compared with €224 mllllon in. 2004,
Net comn;nsslon income of €135 million is up- € 9 mil-
tion compared with the previous year (2004: € 126 mil-

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

lion). Tha successful actwltlas in the Capital Markets
unit are damonstrated mamly in net tradmg incoms of

'€ 27 million; ret tradmg income thus mora than dou-

ble@ compared with: the previous year (€ 11 million),
when the unit was still being set up. Net income from
investments in the amount of €12 million (2004:
€ 3 million) was-generated as a result ofhti!ising favour-
able market conditions and deploylng the securities

-portiolio.

No individual”allow‘anc\as occurred in 2005, nor had

they in-the prevmus ‘ysar Accordlngly. only portfolio-
“based-allowanges:

5 added to provisions for" losses
on loans and _advances (€ 11 million; 2004: € 33.mil-
tion): this, underimes"tha risk- sansmve new business

policy.
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General administrative expenses increased from €136  Loan portfolio development The loan pdrtfolio, which in
million last year to € 163 million, which iz attributable  the following, unlike ths total volume of documentary,
to the international expansion of business and the also includes loan commitments and sacurities and
newly established Capital Markets unit. Dus to an in- which is the basis for management, amounted to
crease in operating revenues; the cost:income ratio has  €28.4 billion as of 31 Decomber 2005, After maturities
neverthele391mproved to, 35 2% comparadw1th 37.3%  and repayments, the total portfolio increased by
O ~ o ~ . . €&.6billion. compared with 31 December 2004. Ths
©* . figures ‘also includea transactlon of €0.6 billion in
" ‘Great Britain, which i is.entered in the alcoounts of Wiirt-
P - Tk P e TR : : ‘tembergische Hypothekenbank but whlch isguarantesd
" Developmentinassets .~ " % . " " hyHypo RéalEstate Bank Internatlonal Of the overall
ok . S . . .y . portlio, €22.6 billion (80%) is atiributable to real as-
" “The developmentin assets at the business segment Hypo  tate financing, and-€5.8 billion (20%) is attributable
Real Estate International is characterised by strong naw.  to-public sector financing including bonds and debt
business. Consequently, the total volume of lending'has = instruments which ars held by Hypo;Pfandbrief Bank

increased from € 17.8 billion to € 20.1+billion. Loans and  International (HPBI) (see also the following dizgrams).

advances have increased by € 5.8 billion to € 12.7 bil- ‘ ‘
lion, iniline with the overall strategy .Contingent lia- 689% of the real estate financing portfolio is based in
bilities included in total lending volume amounted to- Europe, mainly in Great Britain, France, Spain, Italy,
€25 b;lhon. ,ompared with €8 0 billion; iast year and  Scandinavia and the CEE countries. Amaerica/Asia ac-
' _Jcompnse much-reduced guarantee obhgatlons of Hypo . cordingly account for 32% of the portfolio. The term
"Real Estate Bank'International vis-a:vis HVB AG of.  “Other” comprises financing in Switzerland, Belgium,
“€71.2 b)lhon which ‘wera prowdad as;part of the syn-- ete. None of thess couhtries accbunts for more than 1%
thatic tiansfer of the real .estate financing portfolio  of the total portfolio. Business activities were expanded
“Western Europe”. Trading activities have been further this year to include Russia and Turkey. The portfolio
extended in the firancial year. In consequence, trading  breakdown based on financed property types is domi-
assets increased from € 1.5 billion to € 5.7 billion. Over-  nated by office buildings and retail premises as wall as
- all, total assets are €33.3 billion, after €23.1billion  commercial residential property, in line with the over-
last year. . . . all strategy. _ i

Il

- The volume of new real sstate financing business gen-
“erated’ with professional-investors and developers. in

. *Total volume of lending

71122003 31122004 31122005 - 1oyarg ratio. Across all new real estate financing busi-

nesses, the return was more than 14 %.

¥
[}
2005 amoiinted to € 15:1 billion, considerably exceed-
in< billian ing the original budget. The generation of new business
20 thus was also much highar than the figure of € 9.8 bil-
lion as of 31 December 2004. This was attributable to
. 15 business in- Europe (€ 9.6 billion) and business in |
‘America/Asia (€ 5.5 billion). Accordingly, it was possi- ll
10 ble for the real estate financing portfolio to expand
considerably despite the reductions attributable to the l
5 high premature repayments. II
- | :
0 The transactions were characterised by a sound risk and !
[
!
|
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) Breakdawn ofthe loan portfolio

-
i
!

13 T

- 350£31122005 . .

" Real estate Public sector
financing finandng
80% 20%

" Real estate financing por tfolio by region

a3 0f 31122005

Italy 3% Germany 4%

The Netherlands 1% _..Q_ Japan 49
Other 4%

US 28% - CEE¥P%

Scandinavia 6%

Spaln §%
GreatBritain21%

France 14%

S v M Py

2 The CEE mainlycomprises Hubgary Pola el and rhecaech kﬁdglic)

o
Ve

Real estate inancing portfolio by type of property

asof 31122005

Hotels 3% Logisties/
warehousing 4% -
Other 9%

Office Retail 16%

bulldings 42% ..

Development in the finandial position

Liabilities at the business segment Hypo Real Estate In-
ternatl?nal increased from €215 billion- to € 31.4 bil-
lion! On the one hand this:i is attributable 4o the expan-
sion in treding activities. Tradmg lrabxllttes increased by

82,8 bllllon to €3, Bbl]lron On tha othar hand deposrts

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

£1.2 bl”lOI‘l r ;

Resldentizl 26% . .

!

H

~ from: othier hanks an"d amounts owed to'other depositors
*as well as sacurltlsad ligbifities, 1ncreased by €7.0 bil-

lion to € 25.3 billion. The increase (deposrts from other
banks and aniounts-owed to other depositors: €+3.9 bil-

‘lion; securitised liabilities: «€ +3.1 billion) mainly re-
flacts strong new business. In 2005, the segmentused a
+ ‘wider range of funding geared to specifi(_: needs:

j., MTN programme Undar"MedlumTerm Note” prograrmme,
. which was mcreased to. €15 billion, Hypo Real Estate

Bank Intematrona] 1ssued atotal of € 35 'hillion in 2005

" in'vatious: tranches, mcludmg two benchmark bonds,
one =€1.3 bittion * ‘Floating Rate Note} with a term of
) three years and one’'J8$ 0:5 billion “F]oatmg Rate Note”

with a term of five years. The €, US$, GBE£ and JP¥
tranches were placed successfully, end increasingly
also-ih Wastern Europs. Thus, Hypo Real Estate Bank
International as a whole has achieved broad regional
investor diversification. Investors are widely spread,
and. comprise banks, money market funds, investment
funds, pension funds, financial service providers as

« well.as. insuranoe ct')mpanies ‘ E

f

: _:ECP progra_ me In- September 2004 the bank enhanced
its’ fundmg,portfo io with a €3b1“10n

‘Commercial
Paper ™ programme, “under whrch further tranches ware
issuéd in;2005.. At the and" of the yaar the furding
volume under the programme amounted to a total of

+ -

€D programme In June 2005, Hypo Real Estate Bank In-
ternational issued a € 2.billien “Certificats de Dépbts”
programme .under Franch law, and thus succesded in
expanding its funding base even further. As a result of
the strong,¢ demand; a total of £0.5 br]lron was suocegs-
'fully placed by the end onOOS

ToH

j'I-vlypc» Pfandbnefbaak Internaﬂona! Hypo Plandbrietbank

International 8. A: [HPBIJ further. strengthened its posi-
tion in .the European “Pfandbrief” markel (“iettra de
gage”) in 2005, Among other things, it is responsible
for sales and processing of the bonds issued under the
MTN programme of Hypo Real Estate Bank International.

i
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' M:jor eveﬁts

Business segment Wﬂrtlemberglsch Hypothekenbank

¥

Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank considerably exceed-
ed its target for new business in 2005, Total new busi-
ness amounted to € 4.4 billion, a performence of 176 %.
Most activities were conducted in the core matkets of
Western Europe and the USA.

_ In order to further optimise the Group structure, it was

decided that the outside shareholders [accountlng for
round Z%J would be squeezed outin 2005'_
ouf was: lmplemented in 2005, and’ Wurttemberglsche

.Hypothekenbank is now = whol]y owned sub31d1ary of .

Hypo Real Estate Holding.

The extremely favourable deve]opment in busmess :

combined with the convincing risk structure has also

had a positive impact on thé fating. Moody’s upgraded

1ts long -term ratmg in Iune 2005 from A3 to. (A2, it

look was set 1o steble

In the Management Board of Wi irttembe gxsche Hypo-

thekenbank AG, Dr. Robert Grassmger .and’Manfrad Weil

were appointed as ordinary members of the' Management:

Board on 14 March 2005 from their former positions as
deputy membars. In addition, Dr. Robert Grassinger was
appointed deputy spokesman of the Management Board.
Bettina von Qesterreich and Jiirger Fenk were appoint-
ed members of the Management Boa:d as of 1 October
20068,

Net income before taxes

1s squeeze-‘

e a

Development in earnings

T

in€ mitlion
g0

L) A:'-mual Figures = Budget

76

70

60

50

40

2003

With its many years.of expenence in “Pfandbmef" busi-
ness as-a funding instrument for mortgage -backed:]oans,

;_‘Wurttembergtscha Hypothekenbank agam proved ‘a

sound pillar of earnings for-the Hypo Rieal Estate Group.
Nstincome before laxes of €76 million was'considera-

:bly higher .than the budgeted targeti for the yeat of
€65 million to €70 million and was €16 million higher.

than the previous year figura (€ 60 mllhon]

Net income increasad to €75 million [pievious yeéar: €59
miltion) which corresponds to an improved return on
equity of 11.0% (2004: 9.0%). The income tax expense of
€1 million is attributable to tax audite; Wiirttembergi-
sche Hypothskenbank does not incur any other current

Budget '
in € million - __29.‘0'5 Budget 2005
o e
Net incom e before taxes 76 i 6Sto 70
s - —
i
i
f
§
H
i
i
:
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S -Bu siness segme ntWUrttem bergische Hypothekenbank

!
|

taxes on income, which is a result of the profit and loss  The addition to provisions for losses on loans and ad-
transfer agreement with Hypo Real EstateﬁHolding AG.  vances amounted to € 18 million, which was lower than

the caorresponding previous year flgura (€ 23 million)
New business at Wurttamberglsche Hypothskenbank and sxclusively relates to’ the domestlc ]end:ng busi-
also boosted operatlng revenues, whlch""ﬁcraasad from ness. :

; mcreased only s]lghtly
year s flgure [€ 108 mllllon} Net oornmtss:on income froti € 33 million in 2004 to €35 ml!]:on this includes
was € -9 million, after €6 million in 2004. Netincoms  expenses which have to be viewed in connection with
frominvestments (€16 million)is onlysllghtlyhlgher than the new Group structure. Neveitheless, the cosi-income
the corresponding previous year figure {€ 14 million). ratio improved to 27.1% (2004: 28,4 %).

P npg per apprmed annual flnan:la1 statements -

Enclosures, 29 March 2006
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Key Financlals ‘
004
" - Operating performa nce o
: Operating revenues In € miflion 16 - !
. NetinterestIncome in € miltion 108
. Net commission Income in€ million { % -6 !
Net trading income in € million }.. -
Netincome from irvestments in € million 14
Balance of other operating income/expenses in € million - ]
Provisions for iosses on loans and advances in € million 3 :
General administrative expenses in € million 13 1
Balance of other incom efexpenses in € million -
Netincome/loss before taxes in€ million |- &0
. Netincome/loss in € million 34
Key ratios
Return on equity after taxes in% 90
Cost-income ratio {based on operating revenues) in% 284
Key indicators i 3112.2005 3112.2004
Totzl volume of lending in Cbillion b - 205
- Risk assets compllant with BIS rules in € billion 10.1
Core capital ratio zompliant with BIS rules ? in% 71
’ Employees 171

I
I
i
t
i
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Development in assets

Total volume cf lending
ing b_illion )

.24

18

12

3112 2003 31122004 31122005

At WiJrltembPrgischeHypotl’iekehbank loans and' ad-

vances declined by €11 billion as a result of high Tepay-
ments. As of 31 December 2006, the total volume of lsnd-
ing amounted to £18.5 billion, after € 20.5 billion last"
year.Nevertheless, segment assets increased by £3.8 bil-:
lion, as hqmchty is already being maintained in view.
of the expected expansion of new business as part of
the transfer of the inteznational business of Hypo Real
Estate International, Dublin.

ALoan portfoito development The loan portfolio, whick

unlike the documentary total 'volume of lending in the -

fol]owmg also includes loan commitments and,securi-"
ties-andiwhicti<is
to £ 27.5billio ;

£:31. December 2005, After matur

. ties and repaymente ‘the tétal portfo]lo 1ncreased.;‘y )
€0.5 bll!ron compared wrth 31'Dscember 2004. Of this-

figure, € 127 billion (48%) is attributable to real’ ‘estate
fmancmg and €14.8 billion (54 %) is attrlbutable to pub-
lic sector financing including bonds and debt instru-
ments (see also the following diagrams).

The international content of the real estate financing is
now 68%, compared with 62% at the end of 2004, and
in regional terms.is split mainly across Great Britain,
France, ‘Scandinayia, the Netherlands.and the. USAL.

Breakmg" down;the'entird real ostate hnericmg portfeli'o T

by typer,of property fmanced offrce bmldmgs dorm-

and retall prem:ses

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

the basw for management amounted R

The volume of new real estate financing businass
amounted to € 4.4 billion in 2005, and was thus consid-

'erably higher than the forecast volume. It was ganerat-
: ..6d ‘almost exclusively in. the mternatlonal markets of
~Western Europe and:-the US. New busmess is thus con-
-~ siderably ‘highet than Jthe” prevrous years figurs of
=€ 2.5 billion. Owverall, after maturities. and repayments,
“the volume of teal estate financing lncreased by approx.
f:€0 7 billion compared w1th 31 December 2004,

The new commitments were- prov1ded wuthout depart-
. ing from the strict requirements relatmg to risk and te-
“turn, and thus also assure highToan portfoho quality in
.the long term. An average interest margin of more than

. . . r
980 basis points was achieved.

I
Inthe period under review, public bonds and debt in-
struments worth approx, € 2. 6 billionwere purchased
ahead-of scheduled maturities in cover funds and also
for optimising the bank’s hqmdlty posmon After matu-
rities, public sector financing was roughly unchanged

- at € 14.8 billion comparad with 31 December 2004.
3

1
i
f
!
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Breakdown of the loan portfolio

asof 31122005

Public sector
financing
54%

Real astate
financing
4%

. Real estate finanding por tfolio by region
. a30f 31122005

Other 1%

Spain 1%

L UST%

A TheNetherlands %
Sandinavia 10%

Germary 33%

France 13%
Great Britain 27 %

Real estate inanding portfolio by type of property

asof 3}.12 2005
Logistics/
warehousing 1%
Office Hotels 4%
bulldings 37% Other 6%

Retail 22 %

Residentiat _30%
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, =De‘.r'"elt':;:.m'il‘:i‘lt In?théﬂnéndal pds.'ltion .

- briefe” 7
“and sevén years, respectively. In addition, the bank is-

]

|

l . + Flaanclal

; Financial
Bu slness segment WUrttem bergisme Hypothek

‘ Tota] llabllmes of: Wurttembarglsche Hypothekenbank

increased by €3.7 billion to €377 bllllon as of 31 De-
cemmber ‘2005, Deposits from other banks and amounts
owed to other depositors as wall as‘tha securitised
Habilities amounted to €33.7 billion |(previous year:
£ 30.4 billion). Daposits from other banks and amounts
owed. to other depositors declined by € 0.9 billion — on
the other hand,. securitised llabllltles increased by
€4.2 billion. This démonstrates in pa:tlcular the srong

* focus; on: “Pfandbnef" based. business., In. 2005, Wiirt-

tambarglsche Hypothekenbank sucoeaded in futther
dwermfymg its fundmg possibilities ll'l terms of matu-
rities, currencies, structures, regions and investors, also
in view of the bank’s funding reqmrament in 2008 re-
sulting from the re-organisation. Tha total volume of ex-

* ternal funding taken on in 2005 amounted to € 16.7 bil-

lion. € 3.5 billion of that comptised public sector “Pfand-
briefa”, € 1.7 billion comprised mortgage “Pfandbrisfe”

- and the rest, € 11.6 billion, was made 1'1p of unsecured

bonds and bonded loans. Regarding the “Pfandbriefe” -
the main transactions. wete two public-sector “Pfand-
;each worth-€ 1.5 billion and with terms of ten

sued an unsecured bond of € 1.0 billion with a term of
3.5 years for the first.time in November, 2005, establish-
ing itself as an issuer in this market segment. In addi-
tion to large-volume bonds, the bank also issues a broad
spectrum of mid-size and small covered and uncovered
debt instruments. Special issues are also offered, cus-
tomised specifically to the requirements of individual
investors,

+
1

In short-term funding, Wiirttembergische Hypotheken-
bank obtains funding by way of liquidity lines and par-
ticularly by way of the “Certificats de Dépéts (CD}" and
the “Euro Commercial Paper (CP}" programme issued
at the end of 2004 under French law.

|
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"Business segmént Hypo Real Estate Germany:

] FZ w1th a'stable outlook

o

Major"events-m .

Hypo Real Estate Germany mads an excellent start in 2005 -

with the successful resumption of new business, and
with € 2:8 billion was 1mmedlately able to far excead its

very ambitious target for new business, whilst stil} com-

plying with sirict risk guidelines. In the course of 2005,
branches wers opened in Berlin, Hamburg and Dissel-
dorf anditook on soundinew busmess in their; sales re-
gions nght from the v eglnmng The segment also

underlmed i3 tegamedﬁrola as & major player on the. -

German real eitate: E‘nancmg marketasa rasu!t 5f complat-

mg attractwe major transactlons such asfinancing a real .’

estate fm{anclng portfollo fot the Federal State 6fHesse

In organisational terms, Hypo Real Estate Germany now .

has an even more efficient structure as a result of cen-
tralising real sstate financing servicing and risk. manage-
ment functions in Munich. Hypo Real Estate Bank AG now
meintains hardly any activities in Dertmund, and soms of
the employeas who used to work in Dortm

ermployed at Colllnao GmbH Wthh was acqulred by "i;:

Hypo Real Estate Bank International. Gollineo GmbH

has bean a subsidiary onypo Public Finance Bank since.”.

1 Ianua:y 2006.

These considarable and measurable results are reflectad
in multiple inprovements'in the ratings; thus, Standard
& Poor’s upgraded its long-term rating toc BBB+ and the
short-tarm rating to A-2, with a stable outlook. Mocdy's
upgraded its long-term rating from Baal to A3, and
Fitch raised its to BBB+.and the short- term rating to

Budget

3 Netincome before taxes

~ the Management Boaid of Hypo Real Estate Bank AG as

of 1 Aptil 2005.

_ Developmentin earnings

pnemilen e amtvges skt
'+ 120 ,
H 95-10% 104 .
" 80
o |
: |
11 ' -9
-4

20032 2004 2005
.i -
!

After oomp']ating' the- restructulifg in the autumn of

2004, Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, in its capacity as the
" centte of competende for the German market within the

Group,. succeeded in-actively resumllng new business
in 2005, Following a net loss befors taxes of £ 9 million
in the previous year, in which the bank was being re-

“structured, Hypo Real Estate.Germany has now gener-

‘ated net income befors taxes of €104 million, and is
thus at the upper end-of the: expectatlons of €95 mil-

~-';.€‘110n to'€.108 mllllon -

in € million Budgat 2005
Netincom e befcre taxes

% to 105

Enclosures, 29 March 2006
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Excludmg a deferrad tax income from the capnahsa’ quarter Nat income from 1nvestmentshn the business
3 ; o1 segm nt amount"d to €39 rmlllon [2004 €31 mllllon)

. tas expected this flgure was lower'than in tha prewous way ‘of . portfoho sales and downs:zmg prov;snons for

year (€ 358 million); As a result-of the portfolio being losses on loans- and advances ‘have c!ec:lmed apprem-
i downsized in line with;overall strategy. net interest in-
v, come declined-from € 354 million in 2004 to £1283 mll-_ smns “For. losses ot loans and advanges declined by
lion. Net intersst income also includes, pramature € 100 mitlion compared ‘with 2004, (€220 million),
‘repayment fees and lncome from the'sala of debt instru-~ . which compnsed a nsk sha!tar of € 130 m:!hon pro-
ments Nat ‘commission: 1nco_ 7.
"lion‘. afte':.—E‘—ZS fdi]libh"in :th

Key Financials
! 2004
Operating perfonnance !
" Operating revenues n € itfion | . 358
. Netinterestincome in € mifiion ' 354
Net commission income in € million ' -25
Net trading Income in € million -
Netincome from irvestments in € miilion §:°2 | 31,
i Balance of other operating income/expenses in € milion §.." ! -2 ’
¢ Provistons for losses on loans and advances in € million { - 220
. General administrative expenses in € iltion § ‘126
i Balance of other Incom efexpenses bn € miflion § -21
; Netincome/loss before taxes . in € million ' -8
. Netincome/loss® in € mittion =10
E : Key mtios
" Retom on equity after taxes ¥ in%{: ! -05
’ Cost-income ratio (based on operating revenues) in%] ! 352
Key indicators , 31122004 »
+ Totatvolume of landing In € biftion § . 62.2
Risk assets comphiant with BIS rules inCbittion ) 242
Care capital ratio compliant with BIS rules® in% ! 8.4
Employees ' 592

V Ext luding the effects fromc apitatised bosses carried Forward
BAs per approved arnual finarcial staterments

1
N

Review

: iRepn::rt
Business ‘segment Hypo Real Estate Germany
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S :.éble ‘to the rest ructurmg oEHyp R

The restructuring of Hypo Real: Estate Bank AG. resulted

1n oonstderable savmgs ln terms 'fgenatal admmlstra-- .

€128 million in the pravmus yaar to € 98 mtlllon Thie
cost -income retio 11:nproved to‘30,4% [2004: 35. 2%);—_

I:Estate Bank AG

Development in assets

Total volume of lending

in € billion

80

735

60 52.2

31122003 31122004

The assets of the segment Hypo_iRe'al_ Estats Getmégj}_ as
of 31 December 2005 declined to:€ 86.4 billion, com-. .

pared with € 82.0 billion in 2‘01‘34‘This is .due mainly

i "to the downsizing-of publlc sector loans (€ -6.5 billion).
' in line with overall stratagy In:addition, highrtepay: -
-ments resultsd m_lowsr real estate-financing (€-1.8 bii-

lion) despite the strong new business. The toial volume
of lending overall has declined by €8.6 billion to £53.6
billion.

Loan partfolio ‘development "The-loan: portiolio, which

- . uniike tha doc umentary total vol me of lendmg ln the

fol!owmg alsozinéludes-loan-commiitments and-securi-

T ties andnwhlch is the basis for management amouhted

to €673 bl]llon as of 31 Decamber 2005. The portfolio

“of real estate financing declined by € 0.8 bitlion .as a

result ofphlgh premature repayments and the saléction

of proloﬁgations basad on strictitisk and return consid-

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

312

" more than 50 %J . . t

erations. The portfoiio of public sectdr financing de-

clined by.a further € &.1.billien compared with 31 De-

cember 2004; in line with.overall strategy Real estate
financing accounts for € 28.8:billion (44 %), and public
sector finanicing incl: bonds and dsbt instruments
accounts for- €3?5 bllllon (56%) {see also followmg
d:agrammes]

The ragtona 'breakdown of the real estate fmancmg
portfolio has remained relatively constant compared
with 31 December 2004. Germany acco_unts for 893 % of
the overall portfolio, and other European countries ac-
count for 7%, mainly the Nstherlands, Frarce and
Great Britain. By type of financed propsrty, residential
construction. (mainly commercial), office buildings and
rotail premisés dominate tha portfolio (89 %).

. The new real estate financing business in 2005 amount-

ed to. a.total:of € 2.8 billion, and thus considerably ex-
ceeded expectattons The ngw;transactions were gener-

3 ;_'ated in. Germany, in ]1ne, with overall strategy. They
: ware characterised by a: sound risk and teward ratio.

Across alli real astate, fmancmg busmess the return was
more than 12%. :

Of tha total of £ 3.4 billion.mortgage l¢ans due for pro-
longation, € 1.8 billion was edjusted with an average
interast:margin of 139 ‘basis points [ad]ustment ratio of

}

‘ Breakdown of the loan portfolio

asof 31.12 2005

Public sector Real estate
finandng financing
SE% 44%
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Residential 53% .

B s :
i .

Real estate ﬂn‘mcung po:tfolno by reglon

as0f 31122005
France 1%
Great Britain 1%
The Nethertands 5%

Germary 93%

Real estate financing portfolio by type of property
a3 of 31122005

Hotels 3%
3.’1.:"..-;.___ Logistics/
; warehousing 3%
Other 5%

Office
bulldings 21%

i
B
1

|

Flnancial

Financial Report |-

i

A T 4 . ' ‘
Development int'thé finandial position “
Total liabilities of Hypo Real Estate Bank AG declined
by €5.7 billiorn to € 85.5 billion as a result of the signif-
icant portfolio downsizing. Deposits from other banks
and amounts owed to other depositors as we!l as secu-
ritised liabilities- declined by a total of €56.2 billion to

© €74.1hillion as of 31 December 2005. Securitised lia-
bilities’ declmed by . €11 obillion; depostts from other
‘banks: a_nd amounts owedito other deposnors 1ncreased": )

TR TS

i shorter- term funding, i

partlcular made it possti:la to’ dlspense with su:pius

cover, :esulhng in-an, overall reduction in refinancing

" costs'in the: Group.

Nevortheless, compared with last year, more new secu-

- ritised funding transactions were completed inline with

requirements, also to cover subsequent financing re-
quirements. The successful placing of new issues dem-

onstrates:that the market has recogrised-the bank’s suc- .
"cassful Jfestructutiag. Long-term funds of €4 2 billion
" -ware Jssued Inline with the main business pohcy of the
.bank, the focus was on mortgage “Plandbriefe” (€ 2.1 bil-
“lion):“Public sectot: “Pf_an_dbrlefa" wefle issued mainly-,

for follqiviup financing of expiring “Pfandbriefe”. Unse-
cured bonds were issued in the amount of €0.3 billion.
Liquidity lines and “Commercial paper” issues were
expanded for short-term refinancing. !

!

1
3
1
i

§
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Events after 31 December ,2'9(55}

I TP S

. As announoed in tbe 1ntar1m reportended 30 Iune 2005
‘¢ the. reorgamsatlon was. carried,out at’ tha beginding of -
2008. The international real- estate: Emancmg business’

was pooled under. the umbrella: of Wiirttembergische
Hypothekenbank. The entire international. real estats
financin‘gfportfolio of Hypo Real Estate Bank Interna-
tional, Dublin, was transfeired to Wiirttembergische
Hypothekenbank AG, which was then renamed Hypo
Real Estate Bank International AG "The German'financ-

ing’ arrangam ents of Wilrtte mbargls che: Hypothaken ban k.
AG we:e transfarted to- Hypo Real Estata Bank AG in
Munich); i The: former Hypo, Real. Estaté Bank Intema- -

t1onal Wlll contmue to. operate Capxtal Markats from :f_::':;Gontmuous) o731 Ianuary 2006. The_shatésiare stili

Dublin as Hypo Pubhc Fmance ‘Bank, and’ was extend-
ed.to includePublic, Sector Finance: which focuses-on
1nfrastructure andlocal authonty prolect financing. -

There have been the followlng changes in parsonnel
since 1 lanuary 2008;
8 On 1 January 2006, Patrick Ryan was appomted a

non-executive member-to the board  of Hypo Public |

Finance Bank.’

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

L On 1 March 2006 Bettma von Oesterrexch was ap’
;pomtad a, non-axecutwa mamber ‘to- the - board of -

- “Hypo Public Fmance Bank

w Reinhold Guntnerwas appomted an ordinary membsr

of the Managamant Board on 10° March 2006 from his
former position as deputy member. | -

» Friedrich-Wilkelm Tadda will stap down from the
Management:Board of Hypo Real Estate Bank Inter-
national AG on 31"March 2008. s g ‘

" The shares 'onypo Real Estaie Holding'AG were delist-

ed from the Vienna stock. exchénga (Standard Market

traded on' the. stock exchange in Frankfurt am Main

" (Prime StandardJ S L

o e = a
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Risk §eporf
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Flexibil%ty and inhovation are key features. of the Hypo
... Real'E tata Group, In 2005, the- Group took advantaga_'-
“ of the opportumty prowded by the! nawly created Ger-
" man_ Pfandbrisf Law to pool its ational and interna-
tional: ciommercnal real;estate financing businass from .

Garmany in only two entities. “The! 1ncraased utilisation
of the refinancing benefits offered by the Pfandbrief as
well as the improved transparency and efficiency are
strengthening the position of the Group in a compati-
tive environment which {s constantly becoming more

Risk- orlented Gfoup Managem ent -

k

N
Overview

" The Hypo Rual Estate G'r‘onrp hasset itself'the aim of Be-
coming a leading global real estate financisr with a
strong base in public finafce and capital markets busi-

ness. The overriding objective isito add valus for all”

stakeholders and sharsholders of the.Group. as part of
- -the overall business strategy. The overriding Group
strategy will ba usad for, astabllshmg the sitb-stiategiss
. on the’basw of the individual strengths of the banks.

" The management oonoept of the ,Group spemflas target_r'
yields; Eor the capital allocatad to the banks iand: dehnes )

speclflc yield :equuaments with due Con31derat10u be-
mggwen to the current'and desu‘ed risk profite,

Compr:éhen:;ive risk identificatipn as well as treatment
of risk- which is uniform and equivalent throughout the
Group, are a major part of succassful busmess manage-
ment, 1 )

The Group-wide system. norn prising risk identification,

. measurément, limitation;;controlling-and*managemant.,

for the major risks of the Hypo Rea! Estate Group de-
’ scnbed in greater detail in the following will.therefore
" be ad;ustad to take account of charges in the business
and nsk strategy, and the methodolégy will be con-
stantly fine tured, also with a view to new regulatory
1equiremants.

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

-dwersnfy the tisk proE:le of the Group: This restructur-

s itative methods ‘toassess the expected as well-as the

- Risk’ llmltatlons restnct the amount, of risk involved

Financial Review

Events after 31 Decernfber 2005

. Risk Report
Risk-oriented Group Man’agement

inténse. The:éxpansion of international capital market
activities as;well as low-risk public finance business in
Europe and other: OECD countries in-an entity from
Dublin will-further &xpand the basis of business and

ing ‘of the Hypo Real Estate- Group and the ambitious
growth targets on existing and-new markets with inno-
vative structured products will invelve attractive oppor-
tunities, as well as a demanding challenge for managlng
the Group’s activities.

i, -
g ‘Risk identification involves permanently and system-
) ahcally analysmg what internal or external factors
may constitute‘a- poténtial risk for transactions or
business positions of the Group. The annual risk in- |
-ventory is one way of identifying’ previously unrec-
ognised risks; another way is to implement a de-
-tailed and Group-wide new-product process.
w Risk measuremantuses various- quantltatwe and qual-

’ :potentlally unexpected negative 1£npact of the iden-
 tified risk factors on the bank’s earnings situation.

“uinder the main Tisk. types “for the Group guantita-
tive limitations are impossd by means of limits, and
qualitative limitations are-imposed by way of poli-
cies. ) ’

o In risk conttolling the risk limits are monitored and
regularly reported to the Management Board. The reg-

. ular comparisor of aggregate overall bank risk with
the risk" bearmg capability of the Group, alse under
stress scenarios, guarantees compllance with the de-
fined risk: toletance of the: Group and ensures that
any potential risk-to the continued existence' of the
Group as.a going concern is identified on a timely
basis: -+ Lo : :

% Risk managament manages the risks taken on at the
portfolio level, as through diversification, sale or in-
surance; at the level of individual transactions, risk
management manages the risks taken on by way of
procedure guidelines and processes.

Page bS of 245
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spread' over' four, dnnslons w1thxn t

" Thess include pollcws and risk ]1m1tsA

1

Respons’ibiiities and duties

Respons:blhty for conscious handling: of rlsks has been, |
'Group In- the.°

ble for’ uniform risk 1dent1flcatlon measurement and -
limitation-throughout the Group in close co-operation -

with the banks, and are also responsible for risk man-
agemert at:the portfolio” level, This zlso:includes the

task of developing consistent risk p"oli_ciesaiid defining-

process standards.

The Group-wide committess, which meet regularly, as-
sume overal] rasponmblllty for the: adopt:on of resol

tions. relatlng to risk pohcy conditions for tha entitie
s well as meth-
ods for risk measuremert. The committaes are also re-

SPOOSlblE ‘for making recommendations to the ‘banks.
with regard to risk pos:tlomng The followmg aie fuz-—

ther spec1f1<‘ duties:

» Graup Asset-Liability: Gommittes (ALCO) Asset/lia-

blll';y management across the Group; setting of limits
for market and liquidity risks and defining the fund-
ing strategy of the Group.

u Credit Portfolio Committee (KPA): Defining the taz-

get strucfure of the Group's cradit portfollo based-on
the Groun credit risk position, optimising the risk-re-

nsk managemant.

» Operatlonal Risk Cornrmttee (ORC}: Exchangmg of
1nformation within-the Group and enisuring . unifetm.,
messurement and management of oparational risks. -
Transparency relating to the Group’s tisks situation:

snables Group-wide measures to be taken in order to
]m'ntand avoid risk.

Organisation of the committess is the.:eepansibility {at
Group-levsl] of Group Risk Control (GRG) and Group
Credit Risk'management (GCR) in conjunction with the

corresponding risk oontrolllng and managemant enhhes.

in the .banks

i

Group R]sk C'ontrol 13 responstbla for ensunng umform. ’

specifications for identifying and measuring those risk
types which are defined as vital. Aggregate metrics at

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

Group level, results of the comparison with the risk
bearing capability, adjustments in method az well as
risk-restricting limits and utilisation of these limite are

well as the: comrmttees
Group Credjt'Risk Managaznant analyses the credit port-

folio of the Group.on the-basis of various risk-relsvant
aspects,, such’ as sectors,. customer groups. property

. structures for the Holding Management Board, the Su-

~.parvisory Board and also as a decision-making basis for

the credit portfolio committee, and proposes suitable
N 1

measures. i

‘ |
Senior Risk: Management reviews new credit.decisions

i by the individual banks id the Group on-an independent
" " basis, implementing the- risk pelicy, of the Group and
, making. recommendatlons tosthe Holdlng Management
i“:]‘?to‘ard“to p[owde‘la basis fgr the daflrintwe decisions.

A
1.

The Group Legal Department -advises the holding’s

. Management ‘Board as well as the holding entities,

tracks developments in the judiciary with a view to
limit legal risk, and provides guidancs to the Group com-
panies at the request of their Management Boards in
fundamental matters as wall as in general-legal matters

* and transaction-related processes.
tur situation and decision-making regardmg credlt )

As an independent moniteiing body, Group Internal
Audit regula'rlf( reviews the adequacy and effectivensss

" of risk-oriented’ Group management, and raports on ths

results dlrectly to the Holding Management Board.

As part of the s0- cailed exposure process, the Cradit
Committees of:the Supervisory Boards of the banks,
which also compriss membiets of the Holding Manage-
ment Board, adviseon exposures in excess of a certain
size, in order to limit risk concentrations in the Group.

. The entire system, . the o-rg‘anQSationaI' framework as well
- a5 the processes are documented on an aggregate basis |
in-the nsk manua] of Hypo Real Estate Holding; on a

detailed basw ‘and particiilarly at{the process level,
they ate documented in the risk manuals and process
documentation of the banks. i

i
t

|
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Regulatary developments and preparations
on the part of the Hypo Real Estate Group

Baselil A paradigm change in hank regulation has result-

ed from the intreduction of Base] II. Not.only &1é regu-,
]atory capltai raquu‘amants now mora rrsk-sansrtwe in :

regulatory elaments which are marufasted in* he s8c-
ond pl]lar o[the Base[ Jig concept

The
the Basel II bank regulatlon committes. In the.EU, the
legislation process for implementing Bassl Il was com-
pleted .once the Capital Requirements Directive (CRD)
was adoptec in the European Parliament. At the nation-
al tevel, the specifications of the:CRD will besincorpo-
rated in a new Solvency Ordinasnce {SolvV), which. will
replace principle |, as well as by changes in the Kredit-

-wesengesetz. (KWG - German’ Bankmg Law} and the
- Grof- -Aind’ Mllllonenkradrtvarordnungn[GroMrKﬁ
dlnance Governing Largs Loans and Loans in Excess of .

One MrlhouJ Following a phase of consultation, the
resolutron is expected to be adopted in the first half of
2006.

The Cornmiitae of European Banking Supervisors (CEBS)
has prepared an implementation and audit guidsline
for theirequirements from the first pillar of the Basel II
concept with the aim: of ensuring.that the approval cri-

terig- for the capital-saving advanced approachas for

credit rlsks and operational. rrsk"f
are as, umform as possible.

. ‘, ’ ‘ 1
PrllarII of tha Basel rules is coverad by an ab ract gen:

"all European ban ks

eral adjustment of section 258’ KWG. The mibimum re:"

quirements- for risk managemeit- [MaRisk) : have been
drawn:up which specify the contéhts. As partof the in-
stitutional process of sxchanging information with the
bank a3sociations, this has resulted in a flexikle set of
rules based on practical considerations, which was put

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

aw set of ruleg has baen completed at the__eva] of

k)

into forcs in Decembar 2005 by the BaFin and which
incorporates the minimum requirements heretofore set
out for lending (MaK), trading activities (MaH) as wall
as-internal audit {MalR). The additional requiraments,
which.are more: qualitative.in nature, with the aim of

'prov1d1ng the: regulatory authority with an ‘overall pic- _

ture- of tha. risk. position, risk management and risk

:‘bearlng capabrlrty wrll not have to be satisfied before

'T.l‘le'Hyp;o R,eal'_E;t,ate Group' ‘has been preparing its
methods and processes intensively to meet the new re-
quirements for the past two years-in a Group-wide
project “Basel II”. The methodology, technical and proc-
8ss costs for complying with the naw Tequirements are
tremendous, and no definitive assassment can yet be
made of such costs as long as the rmplementatron and

--gudit guideline of tha GEBS is st1]l in tha consultation ,
—‘OY";.’ PR oo :

phase

t

Pfa—ﬂdbl'ie“f Law The new Pfandbrief Law, enacted in July

of 2005, comptises many new elements, including:

g The abolition.of the special bank principle, so that
under certain conditions all banks are now able to
be granted a licence by the BaFin for conducting
Pfandbrief business;

e The expansion of the group of mortgage loans eligible

for cover to. the' USA, Cenada and Japan as well as |-

quality assurance regulations,.such as
- & The expansion of the extent and freque'ncy of the
" . publication.requiremant and

‘s Evidence. of a professional risk management sys-"

The'Hypo Real Estate’ Group meets the requirements of
the new Pfandbrisf Law for risk management and has,
as is described in'more detail in the‘chaptar “New Cor-
porate Structure since 1January 2006", already begun
to adapt to the new circumstances. |

-
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‘ Tota!f bank ri_slf and risk bésfing:;qp:bllitj-

- hshedt usmg a stattstlcal method usually ay

Onca the minimum requirements for risk management
{MaRisk) arz completaly introduced, financial groups,
from 2007 onwards, will have.to carry out.a tisk bearing
capability analysis which is commaensurate with the risk
profile. and the complexity of their business, the so-
called ICAAP [Internal Cfapita] Adequacy Assessment
Process). In this process, the entire risk determined for

- the enterpme is comparad w1th the resources avallahle
- for fmanmal cover; and: vatious: scanarlos ‘are xammad L

to estab]lsh ‘whether the Group is adequately capltal
ised and whether the tisks which have beén takan on
are not excessive. This analysis is to be carried out on
a regular basis, needs to be a component of the manage-
ment and cecision-making process of the bank, com-
prise all major risks and-take account of planning as
well a'g stress scenarios. The -Hypo Real Estata Group
introduced the analysis at the Group and entity level
on a six-mcnthly basis at.the end of 2004, and devel-

. opad the analysw further in, 2005

The def]nltlon ofa leve] of rl‘sk to]eranoe 'by the’ Ho]d- .

ing Managemant Board s a ma]or part of the'nsk bear-

ing capability.analysis. This definition spemiles the

component: and amount of capital which are to be
available for covering risks. These are.mainiy parts of

shareho]dels equity as wa]l as; :the axpacted nst prof]t

befo:a taxes,’

The tota] benk risk is the aggregate of the main individ- .

ual.risks described in the foliowing chapters, with due
cons1derahon balng given to correlatlon effacts Where

VeV alue at- .

risk”, quan? :Eymg potential unéxpected loses within 2
specific petiod in Euro.

The aim of the risk-bearing capability analysis chosen

for the Hypo Real Estate Group is to simulate whether

thers will stitl be sufficient capital available for contin-

uing the bank’s operations even after the extremely un-

likely ocourrence of all risks and their fmanc:al coverage

{going concern approach)
' i':i%;

|
W
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. Presentation of the principles of the

nsk bearing capabullty an aIysIs

Risk cover fund RDM” Risk bearing capablllty

_—

(Group rii position

"“Free risk cover funds RDM?
- Core capital " -

= Profit sharmgrlghts

. outstanding - :
“mbudgeted netinqoiﬁé,_ 2
7 hafore taxes: S

Minimum capital backing =
. “Reserved risk cover funds |
ROM” |

: I

f

The Group as well as the individual banks currently
an]oy a comfortabla rlsk caver buffer at. present, even on

lion: as of September 2005 for a statistical confidence
level of 99 %: the cottesponding figure for a statistical

co'pﬁaqnce leve!l of 9.9 % was still £0.5 billion.

Infurther stages, the dagree of risk cover is assessed on

the basis of stress’ scenarios focussing on creditor
protection, wheeeby all shareholders’ equity is made

available for covering risk. Under this assumption, the °
proposed stress scenarios of the Bundesbank were as-
sessed; also, the Group’s owr scenarios such as a high-

e:-doﬁ'fiapnca leveliand/or changed: éo';relation assump-
tions betwésn the risk types were assessed as well. In
addition to the currentTisk structure, business planning
as well as potential risk changes are also assessed in the
risk-bearing capability analysis in order to establish their
consistency with the Group’s defined risk tolerance,
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analy_sm At the Gzoup‘laval this amounted to € 0.9bil-
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Financial Review {
iflsk Report
Risk-oriented Group Management !
Total bank risk.and risk bearing capability
Risk measurernent

_ Risk measurement, control.and ma‘{iagement-af rpaiof risk typesin the Hypo‘.RéalaEitjate Group’ .

. much characterised by credit risk in line with the busmess
model. The intensive analysis, identification, manage-
ment and monitoring of this risk type is reflected in the
organisation structure and the committess of the Group.

Market risk and liquidity risk are becoming more sig-
nificant with the planned expansion of capital market
. business. Operational risk, strategic risk and ~in par:’
~ ticular~sinze the.Hypo Real Estate Group was.includ--
ed in the DAX 30iindex — reputatlo'

E whlch have to be ntanswaly managed and momtored
ll " : .. 5

b

counterparty risk, issuer risk and country risk. They
* define the potential loss of value which may occuras a

Credit rlsks The very different strategic focus of the three members _ "% '

; of the Group has meant that it.Group-wide credit prin- .:;?, :

Credit tisks-can be broken down 1nto loan dafault nsk ciples with'clear-and uniform principles and financing B
principles need to bs adopted in order to ensute.a uni- tE

result of the default or rating downgrading of customsss
in lending business, issuers. of -promissory notes and.
.-debt securities as: wall as counterparhes in money: mar- -

" kat, sacuntles and derwatwe transacnons respactlvely

In the flald of real. estate fmancmg husiness, tha credlt
risk comprizes not only the pure rating risk but also the
collateral risk. The latter is attributable to potential
losses of value of collateral due to reasons related to the
financed properties and/or the narket environment. For
professional management of this. risk, the lending poli-
cy in the entire Group is hased on the. followmg core
principles: -

a Thorough and careful credlt analyses of aach mdx-
- vidual transaction, : :

. ‘a Determlmng ithe extent to which: forecast ‘cash- ﬂows; :
are abla to cover capital ser\ncmg (spaclflcally under
extrame market conditions such as sharply risingin: -

tarast rates) as well as the current and sustainahle
valte of =ollateral, '

o Use; of rating methods for determining the default
probablllty -of the borrower and use of ear]y-wammg
systams - i

Yo,
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:"The nsk proflle of tha Hypo Real~Estata Group is: very,;

nsks are: furtherl,
'requxrementr

o "Usse of Loss- leen Dafault (LGD) measuring prooedures
for ‘measuting future proceeds olf any foreclosures
which may becoma necessary if borrowers default,

o Permanent active observation of the real estate markat
and adjustment of the lending policy where necessary,

o Systematic diversification of the!loan portfolio by
way of active portfolio management,

o Ensuring that the loans can. be resold or syndicated.

- The quality of the valuation methods baing used is con-
stantly: monltorad by risk. controllmg. they meet BaselII
hroughout the Group. ‘The.calibiration of
““tha ratmg scals, for probabilities of default and:the LGD

measuring process for loss ratios is based on statistical

‘analyses of historical defaults or losses in the porifolia.

form perception of risk. The credit principles also re-
quire the banks to prepare external or internal reports

for each .individual property transaction and to carry

out cash flow. simulations and stress tests. By continu-
ously momtonng tha covehants! r1sks can be-identified,

- assessed and’ managsd at an ear!y stage These analysss

relating to individual transactions are complemented
by scenario observations at the portfolio level.

- The Group uses best-practice approaches, such as the

German requiremsents for credit business for credit in-
stitutions (MaK) and for risk managsment (MaRisk) by
way of organisation measures and functional segregation
of credit processes right through to- Management Board
level. mto merket and back office. }

In additiciis to. the landmg busmess described above,
the Hypo Real,Estate .Group.is ‘also actwely involved:in
'purchasmg. structunng and: onward placing of loans

and financial ‘instruments (securmsatlon) as a facility
for return and risk optimising. Here again, the Group
uses internal rating procedures which comply with the
Basel Il requirements for assessing ratings.

P . t
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Counterparty risks are defined as possible losses of value
affecting interest rate and foreign currency derivatives
and Eorward transactions Most of these transaottons are

management Avalue-at-risk approach ased on a.ma

to-market- m:athod ‘is used for measuring the counter--

party risk throughout the Group, this approacb is based’
on potentlal future :eplacement costs: Countarparty .

risks-with derivative, security and _mopey..r_narket trans::
actions exist with financial institutions, central banks
and supranational institutions whose credit standing is:

above-average on the basis of the assessment of external
rating agerncies and -also-on the bagsis 6f:internally used
rating preceduras: In order to- redu sthe derivative:
related: counterparty risk; ‘the Hypo RéaliEstate Group
normally usas framework agreements with its buginess.
partners which enable all’contracts covered by the agree-
ment to be pooled into.a net receivablerif the counter-~
party falls to maat his ohhgatlons (so-called. close-out.
nettmg) In order to reduce fisk furthet; -sécurity agres-
ments, ;are taken out whish may tesult.in the cancella-
© tion of transactions if the counterparty fails to comply
with a request to provide securities. For the purposes
of internal risk measurement, netting procedures and
security netting are only used il they are considered to
be legally anforceable for the particular jurisdiction

and’the specific counterpasty. For further details cori-
cerning the term distribution of the velume of deriva-

tives i'n the Hypo Real' Es:tate Group, piease refer'to the

i

The Hypo Real Estate Group defmes the term country

risk as the risk of possible transfer and conversion
probleims encountered with contract partners domiciled
ahroad. The credit risk is that a borrower who is nor-
mally: abla and willing te pay. is notiable to.meet hig
payment obligations if, as &’ ‘Tesult of government action,
he is not able to-secure foreign currency-or to transfer

assots to persons not résident in the territory. The loca-

tion of the property securities is: alsoli
respect Credlt nsk controthng monltonng of oountry
risks o ona parmanent basis. Country risks ara-monitorad”
by eredit risk management on the basis of country limits.

Depending on the results of tha internal rating process,

maximum limits ate allocated to:
(1) Each individual country and
(2) Groups of countries in csrtain rating ranges.
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- evary. year by the credlt po:tfoho committee. The inter-

- assessments by the main. rating agencies. The following
“table sets qu_t_the distribution of the entire country risk

_ber 2005,

Country risk according toregions

- Other? Nor th Am erlca,
T 097% Yapan
1 and Australia
963%
Western Europe
- 8941%

" 9 Eastern Europe: 0.95%; Asin exc I:Japan, Middlie Exst: 0.09%; Latin America: 0.03%;
o Africa: 0.00%

Thess limits restrict the business activities. All country
ratings and country limits are reviewed at least once '

nal risk as;

ssments are dlso :egularly compared with

of the Hypo Real Estate ‘Group according to internal
rating classes and: accordmg to tegions as oE 31Decem- !

B

_ Country risk according to internal rating dasses

- asof3L122005 . -
" Otherd At to A=
J0A1% 121%
Af+ to AA-
1321%
AAA
85.16%

UBEB+t0 BBB—:0A40% 66 + o B8-:001%: B+ or worse: 0.0%

as of 31,12 2005

i
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(1) For specificcountriesi(as a perce

Credit portfolic management is particularly important

as part.of cradit risk managemant. The aim is to reduce

the extent and volatility of credit risk costs in'line-with
the overall business strategy of the Group and the Group’s.

ability ‘to bear risk by way of suitable-portfolio meas-

. ures, and to achieve diversification:success in the Group
] measured agalnst risk and- earmngs;parametars

' The . process of t:acklng__hls almis supportad by the
’ followmgmstrumants

a Continuous portiolio and real estate market analysm

o Systematic increase or decrease of:sub-portfolios in

* lingjwith risk strategyithrough appropriate gsneration
of new Eusiness or adjustment of conditions with
risk-adequate margins.

a Risk transfer by way of partial poztfolio sales, secu-.

ritis;ation_ measures and ‘syndicatiqns&.
a Ussjof a credit portfolic modsl foriestablishing;the

probabli:ttas and exient of potantlally unaxpec:ted: b

losses and
o Lumtmg sub- portfohos in ralatlon to types of proper-
ty, reglons customer g:oups ratmg classes ot maturl-
t1.=,-sI : "
In the .case of development financing errangements,
which imply a higher risk than investment financing
arrangemants as a result of the completion risk, the ex-
tent ofithe cevelopment. portfollo is limited as follows

limity and . .
{2) In relatltm to the ovara!i portfoho .
Tha degree of risk of development fmancmg corralates

pnmamly to the sale“and rental status’ ‘of the EmancedA
* property ‘and the ability'to cover current credit interest. °
‘out af the cash flows which are received and the ISC

{Interest Service Coverage) figurs. Financing arrange-
ments. which are covered by risk-adjusted ranges of

. these cntana are limited: by way of so-called specula-

tive llm:ts Overall, the differgntiated !imitation of sib-
portfolios guarantees a sound relationship between in-
vestment arid development fmancmg in the mdlvxdua]
countries and in the overa]l portfoho
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“of tha country'

-A key slement of successiul activity inreal estate financ-

ing is-sound knowledge of the {rea! estate) marksts and
the lmplementahon ofsuch knowladge in business strat-
egies as wall as in credit and portfolio management
processes. The Hypo Real Estate Group has established

_considerable know how.in the corresponding real estate
markets and is oonscwus of the risk-rélevant factors..

Zon stta ara mcorporated into

.the’ busmess achvmes and the mxmmum requirements

for lending, -For instance, mors restrictive lending re-
quirements-are applicable for markets whose risk pro-
file is critical- {s. g. with'regard to the input of equity,
rental/sale covanance);a current example of this is the
Hypo Real Estate Group’s strict gmdelmas for act1v1tlas
in the US residential market.

The Group's primary target customers include business

_ partners with- professional:operations in international
real estdte markets andiwho meet thestringent lending
‘standards:particularly. also in new markats (for instance
‘Russia and China). Extensive market and risk analyses
are camed out-ahead”of the decision to follow the-
o Group’s customers mto new markats,

Pra-calculation models, wh ich enable risk-adequats mar-
gins to be established for new business or when conditions
are adjusted, are used for implementing management
right through to the signing of mdnﬂdual transactions.
These mode]s take account of covering refmancmg costs,
capital” oosts and. ganeral administrative i expenses as

Tt well as potantlal credit: risk costs of ekpectad lossés.

Thé credit'portfolib c:on;i-niitea is respoﬁsibfe for manag: -

¥
ing:the. contlnuous 1mprovemant of tisk diversification
of the real estate financing. portfollo as markets evolve.

The following tables break down thé real estate financ-
ing operations of the Hypo Real Estate Group in the
amount of €65.1 billion by property-specific and region-
al aspects. The information is based on the credit port-
felio (incl. commitmants, excl. pro-rata intatest) as of
31 December 2005. Including state fmancmg business,
it amounted to € '123 2 billion.

1

[ : Financial Review

Risk Report

Risk medsurement

%
Page 101 of 245




70

. as0f31.12.4n *
.80

s

- Real estate rredit portfolio according to property type

& Residential a Office buildings o Retail
& logisticsiwarehousing g Hotels/lel sum

asof3l12.in% 8 Mixeduse n Other
40
30
20
10 :
IFTER
"0 - B !-1
2004 2005 :

Real estate credit portfolio according toregions

» Germany g Great Britain o US m France
@ Spaln o ltaly ® The Netherlands @ Scandinavia
= Japan w Central and Eastesn Europe @ Other

H

30

15

All exposures are constantly monitored:based on the
risk: management instzuments described;above. Early
recognition of potentlal problem loans can-be-termed a
fundatnental pnnctple of-the cradlt risk. culture._ In ad-

'd:tsonl- existing sub-parformiing'ornon- performzng loans

are mtansnfaly monitored and. regularly analysed. Barly
warning systems have besn installed in order to ensure

’

Real estate loans with an increased levet of risk

ascf3tlz in% 2005 2008 2003
5 Watch list 1 2 3.
' Sub-performing 1 1 20
.+ Non-performing 2 2 5
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. __tlons Heldiin thef tradm :
assumptlonsforaqultyf nds ‘allowances andthe effects
: ofno

‘eration. The resu!tant market risks are mainly interest

thatloans: which may be.eXposed tofan enhanced lavel
of .credit risk caﬁ-l:ie-identified at an early stage. Affect-
ed exposuraes are placed on a “watch list” in order to
ensure that they ars the subject of greater attention.
The following table présents the parformance of real
estate:loans exposed to- an increased leve] of risk -

relation to the ovarall real estate credit portfolio - over

' ‘the, past three years.

Market nsk o

Ma:ket rlsk is deflnad as.. the potential loss which may .

be 1ncurred as a rasult ofchanges in prices on the finan-
cial markets. All lending business, all own issues, all
sacuntles held as investments and liquidity instruments
as well as all derivative transactions ate taken inio con-
sideration for this purpose_at all banks in the Hypo
Real Estate Group. This-is also applicable for the posi-
‘book in Dublin. Schedulmg

_scheduled rademptlons are.also taken into consid-
rate risks,

Adistinction is made batween general and special inter-
est risks (spread risks). The former measure potential

_changes in the present value of positions in. the.event

of shifts of the no-risk rate curvat,[swap curve). The

‘measurement of spread risks, which iz to be further
~ fine-tuned in 2006, takss account of possible present

value-¢hanges if changes arise in the credit standing
premiums priced into securities and derivatives.

Curre‘h‘;’.:y risks ars wiaélj; hedged at all banks in the

Group and'are accordingly present only to a.limited

extent. In the field of equity, commedity and other price
risks, only equity risks as weil as alternative investmants
may be taken on, and only to a strictly limited extent.

The banks in the Hypo Real Estate Group use a uniform

- value-at-risk approach for-daily quantification of the

. market risk. This approach determines a potential 1oss
on the:assumption that a; position is hetd for ten days

" and. aléo on the assumption of a confidence fevel of

99%. The period of observation.for historical data is
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o -st'fral‘d.ing days. The value-atrisk is-establi
by the} bank’s local risk ‘Gontrolling unit; itjis-aggre-
gated' by tha holdlng company to form a total:market
risk at‘}the izroup leval, and is then reported to man-
agement. Through this system, the Hypo Real Estate
Group.is at all times able to control consequences of
potentia] markst fluctuations,.such as rate changes
or currancy fluctuations, in_a timely and profitabls
manner. This active managemant is. also’ reflectad
‘in dally flustuations'of value-at-risk for the genaral in-
‘terest rate tisk (axcl. own funds books) in the Hypo
Real' Estata Group during tha year., With an average val-
N us. of !ess than € 20'hillion for 2005 (max. £ 36 mllllon
'mm €5 million), the genera! interest rate of. the Group
is at’a ;vary low leve . whrether compared mternaliy ot
externa]iy : :

Generatinterest rate risk 2005

.:;m.nm
0 f ,

2 j kﬁ‘ A .‘ /J\‘L n{fﬁgi‘q’ﬂ ;
R, Lﬂw Yy |
0

Jan Feb Mar Apr May lun  Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Daily' computing, limitation and reporting of value-
at-risk and the actual changes in present values which
. occur .are complemented:by regular back- testmg and
*istress- testlng, The quallty of the method whlch Jisiused
s oonstantly reviewed. 'and optlmlsed by comparmg

the valua -at-rigk: Elgures with ths actual dally 'hanges .

" in, present values.' The stat:stlcal assumptzons of our
models have besn confirmed Whereas -the: value-
at- nsk measures the market risk under “normal” mar-
ket filictuations, the simulation of stress scenarios
also measures the potential changss in present values
under, very extrame and unusual- market movements,

so that the continued existence of the company as a go-
‘ 1ng ooncem «can .also be- guaranteed -at all tlmas un-
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¢ da]ly ._ det thési

- Uquidity risk

¥
i

Finangial Review

even under these con-
ditions.. . .

In the individual banks, market rizk management is han-
dled by a committee on the basis of the market risk po-
sition determined daily by risk controlling; this com-

mittea mests regularly and intensively congiders the
future-development of the [inancial-markets and mar-

ket parameters. In' addition, the Group Assat-Liability-

Comfnittee‘[A]I]O} uses the market analyses ae the basis
for making a trend statement for further positionings -
within tha _Gtoup. Implementation is again the 1espon-’
_ ] individual banks w1thm the framework of &
. thalr rlsk lmnts deflned by the boldmg company. '

4,‘Than ks to'=Hyp_o Re al Es tata' Bank Intemational , Dublin's

trads book approved in 2004 by the state regulatory au-
thorities, the bank can also benefit to a greatar extent
from short-term market fluctuations. Resuliant market
tisks are also subjact to the strict risk management proc-
ess detailed above, including daily risk measurement,
limiting ahd reporting to Management.
- ool S !

+

*
i

The foremost gozl of the process of managing liquidity
risks is to ensure that every individual bank in the Hypo
Real Estate Group is salvent at all times. In accordance
with thé internal-limit system, probable payment in-
flows .and -outflows and possible liguidity-procuring

measures, the so-called liquidity pésition, must be at ‘

least balanced at“all times during‘the following five
days. This: posntlon is determined daily, with due con-
mderataon_b

to. tha Mariagamant Board o

A ]iquidity' _pre\'ri,e‘w covaririg 90 days is prepared in or- ‘
-der to-identify any additional short-term re-financing

needs at an early stags. This preview is used as the basis
of active liquidity management. For controlling struc-
tuzal long-term liquidity, the banks in the Group use a
capital scheduls which isalso broken down on the basis
of individual product groups and thus also permits fine-

t
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‘ndltlons The measured matkat rlsk was 1
“also w1th1n the normal limits”

ing given to precautionary discounts (* ‘hait-
cuts”); itiis monitored by Risk Gontrollmg and reported
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tuning; by market ségmonts A'n“annual funding plnn is

. then preparad ~with dus consrdarcltlon ‘being givan,to
planned nevs business; this funding planf

s adopted.and
its 1mp!ementahon monitored. In-doing so, the Hypo Real

! .Estats Group closely. Eol!ows the Basel recommendatlons
- :-for hqmdrty management AR K o

Opetational risk

Ir the Hypo Real Estats Group, operational'risk isdsfined
-as unexpectéd losses caused by defective internal process-

gs, human errors, technology farluro or. axternal gvents.

‘This defirition also includes legal risks.. Strateglc rep-
-utation and general business risks are r;o.ttlnculuded_

"Op'erat'ional risk, which - unlike market or credit risk -

is not delibzrately taken on, is inherent in every busi-
ness transaction and is' becoming increasingly impor-
tant as the Group's international business becomes more
and more complex. The aim of the Hypo Real Estate
Group-is therefore to encourage a pro- -active approach
to operat:or.al tisk by way-of an 1nst1tute‘w1da fisk.cul-
ture so that measures designed-.to minimise risk or limit
damage can b initiated at an early stage R

e

plament the group—w:de framework whrch had been
adopted fot managing operational risk. ananly, it is
the ralevant divisions of the bank who ‘are- responsible |
for 1dent1fylng and managing their operatlonal risk:iThe
group-wide, obligation for recording opstational risk
losses in-a loss database as well as regular reporting of
defined key risk indicators by the entities to local risk

‘controlling. have noticeably increased risk sensitivity.

Group Risk Control reports every six months in the Op-

'-eranonal Risk Committes, Wthh compnsas membars

of the! Boaz-:ts of Management of all entities, conceraing
mtarnal losses resulting .from’ operatlonal risk cases,

rany ufiusual developments, mcludmg evalizations of key

risk mdlcators as well as Operational Risk management
measu'res which have been implemented. The relevance
of potential risk sources for the Group can be assessed
by means of a comparison with:public domain'loss data
from operational rlsk as well as through benchmarking

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

_tiediout at Management:level, throughout the.Group sve-

Asix"a *furtharf‘,dévelopzi'lént and addition to the above

" tisk. categones can be. d13t1ngu:shed1for thie Hypo Real

‘ .poséib]'e tha Hypo Real .Estate. Group usgs audited
‘standard contracts both" atlonally ‘and |ntarnatlona]}

"sociation activity, the Hypo Real Eét:ata Group keeps its
_know-how and organisational structures up-to-date.

the key risk indicators. The uniforén rtsk mventory car-

Iy, year provrdes addltlonal information relatmg to pos-
sible, mostly operatronal risks m connection with the
current busmass strateg’y, )

identification methods, the year 2006 will for the first
time ses the introduction of risk self-assessment, which
foc__usesion the assessment of potential division-spscific
operational risk scenarios.

Legél: risks, as an implicit-part of operational risk, are,
particularly relevant for the international business mod- ]
el of the Hypo Real Estate Group. The following major -}

Estate Group::*

» Contract risk

m Legislation risk
w. judiciary risk
m Legal risk of the property to be financed-and
» Resource risk '

L

v

Contract rigk is charastérised hy lossas arising from un-
enforceable contract components due to errors in the
drawing-up ot'documentation of.the contract. Where

Individual contracts are.drawn up by amployaes with’
legal trammg who arg familiar with local contract law: :
Acontmuous review process for the contract specimens i
and clauses which are’used ensures that the contracts
are effective, adequate and enforceabls. |

Legislation risk is! ‘defined as the nagatwe impact.in the
charige of regulafions on the continuation of certain
business models.

By carefully.observing legislation activity and'via its as- |

4
H

RS S

t
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Financial Review
Risk Report
Risk measurement

Judiciary risk is the risk that contracts which were

originally correctly documented might becoma partlally_

-or entirely unenforceable following a change in coutt
verdicts. In erder to limit this risk, the Hypo Real Estate
:Group constently monitors the devalopment incourt ver-
 gicts) Hypc Real: Estate ;Group: employaes

closa contact w1th }udges and judiciary exparts

r'c

" The laga! ricks of the property 'to be fmancad mclude
inadequate rental agreements ot the absence of;public
sector approvals, which might have & negative impact
on the value of the property to he financed. In order to
avoid these risks, the Hypo Real Estate Group regularly
carries out isgal due diligence apart from firancial due
diligance beiore the contract ié.signad.

Rasour;::a rlsk definss tha Tisk: that lnternal or externali
legal oonsul*ancy ‘skills arg madequate in‘terms ofqual- '

tty or quaatity. This risk is limited by regular self-as-
/sessments.by the legal dapartment and.by having; only

Kmetlculouslf selacted external’ consultants ‘represent

ing the Hypo Real Estats Group mtarnatlonally.

The reorganisation of the Group; which commenced .in
2005 with the merger of tha-technical, personnel and
cultural real estate financing activities to form the new
HypoInternatlonal Bank, of course involves-a potential-
1y hlghlopatatlonal risk inthe-form of 1ntegratton risks.
Aocordmgly a special 1nteg:at10n prolect team was set

up as part of the overall’ project; the, purpose ofithis -
_ Fundamantal pnnmples have been- adoptad and mternal :
departments have been-entrusted with monitoring in

. team 1s} to récognise- and manage nsks promptly

‘In addmon as part of the annual group- w1de risk inven-

tory proces:, additional risk factors which had . been
identified as part of previous: rest:uctunng processes
were also assessed and evaluated.

With the measures for identifying and maraging opera-
. itional tisk which have alreadyibesn {mplemented'and
which are-planned for the future, the Hypo Real Estate

Group is.well prepared to mest the requitements of
LI :;Basal I, speclfxed in- the “Practlcal raoomrnendatlons:

' ‘for management of operations-tisks” in
business model and extent of business.

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

lso mamtam:'

Strategicand other risks

“The only reliable ‘consta'nt is change”. In this respect,
strategic risk means that changes in relation to markets
relevant for bus:ness the competltlva situation as well
as the extent: and diréction of the’ ]ega] or ;Tegulatory

anvxronment are not racogmsed on-a timely basis and .
have a negative |mpact on the long -term success of

busmess For-this purpose, the genuine value drivers
rieed to bs known and the overndlng strategic focus
must be compatible with .detatled business strategies for
specification as well as the quality of implementation.

The Holding Management Board intensively observes
the German as. well as the international competitive

snvironment: Gonclusions for the strategic positioning.
of: the Group ate denved from changes and develop-;
ments and- the Managemsnt Board deals particularly.

w1th the questlon how opportumt!es of growth can be

Estate Group took advantage of beneflts arising from

" the reform of the Pfandbrief Law to strengthen its com-

petitiveness. Reputation risks are increasingly being

:peréaived as-one of the mair risks-for enterprise value.

These risks may result for instance from business con-
duct, the response of customess of the Group or risks,
which have become significant orjother risk types.

" Negative publicity - justified or unjustified - can have

a significantly negative impact or-enterprise value.

order to limit risk. A cods of conduct valid throughout
the Group defines principles of fair play with regard to
all interest groups. The compliance officars also moni-
tor the compliance and control the adherence of legal
and regulatory requirements, particularly with regard
to money laundering and the insider trading regula-
tions. The Holding Management Board assesses the ex-
tent to which the code is up-to-date and effective in the
constantly changing wortld of busingss. Also the credit
prlnmples throughout ithe, Group defma sthical stand:

ards: .which: precluda certaln transacttons or business

partners T : t
4
i
i
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summary

Our declared intention is not to avoid risk, but to adopt
a responsible policy for taking on-and.managing risks.

The Hypo Real Estatd Group has a risk man'agément sys-

tam ‘which has been tried and tested- over; jmany years,

and whmh has been oontmuously 1mproved upon This

system is responsible for the Group’s extremely Eavour- o
able risk ard reward prefile, In line W1th the guude!me .

Qua]ity ahead of quantity”, the consistent focus on
profitable tiansaction-oriented areas of operation; the

analysis of individual transactions together with ‘the

analysis of international market developments and pros-

pects, play e leading role in terms of regional andsscto-

ral diversifization of portfoilo nsks and compensatmn
for market cycles S -

b

i

iy
0 ¢!
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Cradit risks constitute the main risk in the commercial
real estate financing bhusiness of the Hypo Real Fstate
Group. The form and the components.of the risk man-

“agement. system reflect the major Slgn!flcance of this

risk type.

In 2006. with the currént restructuring of the Gioup,

.the Hypo-Real Estate Group will reduce organisational

complexity and will thus limit operating risks.

A fusther central task in 2006 will be to implement and

apply the comprehensive Basel O regulations and to
thoroughly prepare for the subsequent regulatory audit

" .which is intended.
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 Forecast Report

expected to rise between 15 0/

“Tha, global “8gon

growth Strong:in
..:economy which is: still ‘eXpandidg strongly, falhng oil
- prices;, favourable flnancmg c:ondltlons with low long-
‘terminterest rates ag well: as ithe: incentive- measures:by
the‘new",Federal Government should encourage or initit

B L :
The:. e'conomio outlook for.2006:wasitavised .upwards-at.
the end of 2005."0n average, gross’ :domestic iprodiat is ;

nd 2 O%' as opposed to'

the other countries in*the: EU -which.is still huge The
centra] banks will combat any signs of inflation expec-

tations with rate hikes; hoivever, thus.they w1]] not

mgmflcantly hinder. econornlc growth

ket and’the contlnumg consohdatlon:'

: optlmzsm for- busmess prospeots in- 2006 There is. ex—

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

hlnd growth as a.result -oftheir: feed:to catek: up wrth' :

the' German reall'
estata finan'zing $ector prov1de grounds for moderate-'

I:ncrease in: the,: 3
in-2006 in certain
The: residential real-estate market has no prospects of

'Sand tbe measures
proklems mrght sven rapldly putanendto any upswing

~positive, performanc:e agdin. Strong demand for-German
¢al estats isalso expeoted for-2006; patticularly from
_‘mternatlonal lnvestors ‘This demand will alsobe drwen
“by; the’ sfforts © well known: oompames to divest’ them-

elves of owner

growth at present,

r . {
‘Financial Review
-Risk Report
iSumm ary
Fore(ast Report
Macro economlc situation
or;specific’ 5|tuat|on

myiigistill: expected to: aohleve -strong
ternational’demand thanks to.a glohal

desrgned to: solve publlc sector firance

will: gradually start to‘achieve a

ectatlons oE any excess *
expecta’uons -of & major

‘sub locatlons such as the West'End.
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[

Inyés’ﬁhe’nt demand for con:'ni'e"i:_oial*property in France :

particular in Paris, will continue ‘tobe strong.f

theﬁthu‘d year in.sugcession: [2006) Asa result of: hlgh;
. llqu1d1ty and' the limited; supply of suitabla mvestment‘
obJects yields will continue to decline. Investors will*

contmue te target secondary ‘office markets in 2008,
such as-Lyons, or the suburbs of Paris, in ordsr to achieve
an acceptable risk-return profile for investments.

Con‘ipa;ny-spieciﬁc situation :

The.

have been taken on the basis of all currently available
informatior. If the assumptions used as the bésis for the
predictions fail to materialise, or if fisks (as detailed in
the risk report) occur to an extent which is not calcu-

tated, the actual results may dlffel‘ from the curreptly, . S
R : *: The velume-of fiew, buisiress and the devélopment of
:the real estate fmancmg portfolio Wl.ll be major.factors

expected results,

The‘d:evelopment in earninigé' la"st ‘yaar has Tully con-;
firmed the axpectations of the ‘Management Board:
The' plannmg for future years-is based on the followmg'

assumptlons .

- @ "The macro-econontic development is. expected to be as-."

descnbed in the parts of the forecast report relating
. to‘the macro -sconomic and sector-specific situation..

a In add:tlon the planning is~based on -an inflation.

rate of 2.0%.
m The exchange rate of the Euro 1is expected to incraase
stightly against the US Dollar,and the British pound
s The planning process was carried out in the new
Group structure, which will be applicable from 2006

onwards. A core capital ratio of 70% has been -
planned for the ségments.International Lending and °
Ge:man Lendmg. and 80% has bden planned for-
Publlc Finanoe. A ratio.of 10: 0% has been assumed.“

forithe total capital for all’ segments
Basedjfon the above essumptions, the Management Beard
is prédicting that consolidated net incoma before taxes
in 2008 will increase by at least 20% compared with
the prewous figure of €442 mllllon adjusted by restruc-
turmg;expenses :

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

jOve'ralll rising- rents'and'falling vacancy rates are still

~ ;the remdentlal mal:ke_ h
result in falllng rents‘in-some sub- markets

:ecasts used as the basis for the future perform : " 'For financial ZOD? the: Management Board is expecting .

ance of the Hypo Real Esiate Group are astimates which_,
. Hypo Real Estate:International, 8%-to 8% for the seg-

_ the segment Hypo Public Finance.

‘business.in 2006 Will5repeat the level seen in'ZODS.. :

" gonerated to the:planned extent and if downsizing in
the -poitfolio should.’be stronger than planned, thers
_might'be a negative impact on net interest income and
thus on consolidated profit. Even in this case, the Group

“other hand, new business in excess of budget, for in-

""I‘he focther 1mproved portfollo quahty hes tesultedtin a |
__;Zconmclerable deolme in: loan-loss provisions compared

belng.predlcted for the -office ‘markst in the USA de-
pite & dlfflcult economlc -climate in 2006 However.
as; already peaked ‘which will

cr e o rane e -

a return on equlty of:11to 12% for the Group, consist- ,
ing of a return on equity. of 13% to 14 % for the segment

ment Hypo Real Estate Germany and 14% to 15% for

influending the extent of- consolidated profit and return .
on equity. The Management Board is assuming that new

Iftt is not posmbla Eor new business ‘on the market to be

will not ease its strict risk and yield criteria. On the

stance resulting from the planned expansion into new
markets, such as India, Singapote, South Korea or Aus-

tralia, will constitute a.oonsiderable opportunity.
!

with Fast year. Because in general it is not'possible to gen-
erate revenues in banking without taking on risks, itis not
possible to preclude the possibility of a further increase in
loan-loss provisions. The Hypo Real Estate Group counters
this sk through risk-oriented Group Management. Risk
measurament, risk control and risk management are
descrihed in detail in chapter Risk Report, ses page 67,
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The new Gi‘oup structure, whieh is effective in 2008, is
“designed to enhance the bank’s viability on the markets
and reduce complexity in the Group. One of the benefits’

of the struclure will be. t6-enablelthe “entiré.tange of.

ptoducts and setvices to be offered to international

customers from a single. s source. The pew structura s
o percewad ag an opportumty to contmue tha procass o

davalopmg into one of the leadmg global ‘real estate
financiers with 2 strong focus in the-fields of public fi-
nance and capital markets; . .

Movements in the exchangs rate of the Euro against
major international currencies should:not have a major

Enclosures, 19 March 2006

-‘consider. that this aspect;provides a. malor opportunity

: ;.An Jmprovamant"nl the- Ratmgs should be a.considara-

. negative 1mpact

- Financial Review )
' Forei:::st Report
) Sector-specific situation
| . Company-specific situation

impact oni the income statement, because open currency
positions are generally closed directly for the current
year. Accordingly, the Hypo Real Estate Group does not

|
|

]

ot mvolves a major tisk. ..
. L 1

ble opportunity becausa it will probably result in lower
funding costs. On the other hand, any deterioration in
the Ratings, which we are. not assuming, would have a

Page 109 of 245

3
x
>
. $1)
(53
%
5
<
=
c
o.

o



L
i1
]

i~

e

375 Pl 5

Py
Iy

T

Ebisu Prime Square

Ebisu Prime Square is a fitst class mulii-purpose prop-
erty comprised of high quality office and retail shops
as wall as:residential. units, iocated in a prime area of
Hizoo, Shlbuya—ku Cantral Tokyo, ‘Tapan. : i
The group of invastors ‘was arranged by AIG Global Real
Estate, the 1eal estate investment management sithsidi-
ary of American International Group, Inc:

Hype Real Estata Capital Japan Corporahon prowded
JP¥ 52 billion’ (approx. € 385 millién) financing to the
group of investors consisting of AIG member companies
and others for their acquisition of Ebisu Prime Square.

$.

ks
;
}
S
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84 | Notes i;
131 | AudxtorsRaﬁport

Finandal Statements 79

ﬁgw@g% bear out our rasolute action.
- Neb income befiors tases: € 408 million
Refurn on equity: 724%

Ty X

finandal Statemerks

:
o

I$

i
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80

,f’?‘, L I
4 & ;
!
1
'
: j
Z |
rlncomelexpenses C
Change Charge ! |
¢ in € million Nates - Page 2005 2004 In¢ million In% :
i ‘ :
; _ ' -
" Interest income ) 7074 6,945 129 19
v ]
! Interest expenses £389 6,262 127 20!
t Net interest income 29-100 685 683 2 03¢ |
(i |
; . i
3 Pm\slsmns for lcsses onloans and advances 30:100 148 276 -127 -4601
| Net interest income after provisions for losses on loans and advances 536 407 129 317
| 2
: » Com misston income 171, 163 8 49 : {
i Commission expenses 46 69 -23 L1330 |
! Net commission income 31-101 125, 9 i 330, ¢
‘ i . '
: : i
; Nettrading income 32.101 27 11 16 >1000 ¢ i
i Netincom e from Investments ' 33101 o7’ 47 20 Qe 4
! General administrative expenses 34.101 317 315‘ ) 2 056 ;
! Balance of other operating Incom e/expenses 35-101 5 - 5 >1000
: Openting profit/loss 443 244 199 816
; ; ‘
i Balance of other incomelexpenses 37102 -35 -23 -1 522"
{ ¥
! thereof. ) | t
¢ Restructuring expenses 34 21 13 6191
1 Net incomerlos: before taxes , , 408 21 187 946 i
! .
1
! . i
" Taxes on incomcﬁ ] 38-102 49 -50 9 >1000
. o
! thereof ‘ sl
" Deferred taxes on capitallsed losses carried forward -46 -103 S7 563.
! Net income/los:: 350 m 88 s’
P
, attributable to: v
* Equity holders (sonsolldated profit) 159 270 89 3300 |
2' Minority Interest ' — 1 ) -100.0
¢ i m .88 R
- | . S— Y ———— _ 3??*?“ e o L me..E_J
B . VL
o P |
, Earnings per share ’ : i
LIt , Notes - Page 2005 2008
f : i
e
+ Earnings per share 39-103 2.68 ,
. E Earnlngs per sh.xre v 319-103 233 1
- o s o s S s b 1 b ke ety 3 T et s et |y A L o "
om Eu:ludlng th: eﬁ:cts frornnp tallsed los sescarned forwhrd R " LT T .
. «;,- . f' - oA ’ " e ' B
. . - i
i . :
. '
4 ' -
.o i
3 ;JL i
g e :
"z El.. . FITR S i 1
E , i
€ E" . |
oot l
i
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Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2

Finangdal Statements

I

, e - N Income S;tatement e
¥ - i : Bala’qteShoet :
JURNDTRD S . S5 SV
" Assets rog
' X . Change Change | i
. InCmitlion Notes - Page 3112.2005 3122004 in € million in% . %
" Cashreserve 40-104 182 . 275 -93 -338 i i .
i Assets héld for lrading purposes 7-90,41-104" 5,69 1,513 4,183 »1000: ¢ i
. . i
_ Pracements with, and loans and advances to, other banks 3-90,42-104 19,542 21,651 -2,109 -97! '
i Loans an@ advances to customers 3-90,43-104 76,264 71,044 - -T750 -10 g i
Allowances for losses on loans and advances §.91,45-105 -685 =776 91 11.7 ; 1
i Investmeénts ~10-91,47-106 39,139 36,165 2,974 8.2 i
Intangble assels 11-91, 48-108 28 29 -1 -34.
Properly, plant and equipment 12.91,49.109 11 15 1 67: |
. | Other assets 50.109 7,427 7,479 -52 -0.7: .
i Income tax assets 13-93,51-109 4,823 4,733 90 19, 5
1 . ' : ]
i Total assets 152,460 148128 4,332 29 | P
e == ———-}-——-——-—-—————-—-———--— e sttt e - m T — e e e e —e e — - w—F , .
i‘ = ' i:
R gim R 20 S ..,,ML—-. R Aol et et . ‘i_:-:
_Equity and llabilities 3
i Change Change ! ! ;
! in Cmillion Notes - Page 1122005 31122004 in € million in% "} H
H .- I
! Deposits from ather banks 13-91,55.111 22,446 18,552 3,894 no' ‘
¢ Amounts owed to other dépositors 13-91,56-111 10,080 8,824 1,256 14.2 g
i Promissory notes and other liabllities evidenced by securities 57-111 95,332 99,173 -3,840 -39 ¢
, Liabilities hetd “or trading purposes 14-92,58-112 3,752 926 2,827 >100.0 ;
. Provisions 15-92,59-112 57 m -164 -742:
i Other liabilities 16-92,60-113 11,967 11,654 313 2.7 ! Ll
; Income taxliatllities 18- 93, 61-114 3,59 = 3,609 -13 -0.!15 ; ;
| Subordinated capital 62-114. 1028 2,297 -269 117 P
" Liabilities ' 149,260 145,256 4,004 28 i ; ; .
. " ) [ v .
' 2 v
Equity attributable to equity holders 3,200 2,856 344 120: ¢ jPRe
Subscribed capital 63-115 402 402 - -
" Additlonal paid-in capttal 3,316 3,310 9 03;
- - —- H
Retained earnings 63-115 537 311 226 727 L
 Revaluation reserve -1,424 -1,437 13 09. P
AFS reserve 688 274 275 -1 0.4} ‘
| Cash flow hedge reserve 638 1688 -1,712 14 08' 1
i Consalidated profit 359 276 39 120 £
Profit carried forward from prior year 7 - 7 )180.02 ,§ :
5 Mincrity interest in equity - 16 -16 -100.0 ! &,
§ R . i 15
4 b IR
Equity 3,200 2372 328 e £
‘ ‘ ! l =
! I
1 Total equity and Iiabilities 152,460 148,128 4332 29,
E. ]
I h n
ORI
4
[ !
R |
Sooh - Yo
e ‘l; b B =
i
2 i . : . :
R o W 4
£ |
¥ - L
B ¥ :
3 R * i
Lo . » . -
ol ;
|
'
)
i
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Equity attributable to equlty!'d:hrs

B Emhnmom In note 5. Page B6

a

The Management Board of Hypo Real Estate Holdmg AG
will proposde to the ordinary annual general mesting on._

8 May 2006 that, out of the proflt of € 248 million of

A Due o ‘H’\e squee m-Out at Wurtt:ml:zrgls:he Hyputhekenhank there is no mlrorlty |nter:st inequity myrrore

; Mincrity Equity
i interest
H Revaluation reterve | ony
nequity
f Additional Cash fiow Profitcarmed
; Subscribed paid-In Retained AfS Consolidated  formard from
1 in € miflion capital capital earnings reservet reserve peafit prior ye ar
{ Equity at 1.1.2004 4072 3,310 358 48 -1,463 115 - 14 2,784
angein value
i oth |
| offinandal instruments
. notaffactingincome - - - 254 =249 - - 1 6
l Changeinvalue
b of financial instruments
affectingincome — — — -6 - — - - -6
i Netincom efioss — - - - - 270 - 1 n
!‘ Alocation/addition
. _consolidated profit - - 115 - - -115 . = - -
% Chanées in the group of
consolidated companies - - 19 - - - - - 19
"t i
i Reserve arising \
i from currency
; and other changes - - -131 -21 - — - — =202
: Equity at 31.12.2004 402 3,310 311 275 -1,712 70 - 16 2,81
: Equity at 1.1.005 402 3,310 31t 275 -1,7112 270 - 16 2,812
% Capit%l increase/
-} decredse - 9 - - - - . - 9
£ it )
; Changeinvatue
t offinandal Instruments
1 notaffectingincome - - - 11 -357 - - - -346
; Change invalue
I of findngal Iastruments
| _affectingingame — - — -7 379 — - - 7
[ Metincom efioss ' - - - - - 359 - - 359
F Allocatien/addition
) : consolidated profit: - - 223 - - =223 - ~ -
4 Profit carriec forward
from prior year - - —_ - - - 7 - 7
Profit of distribution - - - - - -47 - - -47
Changes in the group of
; consolidated companies — - -1 -5 -8 - - -16 -0
E Reserve arising
¢ from currency
'{ and other changes - - 4 - - - - - 4
. Equuty at31 11 2(205 o Am 3 319 537 274 -1,608 359 ' 7 - 3,200

" Hypo Real Estate Holding AG, a dividend of £ 134 mil-
: lion, equivalent to € 1:00 per share, will be paid to the
equity holders. -

i T e U U
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tatement’

Flnanda1St§tements ]

: L Lo v Co ‘ Statement of Changes in Equity
’ i _ Cash Flow $tatement
R . .
n . |
Cash Flow Statement? i
" in Cmillion 2005 2004 ¢
f L o
Net tcomedloss 359 STHIE
L Write-downs, provisions for (osses on, and write-ups of loans and advances i ?
. and additions to provisions for [esses on guarantees and indem nities 16 608 ;
- ¥ Write-downs and depreciation less write-ups on long term assets =215 -45°
f Change In other non-cash positions 7 3 ;
. Result from the sale of tnvestments, property, plant and equipment 2 -54 : '
i Other adjustments -761 -_ -725 :
 Subtotal - -9 58
: g
! . i I
. Change in assets and liabilitles from operating activities .
; after correction vor non-cash components i, f' :
" Increase in asselsidecrease in liabilities () : "
. Decrease in assetshncrease inliabilities (+) 1 !
¢ . !
Assets held for t-ading purposes ) -4,183 -1513 ; [
! Placements with, and loans and advances to, other banks 2,109 3,330 |
*Loans and advarices to customers 750 8461, I
~ Other assets from operating activities -4601 -4831°
t Deposits from other banks 3,804 -799°
. Amounts owed o other depositors 1,256 980 ’ i
; Promlissory notes and other liabllities evidenced by securities -3,840 ~10,980 ’ |
: Other liabilities from operating activities 2,779 4,194 | l
. Interest recetved 3,832 8,370 i i
} interast paid 8,133 7,780
:_Cornm Ission recaived 171 120 : .
? Comm ission paid -46 -72 : f
i Dividends receivéd 5 13 3
F Taxes on income pald -97 -29 } '
} Taxes on income received 3 16 ;
| Cash flow from operating activities -1,602 a2
| Proceeds from tne sale of property, plant and equipment 9,385 11,123 '
Payments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment -7.687 -10,561 j;
" Proceeds from the sale of Investments - 62
; Payments for the acquisition of investm ents -34 =171 |
+ Effects of the change in the group of consolidated companies - -15 i !
_ Cash flow from investing activities 2,164 592 ;
Proceeds from capital increases 16
. Paid dividends 47
i Suberdinated cupital, net -260
. Other finandng activities, net -16 -
' Cash flow from financing activities -307 . 221’
i Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the previous period 75 489 ;
! V/_Net eash providedfused by operating actlvities -1,692 -2t
! +/-Net cash provided/used by investing activities 2,164 - 592 : ;
* +/-Net cash from financing actlvities -307 -221. ;
" +/_Effacts of exchanga rate changes and non-cash vafuation changes -258 -163 ; '
; - L
" Gash and cash equivatents at the ond of the period 1w s t
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Notes |
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20
21"

22-
23-

2.
25-

26-

27
28-

29.
30.
31-
. 32
33.
34
5.
‘36
37.
18-
39

TR - Y Y

- 93, | Future-related assumptions

¥ Y
A C B
. LR

85 | Ge"neral information
i
i
o Accounting principles
85 | Principles
86 | Uniform conselidated acoounting
86, | Consistency

86| Consolidation

- 88 | Financial instcuments

90;»I A§§ets held for trading purposes
90+ | Placements, loans and advancas

. 91 | Allowances for losses on loans and advances

'l Investments

91t | Intangible assets

91| Property, plant and eqmpmant

91, | Liabilities

92 Ll:lb]]]tles held for tradmg purposas
92 | Provisions

- 92 Oher]labl]]t]es

52: | Currancy translatlon -
93:1 Ta'<es on income

W and estlmatlon unoertamty
i" g .
;53 Segment reportmg R '
_‘94;1§I -Notes to'segment raporting o i
0 by busmass segment’ [pnmary segmentmg}
95+ Intoms statdment; brokan down by
bubiness s segment

96, | Kay ratics, broken down by business segment

96 | Balance sheat figures, broken down by
" buiiness sagments e
9781 Rié‘k ptovision rates, broken down by
buziness segment
97 | Loans put on a non-accrual basis,
bréken down by business segment
98 | Key capital ratios
[besed on German Commercial Code (HGB],
braken down by business segment
99| Er.ployees, broken down by business segment
99 '] Segment reporting by region
. {secondary segmenting)
No!tes to the income statement
100%1 Net interest income .
100% | Prévisions for losses on loans and advances
101°1 Ne_t comrnission income '
101 | Net trading income
101- | Met income from investments
10171 General administrative expensas :
101+ Ba ance of other operatlng mcomelexpenses
102 1 Operatmg revenues L ,
102 Ba'ance of other mcome/expenses
102 Ta.ces on’ mcome
103 ! Earnings per share -

40
41
47,

43
+105 I'Volime of lending
45-
26
47
48 .
49
50
~109 | Income tax assets
52
53+
54

51

S B0

el
62
63-
64 -
65 -
© . BB

67
68-

69

70

-7
72-

73-
74
75-
76

77

'7g.

- Notes to-the balance sheet (Assets)

104 | Cash reseive

104 'I"Assets held for trading purposes
104 | Placements with, and’ loans and advances to,
other banks:

104 | Loans and advances to customers

105 .| Allowances fot 10sse§ or loans and advances
106 | Anaiysw of loan and default risk
106 | Investments

108 | Intangible assels
109.1 Property; plant and equipment
109 |. Other assets

110 | Subordlnated assets .
110 | Repurchase agresments
110 | Secuntzsatlon !

- Notesto the balance ghéet (Equity and liabilities) -
‘111 l Deposits from other banks -

6111 | Amountsiowed to-othat depositors

1L Prom:ssory notes and other liabilities

evzdenced by securities

. 112 l. Llabllltles hald_for tradlng E;urposas

113 [ Othe llabllltles

114 | Income tax Tiabilities -

114 [ Subordmated capztal

115 IEqulty T

115 | Treasury stock:

135 | Forelgn cuiténcy assets and liabilities

*115 | Trust busmess ’

b ypfe; to‘th‘e'c_ash flow statement
116 | Notes to the items in the cash flow statemant

" Notes.to ﬁnanhial instruments
116 | Derivative transactions
119 | Assets assigned or pledged as security
for own liabilities '
119 | Fait value__;zs of financial instruments

Other Notes

121 | Significant concentrations of assets
“and liabilities

121 | Xey- capltaE rahos i

{based on Garman Commercial Coda (HGB)]
1211 Goatlngent liabilities and other commitments
122 | Auditors! fee . o
122 | Relatlonsshlp, with related parties
123 | Employees
124 1. Summary ofquarterly financial data
126 | Summal:y ofannual fmancxal data

and ofthe Managamant Board

-12? 1 Holdmgs onypoRealEstate Holdlng AG
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1iGeneral information

The Hypo Real Estate Group is an internationally oper-
ating piovider of commercial real estate financing. The
holding company of the Hypo Real Estate Group is the
listed Hypo Real Estate Holding Aktiengesellschaft, which
is incorporated in the commercial register of the Amts-
| gerichtiltocal court) Munich [HRB 149393) with the fol-

| lowing’ raglslered office:
t ] .

‘Accounting 3 r| dValuation

@Priq}ciple? L S o
Hypo Raal Estate Holding AG has prepared its consoli-
datad fmanoal statements for the petiod ended’ 31 De-

: cembel:_ 2008 in line with EC ordinance no. 1606/2002
of the European Parliament and Council of 18July 2002

Standards (IFRS). These financial statements are based
on the IFRS rules which have been adoptad in Europs-
an law by the EU Commission as part of the endorse-
ment process, and are additionally based on the regula-
tions of commercial law applicable in accordance with
section; 315¢ (1) HGB. With the sxception of TAS 39, all
mandatory IFRS rules have been complstely recognised
by the EU. Cartain regulations of IAS 39, relating to fair
value hedga accounting for a portfolio hedge of interest
tisks, have not been recognised. The Hypo Real Estata
Group doasinot apply this type of hedge accounting, so
that the financial statements are acoordingly consistent
with the entire IFRS and also with the IFRS as applica-
ble in the ELL '

i i .
The IFRS afa standards and interpretations adopted by
the Intematlonal Accounting Standards Board. (IASB).
Thay consitt of the International Financial Reporting
Standards (FRS) the International Accounting Stand-
ards [IAS) as well as. the intsrpretations of the Interna-
tional Financial Reporting Interpratanons Commlttea
[IFRIG) or the former Standirg Interpretations Comm it-
tee (SIC).

If they are hot inconsistent with the IFRS, the German
accounting standards {Deutsche Rechnungslégungs Stan-
dards (DRS] published by the Deutsche Rechnurgsle-
gungs Standards Committse (DRSC) have been followad.

valid standhrds. In:addition, these consolidated finan-
i cial statements also use the mandatory regulations of the
Bilanzrechtsreformgesstz (law reforming balance shest
law). -

Adopted IFRS The Hypo Real Estate Group applies all,

Finandsl Statements ,85
Notes1to?
Acceunting and Valuation

Unsdldstrafle 2, 80538 Miinchen.

The shares of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG are traded
on the stock exchange in Frankfurt am Main (Prime
Standard) and Vienna (Standard Markst Continuous)
(ISIN: DE0008027707).

TA8 32 {amended 2003),IAS 39 (amended 2003) and the
other IAS amanded as part of the improvement project
as wall as [FRS 2 wers the subject of early adoptior in
the consolidated financial statements for the period
ended 31December 2004. Accordingly, there are ro ini-
tial adoption effects in these financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the period
ended 31 December 2005 feature initial adoption of the
following IFRS at the Hypo Real Estate Group:
IFRS 3
IFRS 4
IFRS § . L
1AS 19 (amended 2004)
IAS 21 {amended 2005)
T1AS 36 famended 2004) ir accerdance
with initial adoption of IFRS 3
o [AS 38 (amendsd 2004} in.accordance
with initial adoption of IFRS 3
a IAS 39 (amended 2004 and 2005)

The initial adobtion of these standards has resulted in
the following major changss in accounting and state-
ment policies for the Hypo Real Estate Group:

IFRS 3 had to be adopted in the consolidated financial
statemants for 2004 for business combinations between
31 March 2004 and 31 December 2004. For all other
business combinations, the standard is subject to first-
time adoption in these financial statements.

4
[

0

RS

According to IFRS'3, goodwill is no longer parmitted to -

be depreciated. Instead, goodwill is allocated te the cash
generating units in accordance with 1AS 36 (amended
2004). At the level of the cash generating units, good-
will is subject te‘an impairment test at least once avery
year, It has to be impaired if the carrying amount of the
cash ‘genarating unit exceeds the recoverable amount,
which is dafined as the higher of valus-in-uss and the
fair value less costs to sell. Without exception, negative
differences from consolidation have to be recognised
immadiately in the income statement in accordance

" “with IFRS 3. This did not have any material effects.

|

Financial Statements v ©

*I'
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Mo major affacts have resulted from the initial adoption
of IFRS 4 and IFRS 5 as well as IAS 38 (amended 2004).

The Hypo Real Estate Group did not have any availa-’

ble-for-sale long-term assets and discontinuing opera-
tions as of the balance sheat date, which-means that
there have béjen no valuation effects or changes in rec-
ognition. ‘ )

o

The new rulés of 1AS 19 {amended 2004) relate to actu-

) I
arial profits and losses, common plans of several em-.

ployers and the recognition of pension ohligations. The

standard change which has to be applied for periods

starting-on cr after 1 January 2008 is subject to early
adeption. The new option in the standard, whereby
unredeemed ‘actuarial profits and losses can be shown
in shareholders’ equity, has not been utilised. Instead
the Hypo Real Estate Group continues to use the corri-
dor method."Most of the pension obligations aré cov-
ered by a qu‘aliﬁed insurance policy. The new regula-

tion relating to commion plans of ssveral employers has
not had any effect on the consolidated financial state-

ments. The additional notes required by the standard
have been included in the notes.

The change ;[n 1AS 21 (amended 2005) relates to the'rec- .

ognition of niet investments in a foreign operation. The

" regulation, whlch is mandatory for periods which com-

mence on or'after 1January 2008, is the subject of early

adoption. Be cause the regulation relates to the 1ndw1d-{

ual fmanma‘ stateménts, it does not have any effect on
these c_onsolldatad financial statements.

i

The initial édoption of the changés of IAS 39 (aﬂ:t:v‘.':ﬂdedi

2004 and 2005) has not had any major impact on the
Hypo Real Estate Group. Financial obligations were not
allocated t¢ the catsgory “designated at Fair Valus

through Prefit or Loss™ (dFVTPL). As part of initial

adoption, a portfolio comprising fixed-income securi-
ties and derivatives have been redesignated. Because
the relationship between the undarlying and hedging
instrument was previously recognised in fair value

hedge aocountmg. the radesignation has not had any

impact on the consolidated financial statements. Re-
ceivables which are no longer permitted to be.classi-
fied as dFVTPL following the adjustment of IAS 39 in
2003 are now treated as financial instniments in the
catagory of “Loans and recaivables”.

Published IFRS which are not yet mandatory and which are

" not the subject of early adoption IFRS 6, 1FRS 7 and 1AS.3
(amended 2905) have not been the subject of early
adoption. The Hypo Real Estate Group does not antigi-

pate any affects rpsultlng from the adoption of IFRS 6,
as this standard does not govern any issues which are
relevant foi the Group. Recogniticn of finansial instru-
ments:-has liean changed as a result of IFRS 7. IFRS 7 is

_ mandatory for years'which commence-on or after 1]an-
* uary 2007. IFRS 7 will completely replace 1AS$:30 and-

partially replace IAS 32. Because recognition has pre-
viously been based-on these two'standards, [FRS 7 will

X

result in changes in the structure of the income state-
ment, the balance shest and the notes. Some recogni-
tion regulations for management of shareholders’ equity
will be introduced as a result of IAS 1 (amended 2005).

Dedaration on German Corpbrate Governance Code Hypo
Real Estate Holding AG has published the declaration
on German Corporate Governance Cods on its corpo-
tate weh site (www.hyporealestate.com) in accordance
with section 161.AktG,

Consolidated finandal review The consolidated financial

" review maeets the requirements of section 315 {1) and

(2) HGB as'waell as JAS 1 and DRS 15. It comprises a re-
port on the business and conditions, & report on the net
assets, financial position and results of operations, a re-
port of significant events occurring after the cut-off
date, an outlook teport as wsll as a risk report.

3 Umforcho;l iélidiéieﬂ accoun tl;;g

The ihdividual financial statements of the consolidated

domestic and foreign companies are incorporated in
the consolidated and financial statements of Hypo Real
Estate Holding AG using uniform accounting and valu-
ation principlss.

Laiconsisteney = =~ .

The Hypo Real Estate Group applies accounting poli-
cles consistently in accordancs with the frame concept
of IFRS as wall as 1AS 1 and IAS 8. No metheds were
changed in 2005. !

[ 5 consolidation

The group -of consolidated companiss of Hypo Real

Estate Holding AG comprises a total of 38 companies
as of 31 December 2005, It comprises the following

companies:

m Hypo Capital Markets Inc., New York

» Hypo Pfandbrief BankInternational S.A.,
Luxembourg -

a Hypo PublicFirance USA Inc., New York

» Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Munich
(subgroup with a total of 16 companies)

m Hypo Resl Estate Bank International, Dublin

a Hype Real Estate Capital Gorp., New York
[sub-group with a total of six companies}

a Hypo Real Estate Capital Japan Corp., Tokyo

a Hypo Real Estate Capital Ltd., Londen
(sub-group with a total of sight companies)

s Hypo Real Estate Transactions S.A.S., Paris

» Pallas Capital Corporation, Delaware

. Wurttemberglsche Hypothekenbank AG, Stuttgart
[sub-group with a total of two companies})

Enclosures, 29 March 2006
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Notes2 to 5 -
Accounting and Valuation

R T
The. grdup of.
cral purpos

13 October 2005 ‘Hypo: Rea] ZHstate Capltal Hong Kong
. Corporatlon Ltmlted based in Hong Kong, was estab-

- lished. as & subsrdlary of Wurttemberglsche Hypothek—
enbank AG and - included in the' group fc:onsohdated

compames As aresult’of risk measurmg methods hav- _'

ing been futther developed 16 new ‘speciz urpose
entltxes were also mcluded in.the group of. consohdat
ed compames i 2005 The. -putpase of the:special’ pu

take’ advantage of refindncing opportumtres fn the’ USA
Thespedial purpose entities Kiel Ito IX, Limited, ]ersey.

Houss &f Euzope Fundrng Ito IlI:ple, Dublin, and:Octa: .

.gon Lumted Caymar Islands, have- been establlshed
for structurmg asset backed, securities: transactlons {I‘he

: spec:al purpose ent1t1es ‘GEEO 2002 er:ted ]ersey,--

aitd DUKE 2002 Lumted ]ers‘ey. have: been estabhshed
“oin conn;ct1013 wrth synthetlc securitisation transacttons

-of own lcredit r:sks No goodwill has resulted from the :

L,

. 1mtlel consolldat;on of these spectal purpose entltles ’
. § .

The: actlons}for annu]ment pendtng before the Lan&-
gericht: [regl-)nal Gourt) Stuttgart agalnst the resolutlon
'?concernmg the exclusion -of mmorlty shareholders
adopted in the shargholders’, meetmg of Wiirtternbsr-

_ gische, Hypcthekenbank on 12 May", 2005 have~ be'en R

_\_“-‘_y way of a- court settlement.-on .21 Iuly ZO
squeeze ‘out”
. the commermal reglster In- accordance with the settle-

was pald to tha mmorlty shareholders The ‘stake 1n‘i :
Wurtteroberpische Hypothekenbank AG has- accordmg-
ly incieased by 2:51%. to- 100%. The increase in the :

shareholdmg, has not resulted 1n .any new: goodwr]l
S . )

Hypo Real E;tate Holdlng AG has contrDl over: all fully

consolldated “companiss in accordance Wlth JAS 2Py

causs it owns 100% of the shares wtth votlng rlghts or,

had any effect T s
pose’ entlty Pa ilas Capxtal Eorporation, Delaware;is to ™'~ "

became effective. .when entered B

- Hyps Réal: Est'a'te.:(_“l.ap 4l Franca-S.A., Paris, and Hypo

Real-Estate ‘Gapital ‘Ttilia S.p.A., Milan, have been

. ‘ S ; N merged with' the branches in these countriss. Hypo Real
No new Sub‘!dlaIlBS weig acqulred durmg’ 2005: Ag-of ol

Estate Transastions S:A/S:, Paris, as a former subsidiary
onypo Real Estate Capital France S.A., Paris, has be-
gome-a direct: subsxdlary of ‘Hype Real Estate Bank In-

. ternational, Dublin“as a result of the merger of its par-

ent'company.’ These"transactions have not had any
impact on the income" statement and the balance shest
of the Group Hypo Real. Estate Caprtal lberia 8.1., Ma-
drid,has been l:qu1dated The trquldatton has also not

¢

In- totat" 25‘comp;amemse have"not been included in the
group of; consolidated companies in view of their mi-
nor: srgn:f‘cance for the Group The:consolidated finan-
. tial statements set; “out the effects on the balance sheet

; of the contractual relattons ‘between the consclidated

compames and the compantes which have not been
gl onsolidated’ The aggregate ennual results of the siub-
s1dlar1es whlch have not been consolidated in view'of
“their mmor slgmfloance in total amount to €22 million.
Thereby ‘net:losses are nearly comptetely covered by .
‘write-offs on:investments, provisions and profit- and’
loss transfers within ‘the-annual accolints of the parent
companiss. Theraggregate total’ assets amount to 0.4 %
of the-consolidated assets The shares in the non-con-
solrdated subsrdlarles are stated as ﬂfS rnvestments

1 Group of consolldated companies !

2005 2004 |
Consolidated companies 39 25,
! Non-consolidated subsidiarias 25 37 l
¢ Total number of subsidiaries 64 621

Uther particlpatlng Interests ) 22 25

.“These flnanclal statements set out a list of “sharehold- _
ings” in the: chapter #Holdings?, In this list, the affili-
tated companles whtch are not special purpose entities’

.aTe- struotured on: the basts ofwhether they are indud-

in the case. of speclal purpose entltles the' rltena of

'ed in“the fmanctal statements or not, Other sharehold-
°SIC 12 are sat:sfled : :
t ’

V.:lngs are also llsted

o,

=
P

P

o ‘.
T
)
5
JE
&
b
.
[
e
£
il
i

defined on rhe basrs of materlellty crlterxa Al] fully:
“consohdated compames have’ prepared thelr flnanctal

" .Consolldatlon prlnoples and imparrment test for goodwill

For the ‘purposss of!. caprtal consohdatlon, the costs of
purchasing-an-affiliated-company. are nstted with the .

-Group’s; -stake: in, the rcompletely. recalculated: share-

. ,statements fo: the penod ended

‘holdars’ eqmty at’'the time of the- adquisition. This
’ fshareholders equlty is éalculated. as the difference be-
"'tween the assets. and ‘Habilities of the acquired compa-

- oy usmg thelr falr walies. The difference between a
" higher.cost.of. purchase and the recalculated sharehold-
:;ex T equity -is stated as. goodwrll in the balance sheet

_'under mtanglble assets After it has been stated for the

ATy a0 0

. assomated compames. “ands no companles are consoll
'date on a pDO rata bas1s or accounted for.i usrng the equlty

P

consolldated companles

) Hypo Real Fstate Caprtal

e b b

3 » Hypo Real Estate Capital, Ibena S. l. M - 4
' B ._Hypo Reat Estate Gapltal Etatla S P Mll f !
; , R R A : 4
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Under IFRS 3, it is no longer permissibls for goodwill
to ba dapreciated. Instead, the goodwill is allocated to
the cash genarating units. In line with Group Contrel,
the business segments copstitute the cash generating
units in the Hypo Real Estate Group. As of 31 Decem-
ber 2005, there was only goodwill of € 2 million in the
Hypo Real Estate Group,.namaly-at the-lavel of the
business segment Hypo Real Estate International. Atthe
segment level, goodwill is subject at least annually to
an impairment review. An impairment is recognised if
the carrying amount of the cash generating unit ax-
ceeds the nat realisable amount, defined as the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell. The
value in use is used for the impairment test of goodwill
at Hypo Real] Estate International. Because this is. con-
siderably higher than the ‘carrying amount, no impair-
ment has besn recognised. The cash flows of the pext
three years Lave been planned for establishing the val-
ue in use. No growth factor has been assumed for the
perpetual yiold.
7

Business p_eiations within the group of consolidated
companigs-are netted with respact to sach other. Inter-

im profits. etmbutab]e to mter-company transactlons!

are e]lmmatad

e o 41 e 8T g o g ety

;
' 6 Fm:rmal {nstrumel"ats ) e
According to IAS 32, a financial instrument is any con-
tract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
antity. - Accordmg to IAS 39, all financial instriments
have to be classified acoordmg to this standa:d, to be
recognised in the balance sheet and to be measured ac-

cording to 1ts classification:

Held-for-tradlng A financial asset or a financial liability
is classified as held-for-trading if it is: )
a primarily acquired or incurred principallyfor the pur-
pose of sulting or repurchasing it in the neas term;
m part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
thatars menaged togather and for which thers is evi-
.dence of;a tocent actual pattern of short- term pl‘Oflt
’ taklng,
or
a a derivaiive [except for a derivative that is a desig-
nated and effective hedgmg instrumant).

He]d-for-trading financial instruments are measured at
fair value. Changes in fair value are racognised in profit
or loss, Held-for-trading financial instruments are stat-
8d under trading assets and trading liabilitias, Interast
and dividend income as well as the refinancing costs
for the trading instruments are shown in net trading ir-
come.; | : B ‘
)

k

Designated at Fair Value through. Profit or Loss (dFVTPL)
If certain conditions are satisfied, financial asssts or
financial liabilities can be classified at the fair value of
financial .assets or. financial liabilities to be wvalued

-through profit 'or loss when they are initially stated, A

designation can be made if the use of the valuation cat-
egory means that a recognition and valuation inconsist-
ency is either avoided or considerably reduced, man-
agement and performance measurement of a portfolio
of financial instruments are based on the fair value or
if the instrument contains a certain embedded deriva-
tive. The Hypo Real Estate Group classifies financial

-assats under the dFVTPL category only for the first two

cases. As of 31 December 2005, only fixed-income se-
curities are allocated to the category dFVTPL Finan-

cial Habilities'and receivables are not allocated to this

category. The fixed-ingoms securities are managed on a
portfolio basis. Open risk positions of the portfolio are
closed by hedging derivatives. Because changes in the
value of derivatives under IAS 39 in principle have to
be recognised in profit or loss, the designation of fixed
income securities. under the category dFVTPL will
avoid inconsistency in terms of valuation. As a result
of the designation of fixed income sscurities, the oppo-
site movements in the income statement cancel each
other out to a large extent. The accounting treatment is
accordingly consistent with risk. management ard the
investment strategy.

dFVTPL financial instruments are measured at fair value.

Changes in fair value are racognised in profit or loss.
Because financial liabilities are not designated in the

~category, tha Hypo Real Estate Group doss not have

any effect rasulhng from the instruments being valued
with the own current credit risk. The fixed income
securities under the category dFVTPL are stated under
the item of financial investments. Interest income from
the sscurities is shown under net interest income. The

changes in value to be recognised in profit or loss are

stated under net income from investments, in the same
way as the changas in value of the coerresponding de-
rivatives. : .

Held-to-Maturity (HtM) mvestments are non-derivative
financial- asssts with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed matunty that an entity has the positive in-
tention and ability to hold to maturity.

HtM financial investments are measured at amortised
cost.and.recognised in the positions investments, place-
ments with, loans and advances to, other banks and
loans and advancas to customers. The interest income
from HiM financial instruments is shown under net in-

terest income. Changes in the value of HtM financial -

instruments to be recognised in profit or loss as a te-
sult of itnpairmeht or write-ups are shown under net
income from investments, if these instruments are se-
curities.
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Loans and receivables Loans and recewables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable °
payments that are not quoted in an active markst,

Loans and :Eaceivables ata recognised in the positionsf&v
placements :with, loans and advances to, other banks:
and loans and advances te customers and are measured

at amortised cost. Interest incoms from receivables and

markst price related effects attributable to taking back

or salling receivables is shown under net interest in-

come. Redugtions in valus due to credit standing fac--

tors are shown under provisions for losses on loans

and adx_ranceg;

Av:]lable—for—SaIe (AfS} Available-for-sale financial assets

are those no!n -derivative financial assets that are desig-

nated as available for sale-and which: are not classified-

as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments

ot finandial assets which are reoogmsed al fair value in
proflt or ioss :

£

AfS fmanmal assets are measured at falr valua Changes.
in fair valus-are recognised in a saparate itsm of aquity
{AIS reserve) not affecting income until the asset is

sold, withdiawn or otherwise disposed of, or if an im- .
pairment is established for the financial asset in ac- -

cordance with JAS 39.58 et seq. so that the cumulative.
profit ¢ or loss prawously recorded under eqmty is now
taken to the income statement. If the. fair valus of an
AfS debt instrument increased objectively in a subse-
quent repocting period, the impairment has to be re-

versed:to the income statement. On the other hand, im- |

pairments f:r an: AfS equity instrument which have -
been récogn’ised in the income statemehnt are not per-
mltted to be reversed and taken to the income state-
ment.

In prmctple part:czpatmg interests are measured at falr

valus if conlrol, joint management ot a significant influ- -

ance is exercised but the companies are not fully con-
solidated, consolidated on a pro-rata basis or accounted
for using the equity methoed because of materiality con-
siderations. However, this only applies to those partici-
pating: 1nte:ests for which stock exchange pricés: or
markat prices are available. In ganeral, the fair valus
for listad participating interests can be reliably dster-

mined, Unlisted participating interests for which Fair
_ valuss. canniot be determined are measured at ameor-

tised cost The carrying amount of these participating .
interssts is not material. For all other financial instru-
ments, the i§1r value can be established rehably.

AIS financial asses are mostly recognised under invest-

ments ‘Interest incoms from ‘AfS assets'is.stated under .

‘net mterest incoma. Profit gansrated by the disposal’ of
AfS fmanclal instruments as well as changes in value
as a result of impairment or write-ups to he recognised
in profit or loss are shown under net income from in-
vestments, i;f the instruments are securities.

|
X

j

In principle;“the purchase or sale of financial instru-
ments is ecognisad at the.trade date. Premiums and
discounts are part of the amortised costs and appear in
the net interest income for the acsounting period in
question. In accordance with the primary disposal con-

“cept of IAS 39, a financial -asset has to be eliminated

when all opportunities and risks have mainly besn
transferrad. If the main opportunities and risks associat-
ed with ownetship of the transferred asset are not trans-
ferred or retained, and if the power of disposal continues
to be exercised-over the transferrad asset, the company
has to capitalise:ths asset to the extent of the so-called
continuing exposure. There are no transactions which re-
sultin partial elimination due to a continuing exposure,

According to JAS 39.63, impairments in value must be
taken into-cénsideration fot all firancial assets and are
valued at amortised cost. Whgra subsequent measurs-
ment of financial assets is based on fair value, an im-

" pairment is implied in the fair valus.

Hedging relations Hedging rélations between financial
instruments are classifisd as a fair value hedge, a cash
flow hedge or hedging of a net investment in a foraign
operation in az_:cordance with TAS 39,

Far-value hedge Under IAS 39, with a fair-value hedge,

" 'a stated asset or'a stated liability or an off-baiance

shest fixed obligation or a precisely desigrated part of
such an asset, such a liability or such an obligation is
hedged against the risk of a-changs in fair value which
is attributable to a specific rick and which might have
an effect on ‘profit or loss for the period.

If the hedge of the fair value in the course of the report-
ing period satisfies the criteria of IAS 39.88, the hadge
is stated in the balance shest as follows:

w the profit or loss arising when the hedging instru-
ment is revalued with its fair value [for a derivative
hedging instrument) or the currency component of
its book vatue catculated in accordance with IAS 21
(for non-derivative hedging instruments) is recognised
in profit or loss for the period; and

 the book value‘of an underlying transaction is ad-
justed by the prefit or loss arising from the underly-
ing transaction and attributable to the hedged risks,
and is recognised in profit or loss for the period. This
is applicable if the underlying transaction is othat-
wiss stated. using the costs of purchase. The profit
or loss attributable to thehedged risk is rscognised
in profit or loss for the period if the underlying trans-
action is an available-for-sale (Af8) firancial assst.

Finandal Statements
Notes 5to 6
Aegounting and Valuation
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(M - . o
The Hyl;o Re{al Estate Group uses fair-value hedgé ac-
counting for presenting micro-hedge reletions. Fajr-val-
ue hedge accounting is not used for a portfolio of intar-
est risks. Insfficiencies within the range permitted
under IAS 38 are shown in nst interest income if the
hedged instrument is not reeeivables or liabilities, and

they are’shown ynder nst income from investments if

the hedged instriments are.securities.,

Cash flow hedge According to IAS 39, a cash flow hedge
hedges ‘the risk inherent with fluctuating payment
streams. ‘which is attributable to a certain risk associat-
ed w:th the stated asset or the stated llablllty [for in-
stance soms or all futurs intarest paymaents of a varia-
ble-interest debt) or the risk associated with a future
transaction which is expected to oocur with a high de-

" gree of i probabxhty or whiéh might have an effect 6

profit or loss for the pariod.

Cash flow hedga accounting :recognises derwatwas
which are used for hedging the intsrest rate risk as partt
of assetfllablhty management. For instance, future vari-
able mt'érast ‘payments for variable-interest receivables
and liabilities are swappéd for fixed paymants primarily
by means of interest rate swaps.

: Under 6ash fiow hedgs accounting, hedging instrumsnts

are stated with their fair value. The valuation result has

to be bzokan down into an effective and an meffectwe
g ‘

The efffcien‘ part of the hedging instrument is recog-
nised ih a suparate ttem of equity without any impact

on earmngs ‘(cash flow hedge reserve). The inefficisnt.
part of.the hedging instrument is recognised in profit -

orloss»

{

A hadging r_alatioﬁ is deemed to be effective if, at the

baginning and throughout the entirs duration of the
transactions, changes in the payment streams of the
underlying transactions‘are balanced out almost com-
pletely by changes in the payment streams of the hedg-
ing transactions. For the purpose of establishing wheth-
or a specific part 6f the hedging instrument is-affactivs,
the Euture variable interest payments from the receiva-
bles and liabilities o bea hedged are compared on svery
reference date for the financial statements with'the var:
iable intersst payments from the interast derivatives in
detailed maturity bands.

In those pellf‘iods in which the payment streams of the
hedged undarlying transactions have an impact on prof-
it or logs foz: the pariod, the cash flow hedge raserve is
written bac] té the:income: statament

?

Fot the putposs of caleulating returh on equity, AfS re-

serve and cash flow hedga reserve are not taken mtq

conslderatmn

Hedging a net investment in a foreign operation For the
Hypo Real Estate Group, subsidiaries or branches whose
operations are based in another country or are conduct-
ed in another curzency, are deemed to be foreign opera-
tions. In accordance with IAS 21, all currency diffarenc-
es resulting from the conversion of financial statemants
with a differsfit functional currency into the reporting
currency as well as currency differences resulting from
the conversion of monetary {tems which are part of a net
investmentin a foreign operation have to be recognised
in the consolidated financial statements as sharshold-
ers’ equity until the net investment is sold ot otherwise
discontinued. Hedging instruments are designated for
hedging & net investment in a foreign operation. The
change in the fair value of the hedging instrument has
to be recognised without any impact on profit or loss
to the éxtent of the effective hadge, and thus compen-
sates for the volatility of shareholders’ equity resulting
from the conversion of a net position. The ineffactive
part is-_st}own in profit or loss,

D_}ﬁsets held er"tfgélng burposes :

Assets held for trading purposes comprise receivables
and held-for-trading securities as well as positive mar-
ket values of trading derivatives and derivatives for
hedging foreign exchange risks attributable to financial
instruments which are not dFVTPL or AfS securities.

In addition, borrowars” note loans and registered bonds
as well as public sector bonds, to the extent that they
are used for tradmg purposss, are stated undsr other
trading asssts.

Individual trading assets are stated with their fair value.
In the case of derivative financial transactions which are
not listed on a stock exchange, internal price models
based on cash value considerations and option price
models are itsed as the basis of calculating the balance
sheet value. Valuation and realised profits and losses
attributable to trading assets are stated under result of
trading ir the incoms statement.

ey e - .. -
] 8 :Placements, loans and advances

Placements with, and ‘loans and advances to, other
banks and loans and advances to customers are recog-
nised under IAS 38 with. their amortised cost of pur-
chaseif they are not dFVTPL receivables, AfS receiva-
bles or an underlying transaction of a fair-value hedge.
The Hypo Real Estate Group has not designated any re-
caivables under tha category dFVTPL.

v
i
1

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

Page 122 of 245




jon. tlle hasrs of expectatrons it regard to fu-
ture loan delaults the structurs and guality: of’ the loan
portfollo as ;Nell as macro: economlc parameters

:

Forlal recognlsable counte'party rrsks in. lendmg busr-
ness,
the: extent of the expected dufaults are set,aside andiare
wmtten hack when ‘the. default risk is no longer applr-
" cable, 8t arefutilised if the recervable has been classlfled

as rrrecover:ble and ellmlnated

Under IAS 39 64, loans fer Wthh there is.no obJectlve
mdrcatron of the need: for an allowanas; are gtouped*
_together to form risk-inhsrent portiolics. Portfolio- based
allowances .1re set asrde for. these portfclms thase al-
lowandces ars based on‘cirient evénts and 1nformatmn
_ wrth regard to, srgmflcant changes, with_ detnmantal

consequences which have ocourred. ip. the technology, ‘

market;'economic;ot- legal env1ronment as well st hls-
tonca] default rates -

HtM fmancrgal assets are stated at amortlsed cost of pur-
chase '=Dzscounts; and prerhiums’ are recognlsed dn a’
pro-rata ‘basis, Writg-downs arg taken to. the ingome
statement1 the value ofsuch assats:is affacted as: are-
sult’ oflcredlt standmg factors If the reasons for such

Under“IASJJUmland and burldmgs of parts of bu11d~

ings - or both -which ars held as: fmancral lnvestments
for generatmg reftal’ income or for generetmg capltal .

gains, are stated with their fair value The reports-pre-.
pared fér eslablxshrng values are based on'présent value'.

methods. The rental income: genarated. by these finan- i

cral mvestments 1s stated in net mterest mcome {m the

drvrc ual: allowances or’ provrsrons equwalent to

‘o the mcome state A

Ellntehgible a‘sj_get's.ul W

mtangrble assets Goodwrll no longet deprectated In
“&cdoidance wlth IAS 36, 1mpa1rment tests are carried

; out every year and’ also in‘the avent of any indications

of the existence 6f afl; 1mpa1rment Impairments are
recogmsed where necessary Software is stated at

stralght 11ne basis.i over: an expected service life of Ito
"5 years. | L L

Property plant and equrpment is stated at -cost of pur-

-.chase or-cost of, procluctron lgss (in the'case of assats sub-

jact to wedr-and tearJ scheduled straight-line deprecia-
_ tion.in llne wzth the expected servics llfe of the assets.

i

The portfolio” does not comprlse any land and building

used for operatmg purposes’ ot buildings under con-

-.struction: In. “the ‘case of fixtures and fittings in rented
bur]dmgs the contract: durat}on taking.account of exten-
.sion optrons is'used.as the relevant basrs if the duration
- is shorter than the norrﬁnal:servrce life.

! Fixture in rental build:ngs 10-25
i IT equipment {broad sense) 3-8

‘amortised cost of purchase and is written. down ina

§ - N "
i Other piant and operating e quipment 3-25

e

I the itreltle }prroperty, plant and -equipment has addi-
iti'ogally been Himinisheﬂ,Pnoc-s'cheduled depreciation
. is taken to the income statement. If the reasons for the
rnon :scheduled deprecratlon are no longer applicable,
‘an amount ig wrltten ‘back to-the income statement, not
: exceedlng the extent of the amortIsecl cost of purchase
" for productlon . ":

s

Coét of"‘pri'rc'h‘as"e ‘o cost of production which are sub-

sequently mcurred are caprtallsed if an‘additional eco-
nomic benéfit aceruas to the company. Measures which
arg desrgned to mamtam the condition of the property,
plant and equlpment are recogmsed intheincome state-
~ment of the financial year m whlch they arose.. )

Liabilitigs ‘et‘he‘r_ than underlying, transactions of an ef-
~ fective-. fair-value ‘hédge which ‘are. not classified as

dFVIPL are stated at amortised gost. price. Discounts

“and premiums.afe recogmsed ona pro- -rata hasis. Inter-
_est-fres lighilities are stated wrth their cash value. The
Hypo Real Estate:Group has not designated any liabili-
tiesTunder the catégory dFVTPL.

Finandat Statements
P Nots 6to13 .3
Accounting andValuation §
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14 Llabmtles held for trading purposes "
Reflnancmg pos;tzons of the trading portfoho for in-
stance repo ljabilities, are stated under liabilities held
for trading putposes. In addition, liabilities ‘held for

trading purposes elso include negative market values

of trading derivatives and derivatives used for hedging

foreign curréncy risks arising from financial instru-

mants whichiare not dFVTPL or AES instruments.
i . A

Liabilities held for- trading purposes are recognised

‘with their fa%r values.

' i

I_S Prwlslon'. . ) ) ' ) L
Under IAS 3!?.36 st seq:, the best possible estimate is
used for establishing the provisicns for uncertain lia-
bilities and .contingent losses attributable to pending
transactions;}Long-tarm provisions are discourted.

Provisions for pensmns and similar oblxgatlons -are cal-
culated on t:'.e basis of actuarial reports in accordance
with IAS 19 They are calculated using the “projected
unit credit” 'method, and this method takes account of
the cash value of the éafned pension entitlements as

well a5 the actuarial profits and losses which have not’

yet been redeemed. These are attributable to various

factors, including irregularities in the risk curve (for

instance a higher or lower nuinber of invalidity or
mortality cases than expected on the basis of the calcu-

lation princgplas used) or changes in the calculation.

parametsrs.

The actuariz! profits and losses are dealt with using the

so-called coztidor method: An entry only has to be tak-

en to the incoms statemsnt in.subsequent years if the
total profltsror losses which have accumulated as of the
reference date for the financial statements exceed 10%

of the maxiinum figure ‘caleulated as the cash valus of °
the earned pension sntitiemsnts and the assets of any

external beneflt facility.
H

The interest rats used for calculation purposes is based

on the long‘term interest rate applicable for first-class -

fixed-ihcome industry bonds on the reference date for
the financial statements.
i

The Hypo Real Estate Group obtained insutance against

the main tisks arising from defined-bensfit psnsien -

commitments as of 1 January 2005 by taking out an
insurance policy classified as a “qualified insurance
policy” uncer 1AS 19, This qualified insurance policy
constitutes plan assets under IAS 19. The pension pro-
visions hava to be netted with the plan assets. In the
avent of suiplus cover, the amount stated under other
assets s aqulvalent to tha negative balanca of the fol-
lowmg

.

5
E.

£
i

{

i:

.

‘ 17 Cu rrency transiati_gn .

= the present valus of the defined bensfit obligation as

. of the balancé shest date; .

m plus any actuarial profits (less any actuarial losses)
which have not yet been recognised in the income
statement;

‘'m less any servige time which has to be recognised but

which bas not yet besn taken into considezation;

m less the fair value of the plan asssts on the halance
sheet date which are to be used directly for settling
the obllgahons

- In accordancs with IAS 19, the cost of defined-banefit

pension commitments included undar general admin-

' "istrative!: expenses in the ‘positi'o.n “Costs for retirement
“pensions and benefits” has been reduced by the ex-
- pected incoms from the plan assets,

16 Other liabilities

Accruad li_abilitias_'in acoordar_loe with IAS 37 are one
of the items'stated under other liahilities. This includes
.. future expenditure, which is uncertain in terms of ac-

tual extent or timing, but which is less uncertain than

“is the cass with provisions. Thess ate liabilities for

products or services which have been received or sup-
plied and which have not yet been paid for, or inveiced

by the supplier o1 formally agreed. This alse includes’

short-term liabilities due to employees, for instance
flexi-time -credits and vacation entitlements. The ac-
cruad liabilities have-been stated in the amount likely
to be utilised.

53 the-ohligati!o‘ns listed at this point cannot be quanti-
fied mote pracisely on the reference date for the finan-
cial statements and if the critezia specified in IAS 37
for setting-aside of provisions are satisfied, thess Ltams

.have to be stated under provisions.

Currency translation is carried out in accordance with
the regulations of IAS.21. On the reference date for the

1ency are tiansiated into Euro using the rateapplicable
on the reference date. Non-monetary items which were
stated in a foreign currency using historical cost of pur-
chase are stated using the exchange rate applicable at

‘the point at which they were purchased.

Income and expanditure attributable to currency trans-

lation at-the individual companies in the Group are
taken to the income statement. Because open currency
positions are generally closed immediately, there is no
major effect attributable to currency translation.

b ma e el

.. financial statements, monetary items in a foreign cur- .

b e e e e e

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

i
Page 124 of 245



S T TR T

In these qonso!lidated fnancial statements; balancs shest
iterns of the subsidiaries, if they do not prepare finan-
cial statements in Euro, are translated using market
rates applicable on the reference date for the financial

statements. For translating the expenses and incoms of

these subsidiaries, the exchange ratas applicable on the

dates of the transaction are used.
1
D AU NSO
18 {Taxes on income
% ‘: . - .
Taxss on income are accounted for and valued in ac
cordance wita IAS 12. Apart from the exceptiens de-
fined in the standard, deferred taxes are calculatéd for
all temporary differences for the values under IFRS
and the tax valuss as well as for the differences result-
ing from uniform group valuation within the Group
and differences from the consolidation .(balance-shest
method). Defsrred tax assets arising from unused losses
carried-forward .are caleulated if necessary accordmg
to JAS 12.34 ot seqg.

The deferred taxes are calculated using the national tax
rates which Ine expected at the time when the differ-
ances ate seftled, as the concept of deferred taxes is
based on the'_presentation of future tax assets or tax lia-
bilities (liability method). Changes in tax rates which
had been adopted as of the repo:tmg date are taken
into consideration, :

B

19 fjl?u tﬂre-rte‘iiaté‘&';slsdurﬁptl}i}uls and estimati onunwcerta:mnty

When the firiancial statements are bsing prapared, the
Hypo Real Estate Group makes future-related assump-
tions as well as estimations which may result in a con-
siderable risk of a major change to the stated assets and
liabilities beoommg necessary during the next financial
year. -

'
1

Standards which are not the subject of early adoption New
standards which are issued or.existing standards which
have been revised and which are not the subject of satly
adoption may result in.changes in the accounting treat-
ment and valuation as well as the statement of assets
and lisbilities when they are first applied. The stand-
ards which are not the subject of early adoption are de-
scribed in detail in note 2. :

Allowances for losses on loans and advances The loan
portfolio of the Hypo Real Estate Group is reviewed
gvery year or mote frequently in order to identify any

allowances for losses on loans and advances: In order

to check whether an allowance has been taken to the
incomé statement, it is necessary to .assess whether
thers are any indications that the estimated future pay-
ment streams of a loan portfclio had diminished. In or-
der to maka such an’assessment, it is necassary to maks
estimates which are based on historical default rates
and mc]udmg information relating to.significant chang- -

i

- . ' Finandal Statements
T Notes 14 to 19
- Accounting and \Iallu ation

es with detrimental-consequences which have occurred
in the technology, market or legal environment and
alse current events. The methods and assumptions
concerning the assessment of the extent and timing of
the payment streams are ragularly checked in order to
reduce ‘the differences bétween estimated and actual
defaults.

"Fair vatues of criginal and derivative financialinstruments

The fair value of financial instruments which are not
listed on active markets is calculated using valuation
models. In those cases in which valuation models are
used, a check is performed regulatly to assess whether
the valuation models provide a comparable standard
for current market prices. For practical considerations,

the valuation models can only take account of quantifi-

able factors which also require estimates. Changes in
assumptions relating to thesa factors might have an im-
pact on the fair values of the financial instruments.

HtM investments If financial instruments are classified
as HtM investments, it is necessary to assess the inten-
tion and ability to keep théss investments until maturi-
ty. If these investments are not held until maturity
[with the exception of special reasons), the entire HtM
investments have to be reclassified as “Awvailable-for-
Sale” (AfS). The investments accordingly have to be
stated with their fair value and not at amortised costs
of purchase.

Embedc_{ed derivatives According to TAS 39.11, an em-
bedded derivative has to be separated from the under-
lying contract and has to be valued separately if, in ad-

.dition to other criteria, the economic features and risks

of the embedded derivative are not closely related to

the economic features and risks of the underlying |

agreement. The economic risks are assessed on the ba-
si¢ of measuring msthods. On the basis of the further
devalopment of risk measurement methods and the as-
sumptions which have to be mads, it is not possible to
preclude the possibility that an assessment in subse-

.quent years will come to a conclusion which is diffarent

to that of the cucrent assessment.

Hedge accounting Relations between underlyings and

‘hedging instruments can be presentsd in hedge ac-

counting. A relation only qualifies for hedge account-
ing when certain conditions specified under TAS 39.88
are satisfied. Ons of these conditions is that the hedge
has to be very efficient with regard to achiaving com-
pensation for the risks resulting from changes in the

fair value or the cash flow in mlation to the hedged -

risk, in line with the originally deéumented risk man-
agement strategy for this specific hedge. In the case of
cash flow hedges, a future tiansaction undetlying the

hedge must have a high probability of occurrence and '

must be exposed to risks in the form of fluctuations in
the form of cash flows which in tha final analysis
might be reflected in net incoms/loss for the period. If

the hedge no longer satisfies the criteria, hedge account- -

+

93
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. ing has to be dlscorrtlnuad A future: Every- eu:i]ustrnent‘i
to ‘the carrymg amourit of 4 hadged Emancra] instrus

ment raoogmsed under cash flow hedge acoountmg has
to be raleased and reoogmsed in profit or loss

n
54

The estabhskment of the effectivenass of the risk-hedge

and thal assessmant of the probability of: occurrance of-
future cash flows depend on'risk measuzing’ ‘methods,

the paramsters which are used and assumptions relat-
ing to the probability of occurrence. These methods
and parameters are continuously - -developed, in line
with the IISK managament objectives and strategies,

which means “that.a review:in subsaquentyears may re- -

sultiin an assessment Wh]Ch diffars from the omgmal

assassment ;

i,

E‘a

. Taxes on mcome The Hypo Real Estate Group 1is sub]ect

to a wide rarge of national tax regulations: w1th regard
to the calculétion of taxes on mcome In order to evalu-
ate the dctual-tax burden, it is’ nacessary to make ssti-
mates which’are calculated-with the knowledge exist-
ing on the redorting date and glosely related to the tax
return prepared in the following financial year. In some
countries, the current tax charges attributable. to the

sourrent! fmancml year can only ba flnalrsed after the

correspondmg tax audit has been oompleted “The vari-
ances with- Iegard to the estimated tax burden may

have a pos:twe or negative mfluence on the tax burden

in future Emanclal years.
K

T

oy, e

{20 Notes'to s -gment reportlhé by buslness segment
(primarys=gmenting) - Ce
T

St - [ SV R

i

, The Hypo Real Estate Group (HREG) is divided into- three :
: busmess sagmants which ars referrad to as‘prlmary

segments in 2005

Hypo Reat Est;lte International (HREI) Thls segment pools -

the mtarnatlonal ‘business in large-volume structured
real astare Emancmg It mcludes the earnings’ oontnbu

' tions of the fc]lowmg fuliy consdolidated compames

a Hypo: Caprtal Markets Inc., New York

- a Hypo. Pfandbrief Bank Inte:natxona! S.A,

Luxsmbourg -
a Hypo Publrc Finance USA Inc New York -
o Hypo]l Real _.state Bank Internatlonal Dublin’ ’

" Hypo Rea] _.state Capltal Corp New York [sub-group] o

a Isar Easl 60th Straat LLG; New York
a Isar Gotham West 38th Street LLC, New York
o Isar RP Member LLC, New York

n Isar Twe Columbus LLC, New Yotk ;i

o

{

Lleey 45: 1LLGC, New York T *‘ o

‘a
i

i

et PR

Wrth regard to.the: ‘capltahsatlon of losses carried for-

ward and othe! taxc’ credits, the extent as well as the
availability of such’ fax benefits are subject to estimates.
Major losses carried forward are subject to national Gar-
man tax law, and their availability: also depends on the
restriCtions sat out in section 8 (4) KStG. The deferred

tax agsets on- losses carr}ed forward are capitalised for

‘= planning period: of thres years, as:further plans are
deemed not to be adequate]y probable in accordance
with TAS 12.34.

Speual purpose entities Spacaa] purpose entities are es-
tablished, by the Hypo Real Estate Group for various
purposes such as secutitising financial instruments.
The decision as to -whsther a spema] purpose entity
has to be consolidated or not is subject to the assump-
tion relating to control of the company in accordance
‘with IAS 27, This standard is complemented by the

. stipulations of SIC 12. According to SIC 12.10, it is also

necessary to assess; whether the company substantially
has-the right to' derive the majority of benefit from the
specnal puipose enhty or whether under certain cir-
cumstances the compahy is exposed to risks which ars
-assogiated with the-activity of the special-purpose en-
ity As of the accounts reference date the relevant com-
panies wera considered with regard to IAS8 27 in con-
junction with SIC 12+ A a result of the risk measuring
methods having been further developed, also in connec-
tion-with Baselll, and alsoc as a result of the assumptions
which have to b'a made, it is possible that a raview in
subsequent years mlght result in' an -estimation which
differs from the curfent frgure

o Hypo Real Estate Capital Japan Corp., Tokyo

& Hypo Real Estate  Capital Ltd., London (sub-group)
o Hypo Property. Investment (1892) Ltd., London
& Hypo Property Investment Ltd:, Londen

" & The Greater Manchester Property Enterprise
.- Fund Ltd., London '
n Hypo Property Participation Ltd., London
a_Hypo Property Sérvices Ltd., London
. m Hypo Real Estate InvestmantBankmg Ltd., London

_ pZamara Invastmants Lid,, Gibraltar

o Hypo Real Estate ;lransactions 8. A; S Paris

m- Pellas Capital’ Corporatlon Delaware

- Wirtternbergischs Hypothekenbank AG, Stuttgart, con-

stitutes the business segment WirttHyp with tha sub-
sidjary astablished 13 pctober 2005, namaly Hypo Real
Estite Capltal Hong Kong Corpordtion Limited, Heng
Kong. It specialises.in commercial teal estate financing
*that is eligible as cover peol in Germany and abroad;
refirancing mainly“through the issuance of covered
bd-ﬁgis (*Pfandbriefe”),
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exclusively includes the sarnings contributions of'Hypo :
Real Estate Bank AG, Munich. This business segment & ]
comprises ths German real estats financing business: It !
also includes the contributions to earnings provided-by

the following; special-purpose entities
DUKE 2002 Limited, Jersey

GECO 2002 Limited, Jersey
Houss of Europa I ple, Dublin
Houss of Lurope II ple, Dublin
House of furope III ple, Dubim
Kiel 1 Limited, Jetsay

Kiel II Limited, Jersey .
Kiel IIf Limited, Jersey : . : !
Kiel IV Limited, Jersey ' ‘ ‘
Kiel V Linlited, Jersey
Kiel VI Limited, Jersey
Kiel VII Limited, Jersey ‘ B
Kiel VIII Limited, Jersey

Kiel IX Limited, Jersey

Octagon Limited, Cayman Islands

[_—*_"m__ﬁﬁ{m—mm““ﬁﬁ—ﬁ__ﬁi -
i i o P ‘ B ) | o
| Sk . e e . Finandal Statements ;95
! T o . P : Notes 19to 21 |

i - ’ : ’ Accounting and Valuation |
; ' Segment repor ting

i
H i
f The business.segment Hypo Real:Estate Germany (HREGe)
{

R

T s s B - ' . '
o - - - ¢ " I

In addition "to .consolidation processes, the column L .
“Other/consolidation” includes the earnings contributions o .
of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG, Munich. _ : :

221 Incom~es|a emént, broi«gn’d :

.uM..,_,'., - _;z oo, oo e . e e 1 o 4 e e 2t mremiot et %+ e e i 1+ e imimenine e m . — .
1n<omefexpenst5 ; )
Otherf i
in Crillion HREE WirttHyp HREGe  consolidation HREG
. Metinterestincome 2005 287 122 283 -7 £85 } .
* . 2004 224 108 354 -3 633 ]
é Provisions for Icsses on loans and advances 2005 11 18 120 - 149 { !
1 2004 33 2 220 - 276
" Net interest income after provisions for bsses 2005 276 104 163 -7 536 [ ) i
! on loans and advances 2004 191 £5 114 -3 07 ) ?
; : " Net commission income 2005 135 -9 -1 Z 125 I ! |
| i 2001 126 % 5 ) 9 | %
: Nettrading income ' 2005 27 - - - 27] { E
X 2004 11 - Z — . &
: Netincome from investments 2005 12 16 30 - a7 | ;lz
: 2004 3 14 EE] -1 47 i £
i General administrative expenses 2005 163 35 a8 n 317 ‘: . E_
: 2004 136 33 i26 20 315 ¢ :
, Batance of other operating iIncome/expenses 2005 2 - 1 2 T |
2004 1 - ) 1 I
5 - Operating profit/loss 2005 289 16 104 -16 443 ‘
;. 2004 106 &0 2 -24 s
" Balance ofomermcomelexper:ses 2005 -1 o T T I T T -35 i .
) 2004 -1 - =21 -1 -23 .
: thereof: 2005 — - — _ji 34 i '
. Restructuring expenses ' 2004 —- - 21 - 21 !
E Net income/loss before taxes 2005 288 76 104 -60 408 | l
_ 2004 105 60 -9 -25 21
" Taxes onincome 9 2005 60 1 24 10 95 l
! ' 2004 47 1 1 4 53
; Netincome/loss 2005 228 5 80 -10 a3 '
- DS L. S - "R RS
n Exludrg the eif-cts frmcapitansedlnssescnrrledforwnrd totalling € 46m|||lon|n Hypo Resl Estate Group o T & . : i
_ N
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P
aged
e

T
!
: : '
A b g o
Sl |
@!(»Ey f;tloﬁ,;f)rélfgn downby bu sir;gss’_sggrb ent ) _ : :
R T L T SO < S T S N ST |
¢ Key ratios’ E '
; n% E HREI WirttHyp HREGe Hrec ' |
j Cost-income ratio (based on operaling revenues) 2005 352 271 304 349 I ’
o ‘ 2004 373 284 35.2 3774
i Return on equity befora taxes 2005 16.4 112 55 96 ' ;
s : _ 2004 B33 92 re M
% Returnon equdyaﬂer taxes ¥ 2005 13.0 119 42 74 l R
: © et g St 52 2o o et 3 i 2004 101 90 L A0, ,
JE:cIudmgtheeﬂ‘e(ts fmcapltallscd bssc;carﬂed forward . - ’ " N . o ’ '!
o : . .
" %2 3 . .. |
123 Balance sheet figures, broken down by T T 1
. Et"i"e.‘ifig.me"“ U N, [
T S T
 hssets b
! : Cthers ; {
f in € million HREI WirttHyp HREGe  consolidation HREG |
. : Total assets 11122005 33,338 38,378 86,400 5,656 152,¢so| t
g 31.122004 23,072 34583 91978 -1505 148,128 . [
! theseof, 31.122005 2,385 8,440 13362 - 4645 19542 ] !
g Placemeants with, and loans and advances to, ather banks 3L12004 1,608 5,584 15,377 918 21,6511 '
| theseof 3112 2005 23 49 122 - 194' :
| Realestate finandng 31122004 26 39 128 — 193, |
Public secto- loans 3N.122005 629 2,760 9210 - 125981
; ) 31.122004 668 3,120 12,306 - ow
" thereok 31.122005 15,328 16,931 442135 -200 76,294
. Loans and advances to customers 31.12 2004 10,293 17,228 49,423 - 77,044 «
L7 thereof, 31122005 14,572 12,960 28509 - 55,0411
Real estate {inandng 31122004 9,638 12,914 30,432 - 52,984
| Public sector Ioans 31122005 747 1582 14546 Z 19,275 ‘ i
: 31122004 621 4,395 18,337 - 23 353, .
—F-'—- = ot bl e = ek ke o e o et i - R e e e F
SRS N i i rme ! s S S
! Liabilities !
! | Others :
» In € million HREI WarttHyp HREGe  consolidation HREG -
! Total liabili e ' 31122005 31,392 37,680 85,543 5,255 149,260
N ) 31122004 21,485 34009 91,279 -1517 145,252 !
" thereof 31122008 11,585 2,799 12,523 -4,461 2,445 |
* Deposlts from other banks 31122004 3,535 4148 6,666 ~797 185521 |
} T Amaunts ow 2d to other depasitors 31122005 1170 2357 6544 5 10,080
‘ ' 31122004 281 1933 6,601 g 8,824 j
. Promissory notes and other liabiitles evidenced 31122005 12,519 28551 55,070 807 95,333
; bysecurities 31122004 9,422 14307 66,090 —655 99,173 t
‘" thereof 31122005 - ©774 20,647 Z 26,4211 |
; Mortgage bonds 31122004 - 5,255 4216 — 29,471 1.4
T Bublic sector bonds 71122005 3168 13394 38,362 10 354 ]
( % _____ N 31127004 4917 13923 3729 -153 ss,gso;l,
~ . _— — e s - Wt R —— Wiidad
Contl rlgent Ilalﬂitim and other comrmtmerrts i
Otherf i
! In€ million : HREH WilrttHyp HREGe  consohidation HREG | !
" Contingentliabilities 31122005 7471 30 145 Z 2647 1 |
| X 31122008 5,982 71 76 T1501 4578 !
- Other com mitments 31122005 5 060 745 909 4 7627 ] »,
i EE 31122004 2,525 376 307 — 3,208 ¢ |
Total 31122005 8,441 715 1,054 4 10274 |
) ; : 31122004 8,507 307" 383 -1,501 1,786
BN A BNttt A e LSO —.ouk
1
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ST A S

-
H 1
H '
Finandal-Statements 97
Notes 22025 !
Segment reporting !

H
I

B S —

Volume of lending ;
Ctherf !

in € million HREI VerttHyp HREGe  cansolidation HREG | '

Loans and advanzes to other banks __ 3122005 2341 283% 0,587 o -9 1]_,9_?} 1 i
. _ 31122004 1536 L 3,169 12,668 L 87 114_.30" ; :

Loans and advances to customers 31122005 15,328 16,586 43,835 - 75,748 ’ ' i
: 31122008 10,293 17328 49,473 - 77,044 , ‘ i
Contingent liabilities 31122005 2,472 30 145 - 2,647 | E X
| : 31122004 5982 21 3 ~1501 4578 | i
i Total 31122005 20,141 10,451 53,567 -791 92,%8| |
. . 31122004 17,611 20,518 62,197 -1,414 60,112 , P
"‘“""-‘-"“Q‘;“““‘"’?f"" S s e e e B s R T R B - - - f l

N - 1 : ;.-_
[F{Risk'ﬁroﬁ'i";ion rafes, broken down by business segment :

Risk provbion mtes ;"

l in% ‘ HREI wrttHyp HREGe HREG - }
" Netaddition rate 2005 0.05 0.09 0622 01a i !;
o 2004 0.19 0.11 0569 041 ‘

, Loan loss rate 2005 0.00 0.66 026 0.29 | i : ‘

. ' 2004 0.00 613 275 175 !
- Totalloan loss allowances (In € million) ' 31122005 82 215 397 69&! f :
, 31122004 7 318 an 702, ;
; Provision rate 31122005 0.41 111 074 05| . )
e i T TOM TS 06 T 0s0,
D Exzluding risk :be!l‘:er fom HVB AG i !
[ t 1

# i ] . i

{25 loans put on a non-acerual basis, broken downby : |
 business segment I e s |
loans put on a non-accrual basis ‘ f ]
in Cmillion HREL Wartthyp HREGe MREG' - '
" Leans put en a ron-acerual basis 11122005 - 210 723 933 ’ !
, . 31122004 4 131 629 o4 !

- u«;‘_-r-?w.?.w*mw- e MMW‘»‘«‘A.»«“:A T T ot U RS . N st i !
“Loans put on a non-acerual basis” disclose the volume I L.
ofall loans and advances where the payment of interest ) g . E
has been agraed, but where the corresponding intarest ; -
payments have not besn received. These loans and ad- : | '::
vances contzin unrealised interest iécome of €38 mil- ' £
lion. The “ron-interest-bearing loans” for which the ' PE
company has refrained from charging borrowers interest ; —
ara ini::ijﬁ&ad*herain. ‘ ' ! i

SR
“f 3! : H 1
: X . .
B L . i
- o
| L}
| .
- ! |
! |
|
S _- 3
ok o j
L ’ L N
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e |

i
P

26 Key capitalratios Ty

[based on German Commercial Code (HGBY], -
brokeg down by business segment o

Calculated in accordance with the Basel recommanda- -

tion on equity, the equity funds based on approved an-
nual finagicia]QStatements, the risk-waighted assets and
the market risk positions as of 31 December 2005 ere
as follows:

i

P - PR

- Equity funds ® . .
;
¢ In€ mitlion HREI warttHyp HREGe HREG .
. Core capital 31122005 1881 7719 1836 4372 ]
31122004 1584 710 2,044 4210
. Supplementary c3 pital 31122005 552 463 927 1,923 ’
: : 31122008 776 761 965 193
Equity capital 31122005 2,433 1242 376 63w
' 31122004 2360 1071 3,000 5123
Tier Il capital o 31122005 - LT T T T l
T Taimaaee -~ T T T T
: Totad 31.12.2005 2A33 1,242 2,763 6,295 J i
o i e .. Rn2z004 2360 1071 3009 6123
4 (hnsulidlt;d u:cur;‘lilng‘tu section 10a German Banking Act (KWG): as per approved annual financial staterrents a nd after profit distribution ;
i : ' |
; Risk-weighted assets .
- in€ billlon HREI WurttH yp HREGe HREG |
' On-balance-sheet assets 31122005 166 119 235 509 I '
, 31122004 127 Y] 238 &7 !
Offbalance-sheat assets - 31122005 45 L 0% ___ 05 -“‘“_;ﬁ] i
, 31122004 45 03 04 52 .
. ‘Cmrp_artyr#sks in the trading book 31122005 0.1 T - 01 l
, 31122004 01 = - 01 |
" Total 31122005 1.2 124 240 5631 |
! 31.122004 17.3 101 242 510 |
B R e It :
- Market risk positions !
" in € million HREI WirttH yp HREGe HREG - ;
Currency risks 31122005 42 4 2 43 ] -
. . 31122004 14 2 1y ‘
- Interest rate risks 31122005 Q-E = - H_QEI H
- L 31122004 57 - - _2) g
, Risks from equity securities 31122005 21 - = _*H“..ml” i
31122004 19 - — 19 |
Total 31122005 158 4 1 64
SR O £C L SO ¢S R B CE A
3 :
; - !
; ;
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4 N
o ! %
- & i t :
; 1. : . ‘ Finandat Statements EQQZL
i 5 - , g . 5, Notes 26 to 28 I
¥ E e Segmentraporting 3 °
. t 3
. i i . - * 1
The resulting ratios as of 31 December 2005, based on . B :
‘approved finz?ricial statemants, ware thus as follows: . - i :
, Capital ratios !
L% . HRE! wrttHyp HREGe HREG | b )
t Core capital ratio 3112.2005 89 63 7.7 781 ¢ b
' 31122004 92 7.1 3.4 g3 ! '
. Equity capital ratio 31.12.2005 115 100 118 112 l L.
: 31122004 136 06 124 120 ? .
* Equity funds ratio 31122005 105 100 115 103 ]
e e e 3w e we -  ma "~ ui g |
YAsper app?med n?nulfﬂmn:ill statements and after pt'ofit distrlbution :
The cap1tal ratros wote calculatad in accordance wtth '
the gutde]mes of the Bank for International Settlements : {
(B18} based in Basel. The BIS ratios were Bstabhshed : g
lndependent]yon avo]untary basis. , N ; ; [ T
i ; ! ;
fr ‘, ] b
Ef_EmployeeL'I:g_roken down by!buslness segment ' . . : ; o
“ . ' . :
o il s o o e et i+ uﬁm‘; o e 1 i B 4t g e e mrs e e g, - i ;P_
E Employees i N t
; E HREN WiirttH yp HREGe Other —_—
| Employees 31122005 452 197 $20 64 1233 .
£ : stz 504 171 592 44 1311 I
e y . - - R - b T e e e e T ! S
‘ i; : : | !
leferent reg)ons are referred to as secondary segments i ; o
The Hypo Real Estate Group as'of 31 December 2005 b
differantiates;between the regions Germany, rest of Eu- : s
‘rope and Am=rlca!Asxa The column headed” Consoll- . b
dation” includes sffects from consolidation and Hypo !
Real Estate I'[oldmg AG as the non-operating parent !;
company of the Group. Allocation of valuses to regions. l o
is basedion the location of the registerad offlces of the 3 { o
Group compamas or their branches. ‘ ‘é
i OPetatmg perfonnan(e ' ; :“'E:",
“Uinemillion Germany  Restof Ewope  Amerca/Ada  Gnsolidation HREG | 1 '1‘ g :
i Operating revenues L 2005 470 297 46 -4 ng! ' L_
: 2004 485 77 76 -3 §3% |
' E Prowisions for losses on loans and advances 2005 138 11 - - 145'
g 2004 243 2 - - 276
! General administiative expenses 2005 138 93 60 21 317
E ‘ 2004 165 87 4 21 3150
+ Operating prof‘t!lcss 2005 194 188 ' 36 =25 442 1
i ) 2004 77 157 34 -24 244 !
3’ Netlncomeilosstefove taxes 2005 194 188 36 -60 408 I 1
A 2004 157 -25 221,

56

n

=%

————— i
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100 | |
.. . |
Ef ’ : ' :
i: A dofmiorn P PO — [ ;
! Cost-income ratio (based on operating revenues) l
1- in % Germany  Restof Europe AmericafAsia HREG ! i
* Costiname ratio ; 2005 294 130 i 349 |
¥
2004 340 314 553 nwit o
N T
| Volume of Iendmg P
! In € million Germany  Rest of Europe America/Asia  Consolidation HREG ’ I
 Yolume of lending 31122005 74520 19676 4539 6367 5136 |
) a . 31122004 83,491 17,636 2,875 -4,890 99,112 .
s e e e ey e ot e e St i e L St L N R
{ e e B oo e e B e e [ES— e R A e e W o e o v an : . ot - . i
. Employees ' ;
] . Germany  Rastof Europe America/Asia  Consolidation HREG !
. | Employees 31122005 737 278 154 64 1233 i
' i 31122004 806 227 134 44 1,311 4
i i ; E AL e '
[ ; i
j . :
Notes to the mcome statement : <
R il , ” T
j o 2 : i
29 Net Interest income . L M"_: The interest incoms from dFVTPL fipancial assets is |
stated as € 165 million (2004: € 54 million). The other |
;-N}:.til;;er;ﬁt_};c:;é-.;"o;endown ) '““; assets generated interest income of €6,902 millien ]
! by categories of income/expenses £ (2004: €8,891 rmlllonJ “The_ interest income from non- |
-:"‘c""""’"' 2008 i {~" financial assets amounted fo ‘€7 million, and relate to .
i'"te’e’t tncome 1014 6845 . rantal income from investment properties. Because o
| Lending and money-market business 5628 5,402 l liabilities have besn designated under the category
‘ F"‘ed4ﬂ'¢°f“e_$'!mf't'35 and . ! i dFVTPL, the entite intsrest expense was atiributable to |
: 30’?’"m‘?“t*”:’°’lbed debt 1,433 1528 - fnancial liabilities which were not recognised at fair
i . Jarticpating Interests > 12 value in proflt of loss
; _Other 8 ¥
. Interest expense: 6,380 62625 - )
N 1 R — 1 e ooy - — - -
Deposits 2,030 L3544 [30. Provisions for iosses on loans and | advances
| ¢ Promissory notes and other liabilities .
: " evidenced by securities 3,531 382 L e e T s e ey
! , - s Provlslons for Iosse.r» on leans i
; Subordinated ¢apitat 130 112 & i and advances ‘
' Current result from swap transacbons . jing rrillon 2008 ol I
i (balance of interest Income and i Additions 215 387 |
| _interest expenses) 6%t 14, Allowznces for losses on loans {
Other - — {1 and advances N 215 374
‘ | Total } ’ _ _ 685 683 b i Loan-oss provisions - 13.
I %i o ‘ N Releases -63 -109"
rl_'t;';:-:_.—_iw T T T Tl Allowances for losses on loans Cod
. margin and advances -63 -108’
in% ] 2005 2004 1. Loandoss provisions - -1
; based on average rlsk assets according H , Recoveries from write-offs of toans :
‘t0BIS 130 131 ;“ i and advances -3 -2
; ) .
! based on average volume of business 0.46 0451 ¢ Total 149 276
S e o —— Th e e e e e e - — s H
e i b
o '
R As of 31 Decsmber 2004, provisions for losses on loans l
- &
i : DERE S ... and-advancss of € 276 million were stated as a net figure
i§ o ‘ " after netting the risk shelter-of. € 130 million provided
5. : o by HVB AG to Hypo-Real Estate Bank AG. No risk shelter
5o 4 N . . . 3
A existed in 2005. .
g . - - . :
R S K X 5 i
13 o S e . e

,N___..H*A
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i . o . . - R Finandal Statemants 101
.. ) - ' Notes 28to 35
Segment Igpotting )

31 'Net c'»(":mrm'lyi 9}1 income

Net commission income

|_31 Gen erajl:ad'hlr_; ist,rati\{ej l:‘xp:é”n ses

1+ General administative expenses
]

" in € mittian 2005 2004

_ tn€eillion 2005 2004 §
- Secwrities and cuitodial services ‘ -2 -9, - Personnel expenses 188 189
Lending operations and E | _Wages and salaries B4 153
- other service operations 127 103§ Social security costs 18 17
Tg‘f'___ . s 0o Pension expenses and related .
employee beneflt costs b 19
:‘ ‘ © 1 Other general administrative expenses 114 - 114,
y - 1 Depreciationfamortisation 15 12

laziﬁ.;at-éradinginc‘bme
I \i

on software and other intangible assets

e o e e s § e o= aycuding goodwiil - s 6
Net trading income . on property, plant and equipment b 3
" In€ million 2005 004t ;Total L o 7 x5
. Equity contracts — 1
{ i R r .
Interest rate and currendy contracts 27 10, No stock option plans involving shares in Hypo Real
Totzl 27 11

e om m s et g R o - - - -—
i
.

The result of equity contracts is attributable to trading
of investment shares. The result of interest rate and
currency contracts comprisss profits from trading in
interest, currency and credit risks. Bonds, credit deriv-

atives and irterest dsrivatives are some of the trading-

instruments used in this respect.

;??Net] ﬁcbrﬁe from 'l mfestmen ts ’

Estate Holding AG or similar forms of remuneration

““were granted to members of the Mansgement Board,
Supervisory Board members or employees in 2005.

The expenses of €7 million for defined-benefit pension
commitments included.in “Pension sxpenses and relat-
ed employes benefit costs” as of 31 December 2005 was
diminished in accordance with IAS 18 by the expected
income from the insurance policy which was taksn out
in 2005 and which was clasmfled as a “qualified insur-
ance policy” ’

[ . ‘ R : " Motes to the income statement

. H LT
Net income from investments i Cost-income ratio Lo
[ o
+ In€ million 2005 2004;. L in% 2005 2004
" Income from investmrents 108 991 Costincome ratio b
. Expenses from irvestments 41 52. ;

Total 67 a7

e eme e = e o —— —— —

Net income i}'om investments discloses income Efom the
sale of HtM and AfS investments and also changes in

the value of such 1nstrumant‘s t.hat are to be recognissd i Balance of other opemting | ‘3
in the income statement. This item also states changes incomelexpenses - v 5
in the value of dFVTPL financial instruments and the in € million 200% we t o
re]ated dernratives l Dther operatinglncome 20 19! : §

’ , Other operating expenses 15 19 s £
The result from HtM investmants amounted to € 25 mil= . ' Balance of other opemting ; (RN

lion, compated with £73 millien last year; the tesult from
AfS investments amountad to €44 million, compared
with €-29 million last year. The result of €5 million
from dFVTPL financial instruments (2004: € 4 million)

was almost fully compensated for by the result of

€ -3 millior: from the corresponding derivatives (2004:
£ 0 million}. The rasult-of hedging relaticns detailed in
hedge accounting amounted to € -4 million, compared
with €-1 million in 2004.

. {based on operating revenures) 349 377,

[?E‘B:!an ce of ot_He( ope;étln_g iﬁcorﬁelexpen ey

intcome/expenses 5 -

Other operating income/expenses do not contain any
individua} emounts of major significance. Rental income
was €1 million, compared with €4 miltion last year.
Income from the release of provisions that are not relat-
ed to lending business amounted to €5 million (2004:
€ 2 million). Expenses from additions to provisions and
accrued liabilities that are not related to lending busi-
ness amounted to € 2 million (2004: £ 1 million).

-
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i Qther tixes _ ' 1

- § Breakdown

"+ | Defarred taxes

fged by vatious fagtors, in-

: ; Operatiné.levenuﬁ

"% in € miflion
£

¢ Netinteréstincome

f Net commission income 125

: E Net trading income 7

.4 Netincome from investments ) b7

§ Balance of other operatlng
i Incomefexpenses 5

?

N % Balance of other incomefexpenses

] thereof;

~ {in€milion 2005 2004 |
" .} Otherincome _ - -
Other expenses 5 - 23

-on income actualiy shown are

[EPUR——

'} Reconciliation
:

SRR o

38 Taxes on in

_ in € million 2005 2000 ;.
. Restructuring expenses - ] YR Netincom efloss before taxes ! 408 221
T tereor _ o ; | Applicable (legal) tax rate (in %) %3 2633
e Additions to restructuring provisions - 15 Expected (computed) tax expense } 108 ) 58

"} Balance of othei income/expenses 35 ! Tax effects : '

o S e TR ; arising form foreign Income -10 -3
As parte oE a mstructurmg process 1ntemat10nai ‘business arising from tax rate differences L. =%
. which’ has pmkusly ‘been, condustsd: :by, Hypo Re' arlsing from losses = -8
Estate Bank*Intematlonal Dublm and also: hy Wurtte arising from tax-free income -3 -3
arising from non-deductible expenses 3 13

arising from valuation adjustmentsand

taxatlon rules whlch have’

"reconcmatxon LRl

¢ E in € mitlion )

: Current taxes

i
g % thereoﬁ
Defarred taxes on capitalised losses
h g
losses carried forward

H
. [Total

the non-application of deferred taxes 2 -

arising from the write-up

of deferred taxes 42 ~72

arising from prior years and other i

aperiodical effacts : -10 28
Accounted taxes on income 419 =50
Group tax mtio {in %) -216 E

T B d “FTETE N

i R o g g e g o

e
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f

“Effects arising from losses”. ThlS item also includes
the effacts of inetling with other losses carried forward
or losses carried back in relatioi to international oper-

ations. §| L

1A
i

Thae item “Effects ansmg from ‘tax free- income” com-
prisss effects from tax-fres income from' parh(:lpatlng
1ntarasts dividends and capltal galns otlosses.

The affects attmbutahle to tax addztlons and deUCthnS
relats prlmanly to non-deductikle expenses ,which do
~ not have to bna taken into account ag deferred taxes as a
tesult of parmanant dlfferenca
, .

:
'

The effect from the write-up of .défermd taxes tesults

primarily from the calculation of deferred tax assets on -

losses carried forward which previously had not been

'ls 39 85%

EATE

For the domestic companias, the deferred taxes are cal-
culated using the uniforni rate of corporation tax in-
cluding solidarity surcharge of 26.38% and the trade
tax rate which depends on' the applicable public-ssctor
-ratg fixed by the mumclpallty Becauss trade tax can be
deducted when calculating corporation tax, the overall
rate for deferred taxes. at Hypo Raal Estate Holding AG

¢
e T

On the reporting date, tl:ieréVAare“un'used losses carried

forward totelling €1,069million. Deférred tax assets
‘have heen stated as € 373 million because the criteria for
recognition in accotdance with IAS 12.34 st seq. wers
satisfied. The losses carried forward can be utilised for
an unlimited period of time.

e . o i . e e

T '“'“_‘—'f' '.";]*"I”.—i“f" T

Ty

* Finandal Statements j103
’ Notes 36 to 39 |
Notes to the income statement

capitalised (éorporation tax portion). In 2005 the ca- EE:rnmgspershare ___._, oy t_ i
pitalisation has resulted in deferred tax income of . '
€ 64 million. A deferred tax asset on capitalised losses ."E;m_,];;w:ham T ] ST T
cartied forward of €1 million had to be written-off due Co
to the c]osmg of e branch ; 2005 w4, |
_Ei Consolidated profit/loss {in € million) 359 270‘( |
The item-"Effects from previous years and other apori» 1 Average number of shares Ba07a175 134,072,175 ,
odical effects include both current taxes for years E_Farni:gspershare(in{) 268 . M,
which have been incurred as-a result of tax audits or a RN o !
:eassassment!of the tax hablllty well as apenodlcal .
affects and deferrad taxes for prlo ars. | ! .
n l ) FE & :
. The Group tak ratio is the- quotlent fthe stated taxes on "'E:,;ims per share oo ! i,
income [cur:-ant and deferred taxes) and net income/ o ;
toss bafgre téxes. It has primarily beer influenced by 2005 Wl -
the capitalisation of losses carried forward and the re- | Consolidated profit/lass d (in €million) 313 7
lated income sffect from the deferred tax asseis. , Average number of shares 134,072,175 134,072,175J i
! - 5 Earnirgs pes share (in €} 2.33 125,
The dafer:ad tax llablhtles or deferrad tax assets ralate  ecludngthe effects fromcapitalised lossescmedfumud ,
to the followmg itams: : . :
. v Because no conversion .or option rights in respect of
nfored o omtesete 7. conditional capital wers outstanding on the reference .
’ ! date for the financial statements, no calculation was ’ ‘é
in € million 203 29} made showingdiluted earnings per share. : : g
. Loans and advanaes to other i s | » &
! banksfcustomers ! - _ ‘ ! g
_{induding loan-loss allowancas) 23 18 . . :‘ §
Investments 378 351 . | b
Int:nglble assets/Property, plant ) ' " '
: ' and equipment 1 13 )
| Other assets/liabilities 2,659 2,5851
, Deposlts from other banks/eustorners 532 5717 7 ' |
fl Qthers : 3, - e i
Deferred tax labilities : 3,5%6 3,536 Y |
Loans and advances to other ' ) i : N '
banks/customers . i
{induding loan-loss allowances) ' 438 508 ;
: Investments ‘ - 1 : .
' Provisions 20 20\@ : f
. Other assets/liabilities 4,106 4063 {
; Losses carried forward 150 103 i
' Othars 42 24, !
 Deferred taxasscts 4,806 4,70 !
A
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104

i
{: !
>

ey e h..,w.—“,m
49 : Cashreserve

b
4.

N

2
" Cash reserve

|
i
i
3

§ in € million

!42 iPIacements wlth and Ioans and advances to, o
" ‘other banks« S

SURRENU T S

e e w man e gt

A S S

i
' Pla:emerlts with, and hans and

. 31122005 31122004 ‘ I advances to, other banks, broken down ) ,
..+ Cashinhand and central bank balances 182 275 .. | by typeof business :
Yoo Tell 10 275 t in € million 1422008 31423000 |
T "ii;—‘""“"“‘“ [ ; Loans and advances 13,972 17,490
: | Public sector loans 12,599 16,094 ,
Fl.l‘Assets held fOf tradmg purposes T T ,...; Real estate loans 1 193 ; '
''''' - e Othet loans and advances 1,179 1,203 ¢
L et wlent e+ Irvestments 570 4168 |
E Assots held for irading purposes . } 21‘1‘_3!— 952 2165 |
" in € milion 21.12.2005 31.12.2004 | ' i
' Debt securities and other { oo T .
; fixed-income securities 5,360 . 1,356 } i mﬂiﬁwbl:;;az::db;dn:?;:tg‘ ‘
| Money market securities 240 =1 | InCmillion 3112.2005 312200
i Bondsind notes 5,120 1567 | Repayable on demand 2,249 1,383 ' ;
: Issued by public-sector borrowers 1,247 323 ; ; With agreed maturities 17,293 20268 |
, __ Issued by other borrowers 3873 1,033 i up to 3 months 5,171 4318
| thereof: N from 3 months to 1year 1,358 2,232
" Marketable seaurities 5,181 587 from 1lyear to 5 years 8,696 9614+ :
listed 2,607 5871 : from Syears and over 2,068 3,604 . 1|
{ unlisted 2574 = Total 19,542 216511
: joobe e —— e i e e =
- ; Equity securlties and other . The pé)[‘tfo io” did not ‘include placements with, and }°
{ variableyleld securities 178 157 ! loans and advances to, non-consolidated companies and |
Equity securittes 178 157% compan.iesiin which a participating interest is held. ;
| thereof: £ - : : ¥
. Marketable secarities - = i r
: ( i a3 Lo:ms and advari'c.e'snt‘c; ELE:‘.;;\;E- oo
' Positive falr values from ; R T R o e T l
derivative finar.dal instruments 158 = e B b e e
H loans and adua nces to customers,
- Interest-based and 3 : i broken down by type of business i
« _ forelgn-currency based bransactions 158 = ; In € erillion 1122005 1122008
Others - —, [ Loansand advances 75,749 77,044‘ :
) ! Public sector loans 19,275 23353,
“1 ¥ Othertradingassets ' - —? Real estate loans ) 56,041 52,934 - !
: E , - Other loans and advances 433 70704
ol 5% 1513, Investments 545 —
e T et T T T e T e
N The pdrtfoiié) did not include debt securities and other
fixed- mc:oma securltlas of non-consolidated submdlanes ,1;;;;';‘;;\;"?5&’:;&;;;“" - Mmi: i
and oompames in Wthh 8 partlclpatlng interast is held  broken down by maturities i
- " In € millian N122005 31122004
...... h : ; Unspacified tarms ' 67 137
! B , Pwith agreed maturities 76,227 76,907 |
. ' | " 4p to 3 months R '
) i _from Imonths to 1 year 4389 5,900
: . from lyear to 5 years 26,881 24279
ﬂ . X § from Syears and over 41,126 43,203 :
{ Total ) 76,294 77,044 '
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) | I
- , Finandal Statements ;1Q5
* . Notes 40tc 45 | - -
5_ Notes to the balance sheet [Assets) |
‘- L
" Loans and advances ! ; ;
" to non-comolidated subsidlaries X )
: and companies In which a !
. participating interest i held i E |
in € million 1122005 31122004 ! . : .
Non-consolidated subsidiaries 209 328, 5 !
* Companiesinwhich a particpating - i i Vo
" interest Is held 485 557 .
* Total 694 885 i ,
- e - A ' b
v .
BT P
l 44 Volume of lending - : !
. Volume of lending . ;
i
: i
 In€ millien 21.12.2005 31122004 ; i ;
Loans and advances to other banks 13,972 17,490 i -
" Loans and advances to customers 75,749 77,044, . i
. Contingent liabilities 2,647 4578 i o
Total o ] 2,38 99,112 % !
. . " " H :
N H !
1 ', i s 3
. PR - B . i ;
45 xAJIm'Nance-s for losses.on loans and advances : .
it - i hadbrgtaafint chuskbecs s ; -
- . [T . P, . - —-— i !
! Development i ,
i " i
. in€million Inchvidual allowances Fortfolio-based allowances Total \ .‘ !
. Balanceat 1.1.2004 1,784 112 1,596 !
¢ Changes affecting incom e 71 195 266 |
S ]
Cross addittons 107 267 EFL N I !
i Releases -36 -T2 -108 ,
: Changes not affacting Income -1296 -90 -138s] '
{ Changes in tha group of consolidated companies - 1 1 } ;
! Use of existing loandoss allowances -1499 -2 -1732) !
U Effects of aurrangy translations and other changes i .
not affecting income 203 142 3451 '
: _Halanle at 31,1.1.2004 559 217 776 ! !
: Balance at 1.1.2:005 559 217 76| .
, Changes affectingincom e 136 16 JLYR £
" Gross sdditions 173 # 2151 : g
Releasas -37 -6 -63] g
* Changes not affacting Incom & -226 -7 -243 i g
i Changes in tre group of consolidated companies - - -1 4 ! %
. Use of existingloan- oss allowances -245 -17 ~262 | ‘
1} N l‘_-—-
! Effects of curreney translations and other changes : ‘
not affecting income 19 - 191
469 216 685 !

. Balance at 31.12.2005
it yhiniiniei e e o e — =

In 2004, the changes not affecting income mainly dis-
close the amounts received under HVB AG’s risk shelter
and effects from the initial tecognition of the portfolio-
based allowance according to IAS 39.64-in conjunction
with TAS 39,104 {revised 2003). In 2005, thers was no
risk shelter;and there was also no effact attributable to
the initial application of the portfolio-based allowanca.

i
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#

' Breakdown " 1 Ratio of allowances to total lendings
S
“in ¢ million” 31 .12.2005 31123008 | | In€ rrillion 1122005 1122008 |
B ' t
Individual allowznces for bosses onloans + Total loan-loss allowances e84 12 l
 and advances to custom ers 465 539" T Allowances for losses on loans '
Por tfolio-based allowances 216 217 .V and advances 685 176 | ;
Cletal L e L £ ¢ Allowances for losses on guarantees i
and indemnitles 9 16. !
: b o . Total volume of lending 92,368 w112 . '
46 ‘Analysis of loan and default risk o | Provision rate i €) R .2 S i
’ J 1 oral prowisions for losse s on loans and advarces/tetal volure of kending i
R L, ;
; Netaddition mte , ;
i
" in € million 313122005 31122004 a7 , Investmer!ts } £
Provisions for losses on loans 1 S R 1
and advances 145 0By e Tmme T AT e | i
" Total volume oflending 92,368 w2 Rreakdown , |
. Net addition mte? (in %) 0.16 041 in € million .12.2005 31122004 i : :
9 Euzluding the risk shelte r from HVE AG ' © 0 HtMinvestm ents 9365 10447
3 Provis ions for los se: on loans and advances/total volume of lending Debt securities and other
_ fixed-Income securlties 9,365 10447 .
R N B S e e— Ty AfS investm ents 26,263 24520 i
 Loanloss ratio £ Shareslnnon-consdlidated subsldiaries 187 179
" in € million 7122005 1122000 Partidpatinginterests 17 [
' i
; Loan losses 265 132 Debt securities and other X
' Use of exdstingloan-oss allowances 262 17320 fixes-income securities 26,057 24335
— ' 1 -
Use of allowances for losses " Equity securities and other
on guarantees snd indemnities 7 2. variableyield securities 2 2
Recoveries from written off loans ' dFVTPL Investments 3478 1-1?_2,
B and advances _ -3 = Debt securlties and other :
t Total volume of lending 92,368 99,112 fixed-income securities 3,479 1172 ) I
‘ loanloss ratio ¥ (in%) N 029 175  lnvestmentproperties 32 26 )
Y igan lossesftotal volume of lending : Total ———— 391% —_ 36’195_ ! E
[ ) e e e e - S o o . - - ! } ]
* Marketable securities Debt securities Equity securities ’
and other fixed-incomre and other varia ble-yield '
in¢ million securities securities Total
" Marketable sacurities 31122005 38,901 2 38,903 i :
. ) 31122004 35,737 2 35,739. ’ !
listed 31.122005 31,260 2 31,262 . ‘
. 31122004 33,153 2 33,155 ¢ l !
unlisted 31.122005 7641 - 7,641 ] )
31.122004 2,584 - 2584
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1 : . - N . |
i ) Finandal Statements ;107
S Lo s e Notes 46 to 47

' % . ' ST+ Notes to the balance sheet (Assets) !
U : o : - f
i i N . ‘
e — i - 1 . i T e e e e e e e i e m e e w - t B
i Development 2005 2004 L i
of investments )
. Rt™ AFS investments dRYTRL  Investment L P )
f investments Debt investments ptupertles. i i i T
i securties Equity ] { .
i and segurities ' . e
. : Non- ather fixed- andother t
i consolidated  Participating income  varlable-yield [
5 in Cmillion subsidiaries Interests securities securities Total Totel :
P Acquisition costs . I _
{ Balanceat1.1. 10394 236 4 23,806 2 1082 26 35,550 36,714 ’} S
- . Y
" Rirsttime applization ! P g
L dFVTPLInvestments - - - -2,411 - 2,411 - - -

Changes in the group of

i consolidated cempanies ) - - - 4,602 - - - 4602 ~12 B
' Changes from foreign . !

currengy ranstation 121 — - 91 - - 4 216 126"

Additlons 252 34 - 4791 - 187 2 5,266 7,450 .

Redassificattons - -14 14 - - - - - 770 :
' Disposals - 1,465 — -1 -5,328 - -206 - -7,090 -7,240
_ Balanceat21.12. 9302 256 17 25,551 2 3,384 32 38,544 36,026

: ) I
Changes in valuation not , ! { C

! affecting income P ks
| Balanceat 1.1, ) - - — 450 —_ — -, 490 =41 :

Changes In the 'group of : \
-:onsolid'a‘ted companles - - - — - - —_ - -

currengy, translation — - - - - - — " -

il

i 1

! Changes from forelgn
5

i

affecting income - - - &0 - - - 60 362

" Radassifications - - - - - _ _ _ .

i Disposals - - - =55 - - - -tg —
| Balance at 31,12, - - - 495 — - - 405 358

!

]

Changesinvalue not i
!

I

1

)

; Amortisation/depreciation ) 1
and write-ups .
"Balanceat 1.1 53 -57 - 39 - 90 - 125 -239)

Changes in the group of ) i
* consolidated companies - - — — — — — - 1 '

{ Changes:‘from foselgn |
currency. translation — - — — - - _ - .

Disposals of FI—ItM investments relate primarily to re-
demptions of. maturity, There were no -depreciation
omissions as dstailed under section 314 {11} HGB. The
portfolio dess not include any vacant investment prop-

ertiss. | ) : . ’ -

T
Impairments - -13 - -36 - - - -49 -29. 5 .
¢ Reversals of . X ‘2‘1 .
premiums/discounts -5 - - =26 _ - - — -31 -19 ) L 2
' Wirite-ups — 1 — 34 — — - 35 34 !i ! E
' Redassifcations - - - — — — - - 32 .
;‘ Disposals 15 — - - - - - 15 3 : l
; Changes in fair value - - - - — 5 — 5 4’
* Balance at31.12, 63 -69 — 11 . — 95 - 100 =219
1 Carrying a:ﬁounb ' i
Vesreatiiin, T TSI T T TRy 0 AT W T e, |
1
]
{
|
!

1 . : o B jfnl

[
|
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Coh B
; -k
I L
j Breakdown of debt securities
' and other
fixed -incoma sex writies

in < mlll:n . 1122605

1122004

Bond s and debt veaurities

by publicissuers 16,533 -

16,001,

by other issuers 22,368

19933

Total - 38,901

gst is held. !

P A Ay S

e g P

Tbe portfollé d1d not include - any debt securltles and '’
other fxxad mc:oma securities of ion-consolidated sub-
sidiaries and, .companies in which a patticipating inter- .

35954,

. Breakdown ofeqmtysecuritls
, and other

1 variable-yield securities
Lin€million . 1122005 °

311220

i trvestments . 2

falool 8

o B

d
. db s
fj_s_ilnt;ﬁgib!e assets

Breakdown

+

L in ¢ million: 1122005

o e g e - . .o

< s e e

{Goodwit., - : 2!

' Software acquired ) EN

. Advance payments 3

ifotal 28

T

Development of intangible assets

E

in € million

e U SO

o bt tieelioncin

g At

PRSP I—

Software
acquired

Advance
payments

Total

Acquisition/ production costs

* Balance at 1.1.

40

45

x

Changes from forelgn currency translation and other changes -2

-2

; Changes in the group of consolidated companléé
;

Additions

13

Redassifications

w osil

|
wi

Disposals

" Balanceat 31.12.

56

[

N .
i Amortisation/depreclation and write-ups

Balanceat 1.1,

“ .+ Changes In the group of consolidated companies

Changes from farelgn currency translation

Scheduled amor tisation/depreciation

Unscheduled araortisation/depredation

Wrlte-ups

Redassifica ions

Disposals

; Balance at 31 12

| §
.4 Carryinga [nount:.

{ Balance at 31.12.

e e i e

23

o s

28

ey ——
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As part of tbe initial adoptlcn of IFRS 3, the goodwxll

and the habz% Y dlffarences attributable to the. “consaliz -

dation were a'iocated to the cash generatmg umts fo

N

Amorttsatlonldepmctahon on. software and other in-
tangibla asset‘; is shown under Amorttsat]on/deprema-

tion on mtan _'pla assats thhln ganaral admlmstratwe_

oftware was pu; rchasad

axpenses. All

Financial Statements

{
!
i
'
!

N - Notes 47t0 51 ; °
. Notes to the balance sheet {Assets) ; .

;
!
i
|
!
t
'

There are no’ oontractual obhgattons for purchasmg !51' ncometaxassets

property, plam and equtpment

' h
]

Pl AR I

50 §6thlé'r;'assgt‘s_;"‘*." T

¢ Other assets . .

|

H ¥

© ¢ In€million 3112.2005 31.12.2004 °
- Posltive fair values from derivative 5

! finandal instruments 7,133 7,206
* Other assets 205 26

1

! Deferred charges and prepald expenses 30 37,

]

t . 1

' Capitalised excess cover !

. ; of qualified Insurance |
) 'g for pension provisions . 59 - —l
 Total N ) 7421 AL

__.--m...-.— g = i - s

R S T
EAY

| Income tax assets !

it in € million 31122005

Current tax assets 17 145
{ Deferred taxassets : 4806 4719
: Total 4,03 4,733

i;’
{EProperty, plant and eqﬁiﬁﬁént ' R '
G e fi R Eo f o
; Breakdown i -
inCmillion . 31122005 31222008 = ?,
; Plant and operating equipment 14 15 ; i -
“Total 14 15, : !
s E3 - ' :
N | S SO S SNt UL S P i
Development of prope:ty plantand equipment 2005 ’ 2004 * l ." .
‘ E inCmlllion ; Pant andopeutlngeq.llprmnt' Total Tota! f ! {
o Acquisition/production costs P il
. Balance 3t 1.1.2005 o 43 48 Ed; i i _
Changes in the group of consofidated companies - - -12; -
+ " Additions, g g 6; L .
Disposals. .y “14 7104 ! S
{Balance at3112. 42 2 5. ! } :
t ‘ Lo _
{ Amortisation/depectation and write-ups ! !
§ Balanceat1.1. 33, 33 35 g !
Changes In the group of consolidated companles - - - et
Scheduled amorisation/depredation 6 [ . 6 : ; , .
Disposals: -11 -1t -5 =’ i ] '
, Balance at31.12. 28 28 __33! N oo
: H : :
.'} Carrying amounts i E
S Balanca at 3_1.12. B . e 14 u _ 15 f i

B T P S . - . repaw

!
31.12.2004 , Il
i
i

109

5

£
E
s
3
g

Fira

Tax assets include -quch refund claims from current tax-
es as well as a significant amount of deferred tax as-
sets. The new recognition or write-up of deferred tax
assets was performed among other things due to capi-
talisation of losses carriad forward (see alzo notas 18). A .
considerable amount:of defarred tax assets was also at-
trlbutable to tax effects ralating to valuatlons according ‘
to IAS 39 (revxsad 2003) ;

i
l
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Subordmated assets

) In € riltion- 21122005 122000 | PR ' a !
" Loans and advances to customers ;

. % Irvestments

As a pledgor of genuine repurchase agreements, the

Hypo Real Estate Group has pledged-assets with a book .
valug, of; €9h11110n {2004: €8bllhon} Th asaats are : -
shl]'stated:_under assets, and. the oonstd i .

s Securisation .
| : Reduction inrisk
otat volume weightzd assets
. . Maturity of lending  according to BIS
:lsmr . Transaction name in years Type of asset securitlsed in€ million In€ million
' Private
H . Hypo Real Estate 3ank AG HVB Real Estate 2001-1 55 mortgage loans 748 305
! :
1 { : Private
" Hypo Real Estate 3ank AG ] NiirnbergHyp 2001-1 48 mortgage loans 150 113
; ’ . Cormm ercial
L..1 Hypo Real Estate Bank AG Dutch Dream 2001-1 19 mortgage loans 629 497
i : CMBS/RMES
. HypoReal Estate Bank AG European Dream 4| 79 securities 637 510
‘ Comm erclal [
| Wirtterber gische Hypothekenbank AG WikrttHyp 2001-1 11 mortgage loans 431 354
: ¢ Private
| i Hypo Real Estate Bank AG Provide Comfort 2002-1 54 mortgage loans 1,641 856
:' ‘ Comm erclal ,
! Hypo Real Estate Bank AG DUKE 2002 25 mortgage loans 542 533 '
' Commerclal
Hypo Real Estate Bank AG ) GECO 2002 52 mortgage loans 732 662 ,
g [ Commercial }
o Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG WiirttHyp EU-1 26 mortgageloans 494 447
] . , Commercial !
3 _i Wirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG WiirttHyp F-1 20 mortgage loans 460 382 .
f Total 2000 to 2003 6,514 2,649
b
i ! Commercial t
+ Wilrttembeér gische Hypothekenbank AG WiirttHyp UK-2 10 mortgage loans 560 448 ‘
: Total 2004 560 448
; Total : 7,074 5,097 ‘
Lo 7 T —— ——— T - =T i e ,
|
|

S ,
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Securlt]satlon 1nvolves the full or partial passmg -on
to the capltc] market of lending risks for selected
loan portfolios that have been precisely defined in ad-
vance. The prime aim of the bank's own securitisa-
tion programmes is to reducs the loan portfolic risk.
In the case of so-called synthetic securitisation, the
risk is transfsrred and the pressure on squity is re-
duced through the provision of collateral in the form
of guarantees or credit derivatives; in the traditional
forms of securitisation, risk is transferred and the pres-
sure on equity is reduced through the sale (“true sale”)

of balance st.est assets. The Hype Real Estate Group

has only issued synthetic securitisation programmes,
so that the securitised portfolio is not eliminated under

(.

{55! Deposxts from oth er banks

3

D ,_1___1

. L FInanaalStatements !111
w ’f“‘ ) Notes 57 to 57

K

Notes to the balance sheet (Assets, Equity and ilablllties)

In 2005, the Hypo Real Estate Group did not issue any
securitisation programmes. At the year end, the totial
volume of lending of the entite current gscuritisation
programme of the Hypo Real Estate Group amounted to
£7.1 billion, and this resulted in-an €5.1 billion reduc-
tion in risk-weighted assets according to BIS,

Seduritisation programmes usually provide for a small
part of the risks being retained in the form of a first-
loss piecs or interast sub-participation on the part of
the pledger.

For the programmes listed above, first-loss pieces are
held in an amount of €278 million. The inisrest sub-
participations total € 223 millicn.

LST Promissory notes and other Iiablhhes evidenced
bysecunhes T ' '

Deposllsfromotherbanks . R e .
i i‘:\yc“:ntl::rri.ties 31122005 31122008 : ::‘;’d’:z::dfyb';:t;um‘l’ ‘:he”h bilities ‘
Repayable on demand . 70 ; 365, brokendown by type of business
With agreed maturlties 22,376 18,187, . in< million 3112.2005 3112.2004
' up to Imonths 13,672 ’ 11,441 . ' Debt securities in issue 75,974 77,443
from 3 months to 1 year 4,287 1,553 Mortgage bonds - 15,879 - ﬁ?,ﬁ
, from 1yearto Syears__ 3,595 AII—;S ?ubhc sector bonds - 38,548 :;:113?4?_82_ :
. fromSyearsand over 822 1,008 " Other debt securities 20,392 12,817,
i Total 2,446 18,552 1 Money market securities 1,155 835 .
f_r : Registered notes in issue 19359 :E?;ﬁ
The poi'tfoii;; did not include any amounts owed to . Morigagebonds 10,543 1219
affiliated non-incorporated companiss and companiss | .. uoicsector bonds — 806 941
in which a participating interest is hald, ; _Qther debt securities 10 0
R = e 535 W
EAm?u,msowed to q!:her d‘?P?E“?T’. ) e .Promsso—ry‘ m-);; and othelih I;II_IEI;-- ;
i b . - . - evidenced by securities, i
] e e - broken down by maturities
: ‘:;“::;;’Ei‘::d to othes depositors | in € millon NILN0S 3122008
In € million 31.12.2005 3112.2004 , " With agreed maturitles
+ Repayable on d¢mand 503 1871, upto3months 10,343 "EEZB
: Wlﬂ‘l agraed maturities 9577 8,637 from 3 months to 1year - 15,189 "—*ﬁ,ﬁﬁ
2 up to 3months 355 464, " Fom 1year to Syears - 48,486 o 53,691
; from 3 HZEEH; to 1 year 1,222 668 i from 5 yearsand over 21315 20314
¢+ from lyear tc Syears 2,635 2,567 ' ' Total 95,333 99,173 ¢
from § years and over 5,365 4,938 ] o
Toa T 10080 .. 884 The portfolio did not include any promissory notes
o ‘and other liabilities evidenced by securities payabla to
Amou;.;n;dto T T 777 non-consolidated subsidiaries and companies in which
" non-consolidatod subsidiaries a participating interest is held.
in € mitllon 3132.200% 3112 2004
¢ Non-consolidated subsidiaries 3 9’

Total & 9

= i — e st = =

The p@rtfoiio did not include any amduhts owsd .to
companies in which a patticipating interest is held.

t

L |
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ELiabiE‘iﬁés t!p!d‘fqr"tr_‘adlngblirpgses o

The negative values arising from derivativa financial"
instruments in the amount of €119 millior and the
refinancing ﬁositions of the.trading portfolio in the
amount of € %,634 million are stated as liabilities held
for trading PUIPOSSS.

59 EProvisions ' o

a

As of 1January 2005, the.Hypo Real Estate Group took
out an insurance policy which is classifiad as a “quali-
fied insurance policy” under IAS 29 to protect itself
against the main risks arising from the defined-benefit
pension commitments. The qualified insurancs poelicy
is a plan asset in atcordance with 1AS 19. In accord-
ance with IAS 19.54, the pension provisions have to be
reduced by the extent of the plan assets. Accordingly
the funding status is as follows:

f Fundingstatus

I N 0 U ST U
Brcakdown ¢ enilion 1122005 422008 °
+ In € million ) #12.3005 122004 ; ‘« Presentvalue of unfunded
1 Provisions for peasions and , pension obll gations - 168
. similar obligations - 158 | prasentvalue of funded 1
Restructuring pravisions 22 22 " pension obligations 187 -
1 Loan-loss provisions 9 16 ; i Fairvalue of plan assets -219 - :
- Qther provisions 26 257 4 Outstanding actuarlal loss TR -0
_-t;\_e-r-eof:- o ' Capitalised excess cover of plan assets 59 -
~ Long-term liakllities to employees 7 74 -; Penslon provisions recognised — 158 g
Totat 57 221t ST T e s e T

H

Provisions f¢r pensions and similar obligations include
in-house employer's pension direct commitmants’ for
company pmmons payable to executive bodies and
employees ol tha Hypo Real Estate Group.

The _in:hous‘e employer's pension commitments are’
partly dependent on final salary, and partly based on
modular plans. with dynamic adjustments of vested
rights. In addition, group companiss pay contributions
for commitments by external institutions. The pension
obligations financed via pension funds or retirement
benefit corporatlons with matching cover are contribu-

‘The 10%-cotridoi of the higher amount originating from
the present value of the psnsion obligations and the fair
value of plan assets will be excesded for the first time
on 31 December 2005. In accordance with IAS 19.83,
starting in 2008, the sum of actuarial losses which sx-
ceeds the corridor of 10% will be redeemed over the
avarage -remaining servica lives of active amployees.

Movements in pension obllgahons are stated in the
followmg

jpa— 1t tecmor ek e i s o s 5

Development of peusion obligations

i »
tion-based rmodels (“defined contribution plan”). Ex- ; in € million 2008 fovkad
penses in taspect of contribution-based plans amounted « Balanceat1t. 168 143
to €4 million, compared with €3 million last year. In { ..Pension expenses 7 12
addltlon coatributions of € 4 million were also paid for i Qutstanding actuarial |oss 18 Ly
statutory pension insurance schemes in Germanyin 2005 | Payments tobenefidaries -t 6
(2004: €5 million}. Defined-benefit plans have been ! Changes not a ffecting Income _ b
committed only by the companies resident in Germany. | Balanceat 31.12. U . AV
The foliowing discount rates and valuation paramaters ) ‘ ) :
wers applled when calculating the provision for 'de- Pensionexpenses.are broken down as follows:
fined-benefit plans: ' -
ey I e e bR —— o A < e+ Breakdown of penslon expenses

Discount rates and valuahon parameters 11122008 1127008 t i€ million 2005 2008 -
Cin% 1.1.2006 1.1.2005 ' : § Present value of pension claims vested 2 L ______3 :
Discount rate 40 5.0 interestexpense ’ 7 3
 Expected return from plan assets 40 40 { Expense for retroactive improvements
Rate of increase in pension obligations 15 2.0 . 1 topension cbligations - 1
" Rate of increase in future compensation ‘ 3 Reduction/termination -2 =
and vested rights 25 25 Tetal 7 12
Rate of increase over career 0-15 015’ T o -

g e

g e i b e

Tha expectsd yiald of the plan assets have been calcu-
lated using the long-term no-risk interest rate in accord-
ance with the investment strategy appllcable for p]an
assets
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Plan assets consist exclusively of the -qualified insur-
ance policy. The plan assets accordingly do not contain
any own financial instruments-and no, own property,

plant and equnpmant which is_used. Deve]opments in

plen assats ars-as foE!ows
f’ i‘ _
[P S U R NP

. 1 Development of plan assets
to .

. Motes to the balance sheet {Equity and liabilities) |

T
i

L

Financial Statements ?]_13
Notes'58 to 60 |

v

H

. Finandal Statements

B

i eemition’ : ‘ 2008 mmz i;
iBaIanceat_l.l. - =! ) g !
(' Allocations to pan assets 215 -1 ; < o - {
: "Expected return from plan assets 9 =1 ' : a 1
; Outstand.lngactuariai profit 1 —E ’ '
Payments tobeneficiaries -6 -, R
* Balanceat 31.12. B L 219 = - i
N S S e e :
Because the pinsion obligations ars adequately secured, :
we do notanti ulpate any further allocations to plan asssts . i
in future. }' : B} )
g -
: Developmentof ratru(turlng and other prowsmﬂs .
) Restructuring Loarloss Other .
in € rillion provisions provisions provisions Total '
. Balance at' 1.12005 n 15 25 63 :
: ——Addltlonis 15 - 3 18 |
E Reversals — = -2 -2 !
i Amounts used -15 - -22 !
; H_i!fimeati.?l.ll.i!r005 - e W_W_I_Zv ‘ _2? 57 )
v : f“ . . . :
As part ‘of a; restructurmg process, the nternatlonal ‘ !
business” whlch has previously ‘beén conducted by b 3
Hypo Real Estate Bank International /Dublin, as well as B .
Wurttembargl sche Hypothekenbank, - Stuttgart will be i , :
pooled in a single legal entity. In addition, the German- :
financing arrangements have been pooled at Hypo Reat .‘
Estate Bank, Munich. A restructuring provision of € 15 \
million has bsen sat aside under IAS 37 primarily for S
severance payments. This prowston will probably be
used mostly iu the year 2006. a ,
S _ |
80 ;o_thefliabiliues' T . I
: Otherllabllitla '
- In Mio, € 31122005  3112.2004 E i
§ Negative falr values from derivative t“ e o s f
¢ finandial instruments 11,122 1,117 ‘ : : H
Other itabilities . 748 451 i : ' {
, Defarred Income. 97 86 37 * ‘ 2 ’ i
: Total , 11,067 11,654 ) s
e e vt e e — ; :
ay # N B +
Other lia'isiliti{ias mainly include liabilities from the off- i
setting of results and also sccruals pursuant to TAS 37. ;
Accrued liabilities inelude in particular trade accounts
payable in respect of invoices still outstanding, short-
! term liabilitie} to employees and other accruals in te-
] spect of commission, interest, operating expenses, etc. ; {
; !
r . ‘ '
i . ' - , I
| o o
{ i [ i
!
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S .
: E; . .
i : : '
N R |
L._ilm‘lpcorr‘! tax liabilitles : . T i om Withoall subordinated liabilities, there can be no early !
: g repayment obligation on the part of the issuer. In the
Income tax lablities T, event of bankeuptey or liquidation, such liabilities may
' only be repaid once all non-subordinate creditors have ‘
, In.€ million 31122005 3112.20041? _been satisfied. e :
Current tax!iabilities 62 £ '
. Deferred tax iabilities 3,534 3536, ,—'5 Anated - - e
: ! Subgrdinated capital, . ;
s bt i v e 3{5? — _m§,6_03j ; broken down by maturities , _;
fi-; ) ) [ in € million 1122005 31122004 .
Tex ligbilities include both provisions or liabilities | ¥/t agreedmaturities ;
from current taxes as well as deferred tax liabilities. | up to 3 months 5 &3
Deferred" tax iabilities-can arise when single assets or from 3months to 1year 36 262 E
securities inc-ease in value according to IFRS, but such ¢ .from lyearto5 years 1237 1,170
valuation incteases do not become relevant for tax piir- | _[1om Syears and over 20 782 |
poses until the asset is sold at some date in the future, %@L _ L 2o 291
A considerable amount of deferred tax liabilities was .
attributabls to tax effects relating te veluation according * The portfolio does not include any subordinated lNahil- !
iolAS39. itles to non-consolidated subsidiaries and companies
' in which a patticipating interest is held. )
62 5Sl‘1b§r‘&in;;tgd_‘c'épltalﬁ L .In accordance with bank regulatory requirements based !
;; on the provisions of section 10 (5) and (5a) of the
prezkdown T T - i “Garman Banking Act (Kreditwesengesetz — KWG) and
: also in accordance with the recommsndations on |
* In € millien 3112.2005 12208 oquity issusd by the Bassl Committea on Banking !
, -
i Subordinated |izbilities 1,470 1603 gypervision in July 1988, the subordinated capital was ;
" Participating cer Uficates outstanding 5%8 894" shown as cors capital, supplementary capital or tier-3 |
el e e e 208 2T eapital. ‘ {
Subordinated liabilities do not contain any individual Participating certificates outstandingIssued participatory I
{temsaccounting for more than 10% of the overall amount.’  ‘capital mainly comprises the following issues: I
" £
g m— :_ i nmn mmia iy i mm e e ¢ s merslieshos sy o oers 1 et ot e o o am et = o e et o0 "W e < FE - ;
% Participating certificates outstanding Norminal .
t amount Interest rate i
"lsser searof issue Type in € million in% Maturity ,
Bearer partidpation ,
i Hypo Real Estale Bank AG 1993 certificates 38 7.00 2008 |
: Bearer partidpation St
* Hypo Real Estate Holding AG 1997 certificates 102 6.75 2007 i
' . Bearer partidpation !
Wurttember gis che Hypothekenbank AG 1997 certificates 102 6.75 2008 f
e . - b
! Bearer participation cor
. Hypo Real Estate Bank AG 1998 certificates 38 varlable interest rate 009 .
- !
E Bearer partidpation e
1 Hypo Real Estate Bank AG 1999 certificates 70 7.00 2009 %
s Bearer partidpation :
: Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG 2001 certificates 50 7.00 20127,
: ' Bearer partlidpation :
~ Wirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG 2002 certificates 50 7.00 2013 ?

£
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The interest entn]ament is reduced to the extent thata [64 Treasury stock ; 9'

pay-out would result in the respective issuet mecording
an annual net loss or consolidated net loss for the year.
Holders of participating certificates outstanding partic-
ipate in any pet loss or consolidated net loss for-the

yeat recorded ‘by an issuer through a reduction in their

repayment entitlements; this iz based on the retio be-
tween the repayment entitlerments and the subscribed
capital as sh%)wn in the balance sheet plis retained’
earnings and additional paid-in capital as well as par-

ticipatory capital.

*

Nat income fer subsequent years must be increased to -

|
Finandal Statements
Notes'51 to 66

115
1

Nates to the balance sheet {Equity and liabilltles) :

el we e

Neither Hypo Real Estate Holding AG itself ror any de-
pendent company or company in which a majority is |
owned-holds sharés of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG. !

@E&mélwgn-c—ﬁ}r;ﬂﬁ}y ésséts and II.;biIi'tive”s&

- Foreign-currency assets and labilities

" No treasury shares were traded in the year 2005.

i In € million 31.12.2005 3122004
bring repayment antitlements back up to their nominal Fareign-currency assets 30520 19.912 ‘
value. The participating certificates outstarding cerhfy thereof: )
subordmated creditor rights; they-do not guarantee any ysb w84 &7 :

Y 1,803 1641

share in liquidation procesds. . )

_ TEHE ] 1677 1,790
o L SEK 1,302 1450
[ apn A * i ) " i “ by H - i
{63 Equity DL G_HKD 1 2 !
- . - . - 8P 8,913 4,685 :
On 31 Décemi:er 2005, the subscribed capital of Hypo . Othes 239 2253 :
Real Estata Holdmg AG of €402 rmllwn ‘was dmded « Forelgn-currency labilitles ; !
into: * {excluding equity) 27,367 12,6, *

" thereof: !
T T — e USD 14514 4542
; Subscribed capital number ! : PY 1,303 1021 !
: nurnber (face amount: € 3) 31.12.2005 31122008 ¢ ' CHF 2,085 17307 ¢
. : f R H
' Shares of commor: bearer stock 134,072,175 130433775¢ . SEK 765 413 ‘
" Shares of registered HED i 2 E
i non-voting preferred stock - 3,638,400F . GBP 7,860 2,304 i
; P i
! Total ) ) B 134072,175 ) _134,07?_,_1'1:53 x Others o o B 329 o 2,335 '
Authorised capﬁal Original* Balance at et PP oo
i war Avallable amount 31122005 66 |Trust business '

authorised until In € rolllion In € million e ° ’

e ey 2004 03062000 20}__ 201 The following tables show the volume of fiduciary
b . ) business not shown in the consolidated balancs sheet. i
. [ P Y O 507 SR S o o !
Condrtbnal capital Criginal Balance at e e e - |
Year Avallable armount 31122005 !
; autharised until in € milion in € million Trust assets '
' 2004 - 40 401 . in€¢million 3122005 312220040 |
R T atan e g | N
, * Loans and advances to customers 153 597 :
ae ———— -~ Total 153 97 :
X Retained aarning i Tt T T oo - " T - U= = B '
£ ] :
inCmillion 3112.2005 FAZQOF | moomor e e - ;
legalreserve _ -a i Trust liabilities ;
. Other retained earnings 537 311°  in¢milion 3112 2005 3112.2004 :
Total 537 311 Deposits from other banks 62 101 _
i : ’ « Amounts awed to other depositars S1 496 |
L  Total 153 0T i
_ . —_— e e —— - - . |

1

! i
=, " ]
:
b
) ‘ i i
1
i
Lo 5
i
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In order to rrmm }
the regulatory eredit ‘risk- arising from” these mstru-

367 Notes to theltemsm the cash ﬂow statement e

The cash flo'jv statement sbows the cae 'ﬂowe for the
financial year classified, accordmg to “operating actnn-
ties”; “investing activities™ and “flnanclng activities”

‘Operating actlwtles are'given a w1de basns of def1mt10n
w1th dlfferentlatlon based on operatmg results iy

- s gt s
i .

- The ltem shcwn as’ cash and cash “equivalents corze:~

sponds to tht' balance sheet item “Cashxreserve and-
contelns_ces

The 1tem “Cltber adjustments co'ntains" thes’results .
shown m th consohdated fmanmat statements in so.

The followmg tables present the respactlve nommal
- amounts and fair-valuas of OTC derwatwes and derrva-

tives traded on a’stock exchange
i 5

.lmlse (raduss) both th

ments, master, agreements [bllateral neiting, agreements]
have been co: 1oluded By means of suchs nettmg agree--

. ments, the pc-sttwa and:negative falr vaiues of the de:,

nvatlves contraots included undsr-a master: agreement
can be offset dgalnst one another; and the future: regula-
tory risk edd3 on% for these products can be reduced
Through; «thisinetting process, the credlt risk'is hmlted
to a singls ne} clalm on the party to the contract (éloses
out nettiﬁpg} crt

et s
P

[

T IR

H

B G e el

e

i
e

'"m hand: and central bank balances ) Era

i

ar as the corresﬁoudiag payments are shown separately

‘ "‘.after ‘the reievant sub tota!s i..e.-interest and dividend

mcome interest expenses and expenses in respsct of
texes on moome [IAS 7.28 6t seq.). This items contains
both the, non cash f]ow-related angd cash flow-related
" rasult components Cash How- related results are added
beck [1nﬂows) oT deducted (outflows) after the sub-total

‘ ar__ld before the tot_al ca_s_b fl_ow from operatmg activities.

In 2005, no eubeld:anes or, other business units were
purchased or sold. - :

For both regu]atory reports and the internal measure-

- risk-reducing’ techni;__ques are used only if they are con-

vsidered to “be -enforceable under the respective legal

system, should the. business associate becoms insol-
.vent In order to check enforceahlllty. legal opinions
are used

Similar to'the blaster agreements tbe Hypo Real Estate
. Group:concludes collateral agreements with its business
assoctates 16 secure the net claim or Hability remaining

Cafter netting: [recewmg of turmshmg of security). As a
--1ule, this aéllateral management reduces credit risk by
means of prompt measurement and: adjustment expo-

sure to customers

‘ment and monitoring:of the.credit commitments, such-.

B e e e i, et = - S S o e e -

o mAmm e — i s s o el

A e

sl e i
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Notes to the cash flow statement
Notes to financial Ihst'ruments

H

|

FinandaIStaltements halakd

Notes 67 to 68

e b [

_ Derivate volumeas of 31.12 2005 Nominal armount Falrvalue .
' : Remaining maturities !
" i {ess than mone than *
+in € million” 1year 1to Syears 5 years Total positive re gative
Y Interest-based trinsactions ' ;
OTC products 89,652 135,480 - 106,368 321,500 6,536 10,630 '
Forward rate agreements - — - - - —[.
* Interest rate swaps 83,275 126,091 102,320 311,686 6,431 9,158 %
| Interest rate options 5,049 3,875 2,762 11,686 78 1,452
 Calloptions 1294 439 239 1,962 78 -
Put options 3,755 3,446 2522 9724 ~ 14527 !
. Otherinterest sate contracts 1,328 5514 1,286 8,128 27 20 i
o Exchange-traded products 193 1,240 560 1,993 %6 91 '
- _Interest futures 173 863 - 1,036 - 1 ;
| Interest rate options 20 377 560 957 9 a0
; Total 89,845 136,720 106,928 333,493 6,632 10,7211 1 :
; Foreign-currency-based transactions J
| OTC products 5,892 6960 4545 17,397 531 A1 H
" Spot and forwird currency transactions 857 g 3 269 4 ERE I;
Interest rate/aurrency swaps 5,035 6951 4542 16,528 527 40710 }
: Currency options - - - - - - I
{  Qther foreign-exdnange contracts — - - — - - ;
| Exchange-traded products - - - - - -i. l
\ Total 5,802 6,960 4,545 17,397 531 411 i
! J . i
! Equity-/Index- based transactions ?
" OTC products 715 - - 715 31 1
- 1 Equity/Indexswaps 715 - Z 715 31 31 E 3
; Equity/Index cptions - — — - — e |
v Other equity/index derivatives - - - - - - :
: Exchange-tradec products - - - - - - i
. : Total 715 - - 715 31 31{ 1
[ o
' Other transactions f
. OFC products 9216 4747 1,682 16,245 78 s14 1
T Credit darivatives 9316 3747 1,682 16.245 77 51l .|
 Other contracts — - — - 1 — !
' Exchange-traded products AT4 106 - 580 1 '
{ Other futures — — — - — =
! Other options A4 106 — 580 1 11
CiTotal ‘ 10,290 4,353 1,682 16,825 70 5210
'Igt.-,.lw - 106,742 148,533 113,155 368,430 7273 1,215 -
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e ..u.u:,‘ B, s e . o el :
i Detlvate volume as of 31.12 2004 Nominal amount Falr value '
Remalning maturities '
: Jess than rmore thar )
¢ in Cmillion 1 ymar 1tasyears Symars Total positive negative
. E Interest-based transactions ‘
£ QTC products ‘ 74,036 117,042 832,101 274269 6,158 10,467 r
. : Forward rate agreements - - - - - -
T Interest rate swaps 68,575 109,071 79,769 252,315 6,071 93811 !
Intesest rate options : £,313 4029 2,411 11,753 7 1,035 | |
Call options 1,360 279 91 1,730 37 - [
I Putoptions 3,953 3,750 2,320 10,023 - 1,035} |
1 Other interest rate contracts ‘ 142 3,042 1011 4,201 50 51 |
" Exchange-traded products - - - - - N
+ Total 74,036 117,042 83,191 214,269 6,158 10,467 :
I'welgn-éurrency-based tramsactions 3
¢ OTCproducts 4,193 5,254 3566 13,013 © 1,097 645 | |
, _Spet and forward currency transactions 1,028 4 - 1,034 14 12 i
Interest ratefcurrency swaps 3,165 5,248 3,566 11,979 1,083 833
Currengy optians . - - - - — - i
_ 5 Other foreign-exchange contracts - - - - - -
. § Exchange-traded products - - - - - -
T aiTetal : 4,193 5,254 3,566 13013 1,097 645 l
? Equity-/Index-tased transactions !
; OTCproducts ! ) - - - - - i
" 7 Exchange- traded products - - - - - =i
; Total - - - - - -1
1 3 ¢
; Other transactions ) }
. OfCproducts 292 24 332 1,048 4 511
; Credit derivatives 292 424 332 1,048 4 4
- § Omerrcmtfat:ts : : - — — - - -
1 Exchange-traded products : - - - — - -
© ' Total ‘ ) 292 24 3 1,048 4 5
), Total ; 78,521 122,720 87,089 288,330 729 1,117 ]
e AT A T T T e R et i e e e T J
O A et N ' A
: Counterpa rties 7.12.2005 31.12. 2004 1,
f . . Fair value Fait value ;
in € million . positive negative positive negative ; j
£ DECD central governments (and central banks) 117 483 i3 f
i ! OECD banks 10421 6,297 10,959 © 4
: % OECD finandial institutions 44 461 18 : :}
; Other compan’es and private individuals 13 18 7 ' |
, Total _ 11215 725 11,117, |
i e e e - - e e

SR A A :

" Fair values appear as sum of pesitive and negative
amounts par contract, from which no pledgad secuTity
‘has be?n deducted and no nattmg agreements have been

“taken into constderatwn By'definition, .no posmve Tair R .
values ex:si for put optlons N - . ' : |

+

: |
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. Own liabilities

) i - oL -
The folldi.vingfaséets were assigned or pledged as securjty:

|
| in € millicn: 31122005 3112.2004 !
, Deposits from other banks 10,714 3,440
! Other liabilities 993 789 |
' Subordinated liabilities ' 10 =i
| Total 1,717 5,719

g.. T %““w«wx.w»m.. —

The followmg assets ‘wers pledged as secur]ty for the
above llabllltles -

!.

e .-I_,__ , + e . et e e e o oo

The reoognisi-’d‘fair values of fipancial iﬁs{:u'ments ac-
cordmg to IAS 32 correspond to the amounts at which;
in the opinioa of the Hypo Real Estate Group, an asset

" more exotic mstruments the interest rates are mmulat- :

- Assets pledped

» in € million 31122005 31.12.2004 |

» Placements with, and loans i

! and advarices to, other banks 1,024 . 1322

" Loans and advances to customers 780 438 |
¥ Investments 8,125 7,469§

P Total 9,929 9,204

— “"““%{"“’"’"‘?"{"‘ poR———— "“"—-/""""‘":."."—,".'J:"’:;'m%aé '“"""""""“"

could be exchanged on the reference date for the finan-

cial statements betwean willing, expert business ‘part-

ners or at wluch 4 ligbility. could be settled betwsen®

such- busmes partne IS,

Lo

The fai'r"valué-'s were determined as at tﬁe reference date
hased on thelmarket information available and usmg
the company s own methods of calculatlon

The fair valuc.s of cartain financial instrunients reportad
at nomlna] values are almost identical to their carrying

amounts Thase include for example thé cash reserve .

and racawables and liabilities without a specifie matu-
nty or mtere‘;t tle -up. For other reoewables and llah]ll-

the. present value using. current mterest rate

Quoted mafkét prices are app]ied fot‘tiiarket s'ecurgiﬁies
and. de:lvatwes as well as for quoted debt instruments.
The falr value of the original financial instruments for
which no active market price-is available is determined
as the present value of future expected cash flows.

fi-

TR TR TN

For assets,

-The fait value-of: intefest and’ currency interest swap

R agreaments and also interest rate futures are deter-

mined on'the basis of discounted future expected cash
flows. The matket intersst rates applicable to the ra-
maining-maturity of the financial instruments are used
for the purpose of-this calculation. The fair value of
forward exchange transactions is determined. on the ba-
sis.of current forward rates. Options are valued using
exchange rate quotations or recognised models for de-
termining option pricss. For simple European options,
‘the current Black & Scholss medels {currency and in-
dex instruments) sr'log- -normal models (interest instru-
ments) are used:as the valuatlon meodels. In tha case of

ed via term structure models with the current interest
rate structure as'well as caps or swaption volatilities as
parameters relevant for valuation purposes.

The fair values of irrevocable loan commitments and
contingent liabilities correspond to their cariying

amounts:

s .
’

the-difference between fair values and
carrying amounts is. €5,463 million and for liabilities
€2.925 million " The balence . of thess amounts is
€2,538 million. The deveiopment of this parameter
over time depends on changes in market prices and the
valuation parametets applied in calculating fair values,
including in particular changes in interest rates as well
as changes in ha]ances and maturities of financial in-
struments.

T

|

r
t

FinancialSta:tements ']19_.’
Notes 68 to 70
Nates to financial instruments

Financlal Statements -

[
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h - B
i‘e . v
3 " ’ [
' it . . .
v I, . . . : ' '
P : i ' ‘31 . !
e meie B m . i : " ‘ —— —
! Falr values of financial instruments 31122005 31122004 i ;
t Carrng Carrying [
: in € million arrounts Fair value amounts Fairvalue © §
 Assets 147,563 153076 123,325 146,758 li l
f Cashreserve 182 182 i 2055 4
¢ Assets held for tading purposes 5,696 5,696 1513 1513 l ;
Placements withk, and loans and advances to, other banks 19542 20,029 21,651 22,433
: Loans and advarices to customers® 75,609 79,474 76,268 80,732
. livestments 2 39107 40,218 36,139 37,326
P Other assets 7.427 7477 7479 7,479
: . !
; Uiabilities 145,607 148,502 141,426 145,600 ;
. Deposits from other banks 22,446 22,438 18,552 13,694
| Am ounts owed to other depositors 10080 10,343 8,824 9,3% f
{ Promissory notes and other liabitities evidenced by secutlties 95,333 97,798 99,173 102,458 ;
+ Liabilities held for trading purposes 37563 3,753 926 927 ;
¢ Other liabilities 11967 11,967 11,654 11,654
Subordinated capital 7028 7,183 3,267 7,468 ;
; :
| Other items 10,196 10,19 7,743 7,743 |
' Cmtlngenttlab\hties 2,647 2,647 4578 4578 .
{ trrevocable loan commitments 7549 7549 3,165 3,165 '

L ugy by 1Ibwm:=; foriossesonloansand rdvm:es
» Exciuding investment prupertles

P .

- In order to éivaluaté the economic significance of this
deductmg ithm in the equity according to 1AS39.954a,
the net h:dden reserves (difference betwean catrying
amounts anc. fair va tue) must be considered in the in-
terest- _b_ean_n;g assets and liabilitias as of the referanca

s ":

“date. As of 31 Decambar 2005, the revaluatzon reserve
amounted to 6 1,426 millien, including the ‘cash flow
hedga reserve of €-1,688 million. The net hldden Te- 1
serves amount to € 2,538 million:
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Finandal Statements 121
55 : PR .Notes 70to 73 -,
o . R . . ' tae o : Notes to financial instrrurnents
IS . . ) . - QOther Motes
OtherNgtes ERUE e T o “ ) ! .
— [ AR ’“'” e ‘“"""?"'" s B Adias o b o ) et 1 oA s W, o bon .+ (NPT .~ w e e . %
[ 71 ;Significant concentrations of assets and liabilities  Market risk positions L k
P ' i ; :
Detailed infotmation on the risks associated with the. | !n€milion 12205 n220M°
business of the Hypo Real Estate Group is contained in Currengy risks 8 T !
the risk report. Interest rate risks 95 57 }
B ¢ Risks from equity securities 21 19 I % .
; Total 164 1n3 i ;
- . .. . . LTS toa s e e e e e o ;
72 Key capital ratios (based on German Commercial Code} ; —
e . ‘ Calculated in accordance with the Basel recommen- ‘ [
i

According to the recommendation on equity issued by
the Basél Committee for Banking Supervision in July
1988, the core capital ratio (core ratio/risk-weighted
assats) may pot fall below 4.0%, and the equity capital
ratio [edﬁity!fisk_—weightad assets) may not be less than
8.0%. At the same tims, the equity funds ratio calecu-

lated on the basis of the reletionship between equity =% : 31122005 31322004

funds and total risk-weighted assets plus 12.5 times the - Co"f capital ratla‘ L 83 1

weighting amount for items subject to market prics risk ~ Eauity caplal ratio 1z 20 ;
. Equily funds ratio {overall indicator) 10.8 ) 1_1.7‘

[includi'ng option transactions) must be.at least 8.0%. .

The capital ratios are caleulated on the basis of the
guidelines of the Bank for International Settlements
(B1S) based in Basel. The BIS ratios have been estab-
lished indepiande;nﬂy on a voluntary basis.

Equity funds consist of core capital and supplementary
capital (equity) plus tier IIl capital and are as follows,
according to approved annual financial statements as
of 31 December 2005:

o

3
'

O AU

Equity funds 9

dations on equity, the following ratios applied as of
31Decamber 2005 (based on approved anrual financial
statements and after profit distribution):

¢ Key capital ratios 1

W As per approved annaal financial staterents and after profit distribution

According to sections 10 and 10a of the German Banking
Act {Kreditwesengesetz - KWG), equity funds amount
to €6.3 billion. The liable equity, which comprises core
capital and supplementary capital less the deductible
item, also amounts to € 6.3 billion. Supplementary cap-
ital does not include any unrealised reserves pursuant
to section 10 {2 b) sentence 1 nos. 6 and 7 of the German
Banking Act (Kreditwesengesetz - KWG).

f 73 iContingent liabilities and other commitments

e S 7

. bin € biilion 3112.2005% 3112.2004 !
. Core capital 4372 410" Co —- - "'""II- Con e = )
" B ntingent liabilities '
Supplerq.entary capital 1,923 1,813 ¢ and other commitments o
- Equity capital 6,295 6,123 . In¢milion 31122005 31.12.2008 E
. + H «
Tier il capltal - —) , Contingent liabilities @ 2,647 4,578, #
, Total 5,795 6,123 ? ! Guarantees and indemnity agreem ents 2,647 4578 | g
B (onsofidated pm'.sum{tn section 108 German aanklng.Ar.t[KWG]: Loan guarantees 15 116, g ; ‘f_‘
as per appraved unnual‘fimnclal statements and after profit distribution L. Performance guarantees , ' .
=k and Indemnities 2,500 3927 i g
: : : : DU ‘ — i ¢
The risk-welghted assets and market risk positions were Documentary credits . 32 5% —
as follows: ) Other commitments 7,627 3,208 !
7 ' : Imevocable loan commitments 7,549 3,165 i !
S . - e Book credits 584 152 ; !
¢ Risk-wetghted assets Guarantees 273 199+ :
! ; PR i e e o .
in €billlan 3112.200% 3112.2004 : Mor tgage and public sector loans 6,682 2,814 } :
| Onbalance-sheet assets 509 457+ Other commitm ents 738 43 :
- 1 Off-balance-sheet assets 53 525 Total ) 10,274 7,786 '
! Counterparty risks in the trading book 61 01 ¥ tn principle, the amount of cortingent lia bilities equates to the amount
Total 56.3 510 of contingent claims
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The contmge“}t liabilities from performance guarantees
and lndammhes include guazantee obligations of €1.2 bil- -

lion. of Hypo Real Estate Bank International VIS-A-Vls

“HVB AG; thess were issudd as part, of the synthetlc"

portfoho Thv other contingent liabilities and othar lia-
‘bilities do nc-t ‘contain any: individual items of signifi-
canti lmpo rtance . :

xi &

Hypo Real Estate Holdmg AG has 1ssued the loss mdem-

nity declarat on for the deposit, protectxon fund estab-

" lished by th<= Bundesvarband deutscher Banken e.V:,
Berlin, as prvscnbed by the apphcab]e artlcles of asso:
matlon, ii “ EREE N S, E,

e -

. The Hypo Faal Estata Group is a !essor within’ tha

Eramework of oparatmg}aase arrangements Non-termi-

nable oparatmg lease agresments for land and build-
ings as wellias for-operating and business equipment-
* existed as Of 31 Decamber 2005. The minimum obhga-

transfsr of tha “Western Eu:ope ‘teal estate firiancing

o
« = S

ticns arising froin non-terminable leasing arrangements
- will result in costs of £ 9 million in 2006, £ 26 million
in'the years 2007 to 2010; the-costs will be € 14 million
for the period starting'2011. -

3

74 Audntors fee'

! A:d.itors fee i T ‘

{ in € thousand MI22005 . IOV
Audits 1386 2387

| Other affirm ation and assessment 7 409,

! Tax consultancy 220 132

! Dther services 540 02 ;

1oal B 3]

(s reiatonsshipwith datedparves -~

. Transactions. with :alatad companies and persons ate

1‘.
i ey <
i s
| - Oonducted on an arm's langth basis.
i : li - ‘! F Tty . ks
s '1 i E 2 r : ;. L oy,
! Consoluhted re:nuneration paid to members 2005 2004 .
| of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG’s Management Board Genenl  Profit-refated .
' in Cthousand Basic salary expenssf!  components® fotal otal ;’
' Georg Funke, Ctiairman 750 128 2,000 2878 2551
i Jonann Berger (3oard member until 8 Decem ber 2004) - - - — 1,074 i
4 Stephan Bub (Board member from 1 Decam ber 2005) 420 45 750 1,215 —1,
- 1
, Dr. Paul Eisele 400 46 900 1,346 1,127
: s Dr. Markus Fell 420 62 900 1,382 1,233
‘ Frank Lamby 420 45 900 1,365 1,233
Total 3 2 410 36 5450 51866 7,218
T e et
'ltncIudes. within Ii'mts, gcnenlexpenses for frlnge h:nef:ts,whlch underlytantm and abroad llsu ﬂlll secunty
¥ profit- related renuneration for the year 2005 but anty paid in 2606
Vi addntlon Lndivi:iual contracts for penslon commtrmrts exist arrounbng toa pertentage of the mnual fixed remuneratlon e
. :E 3 ; : : ; oo T
i v Lo
: ! € i+ oo s e g e
: Consolidated red muneratnon paidto members 2005 004 i
; of Hypo Real Ertate Hold Ing AGs Supervisory Board f
E Compensation  Remuneration
: forfunctionin  forfunctiontn
; g Bask the Nomination the Audit  Value added i
in € thousand compensation Commitiee @mmitiee tax Total Total !
| KurtF. Vierm etz Chalrman 90 12 - 16 118 !
* Dr. Ferdinand Graf von Ballestrem €0 - 10 11 81
| Antoineg leancourt-Galignani &0 - 10 11 81
' : Dr. Piater Korteweg 60 b - 11 7 R
. RobertH. Mundheim 60 - - 10 0o ’
31 Prof Dr.Klaus Pohle . 75 6 20 16 Y ;
‘Total 405 24 10 75 544 419
Remunerationpaldto membctsol’the Management Board of d:rect!yovmedsubsadia rhes 2005 -l ;
f as weil as divicional directors of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG (Senior Mamagement) Total fixed  Profit-related !
. in € thousand reruneration®  components ? Total Totak |
, y 3,301 4478 7,779 6,521
3 K - - - -t
Ty |m[udgs wlthln Ilmlts BEnerllexpenscs forfrlnge hem:flis “which underlytlxitlnn and abruad also sucial securlty R e ' .

n Pl'thtmhtl:d remu'\entnn for the year 2005 but only paid in 2006

i

e e o U E A P

U
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Rent guarantues heve been issued for two members
of the Management Board. The loan of € 1.2 million
extended in tha previous year to a member of the Man-
agement Board was fully repaid in 2005.

} T

In 2005, the members of the Supervisory Board of Hypo
| Real Estate Holding AG did not receive any compensa-

1

Finandal Statements ‘123
Notes T3 to 76 !
Cther Notes |

!
A

i tion for personal services. On the réfererice date for the *l'
financial stataments, thers wera no receivables or con- ! )
tingent liabilities in respect of members of the Supervi-. | !
sory Board. ; ‘—

S - - ' [
The following table sets out shares and share deriva- ) f
tives -of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG which have beer , ;

: purchased or sold by members of the Supervisory Board d ’

; ‘ and Mapaganient Board of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG

! in accordanca with the disclosure obligation pursuant . g
to section 154 of the Securities Trading Act (Wertpapler- i i
handelsgeset’—WpHG) (Directors’ dealings): ; { f
U R I {

. Directors’ Dealings (§ 15a prc) ' [

' Prof. Or. Klaus Pohle Prof. Or. Klaus Pohls : i
C Member of the Memberofthe !
. Function as Member of the Executive bodies Supervisory Board Supervisory Board ' .
‘ Type of transaction Sate Sale I I
‘ Esalpﬂon ofﬂuanciallnstrument——_ —: Discount certificate . Dlscountcerﬁ*f;;‘t:' : }
ISIN/WKN of finandal instrument DEOOODBIYVI0/DB3YVY DEJOODROAGY?2 | i

f . Date of ransaction _ 1232005 T 33008 !
' Place of transachon - ) Farmkfurt Frankfurt ) i ‘

. Price - 277¢ 7He 1
" Nom ber of items 12,600 9000, ! :
. Hypo Real EstateHoldingAG  HypoReal Estate Holding AG L :
Discription of underlying financlal instrument bearer shares bearer shares . |

" ISINJWKN DEOOQ8027707/302770 DEOQQ8027707/802770 : l
Strike price 2400€ 2750¢ f
Price multiplier 1.1 11 I

' Expiration date - 1562005 16.9.2005 * :
. _ e T !

: B Y
'

On 31 December 2005, the mamba‘rs_ of the Management
Board 'and the Supervisory Board together held less
than 1% of ihe total shares issued by Hypo Real Estate

shares, The stock of Kurt F. Viermetz amounts te 50,000
shares..

%
2

EEI}{i’:lt;yees »w,w e

T Y

AR A ; - .
Average numbar of employees :

2005
- Employees (exiduding trainees) 1,272 1,403
Full-time ernplcy-;e—s~ 1,170 1,2_?(5‘
Part-time e;ﬂbinyees 102 133
. Apprentices g 13 ;
Total 1,281 1,416

Holding AG! Georg Funks holds a total number of 30,876

Financial Statemerts
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"Exludiugtheffects fmupmllsed los ses carried forward. . "'
a As per appruved arinlnl financial statements ;

Breg ‘
. i l
!
'
{
j
Hypo Real Estate Group ;
4th Quarter 13t Quarier 2nd Quarter 3rd Quartar &th Quarter :
2004 20 205 2005 w05 |
! Opemrting perforinance *
' Qperating revenues in€ mitlion 220 210 225 233 241 :
Netinterestincome in€ miflon 176 165 165 171 184 !
Met commission Income in€ mittion 10 21 38 33 £l i
Net trading income in€ million 6 7 7 12 1 i
, Metincome from investments In€ mittion 33 11 12 16 28 i
i _Balance of other operating income/expenses in€ miflion -5 4 3 1 -3
. . | Provisions for losses on loans and advances " in€ milllon 55 35 36 41 37 l
- Gener21 administrative expenses in€ miltion 86 73 76 79 9 ]
Bal:nce of other incomefexpenses !
o (exdudlng rastructuring expenses) In€ milhon -13 - - -1 - E
‘> Net Incom efloss before taxes i
- {exduding restru-turing expenses) in€ mittion 66 102 113 112 115 !
i Restructuring expenses in€ miflion - - - - 34 '
. Netincomefloss befare taxes in€ rritlion 66 102 113 112 81 )
Netincomefloss? in€ miflion 48 78 8 82 70 :
| , ‘ !
¢ Key indicators |
' Total volume of lending in € billan 99.1 95. 356 9§39 q4] |
- Risk assets compliant with BIS rules in € biition 510 511 £28 532 56.3 !
: Core capital ratio compliant with BIS rules in% 832 8.2 1% 18 782 i
E"f'?lofffi e o 1,311 1287 1,256 1,258 1,233 :
S b Exludlng theeﬁccj fmmupiullscd los ses cartied fomard S i l
ution” ;
! Hypo Real Estate International
i dthQuarter 15t Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quartar 4th Quartar .
! 2004 2005 2005 2005 2005
' Operating performance :
_} Operating revenues In€ mittion 89 102 109 128 124 - '
: Net Interestincome ] in€ mittion 60 65 65 74 83 .
Net commission income in€ milion 23 29 31 39 36 ,
. Nettradingincyme in€ mifiion 6 7 7 12 1y !
Netincom e from investments in€ miltion 2 - S 2 5
' Balance of other operating income/expenses in€ miltion -2 1 1 1 -1 !
! Provisions for losies onloans and advances in€ milon -9 2 - 7 2 |
General adminis?atWe expenses in< million 40 37 37 2 47 l
Balance of other iIncomefexpenses ine€ rriflion -1 - — -1 - i
: Netincomefloss before taxes in¢ mittion 57 63 72 78 75 |
" Netincomefloss ¥ N — in€ mifion 42 47 52 __55 V__.'E !
" Key indicators ! :
Total volume of |ending In € billign 178 179 196 “‘_56—1 201 b
: Risk assets comp'iant with BIS rules in € billion 17.3 178 193 202 212 i
_3 Core capital atio compliant with BIS ries in% 973 101 91 19 893|
Emplcyees e e e 504 499 484 . Am 452

N —r—
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Finandial Statements
Note. T

* | .Other Notes 1
Wiiritembergisch Hypothekenbank el
¥ 4th Quariar 1st Quartar 2nd Quarter 3rd Quartar dth Quarter
; 2004 2005 2005 2005 2005
Operating performance
Operating revenues in< mitlion, 32 2 32 29 36
Netinterestincome in € million 26 30 ey} 31 28
Net cominisslon income in € millian -2 -2 -2 -1 -2
-, Nettradingincome in € million - - - - -
o " Netincome from investments ' in € million 9 4 1 1 10
% a Balance of other operating income/expenses in € million -1 — - - - i
I s Provisions for lossas on loans and advances in € million 3 6 4 5 :
General administrative expenses in € millian 9 8 7 9 11 E
Balance of other incom e/expenses in € million - - = — — i
: Netincome/loss before taxes in € million 14 21 19 16 20 P
Netincome/loss ) in € million 13 19 19 14 23 t
- : i
«: Key indicators [
; Total volume oflending in € billion 205 203 204 ___ 195 195 .
=i Risk assets compliant with BIS rules in € billion 10.1 105 106 10.7 i2.4 :
. o : Core capital ratio compliant with BIS rules ” in% 7.1v 68 6.8 6.7 63y :
ot v Employees 1Y) 178 179 179 IQTJ '
A R S u e sccant ks e e gt T e T T T e T T T g :

+
Hypo Reat Eﬂate(;ermany . % -
4thQuarter 1st Quarter Ind Quartar 3rd Quarter dthQuarter| . | -
2004 2005 2005 2005 05 E
Operating perfomance e
Operating revenuas ~in € rillion 99 77 85 77 83 !
t Netinterestincime in € milion 90 7 68 67 A
! Met commissior. income in € million -10 -3 8 -3 -3
Net rading inccme In € million — — - — - ;
__Netincome fiom investments in € millian 22 7 6 13 13 H
“Balance ofothel operatl};g Incom efexpenses in € million -3 1 3 - -3 t
_ | Provisions for losses on loans and advances In € rrillion S i 0 30 30 i
. General adminisirative expenses in € million 1 24 26 23 25 .
", Balance of other incom e/expenses in € million -1 - - - - {
! Netincomeéfloss Eefore taxes in € million 2 23 29 24 28 |
Netincomefloss ™ . in € million - 19 22 18 21 I
L . '
: Key indicators 5
; Total vdlume of lending in € bilkon 62.2 592 56.7 £49 536 :
) f Risk assets compliant with BIS rules in € billion 242 234 230 228 240
- Core capital ratio compliant with BIS rules in% 842 79 80 81 172 .
 Employees N 592 560 544 53¢ w0l |
. “E:a:ludrg tl'e effectsfrumczpitzllsediossesurrledfomard .. . . .. :
R “"As appmd anrual fmanclal sta?emenu ' L L :
|
}
Lo 4
L ¥ o 4
o 1 - :
R |
k i
5 o 4 ) |
1

]
i
f
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g H] : T B b
f B -
oo : ' ‘ L
3 : (' - e - P - P {
- ESummary ofannual finandal dat: B _ e
N .i e = - B R
I-Iypo Real Estate 3roup ;
. ln(ome.fex'penses ! . H §
Fin € million 2005 2004 2003 2020 20014 ;
‘_ Netinterestincome 685 683 674 670 733 i
| H aam;sk?orlo?s; on loans and advances - 149 276 52 505 23“'2. S
! Netmterat mcomeafter provisions losses on loans and advances 536 407 422 165 451 }
 Net commission iacome B 125 94 45 11 7
! Net trading income 27 11 - - -1 H
* Netincom e from investments 67 47 -1 62 66 | .
§ General administrative expenses ' 317 315 260 235 227 ' )
; Balance of other aperating income/expenses 5 - 19 17 52 :
- Operting profit/ioss 443 244 125 20 358 |
; Balance of other income/fexpenses -35 -23 -69 -4 -13 i
= Net income/loss before taxes 408 221 15 16 345 | l
; Taxes on income ¥ a5 53 40 27 103 ;
Netin(omefloss » e R 313 _ 163 . . 116 —11 242 %
I . 1 The financial data a5 of 31 December 2002 and a1 56 the comparative figures for the financial year énding 31 December 2001 are based on the segmert data for KVBAG's ]
! “Hypo Group™ segmznt tontained in the consolidated financial staterments of HVB AG for the financial ysar 2002 (including the comparative figures for the financial year 2002); ]
: they have beenenhisnced in termsof depthof detall and the figures for FGH Bank have beenext luded .
f ' “Ezludmgtheeffemfromr_:pttnllsed los ses carried forward : :
B o : |
| - WMembers nf the SupervisoryBoard .- . 3
| . - andofthe : Management Board b o . X
| ) .. R “J - S e e RS . g
f Supervisary Bcaard . ) B Audlt Com mattee :
| : - KurtFE Viermatz (Chairman) R Prof. Dr. Klaus Pohle [Cha]rman) |
| P Prof Dr.Klaus Pohle [Vice-Chairiman) Dr. Ferdinand Graf von Ballestrem |
| P Dr, Ferdinand Graf von Balléstrem "+ Antoine ]eancourt-Ga]ignani ‘ H
. Antoine:Ieancourt Galignani ' .
K « Dr. Pieter Kortawag B ‘ . Management Board el B
Robert H Muacheim - - o " -Geérg Funke (Chalrman) .
».v 2 .Fg ' : [ . Stephan Bub [smca 1 Decambar ZOOEJ
: . Commitee for Nomin:tlon and. Bo:rd Procedures * " Dr Paul Eisele Celen i
v ' KurtE Vtermestz [Chaxrman) S0 w 0 Do Markids Fail, . o
o Dr PlatarKortaweg e " Frank Lamby. . o : .
Prof. Dr. Klaus Pohls ' ’ : S ; - : ‘ (
fo L ‘ i
-
; R ‘
' |
oo 5.
o ; |
i %
.
i ;
-. * i
)
|
.
o
| ,
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 [80:Hdldings ofFiypoReal Estate Holding A

[

' S
for SETE ,;‘5
Finandal Statements {127-]
Notes 78 to 80 N
Other Notes ; . .
) ;
! H

4 H S R L
JERCC SR S, 3%._“ J S N VL ,;n@vm—,'.,‘.u I AR S N M A SR - [ - [
+ Holdings of i 1
i n :

Hypo Real Estate Holding AG fterestin % Tetal asset Equity  Netincomer ;
; wtal Sec. 16 [4) of which [ Alternative § !

. Stock Corp. Act  held indirectly Currency in thousand in thousand inthgusand  financlal year *
' Subsidiaries ) -
i Consolidated subsidiaries ! )
“t Domestic banks and ! f
i finandalinstitutions oy
! HypoRea! Estate Bank AG, Munich 100.00 - € 74971465 2,101,469 51,942 -

. H :
. Worttembergische Hypotheken- £ :

{  bank AG, Stuttgart 10000 - € 36233916 734529 3 S

' Foreign banks and :

X ! financiat tnstitutions : |
f Hype Capltal Markets Inc, New York 10000 100.00 Uss 6,702 5,612 471 - i
¢+ HypoPfandbilef Bank International po
: 5.A, Luxembeurg 9999 99.99 € 7,136,450 99,7% 4567 - i I
: Hypo Public Finance USA Inc, oo

New York 100.00 100.00 Uss- - 67,858 8,165 3,025 - i
- — "
1 HypoReal Esiate Bank International, o
i Dublin 99.99 —_ € 27,195,150 1,803,908 177,322 - ! I
T HypoReal Estate Capital Hong Korng i '
+ Corp.limited, Hongkeng 10000 100.00 HKD 608,578 9,560 ~-440 =
i Other consolidated subsidiaries ; {
; HypoRaal Es=ate Transactions SAS, , i :
I Paris : 10000 100.00 € 211,955 40 -12 =y
: HypoProperty Investment(1992) Ltd,, 2 i
London 10000 £0.00 fe-14 54 - - =1
N HypoProperly Investmentttd., a I
¥ Llonden 100.00 100.00 GBE 507 334 51 =
. - HE
. HypoProper'y Partidpation Ltd., )
j _ Londen 10000 100.00 Bt a78 200 148 - |
;  HypoPropery Services Ltd., tondon M 10000 100.00 CBE 100 100 -1 - ? i
f Hypo Real Estate Capital Corp,, I
| New York (sub-group) 160.00 100.00 uss 4,213,790 278,953 41390 -
<4 Hypo‘ReaI Estate Capital Japan Cerp., : : I
b Tokyo 100.00 100.00 IPY 122644514 12222355 986,660 - !
' i
. Hypo Real Estate Capital Ltd, London . .
i (sub-group) 100.00 100.00 GBE 67,008 61651 14,290 = [
" HypoReal Extate Investment Banking H
Ltd, London 10000 100.00 GBt 467 200 152 _i
Isar East6olh Street LLC, New York 10000 100.0¢ Us$ 6,639 - — -
i lsar Gotham West 33th Street LLC, ' }
'! New York 10000 100.00 uss 6,539 1 - !
i Isar RP Member LLC,New York 10000 100.00 uss - 1 - -1
. IsarTwo Columbus LLL, New York 100.00 100.00 Uss 806 - = = i |
L biffey 451 LLC New York 10000 10000 Uss 40,114 2,271 1,415 =
| The dreater Mandhester Property . L
¢ Enterprise Fund Lid;, london 100.00 100.00 CBE 126 123 110 —!
Zamara Investments Lid, Gibraltar ~_loooo 10000 __GBE /8,827 __9,927 ) 472 - }'

B . R i.
 mpliat with saction 313 ) of the Garman Comrrerclal Gods (HGE)

¥ prof it floss-transfar o partners due to profit-and-loss-transfer agreement- .

o ——————— b e p————— e+

PR

el

Fir;anc;alsuterf\:e'itgi‘: st e
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. Holdings of
. Hypo Real Estate lolding AG Iterest in Total asset Equity Net Incomes i
' total Sec. 16 (4) of which loss Alternative !
Stock Corp. Act  held indirectly Currercy Inthousand tn thousand Inthousand  financial war I
Non consdidatEd subsidiaries
Other non-consalldated stbs:dlarles . ‘
Coilineo Asset Managem ent GmbH, v
Dortmund 100.00 100.00 € 12,410 10,000 841 =
i Frappant Altena GmbH, Munich 94.00 3400 € 14,143 25 » -
: - s
! FUNDUS Gesallschaft fur Grundbesitz i
i und Betelll gungen mbH, Munich 94.00 94.00 € 4563 904 3 —
: ;
- GfA-Gesellschaft fur Anwendungs- 11-4
| software mbH, Stuttgart 66,66 6666 £ £528 1,703 962 31122004
. T
. GR-Gesellschaft fur Immablilien- Cy
’E entwicklung und wverwaltung mbH, 15.,-3 i
| Stuttgart 100.00 100.00 € 265 151 9 31122004 !
,  GR-Gesellschaft fir Rechen- 11-
: zentrumsleistungen mbH, Stuttgart 0000 160.00 € 3,362 2,173 1,004 31122004 {
' * i
GOV Gesellsehaft fir Grundbesi tz- i |
verwaitung und Immeobilien- !
i Management mbH, Munich 93.95 9385 € 3945 2,072 3 - ]
: Hypo Dublin Froperties Limited, 11- ‘
i Dublin 100.00 10000 € 161 -181 -11 31122004 ;
! IMMO Immotillen Management ‘ i
! Betelligungsgesellschaft mbH, v
i Munich 100.00 10000 £ 32 30 -1 =
! IMMOEmmotilien Management
! GmbH & Co. X G, Minchen 3400 9400 € 101,120 -1,197 -13,948 - 3 ;
‘ IMMO Invest Sewerbe GmbH, :
' Munich 100.00 100.00 € 26 26 2 -,
i IMMO Invest Real Estate GmbH, !
t Munich 100.00 100.00 € 29 28 3 -
| IMMO invest Wohrwir tschaft GmbH, i
Munich 106.00 10¢.00 € 23 23 3 -
¢ IMMO Trad!ng, 1 GmbH, Munich 100.00 100,00 € 1374 525 L -
é Meridles Grundbesitz- und Bebau- .
© ungsgesellschaft mbH, Munich 94.00 9400 € 4111 78 2 -
E PBI-Betelli gungs-GmbH i, 11-
i Munich 100.00 100.00 € 51806 51,529 65 31122004 ¢
b Ragnardk Vermagensverwaltung AG !
E‘ & Co KG, Munich 9400 9400 € 72627 -2,577 -2,577 -t
WestHyp Finance BY, 11~} :
Amsterdam 100.00 10000 € 713 681 -65 31122003
¢ WestHyp Immobilien Holding GmbH, 1.1.—% !
+  Dortmund 100.00 10000 € 1361 304 270 313220047
i WGSWohn- und Grundbesitz 11-
I Stendal Gmbid, Stendal 100.00 10000 € 9562 45 6 31122004
i WH Erste Grundsticks Verwal tungs 11-1
+ GmbH, Waltersdorf 100.00 10000 € 279 217 117 31.122004°
t
s WH -Erste Grundsticks 11— !
GmbH & Co Y.G, Waltersdorf 9400 9400 € 194431 130,072 3,304 11.122004
! WH-Zwelte Grundstucks Verwaltungs 11-¢
v GmbH, Waltersdorf 100.00 100.00 € 21 20 -4 It12 200-4‘
WH-Zweite Grundstlcks 11-, |
- GmbH & Co. 1G, Waltersdorf 100.00 8400 € 58,640 58628 -12,359 3112 2004
: WHIWirttem berger Hypo Imm o- :
{  bilienbewer tungs- und Beratungs- 11- i
L gesellschaft r bH, Stuttgart 100.00 100.00 [ 311 1%6 55 31 12. 2004

v Cr:mpllantwlth sectlcn 113 @) cf the Gernian GGrmmercial Codc (HG B :
 Prefit/loss.transfei o partners dus to profit-» ad-loss:t ransfer agreefnent '
" profit/loss. tunsfzrtuMerldie: Grundbultz und Bebauungsgesellschuft mbH; Munithdue 1o profit-and-loss tnnsfe: tgreement :

i

g o | g i e
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finandal Statements

" y : N ¢
o
—————— — Bn ‘E - ——— — ey m e . — e AT e e e b A 4 e g ooy g B es s ua  rarreer rmman k4 . e - .
2 Holdings of )
‘{ Hypo Rea'._EStatB Holding AG® Interestin % Totat asset Equity Net Income/
g : totat Sec. 16 @) of which loss Altemative
H Stock Corp. Act  held indirectly Currency In thousand in thousand Inthousand  financlal year
: Otherlmétments ’ |
Banks and other linandal institiztions B
¢ Stuttgarter Volksbank AG, 11-.
o+ Stuttgart 018 0.18 € 1,659,426 115,621 2,434 31122004
{ Other comapnies
Aerodrom Bureau Verwaltungs GmbH, 11-,
Berlin 3200 32.00 € 608 - 22 31122003 E
Agir Vermdgensverwaltung '
GmbH & Co. KG, L)
: Manich : 001 001 € 27,017 26,714 815 31.12.2004°
i Airport Qureau'u’erwaltungs GmbH, 11- :
Berlin 3200 32.00 € 206 151 169 31.12.2003
: Amotfos Grundsticksgeselischaft 11-"
. mbH & (a.KG, Berlin 250 250 € 34,723 -123% %06 31.12.2004 '
. Bayerische Landessiedlung GmbH, 1i-:
¢ Munich 264 294 € 265,327 - 68516 13562 31.12.2004
% Burleigh Coxrt (Barnstey) i
‘i Management Limited, London 2000 2000 GBe - — - !
{ - — o i
; DeutschesTheater Grund- l
| und Hausbesit: GmbH, 11-1
i Munich 330 330 € 11,980 2323 -233 31.12.2(?64 !
i —_— 3
E OWG Gemeinniitz ge Wohnstatten- :
% und Siedlungsgresellschaften mbH, 11~}
e Munich. >0 >0 € 883,380 169,058 432 31122004 ;
£ Illit Grund stiics-Verwaltungs- :
. gesellschaftmbH & Co KG, . 11~
~ Grinwald 5.00 5.00 € L7719 -13,971 -1633 31122004
{
! Imuta Grundstt cks-Verwal tungs- !
i gesellschaft mbH & Co XG, 11-"
Griinwald ___1ooo 10.00 € 112594 -45833 -2,689  31.12.2003
! - '
i Kaufhof pius Grundstiicksvermietungs- i
i gesellschaft mbH & Co. Objekt 11-!
. BahnhofBerlin KG, Diisseldorf 5.02 5.02 € 44868 -10,103 1,325 31.12.2004
{ KOROS Grundstdcks-Verwaltungs 11-7
! GmbH & Co. K, Grianwald 250 250 € 21,850 - 183 31122004,
| - f
;. LEGLandesentwicklungsgesellschaft 1
¢ Nordrhein-Wastfalen Gmb, 11~
; Disseldorf >0 >0 € 1,385,255 191,409 =27,062 31122004 |
i 1
E LHttmm obillenfonds Verwaltungs !
i GmbH & Co. Objekt Hettstedt KG, 11- ;
o Munich 509 509 € 14,634 -3,753 645  31.12.2004
4 Projektentwl diung Schonefeld ‘
3 Verwattungsgusellschaft mbH, : 11
¢ Stuttgart 5000 5000 € 29 28 2 31122004,
£ saND Grundsticks-Vermietungs- ‘
| geselischaft mbH & Co. Objekt 11-,
& Dresden KG, Disseldorf 3333 3333 € 16,433 -3,555 456 31122004
i SOMA Grunds-lcks-Yermietungs- .
¢ gesellschaft mbH & Co Objekt 11-
| Darmstad1kG Dusseldorf 1333 3333 R 34,404 5,480 -677 31122008

o ompliant with section 313 2} of the Garman Gommercial Gode (HGB). -

1

Notes 80
Other Notes
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' :
1
. . N |
3 E
v ]
L . e L " o i
: Holdings of )
' Hypo Rea! Estate Hokling AG ¥ Interestin% _ Total asset Equity Nt incomes ;
. total Sec.16 (4} of which loss AlErnative .
é Stock Corp.Act  held inciirectly Currency in thousand In thousand inthousand  financiat year « :
SP Projektentwicklung Schénefeld 11- {
GmbH & Co. KG, Stuttgart 50.00 50.00 € 30,328 29,406 192 31122004 -
Vier te Alrport Bureau Center KG H
Alrport BureauVerwaltungs 1i- !
., GmbH &{o,Berlin 32.00 3200 € 13892 398 ~158 31122004 ‘
WILMA Bouw fonds Bauprojekte
GmbH & Co. An den Teichen® KG, 11~ 3
Ratingen . 5.00 500 € 307 123 =59 31122004 ;
Wisus Beteiligungs GmbH & Co. ;
v Zweite Vermietungs-KG, 1.1-
{  Minchen 33.00 33.00 € 12672 -3,381 -190 31.122004
R Eentirt i Tt T e e P e v R T e - v -
 Compllant with section 313 @) of the German Commeial tode (HGE) i
B . 1
: i
ook i
i
~ Murich, 7 March-2008 Ii
Hypo Real Estate Holding Aktiengesellschaft i
x A ‘ ‘ \ |
3
The Managenient Board &
Funke Bub Eisele Fell Lamby- !
I
i ;
| |
i !
: i
' [
|
.
; . l
' i
M ;
‘
i |
! !
E i
- |
T
1
H
o f
[ : i
! L
! g
| |
b ! |
!
. |
. I |
i ’
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Al}ditor’s f—Report . Financial Statements 1131
T T e Notes 80 | -
p - Other Nates i
: Auditor’s Report ,*
We have audited the consolidated finarcial statements, + The audit mcludes assessing the financial slatements -
‘comprising the balance shest, the income statsmant " 6f the compames included in the consolidated finan- l j
and the staternents of changes i shareholders’ equity cial statements, the definition of the group of consoli- ' i
and cash flows as well -as the notes to the financial dated companiss, the applied accounting principles and ]
statements prﬂparad by Hypo Real Estate Holdmg AG, significant estimates made by the. Management Board, 3 Tos
Munich,for tae business ysar from 1 January. 2008 to as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the - !
31December 2005, The preparation of the consolidated . consolidated financial statements and the consolidated . i
financial statements and consolidated management re- management tepott. We beliave that our audit provides -
port in accorc ance with the [FRS, as applicsble in the  a reasonable basis for our opinion. | }
EU, and the supplementary regulations -of Commergial o - 5 .
Law applicable in accordance with section 3152 (1)HGB  Our audit has not resulted in any reservations. [
are the responsibility of the company’s Managsment R
Board. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on In our opinion, on the basis of our findings gained in . : ’
these consohdatad financial statements and the consol-  the course of our audit, the consolldated financial ' P
idated management report basad on dur audit. We were  statements are consistent with IFRS as applicable in i
also appointed to assess whether the consolidated finan-  the EU and the supplementary regulations of Commaes- v
cial'statements are overall also consistent with IFRS. cial Law applicable according to section 315a (1) HGB { .
. ‘ ' ' " as well as the IFRS overall, and provide a true and fair | P,
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial view of the net assets, financial position, results of op- P
statements in‘accordanca with section 317HGB and also  erations and cash {lows of the Hypo Real Estats Group %
on the basis ;of German gsnerally accepted standards  for the business year in accordance with these regula- i o
for the audit ¢f financial statements promulgated by the  tions. The consolidated management report is consistent | o
Institut der Wnrtschaftsprufar (IDW). Those standards  with the consolidated financial statements, and overall - P
require that we plan and perform the audit suck that provides an accurate picture of the position of the ' :
irregularities and breaches of regulations which have a .Group, and ‘accurately presents the opportunities and
‘Tnajor impact on the pressntation of the view of the net  risks of future development. i ;
assets, financial position and results of aperations pro- ‘ i
vided by the consolidated financial statements in accord- '
ance with the applicable accounting regulations and .- : ) .
also prov1ded by the consolidated manaperdent report Munich, 15-March 2006 o
are recogmse_d with adequate reliability. Knowledge of j
the business activities and the sconomic and legal envi- ]
ronment of the Group-and evaluations -of possibie mis- T o i _' '
statements ars taken into account in the determination KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft i i
of audit procedurss. The audit includes assessing the  Aktiengesellschalt -
effectivenessiof the accounting-related internal control ~ Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft ! [:
system as well as the avidence supporting the amounts - ' - S ; i 'i
and disclosuresin the consolidated financisl statements : { '
and consolidated management report which are exam-  Paskert Techst ' .
ined on a test basis within the framework of the audit. - Wirtschaftspriifer Wirtschaftspriifer : t E
' ! V3
. : iz
; [
‘ 5
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1323,

Ten Towers

The Ten Towers featuring excellent architectural design
were completed in the Fast of Munich in June 2005.
They provide a total area of 68,500 m?, and offer office
space of 64,000 m2. In addition, thers is also a restau-
rant, a fitness center and an,underground parking with
651 parking spaces. The building complex consists of a
total of ten office towers, each with 15 storeys, and a
totunda. -Glass pedestnan walkways connsct tha indi;
vidual towers.

Deutsche Telekom, whlch intends to develop the location
into a regional headquarters, is a long-term tenant of the
attractively located property.

The borrowers ara a total of five property companies.
London & Regional Properties (L&R) is the shareholder
ofthess companies ~via aLuxembourg holding structurs,
With an overall portfolio worth approx. GBE 3.5 billion
(approx. €5.1hillion), L& R is one of the largest private
investors in Great Britain.

Hypo Real Estate Bank AG has provided f'nancmg run-
mng into-nine t'lgures with & term of five years.

Enclosures, 29 March 2006
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134 New Structures - ey _ |

New cor ﬁoyate structure sfij:;m January2 ggﬁ .

4

+ Group and Management Structure of Hypo Real Estate Group

; -4 asof1332006

RN, _,' Management Boald of Hypo Real F_state I-Ioldmg AG -
= . GeorgFunke (CEQ) - s
e Stephan Bub| Dr Paul Eisele I Dr. Markus Fell | Frank Lamby

b T O G L e . .
!
]

AP ¥ - 7 - T

R T T

.'Management Board of . - Management Board of U i Management Board 01 ’

Hypo Real | anklntemational AG ~.Hypo Publlc Flname Bank. . . ... Hypo ReaIBtate Bankm

Stuttgart |- R S Dublin " & T = Munich;
" Dr.Paul EISﬂle(SpOKQSman) - 'Stephan Bub (CEO) o i »'FrankLamby(Spokesman)

torgenFenk . - - 4 James Campbell - "o 7t FManuelaBetter .

“Cr, Robert Cirassinger (Depity spokesman) Tom Glynn {Deputy, CEO) - <Reinhoid Guntner - -~

Friedrich-Wilhelm Ladda {until 31.03.2006) Heather Nesbi tt Lo o1 FrankRelbwlg ‘ . .
Bettinavon Qesterreich . . e Lo B B - o : :
Manfred Weil. o ' N : o

I ‘a : 3 ol

Lk , [ A R e

I The new Plandbrief Law'in the year 2005 was &n oppor: stobla/P1 by Moodys and a rating 'of A-/stabla/A-2 by
‘ S ;,tumty Whlch the Hypo Réal Estate Group utlllsed lmme - -Standard&Poor 3 R .

diately:to enhance its competltlveness ‘Dieto’a further LT !
tlghtemng cf the corporate structure the Group will, T]:_le'German real_.egt_ata financing business will be poaled
achievé mote tiansparency and. power.. As part of the  at:Hypo Real Estate Bank AGin Munich..
process of restructuring the,Group, the long-standing
expartise of Wiirttembergische Hypothekanbank in inter- Theformer Hypo Real Estate Bank Internatioral in Dub-
national Pfandbrief-based real’estate financing business = lin.has been renamed Hypo Public Finance Bank This
was combmed with the know how of Hypo Real Estate. new business segmént constitutes a further diversifica-
Bank International in. structurad real<estate: finadcing . tion of the. Grbup s fanga of products, and opens up new
business. The: internatiohal’ Léal estats ﬁnancmg busi- growth potentlal beyond pure ceal estate financingbusi- -
. nass of the former Hypo Real Estate BankInternatlonal_ ness. Existing structures in the Group can ‘be utilised
. in Dublm hés beer transfarred t6 Wurttemberglsche Hy~ for &stablishing thls tbusiitess segment,-and have: facili-
pothekenbank in Stuttgart. Wiitttembeigische'Hypothe- tated the rapid commancemant of-business. The cors
kerbank in Stuttgart was then renamed HypoReal Estats  business operatlons of the Hypo Public Finance Bank
Bank Intetnational AG. The centrs of compatencs for'in:  comprise-public finande (processed ‘almost entitely by
ternational customers which has been created in this way: the Hypo Pfandbrief Bank International), the financing
now enables all services and preducts to be provided of major.infrastructural projects, as well'as a number of
from a single effective entity. The new Hypoe Real Estate financial setvices. The wide rangs of products offered
Bank International AG has been given a rating of A2/ by the Hypo Public Finance Bank includes various cap-

i
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Mew Structures 1
IR TP New corporatestructure since t January 2006 |

" Bank Internatlonal AG‘ and it'haginowin turn.

- 30 Iune 2005,

ital market products. The husmess model onypo Pub-
lic Finance Bank is charactansed by a:favourable zisk

profile and low markaet risk. Hypo'Public Finance Bank -

has’ been provided with a guarantee:by Hypo Real Estate

Hypo Pubhc Fmance Bank has, been given a ratmg of

. AZ/stable/P 1 by Moody’s and a.rating of A- /stable/a-2

by St_ar_g;_!ard & Poor's. In addition, Standard & Poor's
awarded’ a rating of A-/stable/A-2 t6 Hypo Pfandbrief
Bank International in January 2006.

}

i

) Lok - N S “'_ -4.-._.
Redefinition of business segments
- L ‘ . L :

As descnbed in the interim report for the perlod cended
the Managament Board of Hypo Real
Estate Hoidlng AG has defined new primaty segmants
for the Group as part of the process of recrganising the
Group. As depicted above, the Hypo Real Estate Group
in futurs will be managed via the followmg three busn
ness segments

Internationai business with large- -volume structure real
estate financing will be pooled in:the business segment

‘Internahonaliendmg Segmentreportmg will include.the
' cont:lbutlons to; eammgs made‘ 'y'the folloi

consolldatad companies:

. Hypo Real Estate-Bank Internatlonal Dublm
[excl' trading activities and puhli¢ financs)

] Hypo Real Estate Capital Corp., New York
[sub-group with a total of six cothpanies)

®» Hypo Real Estate Capital Japan Corp., Tokyo

s Hypo Real Estate Capital Ltd., London
{sub-group with a total of eight companies)

m Hypo Roal Estate Transactions S,A.8., Parls .

u Wurttemberglsche Hypothekenbank AG, Stuttgart
(sub-group with a-total of two companies}- -

Enclosures, 2% March 2006

rovzded.i

( ‘-the contnbutlo

The Hypo Real Estate Group thus has achisved an even
clearer structure with a sharp dtstmctlon betweon do-
mestic and international business, enhanced by a fucther
majot division of-state financing and capital market

.'(busmess The com lemty of the Group} has been reduced

“wnll fiither speed up-the process-

es in- operatmg iness The?possibility of combining

Pfandbnef based: busmess with uncovered business will

further enhance:the bank’s effectivensss in the markets.

German real estate financing businsss will be concen-
trated in the German Lending business segment. This seg-

metit will be used” excluswely for the contributions to
earnings mada by HypoReal Estate Bank AG {sub-group
with a total of 16 companies) based in Munich.

i future, public finance(incl. government lending, inira-

structure financing, local authority project financing
and forfeiting) and-capital market business (indl. credit
derivatives and asset management) will be pooled in the
Public Finance, segment Segment reporting will include
itoh earmngs made by the following
fu]]y consolldated ‘Gompanies:

& _Hypo Capital. Markets Inc.; New York
= Hypo Pfandbnef Bank International S.A.,

" Luxembourg. - -
» Hypo Public Finance USA Inc., New York
a Hypo Real Estate Bank International, Dublin
(trads activities and Public Finance business)
m Pallas Capital Corporation, Delawars

Page 16i7 of 245
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)

International Lending

Budget

in € million

Budget 2005

.t NetIncom eflass before taxes

Key Finandials

Opemting perlormance

305 t0 325

2004

Opearating revenues

tn€millian |

455

Netinterestincome

in € mithon |

321

Net cemmission income

in € million

120

Net trading income

in € matlion |

Netincom e frem investments

in € million

Balance of other operating income/expenses

in ¢ mitlion

13

Provisions for lovses on loans and advances

in € metlion

" General administrative expenses

in € million

Ba'ance of other income/expenses

In € million

Netincomefloss before taxes

in€ milllon}.

56

139

)

259

Netincomefloss 3

In € millian j- -

210

Keyy ratios

Return or equity after taxes #¥

in%]

102

Cost-income ratio (based on operating revenues)

in% "

H Key indicators

305

3112.004

Total volume of lending

in € billon

362

Risk assets compllant with BIS rules

in € bilion |-

Core capital ratio compliant with BIS riies?

254

in%

82

 Excluding the effrcts fromcapitalised bos ses carried forward
#Based on allocatedca pital
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i "+ New Stuctures {137
" Redefinition of buisiness segments *
-} Intarnational Lending

.
4thQuarter st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3cd Quarter Ath Quarter ] %‘E.
2004 2005 20605 2005 2005 i ab
Operating perfomnance -
Operating revenuss In Mio.€ 109 173 129 115 145 N
Netinterestincome inMio.€ 81 89 % 99 101 e
Net commission income in Mo, € 21 27 30 30 ' i
Net trading Income in Mio. € — 1 — 2
. Netincome from investments in Mio. € 9 5 5 3
“ ! Balance of other operating income/expenses in mio € -2 1 -1 1
) Provisions fat losses on loans and advances InMio.C - 5 6 11 i
_T General administrative expenses 1n Mio. € 39 S 3% 41
’ Balance of other incom efexpenses inMio.€ -1 - - 1 -
-+ Netincome/loss before taxes inMio. € 69 43 87 82 94
Netincomelloss? In Mo, € 54 65 68 ) 93
Key indicators S
Total volume of lending in wrd € 36,2 363 38,5 375 377
. Risk assets comptiant with BIS rules in Mrd. € 25,4 25,8 280 28,4 316 -
 Lore capital ratio compliant with BIS rules 2 in% 8,2 89 8,3 81 15 .

. Mexludng the effacts from'nplt’all' <
: sedonallocated apital

escarried furward

'
T
Ta -t
e

T

3

New Strudures T
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in € million

Budg et 2005 -
Metincom efloss lefore taxes 96 to 105
P : ‘ -
. A D P o A T
.+ Key Finandals
2004
. Opemating performance :
. Operatingrevenues in € mitlion | 358 -
Netinterestincome in€ millian § ! 354
Net commisslon income in € million -25
Net trading iIncome in€ million -
Netincome from investments in € millian i
Balance of other oparating income/expenses in € million -2
Provisions for losses on loans and advances In € million | - 220
- General admintstrative expenses in€ million .7 126"
"+ Balance of other income/expenses in ¢ illion ¢ =21
£ " Netincomefloss before taxes in € million -9
© . Netincomelloss ¥ in€ million -10
) Key ratios
Return on equity after taxes® In% -05
§. .- Costinmome ratio(based on operating revenues) in% 35.2
Key indicators 3112.2004
" Total volume of lending in€ billlon {7 62.2
- Risk assets compliant with BlSrules in € billion §i: 242
in%

Core capital ratio compliant with BES rules?

) s T : S
(. uE "Eml_lﬁdjng‘the'eﬁe';tsf’mncapitlllsed losses
i aag perapproved adhisal financlal statersnts ™.
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New Str uctures
Redefinition of businéss segments
German.Lending

: Summary of quarterly finandal data

4thQuarter 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
2004 2005 2005 2005 W05 <0

Operating perfonnance

. Qperating revenues in € million 99 T7 85 7 33
Netinterestincome in€ million 30 n 68 67 76
Net commission income in € million =10 -3 g -3 -3
Net trading income in € million - - - - -
Netlncome from investments in € million 22 7 B 13 13
Balance of other operating income/expenses in € millien -3 1 3 - -3
Provisions for losses on leans and advarces in € millign 55 30 30 30 30
i General administrative expenses in € million 31 24 26 23 25
Balance of other Incom e/expenses in € million -11 - - — -
: Netincome/loss before taxes . in € million 2 23 2% 24
: . Netincome/loss" in € million - 19 22 18
. Key indicators E
Total velume of lending in € billion 62.2 592 56.7 549 536 . .
Risk assets compliant with BIS rules in€ tillion 242 234 230 228 40 -

Core capital ratio compllantwith BIS rules in% 8.42 79 8.0 8.1 173

1 Exludng the ef‘fe(ts fromcapitalised losses r.amed fnmard
D As par approved annual financial stagements

w0

-

Structures "
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Public Finance

Budget *
in € mitlion Budge1 20065
- Netlncomefloss before taxes 10to 15
Key Finandials
2004
Qpeating perfeimance .
Qperating reventies in ¢ million {:.© 25
Net Interestincome in € million 1
Net commission income in € million -1
_ Net tradingincome in € million |-/ 11 t
1 Netincome from investments In € miltian _ 4 '
_ Balance of othr operating Income/expenses in € million | -
. Provisions for losses on loans and advances in€ million §.: -
General administrative expensas in € milion 30
" Balance of other income/expenses in € mitlion §, -
Netincomeflos: before taxes in € million -5
Netincom efloss in € million -4
!
Key ratios
Return on equity after taxes? in%] -42
Cost-income ratio{based on operating revenues) in% ! 1200
 Key indicators 31122008 3112.2004
_ Total volume of lending in € billion |- i 16 16
" Risk assets compliant with BIS rules tn € billion {-* _:2.,.9 20
Core capital rat o complant with BlS rules ® in% 150 8.0
- 3 " ] R =
“ pasedon allocated cagpital

I

Enclosures, 29 March 2006 Page 172 of 245
i
|



i
H

Summary of quarterly financial data

: " Mew Structures
Redefinition of business segments
i PublicFinznce

-

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

4thQuarter 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarier Ath Quarter
2004 2005 2005 ' 2005 200%
Operating performnance I
Operating revenues In € million 13 11 12 22 15 !
Netinterestincome in € rmiltion 6 [ 3 6 0 ’
. Net commission Income In € million -1 - -1 3 -2 . [
: Net trading income in € million b 6 7 16 3 !
Netincome froimn irvestments in € million 2 -1 1 - 3
Balance of othe: operating income/expenses in € million - — 2 - 1
Provislons for lostes on loans and advances In€ mitlion - - - - -

. " General administ-ative expenses in € mritlian 11 10 8 10 14
Balance of other Incom e/expenses In £ rmillion — — — — —
Netincomefioss before taxes in € million 2 1 4 12
Nettncomelloss in € million 1 1 3 9 3
Key indicators
Total volume of lending In € billion 16 15 16 15 16
Risk assets compliantwith BISrules in € billion 2.0 25 25 25 20
Core capltal ratio compliant with BIS rules ¥ in% 80 8.0 8.0 80 150

“Baseddna!!o:alnd capltal- : '
R = "
.

v
!
'
¥
'
|
'
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Infra City

Infra Gity is a well-located Business Park, directly adja-

.cent to the motorway on the stretch betwaen Stockholm
and the airport. The'businass park consists of office and
retail space, and a 320 rcom hotel, covering a total of
190,000 square metres and hosting some 160 tenants.
The SEK 119 billion (approx. € 130 million) facility, was
provided by Hypo Real Estate Bank International, Scan-
dinavia branch, for a company held by Orion Capital
Managsrs: for its Orion-European Real Estate Fund II in
connection with its acquisition of landmark business
park, Infra City, from the Swedish state owned property
company Vasakronan.

of a portfolio of different properties to bs purchased
subsequently and amalgamated into 1upon completion.
In case of a direct property transaction such a structure
allows for fiscal optimisation.

This type of facility is used to finance the scquisition

+
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Mandates of the Management Board

Positians held on other Wembe rship of companable controlling bodies
asaf 31.222005 statutnry Supervisory Boands of German tompanies of commercial enterprises in Germany and in other courtries

..+ Georg Funke '
. Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Munich '
{Chairm an of the Supervisory Board)

Wir ttembergische Hypothekenbank AG, Stuttgart
(Chairm an of the Supervisory Board)

* stephan Bub Hypo Pfandbrief Bank (nternational S.A, Luxembourg " ]
Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Munich {Member of the Administrative Board,
{Member of the Supervisory Board) since 28.102005 Chairman of the Administrative Board)

HI Capital Markets, Inc, New York/USA
Collineo Asset Management GmbH, Dortmund renamed as Hypo Capifal Markets,Inc.
{Chairman of the AdmInistrative Board since 11.1.2005) {Chairmzn of the Beard)

HI Asset Management,Inc, New York/USA
renamed as Hypo Pubfic Finance USA, fnc
{Chalrman of the Board) .~ * F

HARDT GROUP trvestments AG, YiennafAustria .
{Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board *. ™

since 245.2005) " 1.7
Dr. Paul Ekele Hypo Real Estate Bank International, Dublin/lreland '
Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Munich to be renamed as Hypo Public Finance Bank -

(Deputy Chaltman of the Supervisory Board) {Chalrman of the Board since 1.10.2005) *

Hypo Pfandbrief Bank International SA, Luxembaourg
{Member of the Administrative Board unti130.11.2005) °

HypoReal £state Bank International .
Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Munich  to be renamed as Hypo Public Finance Bank, Dublin/Ireland
[Member of the Supervisory Board) {Non-Executive Member of the Board since 1.10.2005) -

Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG, Stuttgart Hypo Pfandbrlef Bank International 5.A, Luxembourg

{First Deputy Chalrman of the Supervisory Board) {Member of the Administrative Board until 30.11.2005
Collineo Asset Managemeant GmbH, Dortmund I T
{Mem ber of the Administrative Board Hypo Real Estate CapltalLtd, London/Great Britain 7 "{ °
from 11.1.2005 unti 31.12.2005) (Director)

Hypo Real Estate Capital Japan Corp, Tokyo/lapan
[Director since 15.2.2005})

HypoReal Estate Capital France S.A, Paris/France ©. . ‘
(Member of the Supervisory Board unti) 10.2.2005, - -
Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board until 30.9.2005) . .

HypoReal Estate Capital Corp, New York/USA -
(Director until 20.11.2005) .

Cdllineo Asset Management GmbH, Dortmund g
[Mem ber of the Administrative Board Hypo Real Estate Capital Iberia 5.L. Madrid/Spain ~
from 11,1.2005 until 31.12.2005) {Chairman of the Board until 3.1.2005) °

. : Hypo Real Estate Capital Ltd. lLandon/Great Britain
{Director until 10.1.2005)

HypoReal Estate Capital France S.A, ParisfFrance
{Chairman of the Supervisory Board until 10.2.2005) .

.

1

i
E
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‘Mandates of the Management Board
Mandates of the Supervisory Board

as of 31122005

* Mandates of the Supervisory Board

Positions beid
on other statutory S upervisor y Boa rds of Cerman companies

Membership of comparable controlling bodies
of commercial antar prises in Garmany and In othes countries

Kurt F. Viermetz

Deutsche Borse AG, Frankfurt am Main
{Member of the Supervisory Board since 12.7.2005,
Chairman of the Supervisory Board since 10.10.2005)

Hypo Real Estate Bank International, Dublin/lreland
(Chalrman of the Board until 30.9.2005%)

ERGO-Versicherungs-AG, Disseldorf
{Member of the Supervisory Board)

EON-Ruhrgas AG, Essen
{Member of the Supervisory Board until 31.12.2005)

Professor Dr. Klaus Pohle

DWS lnvestment GmbH, Frankfurt am Main
{Mem ber of the Supervisory Board)

COTY Inc, New York /USA
{Non-Executive Member of the Board)

Sanofi-Aventis SA, ParisfFrance
{Administrateur)

. Or.ferdinand
-+ Graf v, Ballestrem

c

SHW GmbH, AalenWasseralfingen
{Chairman of the Supetvisory Board until 30.9.2005)

MAN Capltal Corporation, New York fUSA

{Chalrman of the Board of Directors unkil 31.12.2005)

Renk AG, Augsburg
[Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

MAN Finandal Services plc..S\«;tlndunIGreatBrlt:in .
{Chairman of the Board of Directors) * -

MAN Technol ogle AG, Augsburg
{Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board
_until 30.6.2005)

MAN Rdand Drudcmaschinen AG, Augsbur g/Offenbach
{Member of the Supervisory Board)

Bayerische Versicherungsbank AG, Unterfdhring
(Member of the Supervisory Board)

. Antolne

-7 Jeancourt-Galignani

Saciété Nationale d Assurances Group 5 AL, Beirut/lebanon
{Chairman of the Board)

Euro Disney 5.CA, Marne-La-ValléefFrance
{Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

Gedna S A, ParisfFrance
{Director)

Assurances G énérales de France S A, Paris/France

(Directer) -

Socléts Générale SA, Paris/France

{Director)

Total S A, ParisfFrance
(Dl‘re_cfor)

Kaufman & Broad S.A, PasisfFrance
(Diractor)

Oddo & Cle 5.CA, Paris/France
{Member of the Supervisory Board)

letix Europe NV, Hilversum/The Netherlands
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" Mandates of the Supervisory Board

Positions held Membership of comparable controlling bodies '
asof 31.12 2005 on ather statutory Supervisory Boardsof German companias of commerclal enterpaises in Germany and in other eountries -

Dr. Pieter Kortewez
DaimlerChrysler Nederland BV, Utrecht/The Netherlands
{Non-Exacutive Member of the Supervisory Board)

R Dutch Central Bureau of Statistics (CBS),
i Rijswijk/The Netheriands
v {Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

Cerberus Global Investment Advisors, LLG, |
Baarn/The Netheriands
(Sentor Advisor) +. 7.t -

55A Global Technologles Inc, Chicago/USA
{Non-Executive Mem ber of the Board)

Aozora Bank Litd., Tokyoflapan
(Non-Execuﬁve Member of the Board)

Development Fund Netherlands Antilles (SONA},
The Hague/The Netherlands
(Executive Mem ber of the Board)

AerCap BY, Schiphal /The Netherlands i’
{Chairm an of the Board since 209,2005)

% Robert H. Mundheim

Shearman & Sterling LLP, New York/U 5A
(Of Counsel)

Arnhold and §, Bleichroeder Holdings, inc, New York /U SA
{Director)

eCollege.com, Inc, Chicago/USA 4
{Ditector) | !

i

. by o
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Advanced appmach Under the advanced approach meth-
od,a bankw;th a sufficiently devéloped internal capital
allocat!og‘ procedute (strict critaria in terms of method:

ology ‘ard disclosure) is permitted to use its. intarnal:

agsessments regarding the credit stending of a debtor
whemn assgssing the lending risk within its portfolio.:
There are specialised analysis procedures for different
types of loan commitments — e. g. loans to companies
and retail customers — that exhibit different loss char-
actsristics.

Asset/iiaiﬁ%fity management Measures-by a bank to con-
trol the balance-sheet structure and to.limit the risks

-¢iant llqu:dlty

ed to the = trading book.

Avallable-for-sale assets Financial assets that are availa-

ble for the company to sell and that do not relate to
Y

loans, fmancml instruments held for trading or - held-

“to- matunty financial instruments. Available-for-sale fi--

nancial 1nstrunents include in particular fixed-income
securities, that sannot or should not be-held to maturity
and: also aqult} mstrumants wlth no fin maturlty

Basel li The term 'Basel it stands Eor anew capltal ade--

quacy framawork which was presented by the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision in summer 2004
The committes maats on.a regular basis at the Bank for
International Settlements (BI8) and is formed by repre-
sentatives of the central banks and banking supervisors
of the major developed nations. It gives general strate-
gic recommendations on the framework and standards
for bankmg supervision. Basel H will in. comparison. to
the first capnta] adequacy framework (Basa]l) from 1988
define néw general condmons for the/méasurement.of
rigk welghted assets and the minimum-capital require-

1 Ianuary 2007,

BIS Bark for International Sattlements-headquartered
_in Basle; as the central bank of the cant_ral banks, it is
in particu!ar rasponsible for cross-border banking su-

pervigion:and for the establishment of internationally

- valid equity capital requiraments fot supraraglonally
opsetating bank; :

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

-.BIS equrty funds Equii

_tesulting | from differences in time perlods and 1nsufﬁ-'

-Assets baoi( Rxek-carrymg posmons that are naot allocat~- )

ments for cradli. mstltutlons The transformation of thesa .
i gmdelmes to German law is expacted to be done by‘

E

tegulatory purposes and compliss with the Recommen-
dation on Equity issued by the Base!‘ Committee for
Banking Supervision in July 1988 (last amendad in Jan-
uary 1896} for financial‘ifistitutes operating on the inter-

" national- stage. It compiises liable equity capital (core

capital and supplementary capital) and:tier III capital:

s Core capital or tier I capital: largely subscribed capi-
tal, reserves and certain hybrid capital instruments,

» Supplementary capital or tier II capital: includes in
particular participatory -capital, ,l'érfg—tarm subordi-
nated liabilities, unrealised gains from listed securi-
ties. and othar valuatlon ad]ustments for mherent
risks. ;

# TierI: capltal maml‘: comptises short term subordi-

" natéed: llabl]ltles and urplus supplementary capital.

Blue Chips Descrtptlon for sharas with high market cap-
italisation,-high axchange transactions and high popu-
larity, which mostly form part of the main index in their

.country-of ozigin. . o

Bonds Term ussd in English-speaking countries for
fixed-incdme securitie's and/or debentures.

: Calculsted mortgagelending value atsor Loan to-value I\LT“\' K
Re]atlonshlp between‘the funds loaned to the borrower

and the value of the cellateral.

Capacity to meet interest payments Degree to which the
rental income from a financed building must, in long
term financing, at least cover tha interest service pay-
ments.

Ratio: DSC (debt service coverage)

. Cash-flow hedge Security against the risk of loss of fu-

ture'intarest payments under a variable-interest balance-
shest traris'action obtai_n_éd by means of g - swap.

Cash ﬂow statement Representauon of a company’s in-
flow or Gutflow of funds-from operating,iinvestment and
financing activities during a fiscal yearand calculation
of the cash in hand (cash reserve) at the beginning and
end of the fiscal year.

CDAX The CDAX‘ coritaing all German gompanies from
the Prime and Géneral Standard market segments. The

.index represents the antlre breadth of the:German stock

markat, ive. all compames hsted on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange . :
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i country or borrowrng cuetomer] m
,._"among a group oftpartiss. that‘i ;
. exhibit.a parallel deve]opment
of default - causéd; for, exampl
-.dependencnes SR

. the natlonal currency.

Ciearing bank A bank that is & member of a national
clearing $ystem for the multilateral clearing of receiva-
bles and lliabilities in inter-bank transactions. :

-Commercial paper {CP) Money. markst instruments-in‘'the ~<oi- 0o
“form”of bearer instruments that do not have: standard- - \
. ised matunhea but can be geared to individual invest”™ for’

ment requrrements and -are palcl on a discount bas:s
Theit maturitiss vary between 1.and 270 days. They are
issued orl the money market by debtors with an irze-
proachable credit standing, usually first-class industi-
al corporations; they are issued in high amounts and
with high minimum nominal values. :

Concentration risk R:sk resultmg from conoentrahon of:" '

Synonyrn cluster-risk

'Corporate governance Corporate governance refers to the.

lagal andifactual framework for managing and monitor-
ing companies. The recommendations of the ‘Cotporats

" Govarnadce Code’create’ transparancy ‘and are mtended

L to strengthen l‘onfldence In good. and respons1ble man-{
o tagement they ara pnmanly almed at protectlng share- :
holder : : :

Cost mcome ratlo Relattonsb:p between general admm- .
-istrative: expenses and the total .of net interest-income,
net commission income, trading.profit/loss and net oth-"

er operatmg income and expénses; a low cost-incoms
ratio indicates high productivity.

Counterparty risk Risk that, as a result of default on the
part of a contracting partner, it will no longer ba-possi-

ble to collect an unreahsed profit from outstandlng in- -
terest and ourreucy related derwatwe and’ futures’ trans-
actions. n - D
.VThe counterparty risk is dlfferenhated accordmg tcr-' .
‘performa.poe tisk (from the. value -date until perform-~

ance} and exchange/pre-settlement risk {from the date of
conclusion until the value date):

Country risk Risk that a business partner in a certain

" country will be unabla to fulfil his contractually agresd

obligatiohs dus to political orsocial unrest; nationali-
sation or exprc-pnatlon non- recognltron by governments
of fore]gn debts, currency. controls or d devaluatlon of

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

" -customers, of+
g6ty fotes and,.‘dwebt securities, or of countarpartres in
anoney-rharket securities and derl'vatives transactions.

g default swap

‘Credit defauit swap Financial contract where the risk of
a credit:event that is specified in advance [(e.g. insol-

: vency or detenorahon in credit standing) is-transferred

guarantor Irrespectwe of whether

_Cref.i:t dem'atwes Derwa ive fmanc:al instruments that
allow-one party ‘to-the-transaction (assignee) to transfer
the lending risk relating to a loan or a security to an-
other party. (guarantor) against payment of a premium.
The risk’ purchaser therefore bea:s the lendlng rlsk re-

ers of borrowers note loans promls-

‘Cremt-tmiged notes A note 1ssued by an assrgnee that is
- -onlyrepaid at the nommal valué on maturity-if a previ-

yously.specified credit event does;:not materialise on the
the . credlt ‘svent doss actually-

d “ofthe. _debtor
' te' i repa]d after ‘deducting

urn‘swaps the guarantor re-
ceives -his. monetary payment in .advance. from the as-
SIgnee o

DAX Measures the performance of Germany’s 30 largest

.companiés within the Prime Standard segment in terms
.of order-book sales and market capitalisation. The index

is based on-the-prices ‘of the Xetra electronic trading

systarm:’ Ca]culation commenoes at 9.00 a.m. and ends

wrth the prlces from’the Xetra closmg auction that starts

'Debl issuance. prog m DlP} Framework agreement for

the mmpllfed launohlng of capital markst issues with

-a maximum utlllsatlon volume. A DIP is not a debt in-

strument but a- platform that-is in particular designed
to standardise.and simplify {nternational issuing proc-
esses: '

-Deb: sewlce coverage margin Relatlonsh:p between the

het income that can be eatned from.a.property and the

" debt service ap ticabl to:the.property in question.
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Default probability Expected average probability that &
business partner will fail to fulfil his obligations, basad
on statistical analyses of Historic default patterns.

‘Default risk Risk of partial-o tota]gloss"o'f a loj“an. ‘

Deferred: taxes Taxes on indomes that -afé" payabla or,te

. ceivable at a future date and that result from d]fferent .
-7 carrying amounts bemg shown &

merc:lal batanca sheets On the raportmg date, thay do

. not:yst represm::t actual recewablas or; llabtlttles vis-a-

vis tax altthontles

Degree of diversification Degree to which the portfolio is
spread across several countries and sectors of industry
in order to reduce risk.

* Developer 'stelopers dex;etop and execute real estate
projects [ganarally large. oommerctal proJects) w1th tha .

aim of se;:urmg a sw1ft sale.

Dow Jones EUR.O STOXX: 5e A European blue-chlp mdax,f

It contalgs the 50 leading stocks ‘within the Eurto zone.
DOW IONES INDUSTRIAL AVERAGE (DIIA) INDEX The broad-
est market indicator showing ths performance of the
United States’ New York Stock Exchange. A price index

comprising the weighted average of 30 actively traded

blue-chib stocks, mainly industrial stocks.
i . i

groundwater con tammatlonj

dinary sharss.

Fair value Amount at which an asset would be exchanged’

or a;debt settled between expert, independent, willing
business partners; often identical withithe markat price:

Falr-valle hedge Hedging of'a’ fiked%income balance-
sheet posmon (e.g. a racetvable or-a; securlty) agamst"

the market risk by means. of a > swap, it is valued at
market value [—-) falr valua]

Finandal instruments This term is in particular used to
summarise credits and leans extanded, intefest-bearing
securities, shares, participating interests, liabilities and
derivatives.

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

Forward transactions The purchass/sale of firancial in-
struments op a fixed date and at a fixed price; adistinc-
tion-is tnade between contingent forward transactions
(- options) and unconditional forward transactions

{ (+» futures). In contrast:to spot ‘transactions,. .the data
.when the contract is concluded and the date of perform-

ance’for. the oontract are; dlfferent Q

2 Futu:es Contracts that! ara standardtsed in terms of vol-
sume; qualtty and settlement date under which a trad-

ingritem. belongmg tothe ‘rhoney market, investment
market, precious “metals. market or currency market is
to be dsliversd or purchased on a specific future date
at the specified market price. In many cases, a balanc-
ing payment has to be effected in place of delivering or
purchasing securities.

German Minimum Requirements for the Conduct of Lend-
ing Business {MaK) Mmlmum requirements that must-be

- met by all lending msntutas in order to limit risks from
“lending business; tal_k_fng into account the respective

type'and extent’of businiess-conducted.

“German Minimum Reguirements for the Conduct of Trading

Operations {MaH} Minimum requirements that must be
complied with by all financial institutesin order to sa-
cure solvency and must be supplemented/specified in

-more detail in internal instructions, taking into account

the respective type and extent of trading activities.

© 47 . They include.requitements with'regard to risk control
- Due dthgence here: Detailed analysls of real estate prop-
erties initerms of possible:risks: prasent [a g sotl andi .

and'risk managemant the organisation of tradlng oper-

‘ations and audltmg, as well as regulations for specilic

transactlon types

= P o CT e ',-::;They were issued-in, October 1995 by the Federal Bank-
Eamings;’pet s_hare Indicator comparing’_the net income
for the year after taxes with the;average numberiof or-

ing- Super__v_tsory Office [BaKred) which’is now known

as the Federal Firancial Supervisory Office (BaFin}

Goodwill Amotunt that a purchaser of a company pays in
sxcess of the - fair value of the individual assats after
deducting debts (= intrinsic value), taking inte account
futura expectad sarnings {= nst income value).

."Hedge acéounting Depiction of contrary de\telopments

in the values of 'a hedging transaction-(e.g. an interest

¢ raté swap)’ and an undel:lymg transaction (e.g. a loan).
"« Hedgs aocountmg aims to minimise the impact on the
» incoms statemént of tha valuation' arid the recording of

valuation. results from derivative transactions where
such valuation and recording affects net profit or loss.

Hedging T:ansactions aimed at protecting against. the
risk of unfavourable price trands (e. g curtency and in-

" terest rate risks). A matching position is set up foreach
: posmon so that the risk is offset either in whole or in
« part-
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 tias:that: have a'fixed maturity and: flxed

llntematienal:?hancial Reportlng Stanctarcf

i

Held to maturlty Fmanclal assats aoquue

payments where- the holder mtends oris, ablla. to hold
the assetuntil final maturity.

Hybrid capital Instruments Investment instruments that
are characterized by profit-related interest payments.
Where interest payments that have not been made
when losses have occurred are not paid<at‘a‘later date

~ [non- cumulatrve hybrrd -capital mstruments) and the
_1nstruments do not have a fixed ma!

cannot be srminated: by thei credrtor
ance: wrthﬁ regulatory requirements sucﬁ
belong to “the core capital. In all other cases, they must
be allocated tc the supplemsntary capital-(e. g cumula-
tive hybrid ca])rtal lnstrumentsJ

internationzl Accounting Standards (IAS} Accounting stand-
ards issued by the IASC (International Accounting Stand-
ards Committee}, a specialist international organisation
backed by professional associations that deal with ac-

counting issues. The aim is.to develop transparent and
’ ,comparable mternatwnal acoountmg syst

include the prasent International Accountlrrg ‘Standards

{= 1AS) and the interpretations of the Standing Inter-

pretations Committee as well as all standards and inter-
pratations issued in future by the IASB (International
Accounting Standards Board).

. Issuer risk Losses of own-portfolio securities. due to a

deterioration in the credit standmg iof or. default on the
part of an issusr.

Lending nsk Rrsk that a2 busmess partner will’ not fulfll "
his contractual payment obligations: The’ lendmg rrsl(

includes =¥ default, - country and settlement risks.

Market risk Results from uncertainty sur’roundiné chang-
es in market pricws and rates (including interest ratas,
share prices, exchange rates and commodity prices)
and also from the correlations between:them and their
levels of vo]atility.

&

Market Fisk'position The market risk posrtron pursuant to-
imédity.and

PrmcnpleI includes foroign- currency. ‘ot
options risks as well trading-book tisk’ posmons such
as risks relatmg to "interest rates and shate . prices as
well as > credit risks pertaining to the trading book. -

MDAX Contains the securities of the SO.Prima-Standard
companies frem traditional sectors ranking after the
companies listed in the DAX index in terms of order-
book sales and markat capitalisation (midcaps). The in-
dex is based on the prices. of the Xetra elgctronic trad-
ing system Caleutation.commences. at.9.00 a.m.. and
ends with - the prices from the- Xatra closrag auctlon
that starts at 5 30p m. s

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

7 issue’ of unse ur

‘dateiand/or -

bt.mstrumants at drfferant times:

'Volume curtenay: and ‘term (one to ten years) can be
" adepted according-to fundlng requirements.

Mortgage-backad securities (MBS) Securitisation of mort-
gage loans for precize control and reduction of lending
tisks.

MBS arte securities whose interest and redemption pay-

ments-are linkad.tq_'th-e-p,ayment performance of a pool.

qf:_lc_:alns_.«lsaé‘ured':b;' teal estate liens.
A T I I

Net lrlclo'r'n‘e,vahlue-‘F:or:.rén:leld investment propertiés. the

net income:valug ‘represénts the basis for determining
the lending value. It describes the economic value of the
property and is.calculated from the capitalised annual
net earnings (incoms from rents after deducting manage-
ment costs} attainable in the long term. ’

Operational risk The risk of direct or indirect [osses re-
sulting from:the inappropriateness or failure of human

‘beings; technical’systems, internal proéedures or sxter-
 nal:everits: (dafm' fofi;pursuant to, Basael II). . .
. Oparatronal rrsks ie, not usually entersdinto: conscious-

ly; such rrsks are:not subjact to diversification- and are

difficult to narrow down. l

Examples: human efror,. faulty management processes,
criminal actions, fraud, natural disasters (fire etc.),
technical failures, departure of key employess.

Option An option grants the purchaser the right to pur-
chasa (= purchase optién or call) or sell (= put option
or put)'a spscific quantity of the item underlying the

-option i(g.g. a-security or gurréncy) from or te a con-
"racting partner optlon “writer) at a pnce determmed

when :the contract is concluded (= strike). The optron

' can be exéfcised éither on a date specified in advance

or during a period specified-in advance; the. purchaser
pays an option premlum for this right.’

Participation certificate Certification of participatory
tights issued by companies of all legal forms and ad-
mitted to official (stock-sxchange) trading. Urder cer-

tain circumstances, -participatory certificates may be

allocated to llable equity capital.
.

'*“ul'

IA:PRIME BANKS The Prlme All Share Index is subdwrded

into 18 1ndustry 1ndlces that seive 'to d1fferentrata be-
tween the:Priméa ‘Standard.companies. Before a oompa—
ny is-allocated-to-a specific industry in'dex itis allocat-
ed to one of the 62'industry groups.

Rating Risk rating of a debtor (internal) and/or assess-
ment of the credit standing of an issuer and its debt in-
struments by specialised agencies (external).
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) thl:ough secunlles :

‘shest transactions (e.g.’ warranhes

:Rea! estate §nv:‘stment“banklng Structured f1nanctng.~-
"consu]tmg isétvices for ‘inivestors. mcludmg ‘even-the

structuring of finance transactions, i.e. theit classifica-
tion into different forms of financing.
Also refarred to as: “real estate structurad fmance

Relationship banking Provision of services and advice to
customers throughout a particular region by means of
standardised products; the classic approach in compa
ny and prwate -client busmass

Repo tr:nsact:cn Shert-tetm mordey market-d&al sacured

Remm on eqult)’ Ratio showmg ‘the relahonshnp be‘
tween tbemet income for'the year, or a pre-tax.perform-.

afice measure [e.g. _prestax profit], and average -equity
capltal indicates the sturn on the- capltal putitd work
by the company or its owners.

Risk assets To e able to map the assets-book - cradit
risks tesulting from the differing cradit standmgs of is-
suers and/or business partners in. accordance with reg-
ulatory requirements, balance-sheet assets, off-balance-

balance-sheat assets) as wall ag —)
2 swaps and -> option nghts ate weaghted w1tb respect

- to-risk using rate-weighting factors that depend on the

rating category of the issuers and/or-business partners.
Under Principle I, these risk-weighted assets must be
backed by 8% liable equity capital.

Risk control Risk Control-is rasponsible for implement-
ing the risk policy presciibed by the Executive.Board,
for the neutral monitoring of lending, market'and oper-

ational risks, as well as-for analysmg and reportmg on

the c:uri:ent an& future risk situation..

R]Sk Control it also rasponstble foz spemfymg measure-"

ment and, evaluatlon methods as wéll as for subsequent-

Risk managsment The taking of bus_iness decisions at
operational level, portfolio management and/or optimi-

_sation of rigke in the widest.sense of the woid -on the
basis of risk/reward [actors {e. g. assignment of lines for

credit risks, credit derivatives, etc.) within the strategic

framework defined by the Exacutive Board and in ac-
,cosdance with the’ authonsatlons xssued by the Execu---
tive Board ba<tow1ng direct rGSpOl:lSlb]]l ty for rlsks and ¥

’ - rency swap).

resuits :

Risk shelter Obligation of HypoVaremsbank vis-a- v1s-

Hypo Real Estate Bank to cover lending risks in the lat-
ter’s loan portfolio.
Net losses for the years 2003 and 2004 will be paid up
to a maximum total of €590 million, provided such
losses resulted from specxfac charges formed for bad
and doubtful Jebts.

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

SDAX The select index. for 50 smallar ,companies, re-
l:red to-ag: smallcaps

) tamed in the MDAX mdax in terms of order-book sales
“and market capltallsatmn The index is based on the

 prices of the Xetra electromc trading system. Calecula-

‘tion commences at 9:00.a.th. and ends with the prices

Securltisat on Secunt“‘

from the Retra closing auction that starts at 5.30 p.m.

Secondary risk Risk that any losses.in rental income on

. the part of tha borrower may. ]Bopﬂl‘dlsﬁ the capacity to
- mesat interest payments ‘

-based . collateralisation-and/for
(erg: through bonds) to :procurs

converslon "of 16ans

- funds. Theiprime aim'is to make the loans tradable on-

organised investment markets (e.g. stock exchanges).

" The. supplier of capital (= creditor) and therefors the
‘purohasar of the sechritised loan assumes the risk of

fluctuations in market prices and of loan lossas; the
borrower (=debtor) must provide regular public proof
of his credit standing hy means of regular reporting

".é‘nddlér-of thé‘highest?possi'blé rating by a rating agency.

nd guaranteas for: o+
ard transactlons

: 'li-'levels w1thm tha Ba

Segment. repottmg Breakdown of the total consohdated-

values by mdnndual isegments, e:g. by areas of activity

(dwmons) or geograph;cal charactensncs (teg]ons) this
‘enables conclusions to-bs drawn regardmg performance
Jdn individiial segments and their contnbut:on to the
'consolldated result !

Self.assessments Salf-assessment is a process whereby
the operational risks and the measures taken to mini-
mise risks are regularly identified and evaluatad by
procedure odears i.e. by those individuals who are

best able to assess the strengths and weaknesses of pro-

cedures. ‘

In addition;te 1dant1fy1ng and evaluating risks, self-as- |
‘sessment also prowdes the: basis. for drawmg up an ac-
. tion plan to,open up; opportumtles for improvement, as
ly cartying out measurements and gvaluations of nsk L

.and tisk resulis and/or hmxt controls o

well as' for ‘the developmant of nsk awareness at alt

standard risk costs A\'rer'a'ge risk costs and/or vatuation
adjustments dua to loan losses that ate axpectad within
a-given year.

Swap In principle, an.exchangs of payment flows: an

-exchangs of fixed and variable interest-payment flows
4n the. same currency; = mterest rate swap) and/or ex-

':changa of payment flows:in different currencies (= cur-
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TIER 1 ratio This ratio is"also referred to as the -BIS core

the. Bank for Internat]onal Settlemants

_ ‘panies oontamed in.th

TECDAX Maps the performance of the 30 largest Prime
Standard’tachnology companies ranking after:the-com-

T the:pr:ceis from the Xetr cl‘_ i g
-5.30 'p,.m.:i ; &
U

capital ratlo and represents the ratio of a company sTisk
assets detarmmed in acGordance with-the. provmons of

market rlsk pos1tlons to!
equlty funds)

jaddlt!on to thcu lendmg nsk the guarantor also dsstimes ‘_

the prlce;nsk resulting: Erom the underlying:financial
instrument, in return for. a oorrespondmg interest pay-
ment. ’

'_BIS) .plus its
seg’ aiso BIS"

Trading book Banking regulatory term for positions in
financial; instruments, interests and tradable loans that

K ara he]d by a financial mstltute for tha purposa ofshort-_ .

iti- the trading book are assi‘gﬂéﬂito;the -»assels book_.»

: Ttansacltloﬁ"ﬁﬁnklng Rangs of complex financial services

offered in connection with eachindividual financing

tran'sactioh.

Treasury Dwmon pooling the areas offrefmancmg and
lquIdlt contzol "asset/liability management flxed in-
: oo;naﬁrjd I '

accounl tradlng . v

Vacandy rite
that is not used ‘or rented out. PR

PR
Value a_tff%s%%-Methodt’Eor quantifying;:isk;"maasures the

poteatial future losses that with a certain degres of:prob-

ability will not be exceeded within a specified period

of time.
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Structure of Hypo Real Estate Group
smce 1 ]anuary 2006

i H .
‘ i Hypo Real Est.ate Holdmg AG
% ' " Muhich L
'\. ‘;' K""‘ ) CRRE
i : s
1

E. e

International 4G ;
L-Stuttgart :

T T e
,Wpokéalfst.;t_eﬂank AN

el B -
Hypo RealEstate BankAG .
Munlch : :

Ratmgs of I—I";fpo Real Estate Group

smc'e 1 ]anUary 2006

Ratings

asof 25.1.2006

Moody's
long-term| short-te rm | outlook

skp
long-term | shartutzrm | autlook

FitchRatings

long-term | short-term | outhook

Hypo Real Istate Bank International AG

A2|P-1i5table

A-|A.2]5tabte

Hypo Public Finance Bank

A2|P-1]5table

A-|A-2|stable

A3|P-2|Stable

BBB+ | A-2 | Stabile

BBE+ | F-2 | Stable

Hypo Real Bstate Bank AG
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Financia! Calendar 2006

Publication of the results for the year 2005

HypoReal Estate Holding AG

Unsdldstrafie 2
80538 Mt'mich

~ Germany ,

Telephone +49 [0) 89 20300? 0
Fax . +49(0)B9 203007772

‘ mfo@hyporedlestate com

www.hyporealestate.com *

‘Hypo ReréI_Estzite Bank International AG

Buchsenstraﬁe 26
70174 Stuttgart

Germany
Telephone: +19 {0)711 2096-0

Fax  +40 (0)7112096-304 %"

info@hypointernational.com
marketing@hypointernational.com
www.hypoicternational:com

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

- - 80539 Munich
" Germany, ’

29 Mawch 2006 Analysts'Press Conference
5 May 2006 Publication of the results for the first quar ter of 2006
. 8 May 2006 Annual General Meeting
9 August 2006 Pubtication of the results for the second quarter of 2006
8 November 2006 Publlcation of the results for the third quarter of 2006

Hypo Public Finance Bank

S'Harbou‘rmaster Place
1FSG Dublih—l

. -Irgland.

Telephone +353 1611 6000
Fax - '+3531611 6001

. info@hpfb.com

www.hpfb.com

Hypo Real Estate Bank AG (Germany)

Von- der Tann StraBe 2 _

Telephone +48 [GJ B9 2880 0

- Fax % +48;(0) 8928 80-12100

info@hyporealestate de
www.hyporealestats.de
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Future-oriented Statements, Internéfc 'Ser_vice_‘.a"nd !mprrint

‘Future-oriented Statements o Impsint -~ 7 TL T
: .
Thls report contains future orientad statements in  Publisher
the form oflntentlons assumptions, expsectations or  Hypo Real Estate Holdmg AG, Munich
forecasts. These statements are based on the-plans,  (Copyright 2008)
estimates: and predictions currently available to ' :
the manaéamant of Hype Real Estate Holding AG.  Concept, Design und Realisation
Future-orlentad statements therefore only app]y KMS Tearn GribH, Munich
on the day or. which they are mads. We do not . S L
i undertakg any obligation to- update such statements ;. ‘
= in light of new information; or:future -evénts. By | * - |
: thelr ‘nature, future: onantad statements contain
risks: andFEactors of unceitainty. A number.of im- -
portant factors can coatribute to actual results da- ) |
-viating considerably from future-oriented state- _
ments. Suck factors include the condition of the : S T I
|
|

financial. markets in Germany, Europe and the
USA, the possible default of borrowers or coun-
terparties of trading companies, the reliability of
our principles, procedures and methods for risk o ) f
management as well as other risks associated with o T |
our business activity. ' o ) L ;

Anternet Service

Visit us at the world wide web:
www.hyporealestata.com

Go to Investor Relations and find information on
Hypo Real Estate Holding's share, external ratings
of our Group companies, facts and figures. You can
also find our annual and interim reports on our
wabsite, you ¢an download it, use it mte:actwe!y - i
or order a print version-online. R wo
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i
HypoReaIEst.iteHoId!ngAG L
Unsbldstrarie 2 R 'A ' T S g )
80538 Munich S . ik ‘ o .
Germ:ny ) S L. s .
Telephone+4')(0)89203007—0 I N
Fax . +49(0)89 203001—172 ) o ' s T ‘
WWW, hyporealestate com |
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| ‘
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H ‘ . . ' o : ’ ' ) 03
I s i h ”?ﬁ s 3
inancial Review - " 25, - 5
l . |
of Hypo Real Estate Holdmg AG |
. 3
i
: i
| for the business year 2005 |
b p : }
‘ o | i
o T |
. bl ; ’
E
‘The requlremznts app]lcab]e to the financial ‘Teviaw "\regulatl‘ons‘bftha_German'Cdmm_erciai Code (HGB) and - ¥ i
have been expanded by the Gesetz zur Eanfuhrung of DRS 15 are initially applicable to the financial year ;
internationaler Rechnungslegungsstandards und zur commencing after 31 Dacember 2004. A t
'Slcherung der Qualitat dex Abschlussprufung +{Bilanz- LT . ) ' :
rechtsreformgesstz — Law concerning the Introductlon ~In order to-.comply with the requirements of the | !
of International Accounting Standards and for assuring Bllanz:echts:eformgesatz and DRS 15,'and also to en- ! ol
the Quality of audltmg Financial Statements) The hance overall transparency, the Hypo Real Estate Hold- l
Deutsche Rech’lungs]sgungs Standard {German aceount- ' ing AG bas thersfors changed the étructure of the finan-
ing standard) No. 15 (DRS 15) sets out in detmi the re-  oial review compared with the annual report for 2004,
- qull‘&ments apphcab]e to financial reviews, The new and has consxderab!y extended its scope.
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In. 2005t the world eoonomy expanded as it had done
"in prevrous yieare The sconomiss of the:8, Chme and
. partrcularly in Japan prcked up considerable speed yet

again, deepemng the imbalances in global economic fi-
’ nancmg “The US's. twin deficit in both the balance of -

trade art]d the government budget are stlll bemg §i-

nanced‘by Asran sconomies’ surpluses and by, petro-

-dollars whlch -ate seeking investment opportumhes

A novel factor compared with last year ‘s Europes

'strengthenmy sconomy; this has become ev1dent in the

pact to 1mprc-ve employment

This robust natura ofthe world economy IS all the mote
su:prrsmg in that oil prices saw a record increase in
2005, resultmg in“an albsit moderate mcrease in’infla- -
tion ‘in;the ndustnahsed natmns Gentral banks., felt
compelled t¢ initiate or oontmue a world-wide cycle of «
rate hrkes puttmg an end’ to central bank retes all“tims
lows. Ceplta' market rates’ however. hardly responsed
to this epprcach .and remamed low. Real interest rates
declmed throughout the ‘world eccordlngly declmed
and rate structure curves flattened out. ’

- 2

fmencral malkets, but has not yet had a sufficiafit lm-t -
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Economrc growth in Europe hee not yet reached the
~momentum seen in other regions of the world, but it
“has taken hold and more. importantly, it has been o
compemed by much better sentiment indicators in the
“economy, partlculerly towards the and of the ysar, Cor-
porate eatnings_ “have. rmproved appreciably, although
"wage mcomas hava not benefited correspordingly. The
. fact that? consumer demand is still unsatisfactory in
“Europe acted as a brake on any more significant im-
--provement in the economy mcludlng the labour market.

. B i *

'
e e e i it e e e i

In Germany, sconomic. recovery was initially mote cau-
tlous In addltlon to the export growth which is typical
for Germeny ‘and a state deficil which was not consist:
,ent with the treaty of Maastricht, there were fmally
SIgns of more ipvestment, mdzcatmg the start of an-up-.
" swing. The doinestic economy was also boosted by the -
. weaker Euro arid sharé prices boomed .(Gross domestlc
product 1088 by 0.9% (2004 1.6%). The number of: per-
" sons employed has. elso 1ncreased although fainly as_
.a result of job creation measures by the former federa! - .
: government Gn. everage 4.9 million persons {11. 6%) |
were unemployed in 2005

A o e e o o .
v,

¢ §l b N R L . l“.;‘ - i T I ' N
. Economic figures Federal Republic of Germany !
A
4 a50f 2202822006 Q12005 Q2 2005 Q32005 4 2005
Gross domesticproduct in € bitlion 5875 5588 5615 5628
Labour force population In mitlion 38.8 388 388 388
Unemployed In million 49 49 49 A7
. Source Deutsr.he Eunderbank selsonaltyadjustedeconomic fgures Ll o ; e b B R 4 ! ' [
' R N T ; DL ' i
) fl .;”: ] LS ‘ (SR R . < L 0
N O S Co -
4 i . : . T . . “ e ) : -
. 4l. - i . x s £ous o i L. - N : . PR ) « 1
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2 : Financial Review (0S5
Business and Conditions

3

Macro-economic cond:ttons !

Company-spedfic conditions ;

.

a0 i [ o
' " ‘Organisational and'legal structure of the Group

Company-spedfic conditions

Eooh

Hypo Raat Est.;_tfteS H";Jlding AG, based ‘in Munich, con'f:
ducts stratagic'governance and sets out business policy
for the antlra Hypo Real Estate Group.. In addltlon 1t

i
g8CUTBS access to-capital markets

i,
Asa governing’ h'old{ng corhp'any it lsads thres Baiike
with legally and” operationally -separate  businesses

. which are, however. geared to busmess goals coordi-
- natad wnthm the Group. :

In the year uncl?er review, the subs1dlanes were Tespof--
sibls for thres pracisely defined business segments:

. = Hypo Real Estate Bank International, hased in Dub-
lin, is responsible for commercial structurad real es-

tate financiig business in all international markets.
Furthermore it oversees the business segment capital

markets and provides asset managemant services .

amongst others.

» The main buslness of Wurttemberglsche Hypothak—
enbank, Stuttgart is Pfandbrief-based commercial .
real estate financing in all international markets.

' -:_ Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Munich, engages in com-

merma] real estate: flnancmg in the German market. ..

"“The busmass segments ware reshuff]ed -as part of re-.

structurmg ef[ectwa 1 January :2006. in preparing for
this restructurmg. changes in the management siructuze
of the Hypo Rca] Estate AG were effected.

o Sustalnability TEel T e
. Responsibility, iptegrity professionality — the Hypo Real
Estate Group’s business principles apply to all compa-

nies in the Group, and are a major fadtor in the success
of our business; Transparent structures, clearly com-
municated corporate objectives and consistent imple-

“mentation of sugh objactives result’in sustained bensfit -

for customers and investors.

. . s A -
In addition to the professional way in which economic
factors are: mco:porated in entreprensurial decisions;
the sustained success of the company is also determined

M."by the mcorporatlon of non: fmanmal petformance in-

dicators.

The protection -of natursl resources is a major basis of -

sustainable economic growth and social prosperity. In
the Hypo Real Estate Group, cars is taken to ensure that

,corporate activity contributes to an environment which

is worth living:in and preservas it. Specxflc ob]actlves
in this field have already been imp]ementad by seg:

. " ments of the Group, for instance dedicated co-opera-
. tion with manufacturers ‘and suppliers which mest de-

fined environmsntal protection requirements and which
ars correspondingly certified. The. aim is to reduce
“strain on the enyironmant by means of sensible and
economlcally v1ab]a measures. The Hypo Real Estate
Group has alteady considered some of the possible
measures. For instancs, it will promote reducing con-

* sumption of paper and will encourage greater use of

Thus Hypo Real Estate Holding AG's ManagementBoard -
has accordmg]y been expanded as.of 1December. 2005,

" Stephan Bub was appomted to the Managemant Board
of Hypo Real I state Holding AG where he is rasponm- o

ble for Pubhc Finance and Capital Markets activities:

The concept used ‘by Hypo Real Estate Holding AG as

‘the parent compeny for managing the Hypo Real Estate

Group aims to anhancs the valus of the HypoResl'Estate

. Group. Tha value of the Group increases when return .
on equity of a control unit exceeds the capital costs, -

currently the group-wide average is at approx. 25%: , -
" The business sagments constitute the control units.

B
i

i

paper-saving structures that reduce the amount of paper
. which is used In addition, co operation with environ-

‘ mentally certlfied .sarvice provnders and the use of °
modern snergy- savmg equipment will be enhanced and
" made part of a.systematic approdch. All of these efforts

" of the Hypo Real Estate Holding AG have been recog-

nised, as is evidenced by its inclusion in-the major sus-

. tainability indices, such as the FTSE4 Good and the

Dow Jenes Sustainability Index.’

T . HE A
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The davdlopment in earnmgs onypo Real Estate Hold
ing'AG,asa f!nance holding oompany. is crucmlly lnflu
anced by the s expenses relatmg to its ‘busiress operatlon
and the mcor};e from 1nvestments ) :

L ‘5 'u;zséx:,,

whlch was ale arly marked by, the first profxt distributions.
" by both a[hllzted compames i.e, Hypo Real Estate Baink -
Internatxonal inan amount of € 205, OOO thousands and
‘Hypo Real Estate Bank AG. in an amount of €265, 383"

thousands Th]s .result is s1gmflcantly better than the :

€17, 048 thousands achleved 1n the prev1ous year ¥ A

Otl:ler operatmg mcome lncludes a book profit of £47,677. .
thousands whnch represents a material individual item
and is rasultmg from group -iftarnal measures R

R

The incoma from mvestments amounted to a total of
€470,383 thousands in 2005. £ 205 000 thousands there- )

of werse attnt(utab!e to profits paid by Hypo Real Estate
Bank Internej nal. The amount paid represents theidiss,
tr]butable re!_amed earnings: from 2004.>amount:ngm,‘
€82,000. thousands and-the dispesable proht at 30 Sep-
tember 2005, amounting to € 123,000 thousands in-

creased by the release of the:portiolio- based allowarc--
88, ! amountlng 'to €66 thousands. Hypo- Real. Estata ik
Bank AG's’ dmdend amount]ng to- € 265,383 thou- !

sands, will h= pald from the company’s, profit avallable
for dtstnbutlon which contains of the releags of t'rae
addltlonal pclud-ln capttalemounttng to & 212 DOG thou
sands, 1n adclltlon to the nét-incoms accordlng to Ger
man Commerctal Gode [HGB) ‘

Relatlng to tne profit ‘and- loss transflr agreamont with
the Wutttembergtsche Hypothekenbank AGearningsof ’
€68 882 thousands have been recorded: After balanc-
1ng thls agamst a pl‘Ofll grant of €53, 000 thousands
earmngs arelf 15,882 thousands 4

P

1
@
¥

" . Soe iV . =t

" ings in the three operational companies amounted to
; : €520, 942 thousands .This -figute was cut by payments

) - L the context ofthe tra fer of busmess actmtles between
Hypo Real Estate Holdlng AG ach:eved an annual net in-
come of: €481 442 thousands.in the 2005 financial year, -

1 ] --,, l%‘s‘ \ ssfl__vé :

‘.?'and the number of employees ‘has thereby mcreased
On :the “other. hand two of the’ Management Board

“the DAX.., ~ *..1°

wes-The" halance of incoms. from ioang to affiliated compa--

The tot'al‘_inoo'me te's'ulting from the investment hold-

of €66; 000 thousands into the.cutrent. profit and loss _
account by submdtanes in connsction with-the release
,of and ‘addition to'portfollo -based allowances within

the SUlJSldlal.‘lBS

The ingome from 1nvestments “is opposed by current
- ‘expenses in conneotlon with, tha steerlng and admln:s
tratlon of mvestments o ‘

Parsonnel expenses for the Elnanctal year amounted to -
€13, 360 thousands, compared with €10,193 thousands

‘in the'previous year. Thei 1ncrease$1n petsonne] expenses i,
onthéoite hand is gaused by thé fact that certain func-
tions, which’ odcurred repeatedly in the group, have
been summarized in the company as a group function,

members in the operatlng companies have resigned, in
order fo ‘cater for the increassd demand in steering of
the finance holding, and also dueto the mcluswn in -

B

ST Ty
S F .

Depreciation on intangible fixed assets and property,
plant’ aad'equipment amounted to €504 thousands,
compared with ‘€476 thousands in tl'le ‘previous year |
and essentlally invélves depreciation on prope:ty. plant
and: eqmpment as well as software llcences

. Other: operatlng expenses amounted to E‘lD 799 thou-
" sands [oompared with €.10,817 thousands in the previ-
:ous year), but were ad]usted by a payment of € 13,000
thousands into the proflt and loss account.of a subsidi-
ary. Inclucled in the amount of €10,799 thousands ars
‘the expengas lncurred for insurance, contributions and .,
deductxons as well s axpenses incutred for consul- A
tancy and audmng serwcas

- 1.‘ .l‘

co t e

nies, other 1ntsrest and similarindome and-interest, and
similar & expenses amounts to €-7,083 thousands, and
. thus. constitutes an, expensa The-income from loans to

T P

E affllteted compames amOunted to . €4,785 thousands, :

i.«n

"
s 1
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Financial Review
Finan(lat' Report

1

Consequently.?current expanses amounted to

. ‘Extraordznary expenses amounted to '€ 3 45

= g 1o e :
Real Estals Ba_nk -International. and which,was,repaid
during the finencial yeat. Other' interest and:similat in-
come amoun;ttng_to € 1,155 thousands resulted from

‘overnight momney time deposits. Interest and similar

expensas"es’serft‘iaiiy resulted from the interest expansa,
for part:oxpatulg rights of € 6,725 thousands and from

intersst expense resultlng from the- promlssory note o
. bond of€6 077 thousands P . i

‘tota] of'
€31.746 thousnnds Thess are. opposed hy other oparat
ing income of € 4197, thousands; essent]al]y resultlng
from further settlements : T

The. result ‘of ordlnary actlvmes thus amounted to €
493,388 thousands; and is oomposed of the income -
from investmeénts amounting to €520 942 thousands,
and the balance. of .current operat:ng income and ex-
penses, whlch amounts to €27, 554 thousands ‘-

th“u‘sands
and represent_aexpenses and addlt:ons to isiyons in
connection with consultancy expenses Eor

turing of the G'oup K = J"",

The- ta.xes on lncome amounted to € 8,496 thousands. -
This amount essentlally results from the rule, .concern-
ing minimum-taxation of taxable 1ncome? whrch -has
been in exnstence since 1 January 2004

Dévélopm?Ent mﬁassets and the f'nanclal pontlon 0

Total assets of?Hypo Real Estate Holdtng AG amounted
to €4, 780 668; thousands on 31 Decembes. 2005 and
thus 1ncreased by € 638 681 thousands, compared with.
the prevxous yvar

The book’ value of the ‘intangible assets 1no:eased by
€173 thousancs to-€'828 thousands. The: plant and, sop-"
eratlng equ1pm3nt have been capztallsed withan amount
of €989 thous:lnds comparad w1th €653 thousands in
the pravtous ye'ar

e

FEIIC R
T Ty e ™
T WIS

Iestruc- . 5183
" ‘Groupinternal 1 measure leading to a short-term lighility

Shares in affiliated ,mpanles have increased. by €.
493 487 thousands in the Emanmal year. €339,000 thou=
sands thersofare attrrbutable to newly subscribed shates

in Hypo Real Estate Baok International, €:106,810 thou- -

.sands " to acquired share§ and capital payments to the
Wiirttembargische Hypothekenbank AG, and an £47.677
thousands .increase-in the book value of Hypo Real
- Estate- Bank AG. Loansto affiliated compames were fully
rapald in tha fmanmal yoar M ;- o

.5;1 e‘
t.ﬁ, T

" Aceounts, racar
by € 274, 206 thousands t0:€£334,623 thousands. This is
basically relatlng to the'in- phase recaipt of a dividend
from Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, amounting to € 265,383

"thousands. A further- part is-attributable to the claim of -
' €.68,882 thousands, iarising from ‘the profit-and- loss

“transfer agreement wrth the Wiiritembergische Hypo-
thekenbank AG whrch has increased by £11,879 thou

sands. ,
Total. llablll ar _nted to €418, 790 t'housands oom
pared’wrth 122 423 Athousands in the previcus. year

‘The incraass of 3,367 thousands rosulted ‘from an

amountmg tol€ 199 750 thousands.

i

The provisions amounted to € 18,905 thousands on the
referance date and 1ncreased by € 2,399 thousandsicom-
parad to. the prevtous year. Thls increase resulted from
the addlt:on to; provxsrons for'! pensrons amountmg to

" camber 2005. The partlctpatlng capltal contained there- L
.in is €97124 thousands.! Tho equity of the company

ad;usted by "the- partrc:patlng capital, amounting to
€4,245,849 thouwands, also contains the profit availa-
ble for distribution, of €248,353 thousands, apart from
“the addition to retained earnings of € 240,000 thou-
sands. On 8 May 2006 it will be proposed to the share-
holders’ meetmg out of. the profit available for distribu-
‘tion) a d1v1dend of € 1:00 per;shars, be paid. From the

amount remaining, after payment of the dividend, of*
'E 134 072 thousands a further £€ 113,500 thousands shail .

be allocated'to ret ¢d earnings to strenghten the cap-
ital bagis of the group ,The remaining amount of €881
thousands shallba. cagrled forward to.the next accounts.

hl from affrltated compames Jncreased’

[PPSR

¢ iy e = e
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In the begmmng of 2005 the reorgamsatxon of, Hypo Raal :The shares onypo Real Estate HoldmgAG were delisted
Estate.Group cams into effect.’The international -real from the Vienna stock exchange {Standard Market Con-
sstate financing business was pooled under the umbrel- . tinuous) on,31January 20086, The shares are still traded
la of Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank. The entire . on the stock exchange in Frankfurt am Main (Prims
international roal estate financing portfolic 6f HypoReal  Standard).

Estate, Bank International, Dublin, was transferrad to .. S I v
Wiirttambergisshe Hypothekenbank AG, which was then  The proposal for paying a dividend of € 1.00 per share
renamed Hypo Real Estate Bank International ‘AG. The and for allocating € 113.500 thousand to other retained
German financing arrangements of Wiirtterebergische  earnings will be submitted to the shareholders’ mesting
Hypothekanbank AG:were transferred to Hypo Real ‘of Hypo Raal Estate Holding AGon'8- May 2006.

Estate BankAG in Mumch The former HypoReal Estate ™. T

Bank Inte rnatmnal was tran sfersed to Wiirttembe rglscbe ’ s ‘
Hypothekenbaak and now continues to operate Capital
Marksts frorn Diublin as Hypo Public Financeé Bank, and

L . O . !
was extegided to:include Public.Sector Finance,iwhich . .. ] oL e i
focuses on mh-astructura and Iocal authority. pro;ect - L -!
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R S Y .. FinancialReview
T Evenis after. 31 December 2005
T - - Risk Report
P R:sk-o::ented Group Management

+ -

" -Rnsk-onented Gmup Management

Overview -

Y Il Li

. .

) F!exlblhty andilnnovahon are key features of the Hypo

Real Estate Gre up. In 2005, the Group took advantage
of the opportumty provided by the newly created Ger-
man Pfandbr!ef Law to. pool its national and interna- .
tional commert‘la! real estate financing business from

Germany in only two entities. The increased utilisation '

of .the ranancmg banefits offerad by the Pfandbrisf.as

well as the improved transparency -and efficiency are.

strengthening the position of the Group in-a compsti-

tive environment which is constantly becoming ‘more -

i
, . 3 I o i .
‘-..‘ 4

L ‘l

v "

P .j Bt o ’

: i % 3 .
i

i - o p Lo

'The Hypo Real Estate Group has set ltsa]f thl aim of’ be-
coming-a: leadmg global real astate’ flnancuer with’ 8
strong base in pubhc finance and capltal ‘miatKets busi
. ness; The' overrldmg ob]eotlve is.to" add value for ali -
- stakehoiders aud shareholders jof - the Group as part of
e the overall busmess -strategy.:, 'l"he ovemdmg Group
e strategy w111 be used for establishing the sub- strategles
" on'ths bams ol the individual strengths of thiy banks.
-+ _The management ‘coneopt of the Group. spemfles terget; ’
-~ yields. for*the capltal allocated to the'banks, and defihes. -
specific yre]d requirements with due consnderatlon be-

ing gwan to th(l currant and desirad risk proflle
Ty

Comprehenswn risk :dennﬁcatlon as well as < treatment
of risk whlch i uniform and equwalent throughout the

: . ’ D
v o . . H
. . . Ve h

intense. The expansion of international, capital market

activities as well as low-risk public finance business in

Europe ané other OBCD countries in an entity from
. Dublin will further expand the basis of business and
“diversify the risk proflie of the Group "This restructur-
-ing of the Hypo Real Estate Group "and the ambitious

growth targets on exxstlng ‘and new-markéts with inho- -

. vative structured products will mvo!ve attractive oppor-

“tunities, as wellas a. demandmg challenge for managing °

the Group N actwmes -

zi'Rlsk 1dant1flcahon mvolves permanently and system-
f’:-atrcally anelysmg what mternal or external factors

) _’.busmess posmons af.tha Group The, annual tisk in;
} ventory is one way | ‘of identifying: prevlously unrec-

"~ tailed and Group -widé new- product procass

.m Risk meesuremant uses varlouy quantitative: and. qual-
“itative. methods to:assess the expected as wall as the
'lpotentlaiiy unexpected negatlve impact of the iden-

'tified risk factors on th's bank’ § earnings’ sitvation.

» Risk llmltahons restnct the amoutit of r:sk mvolved' :

+ under the; main; rlsk types tor the Group, quantlta

tive limitations.are. 1mposed by ‘meads of limits, and

' qgifalitative_ 11m1tatlons are 1mposed by way of poh-'
cies. - . . - .

a In risk controllmg the risk. hmlts are monltored and

ogmsed nsks. angthéf way’ is. torlmplement a-de: .

e bt e
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Group, are a major part of successful business manage- ‘regulerly reported to the:Management Board. The reg- 1
ment. = E : : ular compatison of aggregate overall bank tisk with j

: f‘ C L : the risk bearing capability of the Group, also under .

- The Group wice system comprlsmg risk identification, strogs;sconarios, guataitees complaanoe with the de- .
.measurement l:mltatlon controlling and management o fmed risk tolarance of the Group, and ensures that -
for the major nsks of the Hypo Real Estate Group de- any potential risk to the contmued existence of the
scribed in greater detail in the following will therefors Group as a going concérn i ldentlfled on a timely
be ad]usted to;take account-of changes in the business basis. - ST - ;
and risk strategy. and the methodology will be con- 'm Risk management manages the risks taken on at'the :
stantly fide tuned also with a view to new regulatory portiolio level, as through diversification, sale or in- i
reqmrements f: N . : "surance; at the level of individual transactions, risk =

ook - management mauages the tisks. taken on by way of :
Tk . procadure guidelines 4hd procesies.
£ ! - : ) '
! SO SRS -
!
1
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Responslbilit:es and dut:es

L Pt
Responstblhty for conscious handling of rlsks has been
spread over four divisions within the Group In- the
holdingicompany, the relevint divisions are respofsi-

ble for uniform: risk 1dent1flcat10n measurement and

with the ban(ks and are’also responsibls for.risk man-
agement at tae portfolio level, This ‘also includes the
task of devaloping consistent tisk policies and defining
process stanclards. .

The szup-mde committess, which mest regularly, as-

sums, overall responstblhty for the adoptlon of resolu-

tions relatm[r to sk pohoy conditions for the entities.

. These include policies and risk’ limits as well as meth-
ods for,risk ineasurement. The committees are also re-
sponsible for making tecommendations o the banks
with l:egard to risk positioning. The fo]lowmg are fur-
ther spec1f1c duties:

B Group Asset-Liability: Comrnlttee (ALCO): Asset.’ha-
.b:hty management across the Group; setting of limits
for markef and liquidity risks and defmmg the fund-
ing strategy of the Group.

get structurerof the Group's credit portfolic based on

turn situation and decision- makmg regardmg credlt
risk management.

mformatl-m within the Group' and en3uring uniform
measuzement and management of operational risks.

enables Group-wide measures to be taken in order to

i limit and avoid risk.
!

correspondmg tisk controlling and management antmes
in tha banks

' Grou’p Risk Con‘tsol it fesponsible for ensiiting uniform
specifications for identifying and measuring those risk

types whlch are defined as vital. Aggregate metrics at

[—

limitation th: oughout the Gioup in close co-operation:

B Credit Poitfolio Committes (KPA): Danmg the tar-"

P the Group credlt risk position, optimising the risk-re- .
a Operatlonal Risk Commlttee [ORGJ Exchangmg of

Trensperency relating to the Group's risks situation’

. Organi%atioti of the committess is the resipon.sibiii)tf) (st .
Group, level) of Group Risk Contrel (GRC) and Group -
Credit Risk 'nanagement [GCRJ in conjunction with the,

Group !eve! results of the comparison with the risk

l ““bearing capablllty adjustments in method as well as

risk-restricting limits and utilisation of these limits are
regularly reported to the Holdmg Management Board
as well as the commlttees :
Group Credit Risk Management analyses the credit port-
‘folio of the Group on the basis of various risk-relevant
aspects such as- sectors, -Customer groups, property
structures for the Holding-Management Board, the Su-

- [ pervisotyBoard-and also as'a decision-making basis for.

the credit portfollo committee, and " proposes suitable
measutres. o i

] -

Senior Risk Management reviews new credit decisions

by tha individual banks in the Group on an independant
basis, lmplementmg the risk policy of the Group and
makmg recommendations to the Holding Management
Board to provide a basis for the definitive decisions.

The Group Legal De;;ar'tment advises the holding's
Management Board as well as the holding entities,
tracke dsvelopments in the judiciary with a view to
Hrnit legal risk,;and:provides guidancs 1o the Group com-
panies at the request of their- -Managemaent Beards in
fundamental maiters ag wall as in general lagal matiers
and trensachon related processes

As an 1ndependen‘t momtormg body, Group Internal
Audit regularly reviews the, adequacy and effectiveness
of rlsk-onented :Group management, and reports on the
ésults directly to-the Holding Management Board.

As part of the so-called 'exi:!osure procass, the Gredit
Committees of the Supervisory Boards of the banks,
‘which also comprise members of the Holding Manage-
ment Board, advise on exposures in excess of a certain
size, in order to limit risk concentrations in the Group.
The ent::e system the orgamsatlonal framework as wsll
as the processes afe documented cn,an aggregate basis
in the risk. manual of Hypo Real Estate Holding; on 2
detailed ‘basis, and” particularly at “the process level,
‘they are documented in the risk manuals and process
documentatlon of the banks

. o8
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. regulatorypielements. which are. mamfastad ithe sec-

. Tcredrt nsks and operatronal rlsk Eor all European "anks
., ‘are as umform as posstblef : - :

. SRR L : o
Regulatory deve! opments and preparatlons
on the part of the Hypo Rea! Estate Group

' Basel | A parad lgm change in bank regulation has result-
- ed! from the introduction:of BaselIl. Not only.are regu-.

latory caprtal naqurrements now more risk-sensitive; in

‘A‘Eutura there. will alse bé- greater focus ' en: quahtatrve

v

nd prliar of the Basei II concapt

l .
3_1 TN 1l R . L4

The hew set of rilas has been oompleted at the level of
the Basel'II bark tegulation committse. 'In the EU the
leglslatron process for implementing Basel II was com--
p!ated onge tha Capital Requirements Directive (CRD)

 was! adopted m ‘the European Parliament. At the natron- .

-8l level, the specnftcatron}s)of the CRD wrll be, mcorpo-

a: :ated in a: new:Solvancy Ordmance (SolvVJ wh1ch wrll
, ?replaca principle I, as well as by changes in;the Kradrt«'
' .wesengesetz (KWG - German Banking- Law) and the

Grof- und Mlllronenkredrtverordnung [GroMlKV Or-
dinance Goveraing Large Loans and Loans in Excess. of
‘One Millien).. Followmg a phase.of’ oonsultatron the |
resolution is exxpected’ to; ba adoptad in the Errst half ot'
_2006 i,. SRR : '

Tha Commlttae of Eu ropean Banklng Supervrsors {GEBSJ
has prepared an rmplemantatlon and audit guideline
forthe raqurramants fiom the flrst pillar of the-Basel II-
concept with the aim of ensurrng that the approval cri-
teria for the mapltal -saving advanced approacbas for"

{ Prllar I of the 3asel rules is'covared by an ab

- quirements for risk managamant {MaRisk) have bean
drawn up which specify the contants. As part ofthe in-

: strtutrona] procass “of exchanging mformatron wrth the -

. bank assoctati-)ns. ‘this has resultad ina flexible’ sat -of
rules basad on practlcal constderatrons whlch was] put

i
i3

TR @

5T aaddan © EEE
'

into forca in December 2.005 by the BaFin ‘and whlch

_out for lending (MaK), tradrng activities (MaH) as well
. as internal audit (MalR). The addmonal requirements, -

‘phase _.__" ) f

: ct gen— !
.eral adjustment of seétioh 25a KWG. The minimum re- ! ., e S .
The Hypo Re‘a] Estate Group meets the requirements of

the new Pfarr_dbriaf Law for risk-management and has, .
as is describéd in more detail in the chapter “New Cor-
already begun

to, adapt to: tha new crrcumstances - ' :

mcorporates the minimum requrrements heretofore set

which are more qualitative in nature with the aim of
provrdmgrthe regu!atory authorlty with an overall pic-.

‘ture ‘of the ‘risk position,. rtsk management and risk
ig ¢ pabtlrty, willinot ‘have to-be satisfied before. -
ap]tal backmg tiles. .are 1mpiemanted and

bearl

t-":"
ks

not bafore

The Hypo Real Estate Group has been praparing its
mathods and processes mtenswely to meet the new re-
quirements for the past two. ysars in a Group-wids
project’ “Basal II". The’ methodo]ogy technical and proc:

ess costs for complymg with the new tequirements ara ;.
atremendous and no defrmtrve .assessment can yst be.

mada of such’costs as iong as the implementation and’
audit guideliné of tha CEBS is strll in the consultatron

Pfandbrlef Law The new Pfandbrlef L.aw enacted in Iu]y
of 2005, comprlses many naw e]ements mcludmg

_wThe abolrtlon of the spscial bank principle, so that

undar. certa]n condrtlons -all’ banks are now able to

be granted-a licence by tha BaFln for conductmg"(“

"Pfandbiief busmess, .

' The expansion of the group of mortgage loans eligible-

for cover. to the USA, Canada and Japar as well as

quahty assuranca ragulations; such as !

s The expansron ‘of the extent &nd fraquency of the
publrcat:on raqurramant and.”

» vadenca of a professwnal rrsk management sys-~

tem . E i

porate, Structuru sinca- 1 Ianuary 20087,

B bk g e i it Sttt iy i =
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Once the mtmmum raqutrements for- rrsk management :

(MaRrsk} are oompletely intréduced, financial groups;
from 2007. onwards, wilk have to-carry out & risk bearing.
capabllrty analysis which is- commensurate with.the' rrsk .
profile dnd the complexity of thelr business, the so--
" called ICAAR [Internal Caprtal AdaquacyéAssessment
ProcessJ In tars _Pprocess, ;the entrre risk’ determmed for
the enterprlse 1s compared with the résoutcss available
for® financial Pover and” ‘various scenariog are- exammed
to establrsh whether the Group is adequately capltal-
jsed and whether the risks:which have been taken on
are not exoassrve “Thist analys:s is to be oarrred out on

a regulaf basre needs to be a component of the | manage- :

ment and dec1310n -making pracess of-the bank, com-
prise ~all rna]or risks and take account of planning .as
well as stres3 scanatios. The Hypo Real Estate Group-
mtroduoed tae’analysis-at-the Group and eatity lavel.
on'a six: morthly basis at the-énd of 2004, and devel

oped the analysls further in 2005 :

- h l . B
“The deflmtmn of a level of rlsk loleranoe by the Hold-
ing Managemen}t Board'is a major part of the risk-bear;,
ing capabthy analysrs “This_definition specrfres the
components‘and amount of cap:tal Wl’l]Ch .are, to, be

shareholders equrty as well as the expected net proht

before taxes 4 . ~ L

The total bank risk i rs the aggregate of the mam mdrvrd-
ual risks described in the following chapters with due -
oonsrderatroo belng given to- correlatron effects. Wherg
possible and meaningful, the 1ndw1dual tisks are estab-

l

lished using.- 4 statrstlcal method, usually a_“valus- at ;
! addrtlon to the Gurrant rigk: structure business planning

" risk”, quantifying potentral unexpacted loses tmthm a
specific perlod in Euro. - " mee e T

i I3 -
B R P T ;,fn :
I . ' .

The eifn of 'the risk- bearing ca'pabill‘ty'analysis'chosen i

for the: Hypo Reel Estats Group is to simulate whsther.
"'there will still be sutficient cdpital available for contm-
uing the bark’s operations even‘aiter the extremaly un® |
lrkely ocgurk ence ofallrisks and their £ Emancual coverage

:

BN

L

ir. _‘ 2 e B PR I
fi <1 Y - L oy b e

1 risk bearing capability analysis

Presentation of the principles of the

Risk cover fund RDM" Risk bearlngcapablhty

"Froe Hsk(over funrh RDM"
»Core capltalx .
aProft sharing rights
“oitstanding - ]

Group rlsk p05|tron

© “reserved rkk cover Tunds+
ROM* L Sy }

. e R :

" The, Group as well as. the mdmdual banks currently
enjoy a. comfortahle’ fisk cover buffer at present, even on

the basis of this very conservatrve rlsk-baarmg capability”
analysis. At the Group level, this amourifed to € 0.9 bil-

lion as oE September 2005 for a statistical- confrdence E

lavelof 99% thé corruspondmg figute for a statistical
oonf'dence level of 99 9% was still €0.5 bl!hon

v
EN T T i > 4

I further stages the degree of risk cover is assessed on
the basis of ‘strags: scenarios. focussing on creditor
proteotlon.gwherebyg all: shareholders .equity s, .made
available for.covering risk. Under this assumption, the
proposed sttess scenatios of the Bundesbank wers as-
“sessed; also :the Group s own, scenarlos such as a ‘high-
e oonflder:ce lavel. and/or changed correlation assump

tlons between the. rlsk types were, "assessed as well. In ‘

as well as potential risk changes are also assessed in the
nsk~beanng oapab]l]ty analysis in order to establish their
oonsrstency with the Group's defmed risk tolerance.

Minimum capltalbadcing - o o N

i -
b Cedon 4 ! ' : i
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o Total bank rlsk and risk’bearing capability
v Risk measu.:rement
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Lof :

Risk measurenient, control and management of major Hsk types in the Hypo Real Estate Group

{ =':'- ;“ Vo

i —
The risk”profi!e of the Hypo Real Estate Group is very
much characterised by credit risk in line with the business
modal. The mtenswe analyms identification, managa-
ment and monitoring of this risk type is reflected in the
orgamsatlon structure and the committeas of the Group

ceot +
i
. i

Market rlsk and liquidity” risk are becoming more 813-
nificant w1th ‘the planned axpanston of capital ‘market
busmass Opv:ahonal tisk, strategic risk and:- in par-
ticutar ~ sincé: the Hypo Real Estate Group was includ-

“ed. in the DAX-30 index — reputation risks are. further :

major n‘sks which ‘frequently have to be taken-on ‘and
whzch have to be mtenswely managed and monltored

f - :
. A ‘ : ; s ,, B
EE, I
L]
1
4

Credit risks * * .

. i

Creadit risks can be broken down into loan default risk,

colinterpaity. rigk, issust risk and :country misk. Thay
define the potential loss of value which may occur as a

result of the default or rating downgrading of customers

in londmg business, issuers of ) promissory: notes ‘and
debt securitins as well as counterparties in money mart-
kat, SBC’I.J.",'IUG_‘: and: derivative transactions, respectivaly.

5 P 1 [
e i . . '

In the field éE real;estate financing business, the credit
risk comprisis not only the pure rating risk.but also the
collateral risk. The’latter.is attributable to potentlal
losses ofva!uo of collateral due to reasons relatad to the
ficanced propetties and/or the market environment. For
professional’ management of this risk, the lending poli-
cy in the entire Group is. based on the fo]lowmg cote
principles: .. ¢ b g

B Thorough and caroiul cred:t ana]yses of each !I'ldl-

“vidual transaction,

B Determmlng the extent to whlch forecast cash flows -

are able to cover capitalservicing (spacnflcally under

extreme market conditions such.as sharply rising in-
, and fmanmal instruments !(securitisation} as a facility

terast rates) as well as the current and_-sustainable
value of gollateral,
B Use of ratlng methods for determlmng the defeult

" probability of the borrover and use of early-warning

systems,

fod .
L . ;

o Ussof Loss-Givan-Default (LGD) ‘measfuring proceduras

" for measuring. future procesds of any foreclosures
» which may become necessary if borrowers default,
o Permanent active observation of the real estate markst
" and. adjustmant of the lending policy whers necessary,
n Systematic diversification of the loan portfolio by

_way of active portfolio management,

-’ Ensuring that the loans can be resold or syndicated.

The q‘ualityo{ the valuation methods being used is con-
stantly monitored by risk éontrolling, they meet BasellIl

‘tequirements throughout the Group. The calibration of

the rating scale for probabilities of default and the- LGD

‘measuring procass for loss ratios is based on statistical

analyses of historical defaults or Idsses in the portfolia.

The vary diffsrent stratégic focus of the three members
of the Group has meant that it Group-wide credit prin-
ciples with clear and uniform principles and financing
pr‘inoiplé_sfr_jead to be adepted in‘m_ordar to ensure a uni-
form perception of tisk. The credit principles also re-
quire the banks to prepare external or internal reports
for sach: mdnn&ual property transaction and to carry
out cash flow simulations and stress tests. By continu-

-ously monitoring the covenants, risks can be ;dentlfled.
" assassed and managed at 4n sarly stage. These analyses

relating to individual transactions are complemented

by scenario observations at the portfolio level.

The Group uses best-practice approaches, such as the
German requirements for credit business for credit in-
stitutions (MaK) and for risk managemeant (MaRlsk) by
way of mganlsatlon measites and functional segregation
of credif processes right through to Management Board

. leval into market and back oche

In addition to the lending buginess, described -above,
the Hypo'Real Estaté Group is also actively involved in
purchasing, structuring and onward placing of loans

for return and risk optimising. Here again, the Group
uses internal rating procedures which comply with the

‘Bass! Il requ1remen ts for. assessing ratings.

| e
PO ——|

et e e e i it my
R T—
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Gounterparty n'sks are defmed as posmb!a lossas ofva]ue _ese limits restrict the busmess activities. All country ‘
affecting mterast rate and foreign currency derivatives ratrngs and country llrmts are -Teviewed at least.once :
and forward transact]ons Most of; these transactions are_ - avery year by tbe credrt portfollo committes. The inter- .
" carried. out as hedga positions as,part of asset/hablhty nal tisk assessments ara also regularly compared with !
. managament A "valus-at-risk approach| basad on a mark-- assessments byt the: marn ratlng agencies. The following :
to-markat, mathod is used for measuring the counter- . table seis out. the &1str1butron of tha entire country risk
party rlskthroughout the Group;, this approach is bassd - -of the ; Hypo Real Estate Group accordlng to internal l
on potentral futura =replacemant costs, Counterparty ratlng classes and "ord}ng te Tegions as of 31.12.2008. i
" riskswith; derl}ratwe sscurity and motiey-market trans-" < : cl ) "
- “actions axrst V\”nh flnancta] institutions, central banks w : : o : ‘
: ‘and’ supranatronal 1nst1tut10ns whose credlt standlng is* | Country risk accordmgto mtemal rating classes |
above averaga on the basis. of the assessment of external : ;
i rating agancies; and also on the:-basis.of inteinally useg 1s0f31 122005
rating procedures In ¢rder fo reduce the darwatwe il Other® A+ toA-
related countelparty tisk, the Hypo Real Estate. Groupg | 044% 121% i
: normally uses: framework agreements with i{s busmess ’ A+ to AA— :
partnars which'enable all contracts covered by the agrea- 13.21% :
ment to be pocled into a net recewable if the, counter- ’8‘?‘;‘6?
party failsto meet his obligations {so-called closa out
netting). Ih order to reduce tisk further, secutity agree- -
ments are takdn out which may résult in the cancella- ~ . i e —
tion of transac:ions if the counterparty fails to comply BEB+ to BBE—: 04D BB + ) A 0.01%: B 0r worse: 0.0%
with a request t6 provide securities. For'the purposés o e
of internal risk measurement, nettlng prooeduras and | oo Lo ‘ . )
. . security netting are only used if they are considered to —E;untry risk according“to regions o '
be legally enfarcaable for the particular ;urlsd]ctlon ‘
and the specrfr., countarparty ‘ 210f231. 122005
o |l o ) . | Other® North America,
The Hypo Rea] Estate Group defines tbe term country 097% dapan
and Australia
risk as the rick. of possible transfer and conversion’ 961%
problems; encountered with contract partrers domrcrled o
- abroad. The credit tisk is that a borrower who is noe-’ :"'geztle;"E“"’Pe*——.—_
mally able and willing to pay. is not ab]e to mest-his i
| payment obligitions if, as a rasult ofgovernmant action,
] he is not ableto secure forelgn currency or to transfer
’ .assets to persois’ ‘notresident in the terntory The loca— © Sgasem Eumpe 085%.A5|a mr up-n. Midle East: oogxut.n America: 0.03%:
tion of tha property securities is also 1mportant in thlS Africa: 0.00% '
- respect. Credit risk controlling momtormg of country . ‘
risks on @ permanent basis. Country risks aré monitored .
. by credit risk managament on the basis of country limits. "
Dependlng on the results of the mtarnal ratmg procass . * .
a ma.xrmum llmrts are allocated to:. RS : i
m Eachflndlwdual country and® | T - t
D 12) Groups of countrras in cartaln ratlng ranges
Eoh L - - S
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| Credit pgrlioiio management is particularly important A key element of successful activity in real estate financ- |
1 ’ <as part of- orec.it risk managemant, The aim- is to reduce ing is sound knowlsdge of the (real cstate) markets and
- the axtert anc. Volatllity of credit risk costs in line'with “the implementation of such knowledge in'business strat- !
the overall business strategy of the Group and the Group’s  egies as well as in-credit and portfclio management
ability to bedr. risk by way of suitable portfolio ‘meas- processes. The Hypo Real Estate Group has established
ures, and to achieve dwemf‘cahon success in the Group ‘considerable know-how in the corresponding real estate
. measured agamst nsk and earnmgs parametars L fmarkets and is conscipus of the risk-relevant factors.

The procass of trackmg this aim is supportad by the
followmg insfrumants: ' I
= Contmuous portfolio and real estate markat analysis,
] Systematrc increase or decrease of sub- portfohos in
" line w1th rrsk strategy through appropriate ganaratlon
of new buginess or adjustment of conditions wrth

. rlsk»adequate margins, : " ;

a Risk transfer by way of partial portfoho sales secu-
titisation rneasures and syndications,

s Useofa cred:t portfolio mods! for establlshmg the "
probabllrtres and axtent of potentlally unexpected
'lossas and: B Cid = Lo

" Lumtmg s_lb-portfollos in relatlon to types of proper-
ty, reglons customer groups rating ciasses or maturi-
tres! T P

In the case of davalopment f:nanmng arrangemants

which 1mply a higher risk than invéstment financing -

artangements as a result of the completion risk, the ex-

tent of the davelopment portfolio is llmlted as follows:

(1) For specificcountries faz a parcentage of the country
limit)-and

{2) In relation to the overall portfollo

primarily toithe sale' and rental stdtus of the financed -
property anc: the ability'to cover current credit interest
out of the cash flows which are received and the 1SC -
(Interest SBIV[CB Coverage) Elgure Fmancmg arrange-
ments Wth"l are coversd by rlsk-ad;usted ranges of
these criteria are limited by way -of so- ‘called specula-

tive limits. Qverall, the differentiated limitation of sub-,

portfolios guafantess a sound relationship -between in-

vestment and development financing in the individual -

countries and in the overall portfolio.

“Ressaich tasults ocbtained.on site dre incorporated into

the business activities and the minimum requirements
for lending, For instance, more restrrctwe lending re-
qulremams are applicable for marksts whoss tisk pro-
file is critical (e. g. with regard to the input of equity,
‘rental/sala covenance).'a current example of this is the
"Hypo Real Estate Group's strict guidelines for activities

..in the U8 residential market.

The Group s primaty target customers include business
partners, with professronal oparatrons in international
real estate ‘markets and who ‘maet the stringent lending

; standards patticularly also i in new markats {for instance

-Russia and China). Ex_t_euswe matket and risk analyses
are carried -out zhead of the decision to follow the
Group's customers into new markets.

! Pre-calculatiofn‘mdd'els, which ana_bla risk-adequate mar-

_gins to be established for new business or when conditions
are adjusted, are used for implementing management
‘right through to tha signing of individual transactions,
These models take account of covering refinancing costs,
capital costs and general administrative sxpenses as

+ well as potential credit risk costs of expectad losses.

The degree of risk of development flnancmg correlates -
~The credit portfoho commlttee is responsible for manag-.

. ing the continuous'improvement of risk diversification
.of the real estate financing portfolio as markets avolve.

The following tables break down the real estate financ-
ing operations of the Hypo Real Estate Group in the
amount of € 65.1 billion by property-specific and region-
al aspects. The: information is based on the credit port-
folio [(inel. ‘commitments, gxcl. pro-rata interest) as of
31 December 2005. Including state financing business,

© it amounted to € 123.2 billion.
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Real estate credit portfolic according to regions
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Ail axposuresfare oonstantly ‘monitored: based on tha:,
risk management instruments’ descnbed above: ‘Early

r recognmon of potential problem loans can be termed a

Eundamenta!tprmcrple of the credit’risk cultiire: Tn ad: ©
dition, axrstmg sub-performing or nén-performing loans
are mtenswa*y monitored and regularly analysed. Early.

warning syst=ms hava been mstalled in ordar to ensure "

—_ :
.} Real estate Ioans with an increased level of risk

Sasof 1Zin% 2005 2004 2003

| Watch list 1 2 3
i--1 Sub-petforming 1 1 2
2 2 S

I\_Nan-perfamln T
o

.
1
1
i
i
i

&

B T N

* that loans which rnay be exposed to an enhanced lavel
of credit risk can be identified at an:early stage. Affact-
Ted exposures are p]aced on'a’ watch list” in order to

mMizduse wOher) “gnsure that théy are. the subject of gieater. attention.
«The followmg,;tablagprasents the performance of real
estate loans exposed to an “inereased level.of risk -

Mra!atron to the overa!! rea] estate credlt portfolto OVEr
tha past thrae years T oo

hiF e te

1

£ Market- fisk-is defmed as the potenhal loss whrc:h may
ibe incurred asia result ofchanges m -ptices on the finan-
eial markets All iending busrnass all own issues, all’
" sscurities held as investments and liquidity instruments

4 ag wall.as all derivative transactions are taken into con-

sideration for this puipose at all banks in the Hypo
Real Estate Gioup: ThlS is also applicable for the posi-
" lions held in fHe trading book in Dublin: Scheduling

‘assumptions for equlty[unds allowances and the effects
e of nen- schedu]ed redemptrons are ‘also taken into consid-
“-eration. The. resuitant market nsks ate mainly interast

: rata rrsks Do W a--«., e

g Adlstmctlon is made betwaen genaral and special mtar-‘

"‘ast risks [spread rrsks} “The former ‘measure potential .

changes in'the present valua of posrtlons in the event

" of shifts of:the no:risk rate curve. {swap curve), The.

measurement “of spread risks, which is-to be- further

.fine-tuned in 2006, takes account of possible present -
“value’ changes if changas anse inthe credit standing

premlums priced inte securmas and ‘darivatives.
- V.

Currency fidks * ‘ard wrdely hedged at all banks in the

Group, and are accordmgly present only to a limited

- extant, In the: field of equrty, commodity and other price-

risks, only equrty risks'as well as a]tematwe investments
. may ba takan on,and only to astnctly lrmrted extent.

4% - P N L
d s E k i

" The banks in‘the Hypo Real Estate Group use a uniform |

value at- rrsk approach for- daily quantification of the

5 market risk. This approach datermmes a potenhal loss’

. on the assumption that a position i{s held for ten days

*:and also ‘on'the ‘assumption of a-confidencelevel of -
99 %. The panod of observahon for historical data is

T o= .

|

1
i

'

Y

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

Page 204 of 245
|

!



Financial Review |17

: o P ! N Risk Report
! i 5 ; L Ca Risk measurement
f 3 3 - - L
# I l. U B : *
. (3 .
. .
L 1 * VT -
w o : . o .
. .. - L
. e l P o -
E o - ‘
. :
b
Brew - T ' .
e - .
) .
N i ) !
; i - (
T ; &
4 ‘.': 6 l 5 . “ .
FE I S |

130

20 Jﬂ" : /ﬂ\\ U

250 tradlng dEzys The value at- nsk is establrshed dally
by the banks local rlsk controllmg umt itis aggre—.
gated by tha holdmg company-toform a total market
risk at the Group level; and is then reported to man-

agement. Through this system, the Hypo.Real’ Estate .

Group is at. all times able to.control consequences of -
potentral market fluctuations, such as rate changes
ot currency: ldctyations; “in a tlmely and- prof]table
manner.; . This active rnanagement is also reflected
i daily. fluotuatlons of value-at-risk for the general in-

. ‘terest rate r:sk “(oxdls own funds Books)in - ‘the ‘Hypo

Real Estate Gloup during the year. With an"average val-

ue of less than € 20: mllllon for 2005 {max £ 36 rmlllon .

min. €5 nnlllonl thé general intérest rate of thé Group
is at.a very low level whether compared 1nternally or
yexternally l! T P :

i 2% 2 e

General interest rate risk 2005

In € million

40

Vi) Lll,,m, i Wu‘

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun  Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
AC TR

e e i
Daily compiiting, limitation and. reporting of value—
at-risk and the actual changes in present values which

" occur are’ cc-mplemented by regilar ‘back- testmg and

0

stress- testmg, The quality of the method whlch is used |
is oonstantlv reviewed and optimised by comparlng .

the value atirisk” Elgures with the actual-dail ¥ c¢hanges: -

in- present values. The -statistical assumptions of our =
models have been confrrmed Whereas the value- ,

at- rsslc measures ‘the ‘market risk- under normal" rnar
ket Eluctuatlons the simulation of stréss scenarios
also measurﬂs the potentlal changes in present values,
undar very laxtreine and- unusual markst” movements

so that the cantlnued axistence of the company. as a 8O-

ing ooncernlcan also be guaranteed at all- trmes un-

i P SR .
S For 0] S s '
e - !! - R .. . i o B

- Thanks to HypoReal Estate BankInternatlonal Dublin's,

- *'tural lvo‘n'g-terl:n\-l_iquid_lty,:the»hanks-ih(‘the Groupusé a !

der these oondrtrone “The measured market rlsk was -
also Wlthll’t the normal limits” even under these con-
dltlons :

"Inthe mdmdual banks market risk management is han-

:dled by a committee on ‘the basis of the market risk po-
_ sition determ:ned daily by risk controlling this com-
amrmttee “mests -Tegularly-and intensively considers ‘the
Ruture development of the financial markets ard mar-
lcet parametars.. In additicn, the. .Group_Asset-Liability-
Commrttee [ALCO) uses the matket analyses as the basis -
‘for makmg a trend statement for further positionings
within the Group Implementatron is again the respon-
‘sibility’of the individual'banks within the framewozk of
therr rrsk limits deflned by the holding company.

S S

“frade book approved in 2004 by the state regulatory au-
tl}ormes ‘the bank can also benefit to a greater sxtent

" from short tetm markst fluctuatrons Resultant market -
.Iisks arg also sub}ect to the strict risk management proc-
iess deta:led above, mcludmg darly risk measurement,
lrmltlng and reporting to Management

e — e+ -

_f,quuidity“riskl e e

The foremost.goal of the process of managing liquidity

risksis to ensure that gvery individual bank in the Hypo
Real Estate Group is solvent at all times. In accordance
- with the internal limit system, probable payment in-

Elows ,and outflou;'e -and; ‘possible l1qu1d1ty procuring’
- measures, the so- called quurd:ty position, must be at
" least balanced -at all times during the following five
‘dédys. This position is-determined dally, with due con-
sideration bemg givento precautsonary discounts (“haii-
cuts”); it is monltored by Rrsk Controllmg and reported ©
to the Managernent Board S .

A quurdlty prevrew covering 90 days is prepared inor-
“der fo identify: any ‘additional” short term re-financing I
- needs at an early stagé. This preview is used as the basis
‘of active liquidity management. Fot contrelling struc-

capital schedule which is also broken down on the basis
of1nd1v1dual product groups and thus also perrnlts flne- ,

PR

T F .
Lot - PN 3. - 1
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s, human errgrs technology failure or external events.

. Operatlonal rlgk which = unlike market or credrt tisk =

7 4 arlslc lndlcators as well as Operatlonal Rlsk management
- ‘measires wh:ch heve been lmplemented “The relevance .

T - S N

L ":l .I.t - ‘. - . Lo
tuning by market segments. An annual funding plan is
then prepared;: with due consideration being given to
‘planned newbusmess this funding plan is adopted ‘and
1tsxmp]ementauon monitored. In doing so, the HypoReal

) Estate' Group closely follows the Basal recommsndatrons

for quurdlty management : !

H 'g, 1 e e

o B 'E IR ! Tyt s

B PR I R
-Operational r[sk:l

E_QIn the Hypo Real Estate Group operatlonal Tiski is defmed
:as unexpécted | losses caussd by defectwe mternal process-

: Thrs defllutror. also 'includes legal nsks Strategic, rep-x
utatron and genera! busmess rlsks are not mcluded
?-'«5..- b IRV
is not delrberately taksr on, is inherent in every busi-_
ness trangaction and is becoming'increasingly impor-
tant as the Groiip's international business becomes mors
and moré' comiplex. The aim of the Hypo Rsal Estate
Group is therefors to sncourage a pro-active approach
to opsrational fisk by way of an institute-wide risk cul-.
ture so that .méasures desngnad to minimise risk or llmlt
—damage can be‘mrtlated at an early stage
! v
‘In 2005 the Hypo Real Estate Group continued toim-
plement the group-wlde framework which haé been
adopted for managing operational risk, Pr1mar:ly, it'is
the relevant divisions of the bank who are responsible
for identifying‘and managing their operational risk. The
group-wida obligation for recording o’pera‘tional risk
losses in a losi database as well as regular reportingof
defined key risk indicators by the entities to local nsk
controlling, have notrceably 1ncreased risk. sensrttwty
" - s .
Group Risk Control repotrts every six months inthe Op
erational Rlsk Comrhittes, which comprises members
ofthe Boards of Management of. all entities, concernmg
* internal losse.. : resulting from operatlonal r1sk cases;
any unusual dz:velopments mcludlng evaluatlons ofkey

 of potentlal ritk sources, for the.Group can be assessed
by means-of a jomparison with public clomam loss data

from operatlortal rlsk as well as through benchmerkmg .

'
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the key risk mdrcators The unlform risk 1nventory car- l

ned out at Managsmantlével throughout the Group eve- !

ry year ptovides: addrtronal information elating to pos- l
sible, mostly operatxonal nsks in connectron wrth the

current busmess strategy e : l

i
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‘al Contract.r‘iewk“, N T B t
‘m I_.egiélationkriékl“-‘ ST e
" Judiciary risk . .
u " Lagal risk of the property to !Je frnanced and
» Resource r1sk B :
- ";-‘_ I v £
Gontrac':t'risk is Char'éc_terised by losses arising from un-
.enforceable con‘tr'act“components due to etrors in the
* drawing-up or-documietitation of the contract. Where
- possible, -the Hypo Reai ‘Estate Group uses audited . l
standaid contracts both nat!onally and internationally. |
Individual contracts are drawn up by employees with
legal training. who are ‘familiar with local contract law.
A continvous review .process for the contract specrmens .
and. clauses:whichare-used ensures. that the contracts
are effectrve adequate and enforceable
Leglslatlon rrsk is. defmecl as the negative impact in the
change of- regulatrons on the' continuation of certain ' .
busmess models RS . 1

Woag
¥

By carefully observmg legrslatron actlvrty and via ist as-
sociation! actwrty, the Hypo Real Estate: Group keeps its
rknow how and

orgamsatronal structures up-te-date,
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RiskiRePort
RIsk measurement

I B SR AT
Judiciary "risk "is the risk that contracts which’ wers
or:gmally correctly documented mighit become partially-. .
or entlrely uneinforceable following a changs in, court ;
verdiets. In order to limit this risk, the Hypo Real Estate

‘Group constantly monitors the'deyelopment in gourt ver-
digts; Hypo Ra.:l EstateiGroup employees also mamtam .
P enwronment are_ not recogmsed on'a timely basis and

close: contact mth Judges and Judrcrary experts

- M ! : i.'.__.

" sector approva]s which mlght hava a;negative rmpact
'’ on the value of the property to be financad.: ‘In order. to’
“avoid these tisgs, the Hypo Real Estate Group regularl'
carries out legcr] dus dlllgence apart | from fmanorai du_ -
‘ dlllgance beEora the contract is srgnad

i #
h-

Resource risk ;iiefmes the tisk that 1nternel or, extemal
legal oor:sultarcy skills are madequate in terms of qual-
ity or quantrty This rrsk is limited by regular self:as-

: -sessments by the legal department and by havifig oaly .

meeticulously saiected external consultanis ‘represent- .
ing the Hypo Raal Estate Group mternatsonally

The reorganisation. of the Group. whrcb oommenced in -
‘. 2005 with the merger of the technical, personnel and -

cultural real estate financing activitiss to form the new
Hypo Internatisnal Bank, of course involves a potential-
ly high operational tisk in the form of integration risks.
Accordingly, aspecial integrati'on project team was-set
up es part of the overall pro]ect the. purpose of- thrs
team is to recogmse and manage risks promptly

o ' .
In addition, as,part ofthe annual group-wrde risk inven-.

tory process, .;dditronal risk factors which had beea |

identified as part of previous restructuring processes
were alsoasseiised and svaluated.

Wrth the measires for 1dent1fy1ng ande managlng opera
tional risk>which have already been rmplementad and:

_which are planned for'the futurs, ‘the Hypo. Real Estate -

Group isiwell’ prepared to meet’ the requrremants of

"Basel I, spemfled in the "Practlcel recommendatlons
i

for managemeit: of operations: rigks”.in lma w1th‘*the

. business. modal and extent of busmess L

9

Fi
L
! Wb

i
il v 4
'

o

R

- _of. the Group™arg derwed from” changss and develop-

) and regu]atory requrrements part:cuiar!y with regard

Strateglcand other nsks <o o !

4 s ? g - --
“The only :el:able constant is. change" In this respect,
strateglc risk.means that changes in relation to markats
relevant for, busmess the’ compet:twa situation as well

as the extent and. d1rect10n of the: lega] or regulatory

have1a negatrve 1mpact*on the long term SUCCBSS of

: must be o patlble wrth detariad busmess strategles for
'_ spec1f1catlon as: well as the quallty of 1mplementatlon

1 he Holdmg Management Board mtensrvely obsarves
the German as wellsas ‘the mtematlonal competitive
" gpvironment: Conclusrons for the sirategic positioning

ments and -the Management Board deals particularly
wrth ‘the questlon how opportunities of growth can he
derived from. that. For instance, in. 2005, the Hypo Real
‘Estate: Group took advaotage of benefits arizing from
tbe reform of'the Pfandhr:efLaw to strengthen its com-.
petitsveness Reputatron .risks are increasingly being
perc:awed as one, oE the-main risks for enterprise valus,
These rlsks may result for instance from business con”
~duct, the Iespon§e ‘of customers of the Group or risks
“which. have become: significant ot other risk types
Negatwe publicity — Just1f1ed or.unjustifiad — can’ have
a sngmfacantly negatwe 1mpact on enterpr]se value.

T

Fundamental prmcrp!es have been adopted and internal
~ departments have been entrusted with monitoring in
* ordet fo limit risk. A’dodeof conduct valid throughout
the Group, defrnes prmcrples of fair play with regatd to

.allinterest: groups The.compliance officers also moni-
s tor the oompllance.and control. the’ adherence of legal

4+ to ‘money laundermg and .the insider trading regula-
tlons The Holdmg ‘Maragement Board assesses the ex-
. tentto whlch the code.is up-to-date and sffective in the

y constantly c: hglng ‘'world of busiress. Also the credit
+ principles- throughout the. Group define ethical stand-
ards whrch pr c]ud ertam transactions or busmess N

wowef

e e g e e a1
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Ous. declared irtention is not to avoid risk, but to adopt

a rasponmb]a pallcy for takmg on and managmg rlsks
E' i

The Hypo]] ‘Real Estats Group has a risk management sys-r‘
tem wiuch hasibesn tried and:tested over many years,
and wh:ch has been ‘continuously improved upon. This,

system is reSponslble for the Group’s extremely favour-

© ablé risk and reward profile. In lifie with the'guideline:
'“Quallty aheaﬂ ‘of -quantity”,

the consistent focus on
profitable- ‘transaction-oriented areas of operation, the
analysis of individual transactions togethet with the
analysis of international markat developments and pros-
pects, play a leadmg role in terms of regional and secto-

ral dwemflcatlon of portfollo risks and compensatlon‘.

for market .cycl3s.
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Credit risks constitute the*main.risk in the commercial
* real estate financing business of the Hypo Real Estate
» Group. The form and the componants of the risk man-

agement system ceflect the major significance of this
risk type ’

In 2008, with tha current restructurmg of the Group,

*the Hypo Real Estate Group will reduce organisaticnal
- complexity and will'thus limit operating risks.

A further central task in 2008 will be to implemsnt and
apply the comprehensive Basel II regulations and to

: thoroughly prepare fot the subsequent regulatory aud1t

wbxch is mtanded
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. M:cto-economlc situation

}.; ;‘ . o N " R L
The economrc' outlook for 2006 was revised upwards at
the and. of 2005. On average, gross domestic prodict is
expected to n,e betwesan 1.5 % and 2.0%, as opposed to
the 1% rise which was expected early in 2005. Condi-
tions for stronger giobal economic growth will contin- .
us to be in place in 2006. Growth in Asia is unabated,
even if 011 prices should risg further Growth will prob-.

. ably also continue to be fuslled by the sharp increase -

in demand cf the emerging countries which .export
raw materrals whereas the gconomy in the USA is ex- -
pected to achieve a soft landing. In Europe the young
EU countries! tm particular will be the driving force be-..
hind growth 3s a result of their need to catch up with
the othar countrias in the EU, which is still huge. The

‘ central l:_lanksélwill combat any signs of inflation sxpec-;

tations with rate hikes; however, thus they will not
significantly hindsr sconormic growth,

The global e(:onorny is still expectsd to achisve strong.

. _growth :Strofig international demand thanks to a global |

economy which is still expandmg strongly. falling oil

prices, favourable financing conditions with low long- -
term mterast rates as well as.the incentive measures byf
the new, Fadeara] Government should ancourage oriniti-

-ate economlc‘ tecovery and hrgher employment.in Ger-
. many. For 2006 private consumptlon is expected to rise

due to consumers bringing forward purchases in view
of the increase in valus-added tax announced for 2007. -
The impetus provrded by moretary policy will be less
significant iri 2008} wage pressurs which might develop ’
and the measures designed to solve public ssctor finance
problems mught even rapidly put anend toany upswing.

Lo
Sector—s’ped f"c situ ation
R S o ‘
Sllght signe ofraoovary on the German real Bstate mar-
ket and the continuing consolidation in the German real
astate finaniing sector provide grounds. for moderate’
optimism for business prospects in 2006. Thers is ex-

) pected"to bii an increase in large volume damand for

German real estate in 2006, patticularly from abroad.
In internaticnal real estate financing business, the focus
will to'an even greater extent move away from saturated

i
markets in Europe and in tha USA and concentrate on
futuré growth’ markets in Asia, such as China,India and
Korea, as well as special customer groups with specific
preduct requirements, such as financing products con-

" sistent with Islam.

L

Company-s pecific situation

" The forec:al_‘ts"used as the basis for the future perform-

ance of the Hypo Real Bstate Group are based on the fig-

ures according to IFRS and are estimates which have

been, taken'on the basis of al! currently available infor-
mation, If the assumptions used'as the basis for the pre-
dictions fail to materialise, or if risks (as detailed in
-the tisk report) occur to an extent which is not caleu:
lated, the actual results may differ from the currently
expected results,

The development in earnings last year has fully con-
firmed the expectations of the Managemant Board.
The planning for future years is based on the following
assumpt:ons oy

s The macro-economic development is expacted to be as

described in the parts of the forecast repoit relating
to"the macro-economic.and sector-gpecific situation.
@ In addition, the planning is based on an inflation
rate of 2.0%. | . ¢ :
o The axchange rate.of the Euro is expscted to increase
slightly against'the US Dollar and the British pound.
o The'planning process was carried-out in the new
Group structure, which will be applicable from 2008
onwards. A core capital ratio of 7.0% has been
planned for 'the segments Intarnational Lending and
German Lending, and 8.0% has been planned fer
Public Finance. A ratic of 10.0% has hsen assumed
for the total capital for all segments. '
Based on thé abové assumptions, the Management Board
is predicting that consolidated net incoma before taxes
(according to-IFRS) in 2006 will increass by at least
20% comparsd with the previous figurs of €442 million
adjusted by restructuring expenses.

¥

l

e
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‘-The voluma of new business and tha davelopment of

tunity.

PO - -

For fmanc:al 200? the Management Board is axpectmg

a retutn on equlty of 11to 12% forthe Group, consist-"

ing of & returnjon equity of 13% to 14 % forthe segment
Hypo Real Estate International, 8% to 9% for tha seg-
ment Hypo Real Estate Germany and 14% to 15% for
the segment Hypo Public Fmance

the real estate financing portfolro will he major factors
mfluencmg ths extent of consolidated. profit and return
on equity. The Management Board is assuming that new

- business.in 2008 will repeat the level seen in 2005.

Ifitis not pos?;ibta for naw business on the markat to be
generated to the planned extent and if downsizing in
the portfollo ‘should be stronger than planned, there
might be a negatlve impact on net interest income and
thus on consolidated profit. Even in this case, the Hypo
Real Estats Group will not ease its strict risk and yield
critéria. ‘On the other hand, new business in excess of
budget, for instance resulting frem the planned sxpan-
sion into new markets, such as India, Singapors, South
Koraa of. Australia, will constitute:a considsrable oppor:
E; ; N : .o

The further 1mproved portfolro qualrty has resulted in a
consxdarable dechne in loan-loss provisions compared

. with lastyaar Because in general it is not possible to gen-
", erale revenue!s in bankmg without taking on risks, itis not
0331ble to praclude the possibility of a Eurther increase:in .

| G
u

loan-loss provisions. The Hypo Real Estate Group counters
this risk through riskioriented Group Management. Risk
measurement risk control and risk management are
described in detall in chapter Risk Report see page 63.

- The new Group structure “which is effective in 2006, is

destgnad to anhance the bank’s viability or the marksts
and reduce complexity in the Group. Ons of the benefits
of tha.structure will be to enable the sntire range of
products and services to be offered to international
ciistomers from a. smgle source. The new structure is
.perceived as an opportumty to continue the process of
‘developing .into one of the leading global real estate
financiers with a strong focus in.the fislds of public fi-
nance and capital markets. -
'Movemar}ts' in the exchange rate of the Euro against
major international currencies’should not have a major
:mpact on the income statement, because open currency
positions are genarally closed dirsctly for the curront
_ year; Accordingly, the Hypo Real Estats Group does not
consider that this aspact prov1des a major opportunity
orinvolves a major risk.

Animptovement in the Ratings should be a considera-

ble opportunity because it will probably result in lowar

‘funding costs."On the other hand, any deterioration in
the Ratings, which -we are not assuming, would have a

negative impact.

s : PR
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of Hypo Real Estate Holdmg AG S
for financial year 2005 L
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SR : o ; . 7112.2005 ) 311220012:“
-; \: B § Fixed assets. =~ . ¢ - s
! ') i:*“ = Elntangiﬁle i;$ets Lo . : C . t«i. fo
L é Liceniés and software” =+ - 4 ; 82788925 - 7 5808100 . .
. " =27 advances paid on Intangible assets . 57 L - L. 306154 25" ' - ’
R TR 82788905 . . . :
. o i ‘ v P . R
Pfoperty plant and equlprnent L . - S . N .
Operatlonal and office equipment i o 989,495.38 1 B ‘. . .
Kk Fmanaal :sseis : ) i i o ' . ! -
Shares in affiliated companies . : 4.366,566,41055 ° 3,873,079,932.25 ‘ -
Leans to affiliated companies - .. 200,000,000.0¢ ; ol v
N ‘ C 4,366,566,41055 | 407307993825+ -1 &
p T - i
) Currentassetf. R R ‘ ' .
Accounts !ecewable and other assets ) . v Lo - g " .
~ Accounts recelvable from affillated com panles N 5 334,622 £88.78 T L 60 416,672 26 i b
_Other assets « 30,655,48134 - 4928,072.41 T
R 365,278,170.12 65, 344745 27§ s
4 H . B PR
Cal ) 46,170,671.32 ¢ 71,495, 54? :
- K K R : . i E '
=W S Deferred d;;rga and prepaid expenses . , 835,134 77 : 2 183,236.96} Tk N ‘
o qutaIasse’ts,g : : , . 4,780,667,771.30 - a1m087300.037 © f .
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] vk s ' _ BalanceSheet
, ' : P
i - 57 . . - g ‘ !
i = IR CE TR Hom Taen e 0 e s Geaed o N v .
! - Shareholders' equity and liabilities = ]
T - : N 1122005 - 3112.2008 ° II
T ¢ S +
- Shareh'oldefsl;:equiti- : ! I
... ¢ Subscribed capital - ik ‘
Ordinary shares & - ; 402,216,525.00 39130132500 i
Prefererice shafes. : - 10,915,200.00
s o : ‘ 402,216,525.00 40221652500 .
" Additional pald-in capital o 3,318,879,475.00 3,309,783,475.00 ; ;
' - Lo | oty
. Retained earnings ! t
.1 Gther retained earnings i 276,500,000.00 36,500,000.00 . '
: T i !
. i -Partidpatorycapital ! 9712357414 0712357414 i
A e, | |
- - Profitavailable for distrbuton -~ - B 248,253,263.99 5443532258 )
A | |
. * Provisions ' . ] ) ! ‘
- Provisions for,pensions and similar obligatiens : 5,282,186.00 470017600 ] i
" % Tax provisions | £,002,047.83 £,205,28351 ! !
“ * Other provisions 8,613,43113 £600,338.45 ; ‘
- H
L I 18,904,665.16 16505,807.96 .
_ Sliabilities . : o
- : Deposlts from other banks K 201,281 444 44 ° 20750151914 :
" Accounts payable, trade ) 349,210.90 12315184 '
i ¥ Accounts payable to.affiflated companies | 210,158,437.98 9690,79361 i
!  Other liabilities 700117478 8,107,13486 !
{ thereof for.taxes € 345 648,55 {previous year: €366,862.24 :
H thereof for sodal. security € 0.00 (previous year: € 0.00)
: ’ 418,790,268.10 225,422604 45 ;
| -- -
- ;rotalsharehdue.s'}squitymd tiabilities 4,780,667,771.39 4,141987,399.13 l
: t
PR . f
E _ *'Liabilities from gu_a;antees, bills of exchange and cheque guarantees A - -
. €6,183,042,262.13 {previous year: € 3,918,226,470.60) .
& ~
;
- 1 ?
i |
Lo
: %
i '
_.I t.': - :
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t
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i
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Lo ! ' H
“ing 12,2005 122004
" Other operatinginéime 512868,987.34 . 23,636,612.07 i
] ; }
_ Personnel expenses ; ! !
Wages and salaries . . 11,631,688.13 . 7,835,48163 i
Sodal security costs, pension expenses and refated employee benefit costs 1,728,132.12 * 235748029 ¢ :
thereof for pensions € 1,019,057.29 {previous year: € 1,734 823.1% T 3
i 13,359,820.25 10,192,961.92 |
. ]
: Depteaatim f amorfisation on int:mglble assetsand ) : ,
i L ' property plant and equipm ent 504,467.86 - . 47619461 oy
] . . 1 . I-
i Oth'er operatjngexpenses 23,798,909.42 ; 10,816 907.16 4 . .
y . * - i
R . : : !
+ Income from Imeshnents 470,383,23460 1500,000.00 . :
' - thereoff:om afﬁllated com panles €470,383,23460 (prevlousyear £1,500,000, 00) ; ;
| a s R
" " . 1
| 7 * Income from other'ecuritles andiecans of finandal assets 478477221 - 8,332,616.68 *
| 1 ' ! thereoffrom afﬁllated companies & 4,784, 772 21 (prevlous year €8312 616 68) : !
aOtherlnterestandslmilarlncome : 1,155,14651 559,3?2.533
i thereoffrom affiliated companies CO 00 {prevaous year: € 1,563 118 65)
i
.- i . f N N - N .
. o . : |
) Incorne From prof‘t and- Ioss transfer agreem ents 15,882,118.00 : . 25,818,402.92 }
: Depreciatim_’f! am oEtl _saan on finandial assets - . — I,L'OU 000.00 ;
LT i Interest and S|m|Iar expenses 13,023,2695.32 . 14,782,_567.17 :
“_“zi SLoca ~§ Resultafordlnarya't}vlﬂes o 493,387,76581 " 1267837435 L £
T g Extraordmary expernses 3,450,00063 . 600,000.00 - 4
. gExtraordmaryresuH -3,450,000.61 ~$00,00000 "
R | Taxesonincome 8,405 92072 5,030,846.03 .
| Netincorhe | 481,441,77546 17047,528.22
; ; . “ - Ty J_‘s ) KN e -
: L, . ; et ’ s - -€ :
- . i : Ut R i L .
: . o . i : - ‘
; : L - . .
“ : { ; CooE L wt’ i
. M N < ~ *
P g 5
- . Ef . ., : - b .
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& | .
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Finandal Statements
R . Im:omeS!atement

,Basicinformation

Hypo Real Estals Holding AG was establishadres‘ a new
company by way of a spin-off as of 1 January 2003. The
assets spun off from Bayansche Hypo- und Vereinsbank

-AG, Munich, oonmsted of all shares in DIAVermogens-

verwaltungs Gth Munich.

' :
The whol!y-owned subsidiaty DIA Vermdgensverwaltungs-
GmbH was merged with Hypo Rea! Estate Holding AG

as of 29 December 2003. The transaction Wwas tecorded,

in the commerctai register on 10 March 2004. The com-
pany assumed \he rights and obligations of DIA Verma-
gensverwaltungs-GmbH at the point at which the merger
egree_r'ne"nf was;|completed. This is-also applicable for
the profit-and-loss transfer agreement closed with the
approval of the extraordinary shareholders’ mesting of
Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG on 30-October
2003, and recorded in the commercial register.

The Einan‘é:ial statements as of 31 December 2005 have
been prepared In accordance with the regulations of the
Germar Commercial Code [Handelsgesetzbuch HGB)

- - B . .
- E o © T
. & ] ' <. B
i A ‘ N

concarnmg the accounting of corporations and the sup-

o plementary regulations of the law concerning Aktien-

gesellschaften (joint stock corporations). The prior year
figures have been used for comparison purposes.

The accounting oE tha company is sub]ect to the regula-
tions for large’ co:poratlons as detailed in sectior 267 (3)
HGE. .

The financial statements have been prepared subject to
the general statément regulations, st out in sections
246-251 HGE and also subject to the spacial statement

_regulations for corporations, sections 268—274a, 276-278,
_and subject to the general valuation regulations of sec-
tons 252-256 HGB, and also in accordance with the
.spemal valu_anon regulatlons applicable for corpora-
tions, sec_lions 279-283 HGB.

The- statement regarding the Corporate Governance
Code which is prescribed by section 161 AktG has been

’ _i's‘sued by tlie Managemerit Board. and the Suparvisory

Board, and hak besn published on our web site at
www.hyporealestate.com.

T ] ot i g ans s )

B. Informatlon (oncernlng :ccountlng g and v:luatuon Prmaples L :

s e T N e W

leed assets o
“; 't

lntangible asseis '

Franchises, trademarks patents, !|censes and slrmiar rights
and licenses to such rights Software is stated at cost lass
scheduled depieciation. :

Scheduled dep:ecnat:on is based on a useful life oi be-

tween thrae and flve years. . .

¥

Advances ‘paid on intangib!e assets are stated in their

nominal value; no adjustments ware necessary.

‘Prope'rty,.ijlant*:gﬁq equipment

E}
#

‘o

Other installaticns, operational and office equipment are
stated at.cost plus anclllary acquisition costs less any
reductions in sequisition costs.

] ! ’ ' .
Scheduled depreciation was calculatad on tha bas!s of
nozmal useful, lifes. The straight-line method of depre-
ciation is; used for writing down assets. Dap:eclatlon is
calculated on a pro-rata basis.

i

oo L

sty S M <

Mmor-va{ua assets ate written ‘down in full in the year

~in whlch they are acquu:ed and are stated in the list of

assets as disposals and additions.

Financial assets are_stated at acquisition costs. In the

avent of a probable parmanént reduction in valus the

ragulation - of sectlon 253 (Z) p. 3 HGB was taken into
account.

Current assets

I

Accounts receivabié and othe: assets

Accounts recelvable from afﬁllated companies are stated
thh their nominal values, : i : .

Other assets are staied with.their'nominal value or pay-
ment amounts.

Ca_ﬁh in hiand, cash at banks and cheques are statad ‘with
nominal value,
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Peovisionsy T T T TR T abiltes L T T T .

Provisions for pensions are stated in accordance with Deplo-si't-s from other banks, trade accounts ‘payab!a. ac-

section 6a EStC with their current valus established'on  counts payable to affiliated companies and other liabil-

the basis of actuarial’ principles’ using an intersst rate ' ities are stated in the amount due for repayment.

of 6% and established according to the updatad tablas

2005G ofProf Dr K Heuback.

Tax provis_iops :md other provlsions are‘an"d;:wéc_i with® T

the value of estimated liabilities on the basis of a busi- In principle. balanca sheet items as well as expenses

nesslike mannur, taking all recognisable risks and un- and incoms in foreigh currencies are translated into

certain obllgatlans into account : =, - Euro using the exchange rates applicable on the refer-
7. . 'snce date and.transfarrad to the balance sheet and the

income statement.

Currency translataon ’

[C-Notes to mcliilance Sheet oy . .
. ]

l‘ . ¢t A [N it ¢y

The developmlmt of mtangibla assets proparty. ‘plant Accounts receivable and other assets i
and squnpmenl and financial assets in the course of fi- o ) )

nancial 2005 are set out in the. assets development in Receivables from. affiliated c'bmpanies‘iRacaivab.les from

the appendix to these notes. Majos iternsin, the balance . affiliated companies wete ‘€ 334,623 thousands (previ-

‘sheet ars explamed in the following: ous year: € 60,417 thousands). Thereof, € 265,383 thou-

; . ~ . sands relate to the in-phase receipt of the dividends of

bk s -Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Munich, and € 68,882 thou-

leed assets " sands [prev:ous year: € 57,003 thousands) for the receiv-

IO T T T T ables from the profit-and-loss transfer agreement with

Intanguble assets The previous year’s advanced payment Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG, Stuttgart, for

fora softwara has been capltallsad in the hnancml year. the business yaar 2005 : ..

a
3

»

Other assets Otber assets include, as the largest item, a
Flnancial “assets ] ] i oclaimiromthe reinsurance pollcy concluded in January
T T ST TS RTTT 2008 vis-a-vis Allianz Lebensvamcberung AG in the
Shares in_affiliated companies The shares in affiliated  amount of€ 24,501 thousands.
companies increased by €493.467 thousands to a total
~of £4,366,566 thousands (pravmus year €3 873,078 Remaining m{a{turitieﬁsﬂ,&!!: receivables have a remaining
thousands) N ‘ - . maturity of up to one year '

The book valus of Hypo Real Estate Bank Intemnational, Deferred charges and prepaid expenses This item includes
Dublin, 1ncre:sed by €339, 0001 thousands via the ac- amou'nts from accrued/deferred discounts in the amount
quxsmon of newly issued sharas! " of € 228 theusands {prévious year: € 342 thousands).
By the acquxsmon of furthar shares prior. to and relat-
ing to the $quEBZE- -out'as well ag'the payment to’ tha ad- . =Equ|ty capltal
ditional pald in-capital, the book value of the Wiirtter- ) :
bergische Hypothekenbank AG, Stuttgart, increased by Subscribed capital The subscribed capital of the Compa-
€ 106 810 thou sands .- . . ny comprises £ 134,072,175 no-pat value beater ordinary
o w e o shargs (WKN 802770) gach with a theorstical nominal
The book vah.e of the Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Mu-  amount of € 3.00. Preferred bearer shares (3,638,400 no-
nich, increased by € 472,677 thousands by group mtemai par shares) without/voling rights (WKN 802771) were
capltal transfers ' . . " converted mto ordmary shares.
Loans to afﬁliated tompanies The subordinated loan At the'end of the year reported. the approved capital is
granted in 2003 in the amount of € 200,000 thousands  €201,108,281.00 nomiral, which is termirable up to
to the Hypo Rial Estate BankInternatzonal Dublin, was  the 31d June 2009. In the cass of .capital increases
repald in'2004, - ) . ‘against contributions in kind, the subscription right
- ) can be.:axcluda(_i‘.'lf the capital is increased against cash
- '_ . ' . ' ' deposits, the shareholders .are to be granted a subscrip-

v Lo " - PN goLE ' . . . .

[N S
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tion ught. Tharaby, hoWe"ver. the sh'aretielder‘s. sub-
. scription right can be excluded for peak amounts.

There is hmtted oondtttonal capltal termmablevup tor
the 3cd June 2009 in ‘the’ amourt- of € 40 221; 65100
upon 'whlch optlon mghts ‘or conversion : rlghts from
treasury bonds with subscription rights to'shares can
be issued in as ‘much as own shares arg ot deployed
for serwcmg purposes " o Lo

PR

. ; SUC ',
i The Managame at Board has so far not taken advantaga
.oE these authorl zatlon by the Annual General Meatlng
‘ Palhcspatory ca;ntai As part of the spm off and estab

lishment process, the . company “took on partlmpatory

“capital of € 102.258 théusands. The bearér partlc:patmg

- certificates compnse two million units, each with a

nomlnal amount of DM 100.
e b e ~
The owners of the partlclpatmg cert:ﬁcates ars entltled
to ‘an annual ocupon 61 6.75% of the nommaE amount;
this entitlament enjoys priority over the shareholders’
entitlement to 4:dividend payment. The dntitlementto'a
.coupen paymantls diminished: (non cumulatwe entltla-
:ment) to the- extent that such a coupon: payment Would
resu]tma net 1Eoss :

Thet iw R L

Tba nominal amount is: due for repaymant—subject to
any part1c1pat:on in Josses ~"on, the day after thé share-
" 'holders’ meeting: “which is rasponmble for resolitions
'wnth regard to the flnanctal year 2007, Part c1patlon in

T T [ LA . A S

and profit availa ble lordistnbutlon

“ )}‘1
L

- verswn of-the preferted:shares without voting rights

B 2N .

" any net loss reduces the éntitlament to repayment on a

pro- :ata basis. Any net.profite in subsequent years in-
crease the entltlemen§ 10 repayment maximum to tha
nomlnal .amount, All- other credltors of the company
are’ ranked higher than.thé participating certificates: If
the- oompany bacomas insclvant or is liquidated, pay-

‘hents'in relation to the' parttctpatmg certificates shall |

be made after all other creditors’ claims have been sst-
tled and before the rlghts of sHareholders ate settied.

Durmg the fmanclal year 2003 the company purcbased
"its own, parttctpatlng cartlflcates worth DM 10,042,800,
Thts amount was’ deducted from the co:respondmg
posttson at the liabilities side.of the balance sheet. Tha
compapy did not purchasé any more of its own partici-
patmg cerltflcates during the fmancnal years 2004 and
2005. " e
Addttmnal paid in capitai By payment of a conversion pre-
mlurri oE the. Bayertsche Landasstlftung Erom the con-

mto ordmary shares with votmg rights, the additional
. paid-in- captta] increased. by £ 9,096 thousands.

Retamed eammgs As of 31st December 2005 € 240, 000
thousands wers a]]ocated to’ retal ned sarnings.

Proflt a\railable for dlstnbution Proﬁt avallab]e for distri-,
butlon mcludes the proflt carried forward from:the pre-

~ vious year in the amount of €6,811 thousands-as well

- as the al]owt:on to retamed earmngs of € 240,000 thou-
sand o - ‘

W" Iliatk}jn" tween net |
fine L ' . 2005 ° 2004
I Netincome T C 481441775 46 1704752832
- [. Profit broughtforward feom pfeviousyear i 6,811,488.53 A 377387,79426 .
Nlmbon to retalned earnings ‘ 240,000,000.00 : . =

Flnan cial Statements
Notes

i

———
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Proflt avallable lor dlstrl.butlon . 248,253,263.99 ' 5443532258
. !,: j4=§ :-ﬂ ‘ i o o - ) O
§ : A = The followmg proposals ard submltted to tbe Annual
[ ) 'General ‘Mssting as to how the accumulated proflts are
. ) i " to- be used : g
© b : o S i ;
N ' : L b i
et e e it e e e e e 1 e e ot |
Vet Proposed appmpri |tlon of prol‘it avallablafordhtnbutlon : . ! )
: m( Jr Units “-Armount per sh;rei Total !
¥ mewt available lordtshibutoonasof 31.12.2005° ) - : 248253,26399
*' Dividend for ordinary shares . 134072375 .~ - 100 134072,175.00
Y Allocation ta retaired earmning B 11350000000
¥ Profit carriéd forward to new account . . 651,088.59
- - s : i ——
. L L S ‘
! B ey H N - : v
i B N i
. ""_ - h sy + - :
Ei . ¢ - : SaE }
i
Enclosures, 29 March 2006



g

Provlslons

i . -\m,ﬂ

The tax proviscns of €5,009 thousands (previous year:
€ 5,205 thousands) resulted from:the sarnings of ‘the
Company, mcludmg the earnings from the profit-and-

" thekenbank AG -The minimum taxation valid since the
. 1st January 20()4 results in a tax provision of €5,009
‘thousands, slnge any offsetting against existing capltal .

{ Tof80%, v - F

The other provmons in the amount.of € 8,613 thousands
! - {previous [year:. £ 6,600 thousands) included, amongst

F o with executwe bodles in the amount of €6,288 thou-
‘sands {prewous year £4,459 thousands) as well as

" provisions for thes annual audit iri’ the amount of € 242
thousands [pre vious year: € 66 thousands).

P |

JU | L L S (R,

" iLia b'ﬂ{t"les:"f
i, e

bilities do noty contain any amounts with remaining
maturities of more than five years. In the year reported,

; there'was.no co]latarallsatlon via liens on outstandmg

" . " accounts and s]mllar rights. R

ised losses carried forward is oniy possible ata flat rate

othar thlngs Pl v1stons for employment and oontl:acts‘

Remamlng mztunties and deta:ls on collateralisation Lla-"

3
H

i

List of liabiities Remaining pesiod Remalning perlod
o maturity -to maturity
tind i uptoone year  betweenone and five years
' Deposlts from other banks 2005 1,281,444.44 200,000,000.00 '
C R 2008 7501519.14 200,000,000100 «
- Accounts payable, trade 2005 34921080 )
: 2004 '123,151.84
Accounts payable to affiliated companies 2005 210,158,437.98
. 2004 9,690,798.61 .
* Other liabilities 2005 700117478 ]
. S _ 3004 73,107,13486" .
- "Thereof; liabillties toholders of participatory rights 2005 6,555,841 26 J
' Co ‘ 2004 6,555,841.26 '
218,790,265.10 200,000,000.10_]
Off-balance sheif:,et iiabilities Relating to the medium térm .
note program,iissued by the subsidiary company, Hypo
Real Estate Benk International, the Company has-as- ‘
simed an unlimited guarantee in favour of the credi-
tors. The contigent liability is amounting to €6,183,042
thousands (previous ysar: € 3,918,226 thousands) on '
the reference Ei'ata and contains both the nominaal and
.interest llabllues Deviating currencies were convertad ©
: on the referem‘e date. - . . ot

By updatmg the prospectus the Company no Eonger
assumes any guarantee for treasury bonds issued after
the end qf April 2005, t, B .

%

i T
o -
: L

1

k.

e

i : .
: -

—— _ JrNC,

|
|
" loss transfer agrvementwnh the Wiirttembergische Hypo-
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L aud1to: for the Company- racewed a fee in the amount ,tancy sarvices relattng to: the rew structure (transfer

-.FInandial Statements

t : G Notes
S - |
; ) . ; i
. i ir 91 . - . . . ’
- I —— : '
{D. Notes to the'lncome statement _ ) ] _
b I H ‘ o P o S . ,
w . oo ‘ oo ; ‘_ ’ i =‘i:_ :
Other oper:,ttlngtlncome The [atgest item in other ope: Income and expenses arising from profit-and-foss transfer :
dting income rgsults from the sale of shareholdlngs ofw .Based upon the pl'Oflt ‘and-loss transfer agreement con- H
HypoReal Estata Bank AG, amountmg to £47,677 thou=: - cluded batween the Wurttemberglsche Hypothekenbank :
sands In addltlon there is: also, mcome 1ncluded Ero L AG and the HypoRsal! Estate Ho]dmg AG, a prcfitin the
the fo:ward anOlClnB of . serv1ces ln "the amount of ;j amobunt of €68 882 thousands (previous year: £57,003 . |
o € 1 865 thousands (prev10us year €7, 397 thousands] :thousands) was transferred in the reporting yeat. This
: | . " s . was opposed by dlsbursements telating to a tax-free de-
Other operatmg expenses Apart fsom insurance, oontn--"'" posit in. the amount of €53,000 thousands [premous
- butions and charges in the amount of £ 1,943 thousands™  year: €30.000 thousands)

(previous year '€ 1,815 thousands), other operating g%
penses lncluded dtsbursements for legal, tax and other : Extraordmary resuItThe extraordinary sXpenses only in-
consultancy services. For the financial year, the annual” clude restructuring expenses which zesult from consul-

—— b e

-of €1191 thousands [prevmus yéar: €684 thousands] + of,the mternatlonal real estata fmancmg portfo]]o of
Thesb:eakdown of this is-as follows " the Hypo Real Estaté Bank International to the Wiirt-
w €587 thousands for Audtt of the Annual F:nanctai temberglsche Hypothekenbank AG) of the Hypo Real
Statements af the Group s Annual Financial State-*; Estate Group
ments as wetl as the review of the Intertm anauctal _
Statements ' : ) B Taxes on income |mposed on result for ordinary activities 3
n £33 thousands fo: other afhrmatlon or assesament - and extraordinary resu!tRelatlng to the spin- -off, a cor- i
_ . ;.. - poration tax and trade tax loss was transferred to Hypo
u.£15 thousands for tax oonsultancy samces “Real Estate:Halding AG: Desplta the further availability
u €3?5 thousa'tds for other servtces = of tho-loss carry, forwards the minimum taxatlon rulas
AU S A . © 77 which, have, baan app]lcab]e since ‘1st January 2004,

Furthetmora rdlati ng to thefordanary husmess actnn- mean that fax expenses ‘totatling EB 496 thousands have

SBIVICGS

tiss at Hypo Rea! Estate Bank AG, a tax-free’ aliowanoe . baen incurred: . : - '
m the amount cf €13.000 thousands was attained. - St _ ) oo Ce :

- i \

Income from Imrestments Due to the in- phass captta!tsa--f‘
tion ‘of a dundlmd claim against the. Hypo Real Estate
Bank AG, mcoma of € 265,383 thousands was recorded _
'Fu:then:nora an advande dt\ndand dlstnbutton by theﬁ.ﬂ_ _
"Hypo Real; Estate Bank Internat:onal in ths Elmount oE R
€205 000 thousands took place in the ftnanc:al year o

?
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€. Additional [nformatio

. ,“, ’ g « = 1od .
R S B
L:abihty The Company has'provided: the ]oss lnde'"mfl-
, cation statementEorWurttembergxsche Hypothekanbank
AG and Hypol Real Estate Bank AG spemflad in‘accord:

ance with pl‘EV:l]lng statiites to the Emlagenszcherun g

fonds (desposit: guarantee fund) within the Bundesver-
band deutscher Banken e.V., Berlin. | ' s
Furthermote' the-compary has provided a ful! guaran::
tee for the' debt mstruments issuad as part of the medi-

um term note program (issue framework € 10,000, 000"

thousands) of} ‘Hypo Real Estate Bank International:

which, due.to ‘he.new structure of the Hypo Real Es- -
tate Group is only valid for debt instruments: :ssuad e

up to tha end of Apr]] 2005,

- Average-number of persons employed during the financial
year, ‘broken down by categoriés In the year under Ie-
view, Hypo Reai Estate Holding AG employed 59 persons
(previous year: 58). 55 persons (previous year: 54) of
“this figure were full-time smployees and four persons !

[prev:ous year: Eour] ‘werg part nme employees :
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| Mandates of the Ma nagement Board

e R

e . Pbsltiom l'eld on okhet

“ xs lsr.f!ll??OUS . !tatuh:rySupervisuryBuards uf German companies
i
t T S

S :
Th Lo : . B

e L Flnanoal Siatements
VI S L INotes

!

Membershipof comparable controlling bodies 1
of tommer [al entarprises in Germany snd in other countries

£

4

b e
et S e s = e e, et st e A

[

\ T

Py

i _Hypo Real Estate Bahk AG, Munich
; . . {Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
e b ! . '
‘ B b Lo :
) : Worttembergische Hypothekenbank AG, Stuttgart
A y {{Chalrman of the Supervisory Board)
s " - N N o
P i T Hypo Pfandbrief Banx Inte:na tional SA, Luxembourg
‘; L ) "HypoRea! Estate Bank AG, Munich . {Member of the Administrative Board,
1 N " (Member of the Supervisary Board) since 24.10.2005 Ch:irrn an of the Administrative Board) -
' o S H1 Capital Markets inc, New Yerk/USA
. kR Collineo Asset Management GmbH, Dortmund * renamed as Hypo Capital Markets, Inc -

o . (Chalrman of the Administrative Board since 11.1.2605) - - ~ (Chairman of the Board) -

- £ v ' HI Asset Managem ent,/Inc, New York/USA -

Ny o . renamed as Hypo Public Finance USA, Inc

Lt ;‘1' (Chalrman of the Bo:rd)

. HARDT GROUP Investments AG, ViennafAustria &,
" {Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board | ’
i since 245.2005): -
. _h).g _
. D Paul Eisele .- : : " HypoReal Estate Bank International, Dublin/ireland 1
S - Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Munich - to be fenam ed as Hypo Public Finance Bank

. v i (Deputy Chalrman of the Superwsory Board) - {Chalrman of the Board since 1.10.2005) 4,
= ) lé ; ! . X
: E '; ' . Hypo Pfandbrlef Bank International S.A; Luxembéurg '

¥ "; (Member of the Administrative Board untl 30.11.2605) :

E Dr. Markus Feli C . HypoReal Estate Bank International { i
cr q. i HypoReal Estate Bank AG, Munich  to be renamed as Hypo Public Finance Bank, Dublin/lreland
g " g - (Member of the Supervisory Board) ~ (Non:Executive Member of the Board-since 110. 2005)

\ N h e - T - . - . . &

1, w Wirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG, Stuttgart Hypo Pfandbrief Bank Intérria ional SA, Luxembourg -

\ . ' (First Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board) * {Mem bes of the Administrative Board until 30.11,2005) -

. z ' Oollineo Asset Management GmbH, Dortmund ‘ '

T : (Membér of the Administrative Board Hypo Rea1 Estate Capitil Ltd,London/Great Brutam =
ot X from 11 1.2005 untit 31.12.2005) ~ . ; (Dlrectoc)

it e e A AT T A U J
Sl : L . .

,i i ¢ Hypo Real Estate Capltal lapan Corp, Tokyoflapan
i B il (D|rector since 15, 2 2005) 3

b i, ;
: ; Hypo Real Estate Caplhl France S.A, Paris/France ; i
T W {Member of the Supervisory Beard until 10.2.2005, ;
t : Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory.Board until 30.9.2005) )
Ll T : :
¥ Hypo Real Estate Caplta‘uCorp Mew York/USA 3” _
% “(Dérector untit 30.11. 2005) ‘ A
‘ Frank larnby Collineo Asset Management GmbH, Dortmund .
B (Member of the Administrative Board Hypo Real Estate Capitat Iberia 5L, Madrid/Spain ; H
{ " from 11.1.2005 until 31.12.2005) (Chairman of the Board until 3.1, 2005)

‘g !~ Hypo Real Estate Capltal itd,Llonden/Great Britain §
i L ) {Director until 10 1 2005) .
A4k i Q
B i - R :

- P “Hypo Real Estate Capital France S, Paris/France ;
+
t .

- '(Chal:man of the Supervisory Board unill 10.2.2005) ,

u. Y e
L . ‘ - NI
! ; gt - - i 1

o & Hl

oo - [ . :

; h .- »

* i * .
I - . -
i 5 “ ,
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h'.andats of the Supervlsory Board

1 asaf 31.]210(_25

Yoo o ncbe y s e

L

. :Positions held
", ongther statutory Supsrvisory Boardsof German cnmpanies

+
i
i

mebe rship of cormlnble controlling bodies

of commerclal enterprises in Germany and In other courtries °

.4 .
* .t Kurt F.Viqrmligtz

‘Deutsche Borse AG, Frankfurt am len
{Member of the Super\nsory Board since 12.7.2005,

i

Hypo Real Estate Bank international, Dublmflreland

. ; I : _ Chairman of the Supervisory Board since 19.10.2005) (Chalrman of the Board unti. 30.9,.2005) ;
4 % - i" i} N N T Y M P ERE T .3
4 : 4 i [ ;
ooy ERGOVersicherungs-AG, Dasseldor £ ;
H : i {Member of the Supervisory Board} - ,
I S :
E.ON-RﬁHrgas AG, Essen
} {Member of the Supervisory Board until 31.12.2005)
. * Professor Dr. Klaus Pohle - : ' R _ : : : s
é ’ . DWS Irvestment GmbH, Frankfurt am Main. © LOTY In¢., Mew York/USA ‘
: A {Member of the Supervisory Board) - {Non-Executive Mem ber of the Board)
i i : T ' :
. ; : Sanoﬂ Aventis S A, ParlsfFrance
v g i (Admintstrateur)
: ; ;
. Dr. Ferdinand : ;
N . Graf v. Ballestren I g o SHW GmbH Aalen Wasseralﬂngmen . R MAN Cap:tal Corporation, New YorklUSA ‘ ;
- !i P (Chalrman of the Supervasoty Board until 30.9. 2005) ' (('_halrm an of the Board of Directors until 31.12, ZCOS)
: i- e i
: d : _Renk AG, Augsburg MAN Finangal Services pic, Swindon/Great Britain 1 .
3 " ’ (Deputy Chalrman of the Superwsory Board). " (Chairman of the Board ofarectors)
) MAN Techndoge AG Augsburg 1
. : (Deputy Chairman of the Super\nsory Board . N
: - untl! 30.6. 2005) r 3
] i
. 4

MAN Rdand Druckmaschlnen AG,AugsburgiOffenbach

pEe.

- o (Member of the Supervl sory Board) .
: ¥ o ‘ :
: BayerischeVérst&emﬁgébénk AG, Unterf&hriﬁé
- it - (Member of the Supervisory Board)
" Antoine. : _ -
Jeancourt-Galignani Sodété Nationale dAssurances Group SA L, Beirut/lebanon *
. K {Chairman of the Board) *
b '
Euro Dlsney SCA, Marne-La \falleefFrance
- ; " {Chairman of the Supemsory Bo:rd)
4 t - ] - * * s
. ; b .

h

i
. ii
® £
"
. h

1

X #
i i

. J
. .
4 i
& 4
. 5

N &
i

[

’ GednaSA ParisfFrance ! ’
(Dlrector) |

' Assurances Générales de France S.A ParlsfFrance
: {E)!rector) )

Soclété Generale S. A ParisfFrance :
[Ciractor)

Total S.A, ParlsfFrance

- [Director) : .

. Kﬁufrn an & Broad 5 A ParisfFrance
v ) (Diractor) ,

.
QOddo & Cle S.CA, ParisfFrance |

{Member of the Supervisory Board)

'
b

letix Europe NV, Hilversum/The Netherlands
{Member of the Supervisory Board until. 30.9.2005} .

] .
o L

-

_ . —

— —————
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i ¥ " i Notes
S L :
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. e LA
Mandates of the Supervisory Board . ) !
. " . ) * Positions held | . membe: shlp of comparable cortmlling bodies , !
" a30f31122005 on other statutory 5 uperyi sory Boards of German companies of commieicial entérprises in Germany and in cther countries i E
o s - [ i
' D, Piater I(orieweg ' \
3¢ : DaimlerChrysler Nederland BY, Utrecht/The Netheriands '
’ H (Non-Executive Member of the Supervisory Board) |
i
1 .
; E Dutch Centrat Bureaw of Statistics (CBS), -
N Rijswilk/The Netherlands ,
. ‘ (Chairm an of the Supervisory Board) {
Cerberus Global Investment Advisors, LG, =
. Baarn/The Netherlands
o ; ; ~ {Senior Advisor)
" $SA Globat Technologies Inc., Chica gofUSA
n _ [Non-Executive Member of the Board) * i
: f.: - . . .
" Aozora Bank Lid. Tokyo/lapan . !
. oy (Non:Executive Member of the Board) ! 1 i
. l . Development Fund Netherdands Antitles (SONA), I
:’ : - The Hague/The Netherlands * i !
; - {Executive Member of the Board) | |
| : I
AegrCap BV, Schiphol/The Nétherlands |
(Chairman of the Boatd-since 20,9,2005) - ] |
Robert H. Mundheim a . ' '
Shearman & Sterling LLP, New York/LSA
{Of Counsel)
‘- |
' . ! !
. ' Arnhiold and S. Bleichroeder Haldings, Inc, New York/USA |
‘ - _(Director) - ; :
¢ } . 4 ' i
. elollege.com, Inc, Chicago/Usa”
* : ! . - (Director) - b
: 3{ ) 4 ; )
i :;. ‘
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~at Hypo Real Estata Holding AG “ NS

l . | -

In 2005 the wiembers of tha Superwsory Board d1d not

recewe ainy re‘!:nunaratlon for personal services. On the-‘z
" reference date;for the financial statements there were

no reoewable< in raspect of mambers ofthe Super\rlsory

s

Board membars

Rent: guarantees 1ssued in 2004 for two members of the ,

Management Board are stlll in effect

Consohdated remuneratbn paid to members : 2005 2004 H
of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG's Management Board General  Profit-refated .
in  thousand ! . . R R Basic salary expenses  components® Total !’
GeorgFunke d’lalrman 750 128 2,000 2878 2,551 ;
Joharm Berger (Board member until 8 Decem ber 2004) , - - - - 1074
Stephan ‘Bub (Board member from 1 December 2005) ) 420 45 750 1,215 - ;
. Ox. Paul Elsete 400 46 800 1346 1,127 ;
1
" Dr. Markus Fell o 420 62 900 1,382 1233
Frank Lamby* L 420 45 900 1365 . - 1,233 ;.
Iotal‘ L ’ ; 2,410 326 5450 8,186 7,218
_ Wincludes, wnthm Ilmlts genenl expenses furfrmge bcn:flts, which undtriytaxatm ond abroad also sa:ial securlty y o '
3 Profit-re lated remune sation for the year 2005 but only pald in2006° 1, fal 3 .
"in oddtﬁon individual contrlcu for pension cm'nmtnerts exist amnunting tna pen:ed:ageofthe mnual fixed rermnentun
te N * . t & i
. R T . Lk
T [ STS— e« e [
. Consoluhted remuneration paid to membels 2005 2004 {
[ { of Hypo Real Estate: Holding AG's Supervisory Beard ; |
' SN ' o ompensation  Remuneration ! I
t for functionIn  for functionin ; '
e . < Bask the Nomination the Audit Value adced i N
" In € thousand compensation Comrittee Committee tax Tatal _Totat ‘
. - g i
- KurkF Viermetz, chairman, 90 12 — 16 118 ,
* _* Dr.Ferdinand Grafwon Ballestrem 60 - 10 11 81:
. " Antoine Jeancourt: Galignani 60 - 10 1 81, o
{ Or. Pieter Korteweg 60 6 - 11 . g !
¥ Robert H, Mundheim 60 - - 10 70 i .
. Prof Dr.Kiaus Pohls: 75 6 20 16 117, A
-5 .1 Total _ 405 24 40 75 544 19 ¥
+a3 el !Eg 3 ‘ j‘ . . - i L
) L !‘e RO TR S e e e — .
o Remu.neration pail to members of the Management Board of directly owned subsidia ri&r 2005 004 H
* as wefl as divislom] directors of Hypo Real Estate Holdlng AG (Senlor Management) Total fixed  Profit-related
" in € thousand rerunerstion”  components ¥ Total Total ¢
:“ o ] . 3301 4,478 7,779 6,521
it T T PR B i
“tncludes mthln Ilmlu,gencniexpenses for fringe heneflts whlch underiytaxatnn lnd abrcnd also su:lal sccunty T ¢ !
3 proofit. relatzd remunarauoa for the year 2005 butonly pald in 2006 . L : L
SR . . " - ’ ; :
SR T ST P SR R .
oy Lo ZI' e el g ’
Of the expans=s 1ncur:ed Eor the members of the Man. o 7 }
agement Boarc?mﬁ 4,260 thougands have, affected income +* -
ol -z" .

B o P
i - = i - i
¥ R T + .
‘.-, -'E- : o o ,I I l; . N . . .! . . lf .
- ) : - ;
i * . ) :
! St i T . G F : t
S R - f
+ '= - ' t
‘%»_ ,‘ " . 5. ?‘j! ‘! . ; i E .’; I
' P IR _ ' |
- - e 3 T :
P . : ‘ ) ( : i
: v, “E : ,“_‘ i . : : : - ’
l
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' Finandal Statements
- Notes
The followmg |able sots oul shiafes and shdre dérivi- - ; ‘

- tives of Hypo Raal Estate Holdmg AG which have been ot : !
.purchased:or sold by members of the Supervisory Board . ) :
~and Managamarlt Board of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG’ : .
in accordance w1th the dxsc!osure obllgatlon pursuant & ’ - .

- i
PR : : .
i Dlrectors Deallngs [§ 15a WpHG) . E
E ‘ ) Prof. O Kliut Pohla Prof.Or.Klaus Pohla © f :
Jg iR | SR Member of the Member of the ' | !
1 Function as Membe of the Executlve bodres s " Supervisory Board - Supervisory Board ;* i
‘ + t Typeoftransaction , ~ o Sale Sale” -
: ‘Disaription of finandslinstrum ent Discount certificate ‘Discount certificate :
 ISIN/WKN ofﬁnanmallnstrument ' DEODODBIYVI0/DBIVVY _ " DEQOODROAGYZ" '
i ; Date of transaction " 1832008 ST 7382005+ '
; Pace of transaction Frankfurt Frankfust i
* Price ' 1377¢ ~2733¢ .
TNumber ofitems 212,000 9,000 .
5- - r RN HypoReaI Estate Holding AG HypoRe:IEstateHoldlngAG :
¢ Discription of underlying financial'instrument bearer shares . bearer shares Ii
%FSI_N:_'WD_CN_ . ] T L DEUOO%UZT?O'HSUZT?O_' 05000802770?I802?70 P !
i Strike price 1 L S - o 400 - . 27'50‘:?( ' }
opPricemultiplier: e T L1 _ 1:1. |
o { Expiration date - o S C L1562005 16.9.2005 » i :
. a i i ‘ - IE - .
Ou 31 Dacember 2005, tha members of'the Management .__tiaﬁt of the capitzl_sta‘_kug,{sﬁgreholders' equity and result of l
Board jand the. ‘Supervisory Board togathar held less  the last finandal year.for which financial statements are
than 1%. of tha total shares issued by Hypo Real Estats ~ available. The list of shareholdings of Hypo Real Estate
Holding AG Georg Funke holds a'total numbar of 30, B?S; ‘Holding AG as of 31 December’ 2005 is,enclosed as an
- shares:The stOuk ofKurt F. Vlermetz amounts. to 50,00 appendtx -t has addlt]onally bean deposited with the
R & commborcial raglstar. where 1t s avallable for mspec-
tlon - )
e e 1. o
e _--') i, . .o oo ‘-- “;" v . P €
‘Group member‘hlp %Name, reglstered offices and egal form of the companies - |
K “ " where the company is- the shareholder with unlimited lia- ;
Name and regl'.tered offices of companles in which the bility. Hypo Real E‘.state Bank International, Dub]m Ire- i
company owns at least 20%. as well as detalls of the ex- land : . !
& do : R .
foone o el L - !
i : L— RN ' . : i . N i
) Hypo Real Estata Ho]dmg AG Mumc:h ’ - ¢
‘ Munchené? Mgrch 2006 y w-- . ' E _ . iy . .
; RN i
s E' ; ! :
‘Georg'Funke ;Stephan Bub :
5 R LR , i
§ !
I : :
v . ; :
. ) . , ' | X ?
- !
[ X o ) : i .
3 . E'l 1y "' ) 2 i ¢ Criw ri o : . ! *‘
|
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: Enclosuresto the Notes CoE ,
5 Pk S | '
. i R .
s, o
U - i AN . ettt e e e AT e e e e . i
. -t T . - 1
Deve[opm gnt ol . T CAguisition/preduction cosls
s Fixed Assets = B
H i . {‘, -h © Balarce o . i s T Balance |
fine i I8 . 112005 Additions Dispasals ! Rec lassifications | 31122005 -

N g

C Inhnglbleas..s_ets 5

- ¢ Licenses and softwire

46397833 -

14214174

Y

121116632 °

75Ut Advanees pald on intangible assets

- 396.156,25

175.890,00

- 57504625

%

121116632

<

| Property, plant and eqhipiment

850:13458

e

36103174 -

Operational and office equipment

940.285,85

141774

J107230

157104929 .

940.285,85

652.837,74

2207430 e

157104929

+

. Financial assets

B ?: Shares in affilisted companies

7874.079938,25

152.073.460,98 .

436756641055 -

200.000.000,00 .

200,000,000, 00

... & Loans'to affifiated compantes

4.074.079.938,25

TN

436756641055 :

thi

T

4,075 870.358,68

" 646573.802,%

357.073.450,%8 -

H
i
H
i

4.370.348.626,16 .

fuy

C bt S e b

ey L

Cr

352 005.535,28. . -
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b i L B ; - Finandal Statenjbnents 39
Te - ! o Enclosures to the Notes
[ .
| A *
D preclationfAmortisation Carrying amount 5 ‘?
) ‘Depreciations . {
‘Balance Amortisation Balance . | ;
112005 of the financial ye ar Disposals 31.12.2005 1.1.2005" 3112 2005
. 1 . . . ) ) I '
-194.96733 . 188.279,74 = 383.277,07 258.981,00¢ 827.889,25 | E
N . Z . = 36156,25 - by
194.997,33 . 18827974 - 383.277,07 655.137,25 82788925 : i
t: Tl T ' ! \ '
287.440,09 316.188,12 2207430 581553,91 ” £52.845,76 989.495,38 {
287.440,09 316.188,12 22.67430: 58155391 C 652.845.76 989.495,38 . i
1.000.000,00 - - 1.000.000,00 3.87j.079.938,25 4.366.566.410,55 ;
: - - - - 200.000.000,00 - - I
1.000.000,00 - — 1.000.000,00 4073.070.938,25-  4.366.566.410,55 _
. '
148243742 50446786 22074,30. 106482008  4074.387921,26°  4.368.383.795,18 | L i
p o . B T o — Eiacin e 4 — - b ‘
1 |
i N i
‘ 4 . ,;‘ ) ! ' v E )
| H
1. )
! : P - i
! A : i
l ¥ :) - : . ‘ vt
Sl E
. : t
| .(‘ 11 P ; ) i
ool i ;
| |
3 .
: s
i . - i
! - - N :
. b RN ' !
; ;£ N I ‘
i ok - .
R ; t !
! ' B
l S - :
| A — -
i : '
! B : !
) -
i :: . : f I
i 5 . 1 '
. ; ; ‘
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Heldings of . . ' :
Hypo Real Estate Holding AG Interestin% Retal asset Equity ‘Net Incomef N
’ total Sec.16 (4) " ofwhich . loss Alternative
_ Stock Corp. Act  held indirectly Qurrercy inthousand in thousand. mthousand  financial year
- Subsidiaries
. Conso¥dated-subsiclaries
Domesticbanks aad
" fimancial institutions .
Hypo Real Estate Bank AG, Munich 100.00 - € TA4971465 2,101,469 51942 -
Worttembergische Hypotheken . '
bank AG/ Stuttgart 10000 - € 36233016 . 734529 9 -
Foreign banks aml ( .
finandal instituti ons . . L
Hypo Capital Markets Inc., New York 100.00 10000 uss . 702 5,612 471 —
Hypo Pfandbxief Bank Intteznationak ’
SA, Luxembou g : 99.99 9999 € 7136450 99,7% 4567 -
Hypo PublicFinance USAInc, . -
New York 100.00 100.00 Uss 67,858 8,165 3,025 -
Hypo Real Estate B:nk International, )
Dubtin ! . 5999 - €. 27189150 - 1,803,808 : - 177,322 -
Hypo Real Estale Capital Hong Kong ’ .
Corp. Limited, Hongkong 100.00 100.00 HKD 608578 9,560 440 -
Gther consalidatad subsidiaries o e ; - '
. Hypo Rel Estat.e Transachons 5AS, . : Co. :
Paris 100.00 100,00 € 211855 40 -1z -
Hypo Property Investment {1992) Ltd, o - K '
London o 100,00 5000 GBE 54 — — -
Hypo Property Investment 1td, ) o
London . . 100.00 10000 | GBE 507 334 .51 -
Hypo Property PartidpationLtd., )
tondon’, 100.00 10000 GB¢ - 478 200 148 -
Hypo Property Seevices Ltd, London 10000 10000 - GBE 100 100 -1 -
" Hypo Real Estate Capltal Corp,, ) . ‘ .
New York (sub group) 100.00 10000 Uss 4213790 . 278,953 41,390 -
Hypo Real Estate Capitat Japan Corp., ) : ' . : . .
Tokyo 100.00 10000 IPY 122644514 12,222,355 986,660 -
Hypo Real Estate Capital Lid .London - ) . _‘
{sub-group) 100.00 10000° = GBE 67,008 61,651 14,290 -
Hypo Reat Estate Investm ent Banking ' ' .
Ltd,, London . 100.00 10000 GBE 467 . 200 ~152 -
Isar East 6oth Street LLC, New York 100.00 10000 uss 6639 - - -
Isar Gotham West 38th Street LLC, ‘ ‘
New York 100.00 10000 . usy 6539 1 — -
Isar RP Mem ber LLC, New York- - 100.00 T10000 © C USS - 1 - -
Isar Two Columbus LLC, New York 100.00 100.00 - uss 806 __— - -
Liffey 451LLC, New York 100.00 100.00 Uss 49,114 2,271 1415 -
The Greater Nanchester Property ’ ’ i
Enterprise Funid Ltd. London 100.00 100.00 GBE 126 123 110 =
Zamara Invesiments Ltd, Gibraltar 100.00 100.00 GBE 9927 9,927 472 -
Non-consolidated subsldlaries
Other nen-consdlidated subsidiaries
Collineo Assel. Management GmbH, . : .
Dortmund ‘ ) 100.00 100.00 € 12,410 10,600 843 -
Frappant Altona GmbH, Munich 9400 9400 € 11,143 25 2 -
. FUNDUS Gesellschaft far Grundbesitz
und Betelligungen mbH, Munich 9400 9400 & 4563 S04 4 -
GEAGesellschaft fir Anwendungs- 11~
software mbH Stuttgart 5,523 962

66.66

66.66

€ .

1,703

31122004

i melt}lnss-tnnsfer to partners due to pluﬁb-l nd-lass-transfer agreement :
n meltllnu—tnnsfertn Me ridies Grundbesitz- und Bebauungsgesellschaft mbH, Munichduc ] pmflt and- Inss-tr:nsfer tgr!:err:nt '

=,
7y
iy

- (t “
i
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J , : - Finandal Staitements
4 - . Enclosutes to the Notes ;
p !i " 3 Wt i
o edh e - . - -
Holdmgs ol' L . . .
t ¥ : . _
H’P" feal E“’tate H ’Idmg AG Interest in% Total asset Equity  Metintome/ P
. it wtal Sec. 26 @) of which : . ) loss Altemative l
; G !‘. H Stock Gorp. Act  heldindirectly . Currency in thousand in thousand inthausand  finencial year !
L GAGesellschaf: fir Immoblllien: ’ ‘ ] o ;1
%- ent\mcldungund verwaltungmbH, . S ’ CR1- {
t Stuttgart 10000 . 10000 € 365 151 © 99 31122004 Ji’
T GRGesellschart for Rechen- C c : . o -0
+ zentrumsleistungen mbH, Stuttgart 10000 - 100.00 € 33e2 . 217 1,004 31122004 :
Y GGV Gesellsch: ft far Grundbesitz- ]
¢ verwaltung und Immobilien- .
. Mznagernent mbH, Munich 93.95 93.95 € 3,045 2,072 . b -
o HypoDubIInPr:pertlesLimited B - o Co11-,
¢ Dublin i . " - 10000 . 100.00 . € - 161 . -181 -1 31122004 . .
3 n . N _i B . B
N 3 lMMOImmobllienManagement L N
ot Betelllgungsgesellsd'laft mbH, Sl P S
., Munich: : + 10000 10000 € -3 30 -1 -
1 IMMO Immobilien Management —_— " ) ; . t {
b GmbH & Co KG, Mundhen © 9400, 9400 . ¢ 104,120 © : -1197  -13,048 o=
IMMOI_méstGewerbe GribH, o - ‘ ‘ ; !
. Munich N " 100007 106.00 € 26 26 ® -
3 T . .
\ - IMMO Irvest R2al Estate GmbH, ‘ o C - . N
Munich: 100,00 100.00 € 29 28 0 -,
P ' IMMO IvestVlohnwirtschaft GmbH,. o . o i
Y Municht : ; 100.00 10000 .. € .23 .23 9 - i
i iMMOTradmgGmbH Munlch 10000 100.00 € 1374 “525 9 -
. Meridies Grundbemtz- und Bebau- SR A : o . . : o 5
1 ungsgesellschift mbH, M.unidn " . 9400 - 9400 .. € 4111 T8 4 -
ﬁ? : Pﬂl-Beteihgungs-GmleL 0 o ' BRI : 11~
: Munich =~ .. 1000C . 110000 € - 51806 . 51529 , 65 31123004, -
. -R:g\arék\fermdgensverwaltungAG ' . R e i g
! & Co.KG, Munich 9400 94.00 3 72,627 2,577 -2577 -
WestHyp Finance BY, ) - t1-" }
Amsterdam 100.00 100.00 € 713 681 ©-65 31122003 i
b WestHyp Immoblken Holdlng GmbH, . : : 1.
! Dortmund L i . 10000 100.00 € 1,361 894 . , 2700 31122004
\ WGSWohn-und Grundbesltz - . o _ L : _ 11-3
L Stendai GmbH, Stendat _ 100.00 100,00 € 9562 4% 6 31.12.2004
’ { WH- Erste GrundstucksVerwaltungs T : j’v: - T s S . o 11-i S
7 GmbH;Walteisdor f 100.00.. 100.00 €, 219 217 | 117 31.312.2004 :
b . :
{ : WH-Erste Grundstieks - oo L 11-°
P GmbH& Co KG, Waltersdorf 9400 © - 9400 - €00 194431 130,072 3,304 31122004
© WH- Zwelte Grundstudcs Verw:itungs ) 7 . ’ 11~
! GmbH, Waltersdorf ; 100,00 10000 € 21 20 -4 31.12.2004 -
© WH-Zwelte Grundstucks e : L A C1led
¢ GmbH & Co G, Waltersdor f 10000 94,00 € 58,640 58,628 -12,359 31122004 K
t T .
{© WHIWorttemberger Hypommo- ) ‘ ok
+. billenbewertungs- und Beratungs- ) _ ‘ L1~}
{ .gesellschaft rabH, Stuttgart 10000 10000 € mnm 156 55 31122004
t Other nvestments i ;
Banks and other ﬂnanaal instltutlons )
‘ SthtgarterVol(sbankAG. o Lo 11-. !
1 Stuttgart R 018 -0.18 € 1659476 . 115621 2,434 '31 12.2004
. E Other \‘.‘:)marx'ller ; ' E
E Aerodrom Bureau Verwaltungs G:n bH, - o 11-7.1
Yogerdin . - ' 3200 3200 - € 608 - 22 31122003°
H ! Rt d - L
" Aglr Varmogensverwal tung N : i
GmbH & Co. Kti, Munich 0. 01 001 € 27,017 26,714 815 31.12.2004
"Profluloss:tnmferw partners dus to proﬂl abd-Gii-transher lgreement - ' b {_ . , ’ ;
i . k] - 4
H t N B . i
: M weoo Lo - ) . » - ]
. ]L = : . i
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Holdlngsol . ' - - . ! '
;HYPo:Rea[ Es‘%ateHCjidinBAG; - Interestin s : ot asset ‘qulty , - Net income . I .
: b tocal Sec. 16 (4) of which ’ T loss . Altermative ;
; n K . StockCorp.Act  -held inckrectly - Currercy inthousand ‘in thousand inthousand  finarxial sear !
N AerortBureauVe'waltungs GmbH : . s B . Sl ) .o 1 !
7 Berlin . 32.00 3200 € 206 ™ 151 160 31122003 .
) : Amarfos Gfundsﬁ]dsgese]léchaff R 7 S . 1i-, i
. mbH & Co'KG, Beilin 250 250 € 34723 -12,350 906 31127004 °
: Bayerlsche Lande,sledlung GmbH : . s . Tt ' 11— . .
© Munich . 1294 7 294 € - 265327 . . 69516 - 13,562 31.12.2004i - g 7
3 Burleigh Court (Barnsley) _ - . ’ ' i
S ManagementLlrr.ited London 2000 2000 - GBL - - - . l .
, ; T ]
L DeutschesTheah-r Grund- . N ) ? b
 und-Hausbesltz GimbH, : . : ! .
# Munich - G 3.30 330 € 11980 <2313 =233 31 122004 .
; M‘ o B N ks . ' - N " . 'i
3 QWG Gemelnniiizige Wohnstatten- : . E !
. und Sledlungsge,e Ischaften mbH o . . B ] 1_1__, .
‘Munlch >0 >0 € 883380 169,069 832 31.12.2004
! thit Grundstucks Verwaltungs- ' ) o b
" gesellschaftmbl-l & Co KG, - . s ; . T CoLi- ;
¢ Grunwald . S 500 5,00, - € 71778 -13,97% -1633 311220041 % :
‘ tnula Grundstud 3 Verwaltungs— : _' B ' -P.=
: gesellschaﬂmbl!&to KG . T P e _ 1.1 4
5 Granwatd . L1009 - 1000 £ 112594,  -45333 _-2,689  31122003° i
. e - = R T
I Kauthofplus Grundstﬂd:évermi'etungs- i . o
< gesellschaftmbH & Co Objekt - L : S - 7 O 1r-"
Bahnhof Berlin kG, Dusseldorf 5.00 502" € 44868 -10,103 135 31122004
‘ KOROSG;yndstuicks-Verwaliungs . o S 11-, . e
© GmbH &0 KG, Gronwald 250 250 € 21350 - 183 31122004 :
T ; ) - T T T - . : .
~ LEG Land’esent\h iKlungsgesellschaft )
Nadrheln Westfaten GmbH, | ‘ o - - L . ] 1i~.
= Dusseldorf i- - - >0 - 30 - € 1,385,255 191400 - 27052 0 311220047 | ’
B LHl Im mobilien onds\’erwaltungs E . PR - ‘L g .
" GmbH & Co, Objekt Hettstedt KG, : : o . 1i-- ! :
-1 Munich : 509 509 € 14634 7 -3,753 645 31122004 ¢ !
. E o o . i r
i Projektentwlcklung Sdﬁbnefe%d R
" Verwaltiingsgesellschaft mbH, . 11" ’
Stuttgart 50,00 5000 € 29 B 2 maomi |
., SANO G;Lndstild:s Mermietungs- . ‘ l ‘ !
. gesellschaftth B Co Objekt - ) ’ i o ) o - Ll \
i DresdenKG, DCsséldorf ’ 1331 23331 € . 1p433. - -3585. -456 31122004 l
" SOMACiundsticks Veimletungs- ; ‘ _ SR
"% geseltschaft mBH & Co. Obrekt : . E o ! N SR . . 11-;

! DarmstadtKG, Disseldor f © 3333 . (31334 - € 34,494, .. =5,480 _-677 31122004} .

~ s P:ojektentwidclungSchmefeld S i o R i ‘

“i GmbH & Co K¢, Stuttgart 50.00 & - ;-5000 € 30,3238 " .29,406 . 19 311220040 & - .

. ViéfteA_i;portEureau CenterKG -A. . ‘ i . i
Alrport Bureau Verwal tungs : Co L B 11~ v
GmbH & Co, Barlin : 32.00 3200 € 13,892 < 808 . =158 31122004 { E

; WILMA jB'u.rwands Bauprojekte . D

. GmbH & Co. .An den Teichen® KG, : . . . ‘ . ; Ll-;, 2

| Ratingen 5.00 5,00 € 307 123 © .59 31122004

T Wisus éeteﬂlgmgs GmbH & Co. ' ; :
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Auditor’s Report Financial Statements (43
. : i . Enciosures to the Notes

. - ALY

J—

We have audited the annual financial statements, com-
ptising th:é balance sheet, the income statement and
the notes to the financial statements, together with the
bookkeepmg systerd and the management raport of the
Hypo Real:Estate Holdmg AG, Munchen for 'the busi-

ness year from 1 January 2005 to 31 Docember 2005.,

~ The mamtienanq.e of the books and records and the prep-

aration of'the apnual financial statements and manage-
ment raport in c»CCO['daU-CE with German commerczal law
are the respon«:blilty of the Company’s managamant
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the an-

“nual financial ;tatements togather with the bookkeep-

ing system an:i the managament report basad on our
audlt . A Lo e et

We conducted our audit of the.annual financial state-
ments int accordance with § 317 HGB {“Handelsgesatz-
buch: German Commercial Code”] 42d German generally
accepted stand.1rd3 for the audit.of financial statemants_
promu]gated by. the Institut der W)rtschaftsprufer in
Deutschland [[astitute of Public Audltors in Germany],
(IDW).. Those standards require that we plan and per-

form the audlt guch that misstatements materially ; affect

ing the prasentat]on of the nat assets, financial position
and results of operations in the annual financial state-

ments.in accordance with German principles of proper .

accountmg and in-the management report are datected .
with reasonable assurance. Knowlecige of the business
activities and the eoonomlc and legal environment of

" the Company and gvaluations of possible misstatements

are taken inte account in determination of audit procs-
dures. The effe:ctiveness of the accounting related inter-
nal contro} system and avidencs supportmg thé disclo-

— R
. 5 .

L R

. Pasl{ert
Wirtschaftspriifer

sures in the books and records, the arnual financial
statements and the management report are examined
piimarily on a test basis within the framework of the
audit, “The audit ‘includes assessing the accounting
prmclples used and significant estimates made by
ranagement, as'well as evaluating the overall presen-

" tation of the annual financial statements and manage-

ment report. .We believe that our audit pwwdes a rea-
sonahle basisifor our oplmon

S

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

'In-out opinion, based on the findings of our audit the

- annual Iinanciai' statements comply with the legal re-

quirements and give a true and fair view of the net
assets, financial position and results of operations of
the Company in accordance with German principles of
propsr accountmg The management teport is consist-
‘ent’ with the fmanmal statements and as a whole pro-
Vides a suitable view of the Company’s position and
suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future
development.

Cm . 1 e,
Munich‘. 15 March 2008

KPMG Dautsche Treuhand- Gese!ischa&
Aktlengese]lschaft

ertschaftspru Eungsgesellschaft

Fa
-+

Techet
Wirtschaftspriifer

C . Auditor’s Report

;
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. Hypo |mReal Estate -

1l T GROUP

-t

Press release

Hypo Real Estate Group continues course for success in 2005

¢ Return on equity after taxes (adjusted by restructuring
expenses): 8.0%

e Conseolidated net income before taxes of EUR 408 million is
within the budgeted range, despite one-off charge

¢ Adjusted net income up from EUR 168 million to EUR 313
million

e New business of EUR 22.3 billion up by more than 75%

compared with last year

Successful new start to Germany business

Significant dividend increase to EUR 1 per share

New Group structure has been successfully implemented

Further considerable increase in earnings expected in 2006

Munich, 29 March 2006: The Hypo Real Estate Group has continued its
course of success in 2005, and has met or exceeded its economic targets. The
international real estate financier which has been listed in the DAX since
December of last year has considerably exceeded its own expectations in
terms of new business, has reported significantly higher eamings, as was the
case last year, and consequently plans to almost triple the dividend for 2005.
For the current financial year 2006, the Management Board, as announced in

January, expects to see a further significant increase in ¢amings.

New business in the Group

Real estate financing new business amounted to EUR 22.3 biilion last year,
and thus exceeded not only the previous year figure (EUR 12.6 billion}; it
also considerably exceeded the budgeted figure of EUR 13.5 billion. All
three segments performed considerably better than budget. The strong
growth is attributable to the greater penetration of existing and new
international markets as well as the good start made by Hypo Real Estate

Germany, which only resumed new business in the autumn of 2004.
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Development in earnings, Group

s Consolidated net income before taxes for 2005 amounted to EUR
408 million, and was thus within the target range of EUR 400 million
to EUR 425 million, and was 84.6% up compared with the previous
year figure (EUR 221 million). This figure includes one-off charges
of EUR 34 million attributable to the reorganisation of the new
Group structure which has been effective since | January 2006.
Without this exceptional factor, consolidated net income before taxes
would have been EUR 442 million, thus considerably Higher than the
original forecast.

s Reported net income - excluding the deferred tax effects from
capitalised losses carried forward — increased from EUR 168 million
to EUR 313 million (+86.3%). Including these effects, the increase
was from EUR 271 million to EUR 359 million (+32.5%]}.

+ Return on equity after taxes on the basis of adjusted net income
doubled to 8.0% (excluding restructuring expenses), and was at the
upper end of the target range of 7.5% to 8.0%. Including -
restructuring expenses, return on equity after taxes adjusted by the
deferred tax effects amounted to 7.4%. Accordingly, as announced,
the Hypo Real Estate Group has for the first time covered its capital
costs, two years earlier than originally planned on the occasion of the
spin-off from HVB AG.

| . s  Operating revenues totalled EUR 909 million in line with the budget,

| an increase of 8.9% (2004: EUR 835 million).

| o Net interest income increased by 0.3% to EUR 685 million;
the positive growth in the international portfolio
compensated for the negative impact on interest income due
to the significant downsizing of the domestic portfolio which
has taken place in recent years.

o Provisions for losses on loans and advances amounted to

EUR 149 millibn, and were considerably lower than the
corresponding previous year figure (EUR 276 million; this
figure included a risk shelter of EUR 130 million provided
by HVB), and were significantly lower than budget (EUR
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180 million to EUR 190 million). The decline is attributable
to the consistent portfolio streamlining in Germany and also

the risk-aware new business policy.

e  The main drivers behind the: good earnings performance of the
Group, apart from the net interest income resulting from good real
estate financing new business, were as follows:

o Net commission income, which improved by 33.0% to EUR
125 million, and which benefited from the strong new
business;

o Net trading income improved from EUR 11 million to EUR
27 million as a result of the increasingly successful activities
of the capital markets unit and

o Net income from investments improved by EUR 20 million
to EUR 67 million as a result of the positive capital market

climate.

Q4 2005

For the fourth quarter of 2003, the Hypo Real Estate Group has reported net
income before taxes (excluding restructuring expenses) of EUR 115 million,
74.2% up compared with the figure for the same previous year quarter (EUR
66 million). Including restructuring expenses incurred in connection with the
reorganisation of the Group, net income for the quarter (excluding the
deferred tax effects from capitalised losses carried forward) of EUR 70
million was considerably higher than the corresponding previous year figure
for the quarter (EUR 48 million), but of course was lower than in the first

three quarters excluding restructuring expenses.

Profit distribution

As announced on 25 January, the Management Board and Supervisory Board
will propose to the shareholders’ meeting on 8 May 2006 that a dividend of
EUR 1.00 per share be paid for 2005 as a result of the good earnings
performance. This is roughly equivalent to a three-fold increase compared
with the previous year figure (EUR 0.35 per share). This means that 42.8%

of the consolidated net income adjusted by the tax effects from capitalised
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losses carried forward would be paid out in the form of a dividend, and the
Hypo Real Estate Group accordingly already meets the objective range of 40
- 50%.

Balance sheet development

e Consolidated assets as of 31 December 2005 amounted to EUR
152.5 billion, EUR 4.3 billion higher than the corresponding figure at
the end of 2004. Higher trading assets (particularly in capital
markets} as well as higher financial investments were opposed to the
decline in public sector loans (which are not consistent with overall
strategy) at Hypo Real Estate Germany,

s Total volume of lending declined further by EUR 6.7 billion to EUR
92.4 billion as a result of the reduction in public sector loans at Hypo
Real Estate Germany.

¢ Risk assets increased by EUR 5.3 billion to EUR 56.3 billion as a
result of strong new business.

s As aresult of increased risk assets, the core capital ratio declined
from 8.3% to 7.8%; the equity funds ratio declined from 11.7% to
10.8%. Despite these declines, the Group still enjoys very sound

capital backing on the balance sheet date.
Qutlook for 2006

As announced, the Hypo Real Estate Group has had a new Group structure
since 1 January 2006.
¢ Following the combination of the international real estate financing
portfolios from Hypo Real Estate Bank International in Dublin and
from Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank AG, the Group's entire
international business is now pooled at Hypo Real Estate Bank
International AG (the former WiirttHyp) which is based in Stuttgart.
¢ Hypo Real Estate Bank AG in Munich acts as the centre of
competence for the German market.
o The former Hypo Real Estate Bank International in Dublin now
trades as Hypo Public Finance Bank, which offers investors a

comprehensive range of services in the field of state financing (e.g.
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infrastructure projects), capital market business (innovative financing

products) and asset management for institutional clients.

The Management Board expects that the new structure will further boost the
Group's efficiency in the markets and will also further reduce the cost-

income ratio.

In terms of the various markets, demand in Germany for large-volume real
estate financing is expected to rise again for the first time in many years in
2006, Outside Germany, the focus will increasingly shift away from
established markets such as Europe and the USA towards growth countries
such as Japan, India and Korea. The Hypo Real Estate Group is taking
account of this development by way of a specific policy of expansion in the
Asia-Pacific region. Overall, the Hypo Real Estate Group expects to generate

new business of the same order of magnitude as seen in 2005,

On the above basis, the Management Board expects to see consolidated net
income before taxes increase by at least 20% in 2006, starting from the
previous year figure of EUR 442 million which was adjusted by restructuring
expenses. This means that net income before taxes would be at least EUR

530 million. Return on equity after taxes is expected to rise to more than 9%.

Georg Funke, CEQ of Hype Real Estate Holding AG: "The Hypo Real
Estate Group in 2005 has smoothly continued the excellent performance seen
since the spin-off from HVB in 2003, and has continued its story of success.
We have established a position of strength which enables us to take
advantage of growth opportunities wherever they arise and wherever they are
consistent with our risk and return requirements, We have also identified
such opportunities at the new Hypo Public Finance Bank, whose activities
we intend to considerably expand in the course of the next years. Know-how,
flexibility, speed of action and pleasure in innovation will continue to

characterise our actions.”
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Information concerning the segments
(in the structures valid until the end of 2005)

Hypo Real Estate International

» New business with real estate financing increased significantly in
2005 from EUR 9.8 billion to EUR 15.1 billion. Of this figure,
Europe accounted for EUR 9.6 billion and America/Asia accounted
for EUR 5.5 billion. The market success demonstrates the
effectiveness of the regional sales platforms for Europe, America and
Asia which were introduced at the beginning of 2005.

s Operating revenues increased by 26.8% from EUR 365 million to
EUR 463 million, due to excellent new business, which however is
not yet fully generating interest. As was the case in the previous
year, no individual allowances were incurred in relation to the
financing portfolio in 2005, underlining the high quality of the
portfolio,

¢ Net income before taxes for the business segment expanded from
EUR 195 million by EUR 93 million to EUR 288 million. Retum on
equity after taxes increased by 2.9 percentage points to 13.0%
(excluding the effects from capitalised losses carried forward).

e The segment used a wide range of funding resources in 2005, and
adapted its funding base to the growth in lending business. This
included the "Medium Term Note"- programme which has been
increased to a total of EUR 15 billion, and out of which bonds of
EUR 3.5 billion were issued in the year under review, the issue of ‘
further tranches under the EUR 3 billion “commercial paper”
programme and the issue of an EUR 2 billion "Certificat de Dépots"

programme constituted under French law.

Wiirttembergische Hypothekenbank (WiirttHyp)
s In order to optimise the Group structure, it was decided that outside
shareholders (representing approx. 2% of share capital} would be
squeezed out at WiirttHyp in 2005; this resolution was successfully

implemented, and in consequence Hypo Real Estate Holding AG
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held 100% of shares in the subsidiary at the end of the year under
review.

e In 2005, WiirttHyp reported real estate new financing business of
EUR 4.4 billion compared with EUR 2.5 billion in 2004 (+76 %).
This new business was generated almost exclusively in the markets
of Western Europe and in the USA. In consequence, operating
revenues increased from EUR 116 million to EUR 129 million.

* Net income before taxes increased from EUR 60 million to EUR 76
million. WiiritHyp benefited again from its stable, low risk and
Pfandbrief-based business model. Return on equity after taxes

improved from 9.0% to 11.0%.

Hypo Real Estate Germany

¢ Following the resumption of new business in the autumn of 2004,
Hypo Real Estate Bank AG made an impressive return to fhe
German real estate financing market. With new business of EUR 2.8
bitlion, the budgeted figure of EUR 1 billion was comfortably
exceeded. Not only the velume but also the size and quality of
individual financing arrangements demonstrate that the bank has
again quickly become a leading address on the German market for
large-volume commercial real estate financing.

+ Operating revenues declined as expected to EUR 322 mill‘ion from
EUR 358 million in the previous year, due to the portfolio which was
streamlined in line with overall strategy.

« Provisions for losses on loans and advances were reduced by EUR
100 million to EUR 120 million thanks to the drastic improvement in
portfolio quality. The previous year figure was also the last time that
a risk shelter of EUR 130 million provided by HVB to the bank was
reflected in the figure.

e  The cost-income ratio declined by 4.8 percentage points to 30.4% as
a result of leaner structures and a reduced cost base.

o The segment has reported net income before taxes of EUR 104
million for 2005, thus reporting a positive figure for the first time

since the spin-off from HVB (2004: EUR -9 million). Return on
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equity after taxes (excluding the effects from capitalised losses

carried forward) advanced from -0.5% to +4.2%.

Press contact:

Hypo Real Estate Group

Oliver Gruf8

Telephone: +49 (0)89 203007 781
Telefax: +49 (0)89 203007 772
Email:oliver.gruss(@hyporealestate.com
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Hypo Real Estate Group (IFRS)

Income statement for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2005
|Incomelexpenses in € milion [ i
f

2005 2004 Change

in € million} in %|
Interest income 7,074 6,945 129 1.9
Interest expenses 6,389 6,262 127 2.0
Net interest Income 685 683 2 0.3
Provisions for losses on loans and advances 149 276 127 -46.0
Net interest income after provisions for losses on loans and f
advances : 536 407 129 317
Commission income 171 163 8 49
Commission expenses 46 68 -23 '33'3.
Net commission income 125 94 3 33.9
Net trading Income 27 " 16 >100.0
Net income from investments 67 47 20 42.@‘
General administrative expenses 317 315 2 0.§
Balance of other operating income/expenses 5 0 5 >100.Q
Operating profit/loss 443 244 199 81 §
Balance of other incorme/expenses -35 -23 -12 -52.2
theraof: ’

Restructuring experisas 34 21 13 61.9
Net income/loss before taxes 408 21 187 84.6
Taxes on income 49 -50 a9 >100.0

thereof:

Deferred taxes on capitalised losses carried forward -46 -103 57 553
Net income/loss 359 2M 88 325
attributable to:

Equity holders (consclidated profit) 3589 270 89 33.|0
Minority interests 0 1 -1 -100.0
359 271 88 32'5

9

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

Page 241 of 245



Hypo Real Estate Group

Income statement by business segment

[incometax penses in € mition

HRE) WitrttHyp HREGe Otherl] HREG
. Consolidation]
Net interest incoma
2005 287 122 283 -7 685
2004 . 224 108 354 -3 683
Provisions for losses on loans and advances
2005 1" 18 120 0 149
2004 33 23 220/ 0 278
et interest income after provisions for losses on loans and |
advances :
2005 276 104 163 -7 53&:
2004 191 85 134 -3 407
Net commission incomae |
2005 135 -9 -1 0 125
2004 126 -6 -25 -1 23
Net trading income ]
2005 27 0 0 0 21
2004 11 0 4] 1] 1
Nat ingome from investments I
2005 12 16 39 0 6?’
2004 3 14 31 -1 47
General administrative axpienses I
2005 ' 163 35 28 21 317
2004 136 33 126 20 315
Batance of other operating income/expenses f
2005 2 0 1 2 5
2004 1 0 -2 1 0
Operating proflt/loss |
2005 289 76 104 -26 443
2004 196 60 12 =24, 244
Balance of other income/e:penses I
2005 -1 0 0 -34 35
2004 -1 0 21 -1 =23
therecf; |
Restructuring expenses I
2005 0 0 0 34 34
2004 0 ol 21 0 Fal
Net income/loss before taxes ’
2005 283 76 104 -60 498
2004 185 60 -8 -25 2
Taxes on income'’ |
2005 60 1 24 10 ?5
2004 47 1 1 4 53
Netincome/loss™ I
2005 228 75 B0 -1 ERE]
2004 148 59 -10, =29 168

"} Excluding the effects from capitalised losses camied forward of € 46 mitlion in Hypo Real Estate Group in 2005 (2004: € 103 millian)

Enclosures, 29 March 2006

10

Page 2?2 of 245



Hypo Real Estate Group
Summary of quarterly financial data

[Hypo Real Estate Group

r
!

4th Quarter 2004 1st Quarter 2005 2nd Quarter 2005 3rd Quarter 2005 Ath Quarter 2005

Opoerating performancae (in € million)

Operating revenues 220 210 225 233 24
Net intarast ingome 176 185 165 171 184
Net commission income 10 23 38 33 31
Net trading income ] 7 7 12 1
Net income from investments 33 11 12 16 28
Balance of other cperating Income/expenses -5 4 3 1 -3

Provisions for logses on loens and advances 55 35 36 41 37

General administrative expanses 86 73 % ' 79 89

Batance of other income/expenses {excluding restructuring

axpenses) -13 0 [\] -1 0

Nat income/loss before tax3s (excluding restructuring expenses) 66 102 113J 112 115

Rastructuring axpenses 0 4] . 0 0 M

Net incomefloss before taxas 66 102 113 112 81

Nat incomefloss" 48 78 83 82 70

Koy indicators ]l

Total volume of lending (in € billion) 99.1 96.2 956 93.9 92.4

Risk assets compliant with BIS rules {in € bilion) 51.0 51.1 52.9 53.2 56.3

Core capital ratio compliart with BIS rules {in %) 8.3¢ 82 79 7.8 7.8

Employees 1,311 1,287 1,259 1,258 1,233

T Excluding the affects from czpitalised losses camied forward  * As per approved annual financial statements and after profit distibution

[Hypo Real Estate Intarnztlonal 1]

Ath Quarter 2004] 18t Quarter 2005 2nd Quarter 2005] 3rd Quarter 2005] 4th Quarter 2095|
1

Operaling performance 1n € million) |

QOparating revenues 88 102 139 128 124
Net interest income 60 65 65 T4 83
Net commission incoma 23 29 k) 39 36
Net trading income 6 7 7 12 1
Net income from investmaents 2 0 5 2 5
Batance of other operazing income/expenses -2 1 1 1 !'-1

Provisions for losses on loans and advances -9 2 Q 7 | 2

General administrative e»penses 40 37 a7 42| 47

Balance of other incomefaxpenses -1 0 0 -1 l 0

Net incomefoss before taxes 57 63 72 78 75

Net incomeftoss™ 42 47 52 : 56 l'73

Koy indicators l

Total volume of lending ¢'n € billion) 17.8 17.9 19.6 201 201

Risk assets compliant wilth BIS rules (in € biflion) 17.3 178 19.9 20.2 21.2

Core capital ratioc complint with BIS rules in %) 929 10.1 9.1 89 8;9"

Employees 504 499 484 492 452

" Excluding the effects from sapitalised losses carried forward *! As per approved annual financial staternants
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Hypo Real Estate Group

Summary of quarterly financial data (cont.)

wirttembergische Hypothokenbank

]

4th Quarter 20041 1st Quarter 2005 2nd Quarter 2005 3rd Quarter 2005 4th Guarter 2005

Qporating performanca (in € million)

Operating revenues 32 32 32 29 36
Net interest income 26 30 23t N 28
Net commisslon income -2 -2 -2 -3 -2
Net trading income 0 4] 0 0 0
Net income from investments 9 4 1 1 10
Balance of other operating income/expenses -1 H 0 0 g

Provisions for losses on logns and advances 2] 3 6 4 5

General administrative expanses 9 8 7 9 1

Balance of pther income/expensas 0 o 0 4] g

Net incomefloss befora taxas 14 21 18 16 20

Net incomefloss 13 19 19 14 23

Kay indicators

Total voluma of lending {in € bilfion) 205 203 204 19.5 19.5

Risk assets compliant with BIS rules (in € billion) 10.1 10.5 10.6 10.7 12.4

Core capital ratio compliant with BIS rules (in %) 7.1Y 68 6.3 6.7 6.3}'

Employees ] 171 178 179 179 197

Yas per approved annual finandiat statements

[Hypo Real Estate Deutschland 1]
) !
4th Quarter 2004] 1st Quarter 2005 2nd Quarter 2005] 3rd Quartor 2005] 4th Quarter 20?5]

Operating performance {in € million} |

Operating revenues 99 77 85 77 83
Net interast income 90 72 68 67 76
Net commission income -10 -3] 8 -3 i3
Net trading income 4] [l 4 0 IO
Net incoma from investments 22 ! B 13 13
Balance of other operaling income/axpenses -3 1 3 0 :—3

Provisions for losses on lnans and advances 55 30 30 30 30

General administrative expanses kY 24 26 23 25

Balance of other income/axpenses -1 0 0 0 |o

Nat incomefloss before tz xes 2 23 29 24 28

Net incomefloss " 0 19 22 18 21

Koy indicators

Total volume of lending (in € billion) 62.2 59.2 56.7 549 536

Risk assets compliant with BES rules {in € billion) 24.2 234 23.0 228 24.0

Cora capital ratio compliant with B1S rules (in %} 8.49 7.9 8.0 8.1 7.7

Employees 592 560 Sd44 534 520

" Excluding tha sffacls rom capitalised losses carried forward 7 As per approved annual financlal statements

12
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Hypo Real Estate Group
Key ratios by business segment

[Key ratios in % ]
|
HREL WarttHyp HREGe HREG
Cost-income ratio (based on operating ravenues}
2005 35.2 274 304 M8
2004 n3 28.4 352 a7
Retum on equity after taxes" '
2005 13.0 1.0 42 74
2004 10.1 9.0 0.5 4.0

1 Excluding the effects from caplialised iosses carried forward

Balance sheet figures

[Total assats in € milion 1)
]
HREI WiirttHyp, HREGe Other HREG
) Consolidation !
31.12.2005 33,338 38,378 85,400 -5,656 152.469
31.12.2004 . 23,072 34,583 91,978 -1,505 148,128
|Total volume of lending ir € milion ) i
3
HREI WilrttHyp HREGa QOther HREF
Consolidati
31.12.2005 : 20141 19,451 53,567 791 92,36.8
31.12.2004 17 811 20,518 62,197 -1.414 99.112
|Key capital ratios compilant with BIS rules : 1]
|
HREI WiirttHyp HREGe HREG
Risk-weighted assets (in € bilkon) ’ H
31.12.2005 21.2 124 240 56.'3
31.12.2004 17.3 10.1 24,2 51.0
Corg capitat ratio™ {in %) |
31,12.2005 8.9 6.3 1.7 7.8
31.12.2004 9.2 7.1 8.4 8.3

I As per approved ennual financial stalaments and after profit distribution

Further information:
The annual report for 2005 of the Hypo Real Estate Group is available on the internet at
www.hyporealestate.com.

The accounts press conference of the Hypo Real Estate Group will be held today, at 10.00
hours, on the premises of Hypo Real Estate Holding AG, Unséldstrafie 2, 80538 Munich.

13

Enclosures, 29 March 2006 Page ZiS of 245

W o ]



